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l, Maqsood Ahrnad, being the duly authorized representative of Atlas Energy Limited by virtue ofBoard 
Resolution dated Feb 04. 2019, hereby apply to National Electric Power Regulatory Authority for the 
Grant of Generation License/ Concurrence to Atlas Energy Limited pursuant to section l 4(B )(5) of the 
Regulation of Generation, Transmission and Distribution of Electric Power Act, 1997. 

I certify that the documents-in-support attached with this application are prepared and submitted in· 
conformity with the provisions of the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority Licensing 
(Application, Modification, Extension and Cancellation) Procedure Regulations, 2021 and undertake to 
abide by the terms and provisions of the above-said regulations. I further undertake and confirm that 
the information provided in the attached documents-in-support is true and correct to the best of my 
knowledge and belief. 

A HBL Pay order No. 24658463 dated February 19, 2025, amounting Rupees 500,306/- (Rupees Five 
Hundred Thousand Three Hundred Six Only), being the non-refundable license application fee 
calculated in accordance with Schedule II to the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority 
Licensing (Application, Modification, Extension and Cancellation) Procedure Regulations, 2021, is 
also attached herewith. 

Dear Sir, 

Subject: Application for Generation License/ Concurren~ Application for 2001.36 kW Solar 
Power Generation Facility at Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited, 43-km Multan Road 
manga Mandi. Labore. · 
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The Registrar 
National Electric Power Regulatory Authority 
NEPRA Tower Attaturk Avenue (East), 
Sector G-5/1, 
Islamabad, Pakistan. 

February 20, 2025 , 
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Attached , verifiable references in respect of the experience of the apphca nl 

j and its proposed sub-contractors; 
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Attached 

Attached 

I ··--- ··-- .. ··- 
3( 4 l(d)(vii) 

! I _ 

; 3r4id)(ix) 
I ' ' 
I 
l 

: 3(4)(d)(vi) * ::i reasonahly detailed profile of the applicant and the applicant's 
J I senior management, teclmical and professional staff; ! 
r·~l(4)(d){vii) --1 employment records of engineering and technical staffofthe··--t~~~~«;·~hcd 
. I - - , 

'. appli1.:ct11l pll1pu::-cu !u be ernpluyt:<l; : 
j profile of sub-contractors, if any, along with expression; ~j- ... 
! interest of such sub-contractors; 

Attached i documents rlr:srrihing the net worth and the equity and debt ratios 
I of the applicant, as on the date of the audited balance sheet 
, accompanying the application; 

Attached I expressions of i~terest to provide creel it or financing ~I one with 
, sources and details thereof; 

Attached i latest audited financinl statements of the applicant; 

Attached 

i 
I 

j details uf charges or encumbrances attached to the appli~·;nt's ! 
· assets, if any; 

Attached I 
•. 

I ---i 
I 

/ evidence of cash balances held in reserve by the applicant, along 
1i 

with bunk certificates; 

r-,(4 )( d)(v) 

! 
I 

I 3(1)(d)(iii) 

i 3( 4)( d)(iv) 
i 
I 
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applicable documents-in-support and information set out m 
I I Schedule Ill of these regulations; 

i 3( 4)( d)(i) 
i 

4"h\4){d)(ii) 
i 

-- 
I 3(4)(b) * a prospectus Attached 

I 
I 

I certified copies of certificate of incorporation I 
... - 

3(4)(c)(i)(a) * ! Attached 
! I 

3(4)(c)(i)(b) * certified copies of memorandum and articles of association Attached 

3(4)(c)(i)(c) * certified copies of annual reports of the company Attached 

3(4)(c)(ii) * the last annual return of the Company submitted in compliance of 
, section 130 of the Companies Act or, in case of an applicant to 

whom section 130 of the Companies Act does not apply, a return Attached 
comprising of all such information and particulars as required by 
the specified form under section 130 of the Companies Act, as the 
case maybe; 

3(4)(c)(iii) the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the Attached 
I applicant 

! 3(4)(c)(iv) ! the shareholding pattern of the applicant including list of I 
I ! shareholders holding 5% or more shares, number of shares held Attached I I I 

I lb each of them and ercenta e shares of the total aid-u ca ital ! 

Attached 3(4)(a) 

_3(_1_)_*~~~~~A_p_p_li_~_t_~_n_~_e_e_0_n_cl_u_d_in_g_I_n_&_x_a_ti_o_aj~~~~~~~~~-·l-~ __ A«ac~d 

3(3) Application submitted in triplicate Attached 

. i Information/ Documents i 
Regulation# Information/Documents Required i Submitted 

Name of Company: Atjas Energy Limited Instal1ed Capacity: 2.001.36 k Wp 

CHECK LrnT FOR EXAl\tlNATION OF LlCEt"CE ATi'UCATiG~, 
FOR RENEWABLE POWER PROJECT 

(Regulation 3 read with 3(4)(A) of AMECPR-20ill 



3(4)(a) applicable documents-in-support and information set 
out in Schedule III of these regulations 

Applicano» for Generation Lice11~·e 
:>JJOJ.36 kWp Sular Power Plant 

At Honda Ai/tis Cars (Pakistan) Limited 
43 KM, Mu/um Road, Mango Mandi. Lahore 

Submitted bJ': Alias Energy Limited 

~nf~tlasEnergv .......... 



1. Interconnection study 
Not Applicable: It is a distributed solar system and Power Generated through this 

system will be consumed in-house by the relevant Office/ Plant wherein the system 
would be installed. 

• • <;' .•. -~'.•.-.,•~ ,.;· ... ,•,,· '• ;., •• : . •-•• ,....-.u-•~ 
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Application for Generation Lice,ise 
2.IJIJJ.36 kWp Solar Power Plant 

Al Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) limi1ed 
43 KM. Mu/um Road, Manga Mandi, L"hore 

Submitted by: Atlas Energy Limited 

1)1f~ tlasEnergy 



2. Environment Impact Assessment Study 

Appiicution for Generatio« Licem,e 
2,001.36 kWp Solar Power Plan; 

At Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limized 
43 KM. M11lta11 Road, Mango Mandi, Lahore 

S11bmit1ed by: Atlas Energy Umited 



• 

ENVIROMENT IMPACT ASSEMENT STUDY 

i· ~, \- I 1 . : I; · ,..; I ! : . : ' ; ' ! ! ; • ·.ll I , : ;: ( ~'' • ~ ' : ' .' : t , • • ',' 

';.i H~-· ·,_,. i,\.~:·r ':r+ .II f ,; ~_i: + I .d l~i .:,1:.! .fl.'. ;,1" (;p p d.i .l.11, '. i1,1;1.- -:t 
~-,~-· ~·h· :v,, . .-::'.,j 1-c:ccrv;:r,f-?1/.-1(:,;~f·_:1;:: 

~-Iii· 
,' \ t ! '. - rl 'I, .. i-'_ .·\ ;'\l d:'.>L h. .. 1.::-' 



• Energy Efficiency: Reduce reliance on grid electricity and diesel generators, 
lowering operational costs. 

• Environmental Impact: Decrease greenhouse gas emissions and minimize the 
carbon footpnnt of Atlas Honda Limited. 

• Snstainahility: Promote the use of renewable energy and contribute to the company s 
sustainability targets. 

d. Objt:'Clives 

c. Project Location 
The proposed site for the solar plant is within the premises of Honda Atlas Cars Private 
Limited, located at 43-KM Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. The site is situated in 
an industrial area with existing infrastructure suitable for the installation, including rooftops 
and open spaces that can accommodate solar panels. 

b. Purpose of the EIA 
The Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) report is prepared to assess the potential 
environmental impacts associated with the solar plant installation. This report will identify, 
evaluate, and propose mitigation measures to address the environmental effects of the 
project, ensuring compliance with local regulations and sustainable development principles. 

a. Project Overview 
Atlas Energy Limited proposes the installation of a solar power plant at the Honda Atlas 
Cars Private Limited site in Lahore. The project aims to reduce carbon footprint and energy 
costs by transitioning to renewable energy sources, aligning with the company's 
sustainability goals. 

Extensive fossil fuel consumption in almost all human activities has led to some undesirable 
phenomena such as atmospheric and environmental pollution, which have not been 
experienced before in known human history. Consequently, global wanning. greenhouse 
effect, climate change, ozone layer depletion, and acid rain tenninolugies ~l<11kJ to appear 
in literature frequently. Since 1970, it has been understood scientifically by experiments and 
research that these phenomena are closely related to fossil fuel uses because they emit 
greenhouse gases such as carbon dioxide (C02) and methane (CH4), which hinder the long­ 
wave terrestrial radiation escape into space, and, consequently, the earth troposphere 
becomes warmer. To avoid further impacts of these phenomena, the two concentrative 
alternatives are either to improve the fossil fuel quality with reductions in their harmful 
emissions into the atmosphere ur, more significantly, to replace fossil fuel usage as much as 
possible with envirorunentally friendly, clean, and renewable energy sources. Among these 
sources, solar energy comes at the top of the list due to its abundance and more even 
distribution in nature than any other renewable energy type, such as wind, geothermal, 
hydro, wave, and tidal energies. Solar energy technologies are essential components of a 
sustainable energy future. Energy from fossil fuels may be inexpensive and assurances may 
have been given of the plentiful supplies of petroleum and other fossil fuels, but these fuels 
are finite in nature and a major source of greenhouse gas emissions. 

I. lntroduction: 

~-_t 1-~r.·1 r·~11,H,:i11 t'.i1,-J(J r -: 1.+J,1~~· r~1;J1:d:, 1..-d1{:ii: 
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Modem societies are becoming increasingly dependent on reliable and secure electricity 
supplies to underpin economic growth and community prosperity. This reliance is set to 
grow as more efficient and less carbon intensive forms of power are developed and deployed 
to help decarbonize economies. Maintaining reliable and secure electricity services while 
seeking to rapidly decarbonize power systems is a key challenge for countries throughout 
the world. In developing economies growth in energy use is closely related to growth in the 
modem sectors - industry, motorized transport, and urban areas - but energy use also reflects 
climatic, geographic, and economic factors (such as the relative price of energy). Energy 
use has been growing rapidly in low- and middle-income economies, but high-income 
economies still use almost five times as much energy on a per capita basis. Governments in 
many countries are increasingly aware of the urgent need to make better use of the world's 
energy resources. Improved energy efficiency is often the most economic and readily 
available means of improving energy security and reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 
Pakistan's per capita energy consumption of Pakistan Generation of electricity in Pakistan 
is largely on furnace oil whose substantial quantity is imported, prices whereof adversely 
affect the generation in the country. Although natural gas is a cheaper fuel however its 
reserves are depleting rapidly. In these circumstances, the use of solar power in Pakistan 
appears to be quite an attractive mode of generation of electric power. F urther, its use does 
not require refining, transporting and conveying fuels and power over long distances. 
Moreover, solar power does not create pollution. Naturally, Pakistan is located in the Sunny 
Belt and can take advantage of its ideal situation for A utilization of solar energy. The 
country potential for solar generation is beyond doubt as it has high solar irradiation and 
enough space for installation of generation system those are ideal for PV and other solar 
energy applications. Villages and other areas which are away from grid or distribution 
system of utilities can also benefit from solar power generation which will also save the 
extra cost oflaying the system and the losses. Solar energy, on the other hand, has excellent 
potential in areas of Pakistan that receive high levels of solar radiation throughout the year. 
Every day, for example, the country receives an average of about 19 Mega Joules per square 
meter of solar energy Pakistan being in the Sun Belt is ideally located to take advantage of 
solar energy technologies. This energy source is widely distributed and abundantly available 
in the country. The mean global irradiation falling on horizontal surface is about 200-250 
watt per sq.min a day. This amounts to about 2500- 3000 sun shine hours and l.9 - 2.3 
MWh per sq. meter in a year. It has an average daily global isolation nf 19 to ~O Ml/sq. 
meter per day with annual mean sunshine duration of 8 to 8.5 hours ( 6-7hrs m cold and lU- 
12 hrs. in hot season) and these values are among the highest in the wo: Id. For daily global 

indicators of its size and level of development. Although a few countries export electric 
power, most production is for domestic consumption. Expanding the supply of electricity 
to meet the growing demand of increasingly urbanized and industrialized economies 
without incurring unacceptable social, economic, and environmental costs is one of the 
great challenges facing developing countries. 

It is a commonly knowledge that the availability of electricity in any country has ~1 direct 
effect on its economy and social factors and therefore, in order to measure the affluence of 
a society, the per capita energy consumption is used as index. An economy's production 
and consumption of electi icily c11 e basic 

2. Rationale: 

43- KM f-i/u.1!tan kuc=d M~ng2 lvl'3nc'i, :...2t··c,rt:_ 
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A significant amount of snowfall occurs in the northern areas, upper Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, 
Kashmir, and northern Balochistan. This snowmelt, combined with seasonal rains, is a 
crucial source of water for the country's reservoirs during the dry season, The water from 
snowmelt and rainfall plays a vital role in supporting the agricultural and socio-economic 
activities of Pakistan. Agriculture in Pakistan is heavily climate-dependent, with each region 
cultivating specific crops and fruits suited to its climate. Any abnormal changes in climate 
conditions can have a severe impact on agriculture and lead to significant economic losses 
for the nation." 

The precipitation in Pakistan is categorized into two main seasons: summer (monsoon) and 
winter. The monsoon rains enter the country from the east and northeast, primarily between 
July and September, bringing substantial rainfall to rhe northern and northeastern regions. 
Winter precipitation (from December to March) is mainly associated with western 
disturbances originating from Iran and Afghanistan. The weather systems from Afghanistan, 
referred to as primary western disturbances, typically affect only the north and northwest of 
the country. In contrast, secondary western disturbances from Iran cover a broader region, 
impacting Balochistan, Punjab, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Kashmir, northern areas, and 
sometimes even Sindh. 

Pakistan is geographically located between approximately 24° to 37° North latitude and 60° 
to 77° East longitude, situated in the western region of South Asia. The distribution of 
rainfall in Pakistan varies widely, primarily influenced by the monsoon winds and western 
disturbances. Rainfall is not distributed evenly throughout the year. For example, Khyber 
Pakhtunkhwa (northern mountains) and Balochistan receive the maximum rainfall between 
December and March, while Punjab and Sindh receive 50- 75% of their rainfall during the 
monsoon season (Kaziet al, 1951; F AO, 1987; Khan, 1993 & 2002; Kureshy, 1998; Luo and 
Lin, 1999). 

a. Study Area: 

3. Euvironmental Assessment Report: 

Pakistan receives about 15.5x10I4 kWh of solar irradiance each year with most regions 
receiving approximately 8 to 10 sunlight hours per day. The installed capacity of solar 
photovoltaic power is estimated to be 1600 GW per year, providing approximately 3.5 
PWh of electricity (a figure approximately 41 times that of current power generation in the 
country). To summarize, the sun shines for 250-300 days per years in Pakistan with 
average sunshine hours of 8- 1 O per day. This gives huge amount of energy to be used for 
electricity generation by solar photovoltaic and solar thermal power plants. A quick idea 
for the potential of solar energy in Pakistan can be obtained from the satellite map of solar 
radiation released by National Renewable Energy Lab (NREL) of USA. 

radiation up to 23MJ/m2, 24 (80%) consecutive days are available in this area for snl1-1r 
energy. Such conditions are ideal for solar thermal applications. 

c H:, At las Energy 
Environmef!tal Impact Assessment Study 
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This zone has mild cold climate and Sub Mountains. localed between 3 I'\: 10 34 N The 
stations are Sialkot, DJ.Khan, Islamabad, Peshawar, Cherat and Lahore. 

Zone B 

Zone A comprises those stations having cold climate and high mountains, situated in the 
north of Pakistan. These stations are Chitral, Gilgit, Muzaffarabad, Said u- Sharif, Skardu, 
.A.s10r0 Dir, Chilas Parachinar and Kaku] These are mostly hill q,'!t1(111s located between 34 
"\! i .. ,S 1'~ in 1lw Himalaya. Hindukaxh :111d Knh-r- S11f11i,l rnountilill 1c1rt~rc, 

78°E 66°E 

Station 

Legend 

Zone A 

24°N 

28°N 

JO"N 

32°N 

34°N 

36°N • 
J8°N 

The detection of rainfall trends faces certain limitations due to the lack (~f clear altitude­ 
r,+1ted rainfall pauerns. For this analysis, a dataset spanning 30 years ( 1976-200:i) was used. 
encompassing 30 stations across Pakistan, from the extreme north to south and c·ast tu west. 
These stations were selected based on factors such as their latitudinal position, elevation 
above sea level, record length, and the completeness and reliability of the data. The goal 
was to provide a comprehensive synoptic view of the entire country. 

l1. ZOIH' Classification: 
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c) Socio-Economic Environment 

c. Existing Environmental Conditions: 

a) Physical Environment 

• Climate: Lahore experiences a hot climate characterized by hot summers and mild 
winters, with high temperatures and low annual rainfall. This climate is well-suited for 
solar energy generation, as the region receives abundant sunshine throughout the year, 
particularly during the summer months. 

• Topography: The project site is relatively flat, with no significant natural features that 
would impact the installation of solar panels. The area's flatness allows for easy 
installation and alignment of solar panels to maximize energy generation. 

• Soil: The soil composition at the site is primarily sandy, with moderate load-bearing 
capacity. This type of soil is suitable for the installation of mounting structures, as it 
allows for the anchoring of equipment with proper foundation design. 

b) Biological Environment 

• Flora and Fauna: The project site is located in an industrial area with minimal 
vegetation and wildlife. Due to the urbanized nature of the area, there are no protected 
species or significant habitats within the vicinity, reducing potential impacts on local 
biodiversity. 

• Air Quality: The air quality in the area is typical of an industrial zone, with occasional 
dust and emissions from nearby factories and vehicles. However, the installation of a 
solar plant will contribute to improving air quality in the long run by reducing 
dependence on fossil fuels. 

• Noise Levels: Noise levels in the area arc consistent with industrial activities, including 
machinery and traffic. The solar plant itself will not significantly contribute to noise 
pollution during its operation, as solar energy generation systems are generally siieru. 

Zone E is a big zone having many stations and coastal cities, near to Arabian Sea. The 
coastal Part comprises only a small part of this region and the climate above coastal parts in 
Balochistan as well as in Sindh province is mostly arid to hyper arid. The selected stations 
from this zone are Hyderabad, Karachi, Nawabshah and Jewani. 

Zone F. 

This is the hottest and dry zone of the country where the highest maximum temperatures are 
recorded in stations of Sibbi and Jacobabad. The area is almost plain with some areas 
included in Thar Desert. Stations included are Sibbi, Jacobabad, Bahawalpure, Khanpur, 
Multan and Rohri. 

Climate is cold in winter and hot in summers. Most of them are mountainous stations with 
high elevations from mean sea level and cover an area between 27 N to 32N and 64 E to 70 
E. Stations included in this zone are Querta, Zhob, Kalat and Khuzdar, 

ZoneD 

ZoneC 

Ef!Vil(ini.-,c:n1,,l frnµ,iHt A~~e~s111t-nt Study 
2,001 3€ l:Wp Solar Project at rioc,Gc Atlas Cars Pakistan Lim1l<'G 
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4. Project Environmental Impacts & Mitigation Measures: 

• Reduced Transmission Losses: The localized nature of solar energy generation 
reduces the need for long transmission lines, minimizing energy losses. 

Sustainable Development and Environmental Impact 

The concept of sustainable development has gained global importance. In line with this, new 
regulations mandate that all development projects should comply with environmental 
standards. An Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) is conducted to ensure that projects 
meet these criteria and are compatible with the environment. 

The primary objective of an EIA is to support enviromuentally friendly industrialization. 13 y 
promoting solar power, which is a renewable energy source, sustainable development is 
possible, balancing economic development with environmental protection . 

All energy generation methods impact the environment, but solar energy stands out as a 
safer, cleaner option compared to conventional fossil fuels and nuclear power. Photovoltaic 
(PV) technology offers significant environmental benefits, including: 

• Reduction in Greenhouse Gas Emissions: Solar PV technology significantly reduces 
C02 and NOx emissions compared to fossil fuels. 

• Absence of Air Pollutants: PV systems do not emit toxic gases (such as S02) or 
particulates, contributing to improved air quality. 

• Minimal Environmental Footprint: Solar power uenerarion has a minimal 
env iroumental impact, w ith 11u waste p10Ju\;;LS or harmful emissions during operation. 

• 

The solar project has been sited on private land (rooftop) within the customer's premises. A 
detailed environmental assessment of the site has been carried out in preparation for the 
installation of the Solar PV plant. 

The assessment has considered both the positive and negative environmental effects of the 
project. The proposed photovoltaic power project aligns with international guidelines for 
environmentally friendly energy production. The adoption of solar power, which produces 
no emissions and effluent discharge, will have minimal impact on the ambient environment 
and the host community. Over the long term, the project may result in slight changes in local 
air quality, but these changes will likely be minimal compared to traditional power 
generation methods. 

• Local Community: The surrounding area is predominantly industrial, with no 
residential communities near the project site. This reduces potential conflicts with lu\.'al 
populations and minimizes the impact of construction and operational activities. 

• Economic Activity: The installation of the solar plant is expected to create temporary 
employment opportunities during the construction phase. Over the long term, the solar 
plant will provide sustainable, green energy, supporting regional economic 
development by reducing electricity costs for industrial users. 

E111:ironr,1t:r!l'1l nnpact Assessment ~t~:1y 
2,001.36 kV\1p Sclar ProJect at ~.c:,w" /\tit:!~ Cars !J3td~tan Urnitc:u 

43·Khl'! Multctn RctHi Meng~ Mandi, ;.__ahore 
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Impacts on Natural Resources: Despite being a benign energy system during operation, 
solar cells have some negative impacts on the, environment during rheir production phase 
like many other systems. The energy needed for the production of solar energy systems is 
still produced in conventional methods today. Some toxic chemical substances used during 

Discharge of Pollutants: Solar cells do not emit any pollutants during their operations. But 
solar cell modules contain some toxic substances, and there is a potential risk of releasing 
these chemicals to the environment during a fire. Necessary precautions should be taken for 
emergency situations like fire. The possibility of accidental release of the chemicals of solar 
cell modules to soil and groundwater poses a great threat for the environment. 

Visual Impacts: There will be some visual impacts depending on the type of scheme and 
the surroundings of the solar cells. Especially for applications on buildings, solar cells can 
be used as a cladding material that could be integrated into the building during the 
construction phase. Solar cell applications after the construction phase of the buildings 
might cause negative visual impacts. Solar cell utilization should be planned at the 
architectural phase and fitted to the building to minimize visual pollution. For the other 
application areas, proper sitting and design are important factors, especially for large solar 
cell applications. Another important factor about the control of the visual impacts is the use 
of color. Enough care should be taken for the usage of proper colors while assembling the 
solar cell modules. 

• 

Identification of Potential lm(!acts: 

• a) Discharge of Pollutants 

b) Visual Impacts 

c) Impact on Natural Resources 

d) Air Pollution 

e) Noise Intrusion 

f) Impact on Air 

g) Impact on Ground Water/ Surface Water 

h) Impact on Solid Waste 

I) Impact on Soil 

j) Impact on Natural Resources 

This Section discusses the potential environmental impacts, assesses the signi ticance, 
recommends mitigation measure lO minimize the adverse effect and identifies the residual 
impacts associated with the proposed activities of the project during the construction and 
operation phase of the proposed project at the proposed site and of secondary actions like 
potable, raw water and wastewater lines. Solar energy is a lot cleaner when compared with 
conventional energy sources. Solar energy systems have many significant advantages, like 
being cheaper and not producing any pollutants during operation and being 

almost an infinite energy source when compared with fossil fuels. Nevertheless, solar 
energy systems have some certain negative impacts on the environment just like any other 
energy system. Some of these impacts will be summarized in this section. 

Environmental Impact Assessment Stu~y 
2,001.36 kWp Solar Project at Honea Atlas Cars Pakistan i.imit<"d 

~3-KM Multan Road Mang~ Mandi, Laher~ 
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Air Impact Low Solar Energy is Carbon Free (No Emissions) 

Plant will require a very low RO Plant is already installed at site 
Water Low quantity of water for cleaning of and water from said source may be 

PV Modules used for cleaning of PV Modules 

Land Low No impact on Land 
As said project is purely roof based 
which have no impact on Land 

Ecosystem Low 
No ecologically sensitive area There is no significant vegetation 
lies within premises cover within the selected area 

Total area identified for said 
Socio Eco System Low project is in plant premises ;:mc1 ~;r,1 I\......,,~!;., '.1 hlp 

. -. - . - -j- i ...... '·-- J .... 

no acquisition is needed 

Environment 
Parameters 

Mitigation Measures Level of · 
I 

, Reasons 
mp act 

The site allocated is private land within the premises of Atlas Honda Limited (Plant) and 
the applicant has carried out a detailed environment assessment of the site for installation of 
solar PV Plant. Overall findings: • 

5. Environmental Assessment/ Conclusion: 

Impact on Solid Waste: It may only Create liner and trash waste which is recyclable and 
may be cleared from site after construction. 

Impact on Soil: No impact as all installed systems are roof top. 

Impact on Natural Resources: There won't be any increase in the rate of usage of any 
natural resources like any minerals, additional fuel other than vehicles. But there would be 
an increase in the amount of usage of Paper for mapping, enlisting items etc. However, paper 
may be recycled by throwing it in ordinary dustbins, further ensure the maximum usage of 
electronic systems, e.g. emails. 

the production phase are produced c1s a by-product. Especially, the solar cell hatlt'ri,·s pnsr: 
., threat on natural resources by having a short lifespan and coruanung hcnvy metals such ~h 

cadmium. 
Air Pollution: Solar cells do not emit any substances to the air during operation. But there 
could be some emissions during manufacturing and transport. The emissions associated with 
the transport of the modules are insignificant when compared with the cnussions associated 
with the manufacture. Transport emissions are 0.1-1 % of the manufacturing emissions. 

Noise: Intrusion Solar cells do not make a noise during operation. But during the 
construction phase, there will be a little noise as usual in other construction activities. 

Impact 011 Air: There would be uo hazardous emissions at site as well as <luring 
construction phase except Motor Vehicle and Crane. Moreover, there are no objectionable 
odors as well as alternation of air temperature. 

Impact on Ground Water/ Surface Water: There would be no use of water during design 
phase except curing of civil pads during construction, which have no negative impact on 
environment. • 

tnvironm,,ract Impact J\s.s.c~~nient Sn.....1d" 
2,001.36 k\1\fp Sc;c;i- r;,-ojt;ct at Honr.a At:<.!> Cars P2ki.':.tc!r"l Lin:i\t:-t.i 

il~·t<M r\11;,JllJ() Rc;:d 1\/tc.nga Mi•r,Ct, L~h\.,lt. 
P•epdted by: i~llo~ fin.:.ilY ;_;ili;LE:-~ 

k- .. 
;.irr,r(\ t lasEneruv _.,,.: 



6. Safety plans, emergency plans 
• Only qualified and authorized electricians will be allowed to undertake servicing or 

maintenance tasks. 
• The authorized personnel will wear appropriate equipment, including a safety harness to 

restrain from falling off the roof, sturdy shoes that will have thick rubber soles to provide 
electrical insulation and good grip and appropriate clothing for personal protection, 
including a hat, sunglasses, gloves and long pants and sleeves. 

• Lock out and tag out procedures will be used before commencement of maintenance tasks. 
• On-going operation and maintenance concerns for solar power systems will be addressed 

properly. These systems are exposed to outdoor weather conditions that enhance the aging 
process, and the infrastructure needs to be m place for the on-going maintenance of these 
systems to assure their safe operation. 

• Properly grounded or double insulated power tools will be used for maintenance tasks . 
• Tools will be maintained in good condition. 
• Working on electrical equipment and circuits will be carried out in de-energized state. 
• Proper pathways will be available for operation, maintenance and firefighting. 
• Fire protection and suppression will be placed at site . 

Envirurun<·lllai lmpact Assessment Study 
l,OCl.36 kWp Solar Pro,ect at i-'.onc2 Atlas Cars Pakistan LimitEo 

43-KM Multan Road Manga M~ndl, Lahore 
Prepared by: Atlas Energv Lin,itt:l 

;' 1\tlasEner2.v ._~ 

• 

• 



Location (location maps, site map, land) 

Application for Generation Lice11se 
2,00136 kWp Solar Power Plant 

Al Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited 
43 KM. Multan Road. Mango Mandi, Lahore 

Submitted by: Atlas Energy Limited 

3(i) * 

''7' 
~AtlasEnergy 

• 

.- 



I 

Location System Size I 
(kWp) 

I 
Service Warehouse# 2 

Location- I Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 244.28 kWp 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Service warehouse # I 
Location- 2 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 111.6 kWp 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore . 

PC Warehouse 
Location- 3 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 223.2 kWp 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Training Center, Body Paint & Laundry 
Location -4 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 142.6 kWp 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Project Welding D-Zone 

Location Location -5 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 264. 12 kWp ' 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. I ! 
Welding Shop 

I Location -6 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 517.08 kWp 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. I 

I 

I 
I Paint Shop 

Location -7 I Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 301.32 kWp 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

I 
AE Shop 

Location -8 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 121.52 kWp 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

I 

PO Roof 
Location -9 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 75.64 kWp 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

l. Location maps. site maps, land 

Application for Generation Lke,He 
2,(J0/.3(, kJfj1 Solar Power l'lw11 

At Honda Alias Car: {Adislw1) Limi[<;J 
43 J.:.M. Multan Road . .-11w1g11 Mandi. Lahore 

Submitted by: Alias E11c1g1• Limitu/ 

I 

• 



Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Bhail 

Nathe Khalsa.,,j'i'~I-· 
,f 

',t:_. 

i~o:.da ,!.,tiXs .C?::r 2 
Pakistan L1 T tec1 

Manga Mari1i 
s: : • 

Mang a 
_(; __ 

• 

A bird's eye view of the project silt: is given in the figure below 

Application fin Generation License 
~~/·,r;.1 ?( klfj; Solar Power P..1.?r,I 

_ .. ~! Honda ..11/0.t ,:- ars fPakt_ctani Lim .. ter: 
·'~~ I(\{ J luitan ?.0 .. -,..1·. .ctango Mand: L~,hc·r" 

Submitted by: Atlas Energ: :__f11;,fr u 



Location - 2 Service warehouse # i 

Bhail 

·., 
·. ···~ ·;. _. .:~: ;: ·~. ' - .. -- .. - Talib Sa(~i ·'~ Nathe Khalsa .. ';·?'· 

• 
. . .;.'JJ~...,. 

.. -~~~#~ ,_,,._, .. 
·,;y, 

Manga Maridi 
_z__ .l 

Manga ~- 

• 

Application for Generation License 
2_.'.]0/.3-6 k'fl'lp Solar Power Plant 

.,, Fcndc Atlas Cars f Pakistan) Limited 
.4.? Kid. /,4-ultan Road, Mango Mandi, Lahar€ 

Submitted by: Atlas tincrgy Limited 



Location - 3 PC Warehouse 
Bhail 

Talib SaraP··~f-.;,,., .. .. ··,.;;. •, ,,--a- 
Nathe Khalsa 

,ot: 

- .. .-. 

Mang a ~~- e 

• 

Apptication for Generation License 
:: ()(JJ}6 kH·:u Solar Power P/c,11 

_ ... , I ;,,nJu .'1liu:: C,» .5 tTokistan) L111111td 
"!·3 ,;.,.:.~{ .. 1,·fuitcn Road. : .. langa .·\f:ind;·_ Lahore 

Submitted fly: Atlas Energ:, L:miud 

~;· 
i_,li~~\ tlasEnerav - .......... 



Lnr,;i:tjoi"I - 4. T,..~inir!g c 'e,.i~r. H"d:' r,J~i"t & tA\!HFfr: 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Bha1I 

--~- . ···," ,.1 

Nathe Khalsa 

..,:-:·-~~~ 
(_-{f]JIJF~ 

f5\ 
Manga Marjdi 

S~- J' 
,:,:- 

Mang a 
... J __ ~ ... ' +' l..·;,·:;:!<l I 

• 

Applicationfor Generation Liccns» 
~.001.:6 kP}: Solar I\:11:·€.r· Flc,-, . 

. ·J.1 Hcnda Atla: Ca.1\<: (Pakistan) Lin:.'tt·d 
43 l(A1f. Multan Road ... ~fanga Mandi, {ahore 

Submitted by: Atlas Energy Limit€.d 

~-7; ~,,ltf- 
- :Y (,\ t las.Encrgv 



Lc,c:;ifinin - ~ \\';Jrlil1l!I 0--7.,-,1")>' 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, '13-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Bh~1I 

~-::.,. ~ .. 
Nathe Khalsa -s-: .~ ... -fr,,'i-" 

.:.'/"' 

I 
Mang a ,! __ 

:.: ·.,, 

• 

Application for Generation License 
2.00! 36 kri'p Solar Poirer Pian: 

Al Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Lim11ed 
43 KJf. Multan Road. :'1{anga Mandi. L:.hou: 

Submitted by: Atlar Energy i_.:mi,c:;; 



Location - 6 Welding Shop 
}t'"'.:id;; ,!\ti;, (:;:'it'~ PriT~:~fc?. f imited. J?-kn, ~\,'r;;h;:,n Rr,,;,d :\:f~r.;r~ 1\.'r;-r:r!~ T ,;;!,r1rr 

Bhail 

._.,:_.·= 

:,;, :· 

Talib Saf.ai. 
~ 1-- .. - 

::)1~ .. 
Nathe Khalsa ,,. 

-~:,I~-·· 
~- .. :' ., 

• 
.,JfPf<" 

'\ Manga Mar,fdi 
ss: :l 

·' i; 
:'f'~:~?---:0:···,: 

'

l~onda A~;-~·s.Cars ' ~t~'"" L1>ihe; 
.. ..,. 

.:.;/' 

Mang a 
-<..:.- 

• 

Application for Generation License 
2.nOJ.36 kWp Solar Fower Plant 

·'.! Honda Atlas Cars (Pokistan) Limited 
,·3 !-.:,:. Mulia11 Road, Mango Mandi. Lahore 

Submitted by: Atlas Energy Ltmited 

, ~nllfA,· • ) ,i s E ner ov _ t cr , 1 E .. 



Locanon - -; i' amt S~1op 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore 

Bhail 

-_-- .. - Talib Saraf: Nathe Khafsa 

"- pf lit•nrinn jrlr (.,.P11P~111lan I ,1,.,.,,rst! 
2.W!f.5'5 Hip Solar A)\1 er Plan.• 

~; 1 l--!rmrin itlr:~ (nrs (Pr;ki.r.tonl l.i1nit1:>d 

.. /j (.ii:. 'i,'u/:<.Jn Ro~d. A{ .. ?ng(] Mandi, Laho-; 
Submitted by: Aries Energy Lirnitcci 



i .oq;tir.n - j;J -~ E ~hnn 

Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Bhail 

:; _:.. 

~'~, .. _ 

Talib Sarai· ~i~.__.._._ 

Manga 
-L- 

.;3. !:.\I. _\f .c /f""';, P(1;J~: _\;1.Ar:~·a }!:.,; r .i: l.....,./;.,.,,.c 
Submitted ty: .stics Energy !_.:n~;rc:: 

Appticatianfor Generation License 
e.oo: _,(, l:Wv Solar P01,·c1· P!c.·11: 

.4! Honda .-11/05 Cars /Pakistani i.imite : 

>. ;--, ~r: 
~}11fA tlas Energy 

• 



Location - 9 PO Roof 

Aha1I 

... , .. 
Talib Sarai' -e- • ''"·''"'· . . . .. ~ - -. :_~---_ .'. . ; . 

Nathe Khalsa . 

~- 

~~ 
Manga Ma11d1 

-~-"l' 
~--:.:~~:~;.;,1;jrr~--.~ 

""'~ - .. -s 
~- "i'i:... 

''Ho"da tti:;'-<" c"·" 
, ~-fi?~·c;~~.t~~ 

_J>:.J. =... ...... _-----=-·: ... ~. 
v-. _t 

Manga . --- 

cpptication for Generation Licens e 
~ (J(i}._'<6 kf,fTD Soler Pcvcr .D/,~1r; 

·1 ~ Honda -'~ tlas r ar» ( Poki."{(t,-;_,1 [ ,f11:;1e---:' 
.;:1 f..~',{ 'ciuita» Road, Afanga Mandi, Laiu>n~ 

Submitted by: Atlas Energ: Limti«: 

• 



31 °16'53.6°N 
74°03'31.4 "E 75.64 kWp 

L~~~______._~~~~~~~~~~~~-+-~~~~-+---~~~~~_j 
I PO Roof 
i Location -9 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, i 43-k.rn Multan Read Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
L . ! ---·------~-----------1__ _ 

! ! i 
i i Service Warehouse # 2 I I 

l 

Location - 1 I Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 244.28 kWp 
I 

31 °16'53.1 "N 
., 74°03'44.0"E I 43-km Mul tan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. ·' I 

! 
! 

I Service warehouse# 1 

I 
i 

I 
I Location-2 I Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 111.6 kWp 31 °16'52.6"N 

I I 43-krn Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore . I 74°03'42.S"E 
I 
I 

PC Warehouse 
Location-3 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 223.2 kWp 31 °16'54.0"N 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 74°03'40.1 "E 

Training Center, Body Paint & Laundry 
Location -4 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 142.6 kWp 31 °16'55.6"N 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 74°03'38.0"E 

Welding D-Zone 
I 

I 

Location -5 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 264.12 kWp 31°16'50.7"N 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 74°03'36. 7"E 

I 

I 
Welding Shop I i 

Location -6 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, i 517.08 kWp I 31 °16'53.9"N 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

I 
I 74°03'34.4 "E 

l I 
I 

l 

I I 
i 

Paint Shop ! 
Location -7 I Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 301.32 kWp 31 °16'55.4"N I 

I 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. I 74°03'31.9"E I 

I 

I 
AE Shop 

I Location -8 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 121.52 kWp 31°16'57.2"N 
I 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 74°03'31.9"E 
i 

The project site is the rooftop and exact coordinates of the project site are as below: 

., Site Coordinates & Location: 

Application for Generation Lice11se 
2.ri!!l.3ri kf¥p Solar Power Plant 

-i.t Hondo Attas Cars ( iJ,,J.:isutn) Lsrnucci 
43 Ki\,f. Mnluin Road. Mange »iandi, Lahore 

Submitted by: Ailes Energy Li.'n::ed 

• 

• 



Technology, size of the plant, number of units 3(ii) * 

. -·~-,- .. : ' .,. :.: :,-; .. , .;.... ;-- .. ·- .....•. 

• 

,,.1.:· 
I 

\.,._.../ 
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Application for· Generation Lice11se 
2,001.36 kWp Solar Power Plant 

Al Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited 
43 Ki'vf, Multan Road. Manga Mandi. Lahore 

Submitted by: Atlas Energy Limited 



Construction Period 

Roof Mounted Type of Project 

PO Roof 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 
43-km Multan Road Man a Mandi, Lahore. 

; 

I Location: 9 

I 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Location: 3 223.2 kWp 
Location: 4 142.6 kWp i 

Project Size i Location: 5 I 264.12 kWp 
I Location: 6 517.08 kWp 

Location: T 30L32 kWp 
Location: 8 121.52 kWp 
Location: 9 75.64 kWp 

! Service Warehouse# 2 
I Location: 1 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 

43-km Multan Road Manza Mandi, Lahore. 
Service warehouse # 1 

Location: 2 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
PC Warehouse 

Location: 3 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
Training Center, Body Paint & Laundry 

Location: 4 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 
I 43-km Multan Road Manza Mandi, Lahore. 
I Welding D-Zone 

Location (s) I Location: 5 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, I 
I 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. I 
! Location: 6 

Welding Shop i 
I 

Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, i 
! 43-km Multan Road Manza Mandi, Lahore. 
I Paint Shop I 

J Location: 7 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 
i 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
l AE Shop I 

I 

J Location: 8 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, ' I 

• 

111.6 kW Location: 2 
244.28 kWp Location: l 

Project Profile 

Details of Generation Facility: 

43 K,.\'i, J!ul;c..n Road. /.,fl:nga A-1{.·ndi. L.· .. ·.·:ore 
Submitted by: At.us £;7c:rg;,-· /_;"!N:i<.:d 

.J.pp/;',.:ario1! for Generation L1.."c::..,.n·~e 
]_,,,, .. ·_3r, kJr~"p Seier Powe: /..J,.':-:r:.· 

.~! i-/•i1:1.:c .~:/os Curs iPaiistan; i....:-.:.,t .• ,.:d 

-- 
~[Fil% 

; 111f \t l" -- r_::- ,- - ·--,, - ·,.__ r l 1 u .. .:, L l i \.. l ~ \ 



I ! I 14.39 % ' 
Location: 1 ' 

I i 
14.39 % I 

I 
: Location: 2 

Location: 3 14.39 % 

Location: 4 14.39 % 

Capacity Factor Location: 5 14.39 % - - . 

Location: 6 14.39 % 

Location: 7 14.39 % 

Location: 8 14.39 % 

Location:9 14.39 % 

Location: 1 308,016.17 KWh 

Location: 2 140,703.38 KWh 

Location: 3 281,390.47 KWh 

Location:4 179,777.25 KWh 

Annual Energy Location:5 332,978.73 KWh 
Generation Units 

I Location: 6 651,887.93 KWh 

I Location: 7 379,877.14 KWh 

Location: 8 153,201.48 KWh 
! Location: 9 95,360.10 KWh 

Total 252,3192.64 KWh 

Degradation Factor 
I First Year 1 % & remaining 24 Years 0.5% 

• 

Project Profile 

Energy Generation: 

Application for Generation Liceir.~e 
]J!i.11.3~ kHj; Solar Power Pl,H,1 

At Honda Atlas 1....:t.n~.1; f Puf1istani Lin;i.\:d 
43 K'vf. Muitan Road. :Vft:nga Mandi. Lahore 

Submitted by: . .J:io.;· E,,ugy Lin1111'1 



.. ho .. -"·~~--. 1_, ~- .. (!,_,. 

Type of Module I JK1,1605-630N-66HL4M-(V) (620 Wp) 

I Location-I I 394 (394 x 620 = 244.28 kWp) 

Location-2 180 {180 x 620= 111.60 KWp) 

Location-3 I 360 (360 x 620 = 223.20 kWp) I 

Location-4 230 (230 x 620 = 142.60 kWp) 
... .. ··- ---- 

Location-5 426 (426 x 620 = 264.12 kWp) 
No. Of Modules 

Location-6 834 (834 x 620 .. 517.08 k\Vp) 

Location-7 490 (490 x 620 = 301.32 kWp) 

Location-8 202 (202 x 620 = 121.52 kWp) 

Location-9 112 (112 x 620 = 64.48 kWp) 

Total 3,228 (3,228 x 620 = 2,001 kWp) 

Type of Cell Mono PERC Half-Cell 

Dimension of each Module 2382xl 134x35mm (93.77x44.65xl.38 inch) 

Total Module Area 2.701,188 m2 

Frame of Panel Anodized aluminium alloy 

i Weight of one Modu)e 28.2 kg 
i 
I No of Solar Cells in each 132 (66x2) i module 

! Efficiency of module 22.95 % 

Maximum Power (P max) 620Wp 

I Voltage @,: Pmax 40.90 V 

Current@ Prnax 15.16 A 

j Open circuit voltage (V,,c) 4R Q~V 

1-- ·--·~--·-· 
's . rr f"; .... f.\.n!+- er !"'ro??t I ih ".I\ 

PVModules l 
! 

Model & Technical Details of Equipment: 

Application for Generation Lic~!i.(;~ 
2,()IJ!.36 kl+p Solar Power Piunt 

.--U Honda Alias Cars (Pakistan) L/ .. niii.:d 
43 K.\I Multan Raad. Mango Mandi. Lahore 

Submitted by: Atlas Energy Li1J1i:ed 

• 

• 



Svstern Data 

Data Collecting System 

·--· .. ·--~---·----~ ·-- -------·-·---·---· 
Mounting Structure 

Structure Aluminum L2 Type 

Tilt Angle 200 

! Degradation Factor First Y car 1 % & remaining 24 Y cars 0.5% I 
I : 

Inverters 

Size & Mode 115 KW Sl.JN2000-l 15KTL-M2 
I 

I 
No. of Inverters 15 

I 
Input Operating Voltage Range 200 V to 1000 V ! 

I 

. .. ,.. - - 

Efficiency of inverter 98.5 % 

Max. Allowable Input voltage llOOV 

Max. Current per MPPT 30A 

Max. Power Point Tracking Range 200 V to 1000 V 

Output electrical system 3 Phase AC 

Rated Output Voltage 3 I N I PE, 230 I 400 V 

Power Factor (adjustable) 0.8 LG ... 0.8 LD 

Power control MPP Tracker 

I Rated Frequency 50Hz 
i 

;W~~~imum system open Circuit I 
i Voltase 1500VDC (IEC) 
! ,., 

Applicution for Generation License 
2,1Hii.31i kl'Vp Solar Power Plan! 

A! Honds: Atlas Cars (Pakisian) L.'n1ited 
43 KM. M11/1a11 Road. Mango Mandi. Lahore 

S11b111it1ed by: Alias Energy Limi!ed 

• 

• 



lfth !3 

• 

The single line diagrams of DC and AC sides are given below. The single line diagram includes the 
protection devices that will be used for safe and smooth operation of the system. 
Protections DC Side: 'String Fuses, Surge Protective Device and DC Disconnect Switches Protections 
AC Side: MCBs, Main Breaker 

• 

Single Line Diagram: 

The electrical system comprises the following components: 
• Array(s) of PV modules 

• DC/AC cabling (module, string and main cable) 
• DC connectors (plugs and sockets) 
• Junction boxes and combiners 
• Disconnects/switches 
• Protection devices e.g. fuses, surge protective devices, beakers 
• Energy-Metering 
• Earthing 

Application for Generation License 
2.001.36 kWp Solar Power Plant 

At Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited 
43 KM. Multan Road. Manga Mandi, Lahort 

Submitted by: Atlas Energy Limited 

·~ 

~AtlasEnergy 



Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Service Warehouse# 2 Location: 1 

Design Layout: 

.-~ppllc..-uiturt for (°,c11crull.urt Li'<:.e.rt,'-·e 
2,0(!!.36 kiVp Solar Power PTa,1t 

"'-1 Honda Atlas Can (Pakistan) Limited 
.. <}-~: 'Au:t:m Read. _:·.1angc. Mcnai. Laho-; 

Submitted h_r: Ai/a; Energy Limite a 



Location: 2 Service warehouse # I 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore 

Application for Generation Licerrse 
2.001.36 kWp Solar Fower Plant 

h Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited 
~-3 !(J,-1. }~4idtcn Road. 111cn:ga Mandi. Lahore 

Submitted by: Arias Energy Lim ired 

~ti ( __ ? 111AtlasEnergy 



Honda Atlas Cc1r, Private Limited, 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

PC Warehouse Location: 3 

Apptication for Generation License 
2.001.36 kW;; Solar Power Pla.'11 

Ar Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited 
43 K/1{ Multan Road. Mange Mandi. Lahore 

Submitted b,y: Adas Energy Limited 

~14', 
/ 

1ITT:L\tlasEnergy 



Location: 4 Training Center, Body Paint&: Laundry 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited. 

43.km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Applicationfor Generation License 
2.011/.if, kWp Solar Power Plant 

At Honda Ailes Cars (Pakistan) Limited 
.:: C,l Multan Road. :',.fanga /.fondi Lahore 

Submitted by: Atlas Energy Limited 



Location: 5 Welding D-Zone 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited. 

43-km Mullan Road Manga Mandi. Lahore, 

4ppilcationfor Generation License 
.: nn1 .')f l:Hj, \,',~for Po111,:r Plan: 

.~~.- ,i./e,nd~":i .4;las Cars /Pakistan, Lint ired 



Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 
43-k.m Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore 

Welding Shop Location: 6 

Appiicution for Generutum Licens c 
2. 001.36 kWp Solar Power Plant 

.-4: Honda Ailes Cars (Pakistan, Limited 
l~-.;L,:_ .\fi1!tar: P .. a .... 1d. _:r .. 'mgc .1.f"-1.1idf. Lahcr« 

Submitted by: ."!tla5 r_·r1~,,g:.· £.nnfted 



Location: 7 Paint Shop 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Application for Generation Licens» 
2, 001. 36 Hi 'p Solar Power P Ian: 

At Honda Arias Cars (Pakistan} Limited 
~3 .i<.t'i.1. ·\efu!fan Road. Afr:nga .if::rJ1di. i.ahrn-i 

Silb,,,itrt?.cl b_r: .-:::u.~ r,lt I 5..1 !,i.'ht,-{t;:,/ 



Honda Atlas Cars Prr, ate Limited, 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi. Lenore. 

AE Shop Location: 8 

Application for Generation License 
2.()01. 3 6 k lf'p Solar Power P.'ar;f 

At Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited 
.::. KM, Multan Road .lfanga Mandi Lahore 

Submitted by: Arias Energy Limue a 

~rd' . ~-:' f,.\.tlasEnergy 



Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited. 
43-krn Multan Road Manga Mandi. Lahore. 

PO Roof Location: 9 

Application for Generation License 
2.001.36 k1Yp Solar Power Plant 

l1 Honda Atlas Cars /Pakistan) Limited 
..:_: .r .... ~ t::.:f:,:m Road. J1anga Mandi. Lc,ho~·e 

Submitted by: -uias Energy Limire.i 

· ~flf~t las Energy 
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:,4.~:t:::i:'jl':'.'.1~:l';:;4:~~~~:·;i.::-i. .. ~ ~.,.;,,~- ... , ...... .,,-~~~·. ,;, 

Application for Gen era ti on l-icense 
2,()0/.36 kWp Solar Power Plane 

Al Honda Ai/as Cars (Pakistan) Limited 
43 KM. Multan Road. Mango Mandi, Lahore 

Submitted by: Atlas Energy Limited 

.. ~, 
i ~ }\ + /' -...___/ 

v 

v 

.,· 

. ~ 1 

Concept Design: 

~rur: 1 l 
~-lln ~At as Energy 

• 

• 



... - ·.• ·-. . ... ;, ~' .- . 

The Applicant Company shall use a limited quantity of RO water 
available at the generation site for the purposes of washing the PV 
modules and shall use the available sewage for disposal to avoid 

any negative impact on the environment. 

3(iii) Water Source·at. site 'for maintenance 

Application for Generation License 
2JJ!!l.36 HVp Solar Power Plant 

Al Honda Alias Cars (Pakistan) Limited 
43 KA{ Multa» Road, Mango Mandi. Lahore 

Submitted by: Atlas Energy Limited 
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The site is well-connected by existing road and rail infrastructure, 
with Multan Road providing direct access. The nearest railway 

station, Manga Mandi, is approximately 2 kilometers away. Essential 
amenities are available to support the solar facility, and there is no 

requirement for a staff colony, as the site is located within an 
established industrial area . 

3(iv) Infrastructure: road, rail, staff colony, amenities 

Application for Generation License 
2.!I0/.3f; kitp Solar Power Plant 

A! Honda Alias Cars (Pakistan) Lin,ikd 
43 KM. Mui1a11 Road. Manga Mandi. Lahore 

Submitted by: Alias Energy Limited 
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Application for Generation License 
2.()01.36 kWp Solar Power Piani 

Al Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited 
43 K.'.f. Mu/ran Road. Manga Mandi. Lahore 

Submitted by: Alias Energy Limited 
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Application for Generation Lice11se 
2.(JfJl.36 kWp Solar Power· Plant 

A.I Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited 
43 K.'vf. Muttan Road. Mango Mandi, Lahore 

Submitted by: Atias Energy Limited 
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3(vi) Safety plans, emergency plans 
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Application for Generation License 
2,001.36 kWp Solar Power Plant 

At Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited 
43 KA,/, Multan Road. Mang» Mandi. Lahore 

Submitted by: Arias Energy Ltrnited 
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• Only qualified and authorized technicians will be permitted to perform servicing and 
maintenance tasks. 

• Authorized personnel will wear appropriate Personal Protective Equipment (PPE), including: 
• Safety harnesses to prevent falls from elevated structures. 
• Sturdy, electrically insulated footwear with thick rubber soles for protection and grip. 
• Protective clothing, including long-sleeved shirts, long pants, gloves, hats, and sunglasses for 

l.JV and weather protection. 
• Lockout and l)~gout (LOTO) pi;-Q.~e_cl.t1i:~~ will be · strictly implemented before the 

commencement of maintenance activities to ensure electrical safety. 
• Regular inspection and preventive maintenance will be conducted to address ongoing 

operational concerns. As the solar system is exposed to outdoor weather conditions, preventive 
measures will be taken to mitigate aging effects and maintain system efficiency. 

• Only properly grounded or double-insulated power tools will be used for maintenance tasks to 
eliminate electrical hazards, 

• All tools and equipment will be kept in good working condition, with regular inspections and 
servicing. 

• All electrical maintenance will be performed in a de-energized state, ensuring zero energy 
presence before work begins. 

• Clear and safe pathways will be maintained for ease of operation, maintenance, and emergency 
access, including firefighting routes. 

• Comprehensive fire protection and suppression systems will be installed on-site, ensuring 
compliance with industrial safety standards. 

Safety plans, emergency plans 

.;.ppiicarion for Generation Licen~e 
2.IJOi.36 kH'p Solar Power Plant 

.-lt Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited 
43 A.'.:\{ Muita» Road. Mungo Mandi. Lahore 

Submitted by: Atlas Enc!g_,v Linited 
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3(vii) Plant characteristics (generation voltage, power factor etc.) 

• 
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Application for Generation License 
2,00/.36 kWp Solar Power Plant 

At Honda Alias Cars (Pakistan) Limited 
43 KA,!, Multan Road. Mango Mandi. Lahore 

Submitted by: Atlas Energy Limited 
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NIA Ramping Rate 

Included Automatic Generation Control 

Power Factor 0.8 LG ... 0.8 LD 

Generation Voltage 380 to480 

Plant characteristics (generation voltage, power factor etc.) 

Application for Generation l-icense 
2.()01.36 kWp Solar Power Plant 

Ar Honda Alias Cars (Pakistan) Limited 
43 KM. M11lran Road, Mango Mandi, Lahore 

Submi"ed by: Atlas Energy Lirnired 
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3(vii) Control Metering and Instrumentation 

' , ·~ .- ,··,·- • ._.,,.,,. .• ,..,_~,--_., ... c . __ • ,. "',~··.~·.,-.,..,_,-_._;_ .• _,.~,~· 

Application for Generation License 
2,001.36 kl-Vp Solar Power Plant 

Al Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited 
43 KM. Multan Road. Mango Mandi. Lahore 

Submitted by: Arias Energy Limited 
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Ground fault monitoring 

Insulation monitoring 

Grid monitoring 

Overheat protection 
Control Metering and Instrumentation 

DC overload protection (Type 2) 

AC circuit breaker 

DC circuit breaker 

Control Metering and Instrumentation 

Application for Generation License 
2.001.36 kWp Solar Power Plant 

At Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited 
43 KM, Multan Road. Manga Mandi. Lahore 

Submitted by: Al/as Energy Limited 
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J(ix) Estimated Capacity Factor at Site • 
··--···-'"·- .- ..... "'--. -_.._-----·.····· .... -·.·:·. ·::·'-·-"_·-.- .. -- -·-.::··: -·;_- .. - .. ·:_·:·.·.-·. -·:.· ... ·: :-.---·-.-~---·--·· .. · ... ~--~·-··· ·-.:_~-·:· ._._. __ · .-·_- .•. ·· .. ,. -·- -·-.-- .. -.· . 

Application for Generation License 
2,DOI.36 kWp Solar Power Plant 

At Honda Atlas Cars (Paki.sta#) Limited 
43 KM. Multan Road. Mango Manif.i. Lahore 

Submitted hy: Atlas Ener[p' limited 
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I 
Location: 1 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 

I 
14.39 % ! I 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Service warehouse # 1 I 

I Location: 2 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 14.39 % 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore . 

. . 

PC Wa'rehou'se · .... .. 

Location: 3 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 14.39 % 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Training Center, Body Paint & Laundry 
Location: 4 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 14.39 % 

' 4 3-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Capacity 
Welding D-Zone 

Location: 5 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 14.39 % 
Factor 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Welding Shop 
Location: 6 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 14.39 % 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Paint Shop 
Location: 7 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 14.39 % 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. ~ 
I ~----~----- .... ····~ ·--··· · .. · - .. --~-,...._. .. _. ··---· ..... ,,- ... -··· ., .....•... ·-··•"···-·:·-·····.·--.-, .•... - .... -~--'"------ ---- 
I AE Shop 

I 
I Location: 8 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 14.39 % 
I 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. I 

PO Roof 
Location: 9 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 14.39 % 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Service Warehouse# 2 

Estimated Capacity Factor at Site 

Application for Generation Li(;e11se 
2.0(iJ.36 ki+p Solar Power Pian: 

At Honda rf.1/a5 Cars {Pl1.k):aa1:) Ltrnnca 
43 K/1{ Multan Road. Mange Mandi. Lcihor2 

Submitted by: Atlas Energy Limited 



First Year 1 % & remaining 24 Years O .5% Degradation Factor 

Applicationfor Generation License 
2,00/.36 kWp Solar Power Plant 

At Honda Atlas Cars {Pakistan) Limited 
43 KM. Multan Road. Mango Mandi. Lahore 

Submitted by: Atlas Energy Limited 
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Being Competitive to provide unique, advance and effective solar solutions to 
industrial and commercial customers in safe, reliable and environment friendly 
manner acting with integrity following sound practices with a sense of service in a 
culture that respects and values the satisfaction of our customers. 

Mission: 

A leading Company in Solar industry in all respects - providing cost effective 
tailored solutions for industrial and commercial consumer through sale of power, 
Engineering, Procurement and construction (EPC), operation and Maintenance and 
giving attractive return to investors being responsible corporate citizen and employer 
of choice. 

Vision: 

Currently Atlas Energy have Assets of PKR 335.45 Million and being a part of Atlas Group the company 
has strong relationship with Financial Institutions, as well as ability to execute bigger Projects. 

Atlas Energy has successfully installed Projects of 11 MW on energy sale and EPC model while 
approximately 7.0 MW projects are in pipeline. 

Atlas Energy Limited was incorporated as an unquoted - public limited company on 18 May 2016, under 
the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The registered office of the Company is situated at Building No. 64/:XX, 
Khayaban-e-lqbal, Phase III, D.H.A. Lahore. We are providing cost effective Solar solutions for industrial 
and commercial consumer through sale of electricity. 

Atlas.Energy Limited 

Mr. Yusuf H. Shirazi, laid the foundation of Atlas in 1962 with the establishment of Shirazi Investments 
(Pvt) Limited. Atlas is a diversified group dealing in engineering, power generation, financial services and 
trading, embodying the spirit of development as it endeavors to fuel the growth of Pakistan's economy. It 
comprises of 16 companies, four of which are quoted on the Stock Exchanges of Pakistan (Atlas Honda 
Limited, Atlas Battery Limited, Atlas Insurance Limited & Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited. Atlas 
shareholders· equity now stands at 200 billion rupees; assets have increased to 250 billion rupees; personnel 
strength to I 0,000 and annual sales have crossed 160 billion rupees. 

Atlas Group: 



• Lahore Chamber of Commerce & Industry (LCCI) 
• Pakistan China Joint Chamber of Commerce & Industry (PCJCCI) 
• Pakistan Engineering Council (PEC) 
• Alternative Energy Development Board (AEDB) 

1.1.6. Membership of Industry.& Associations: 

• Directors: 
Mr. Frahim Ali Khan 
Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi 
Mr. Maqsood Ahmad 

1.1.5. The Applicant Company has three Directors, besides the Auditor and Legal Advisor named 
below: 

The Applicant Company has the financial strength to meet with the requirements of the 
Projects through its parent Company Shirazi Investments Private Limited - parent company 
held 100% ordinary shares of the Company. 

1.1.4. 

1.1.3. The .Company was ·incorporated. to. provide cost .effective .tailored.solar. solutions for 
industrial and commercial consumer through sale of power, Engineering, Procurement and 
construction (EPC), operation and Maintenance and giving attractive return to investors. 

1.1.2. The registered office of the Company is situated at 64/XX, Khayaban-e-Iqbal, Phase-III, 
DHA, Lahore. 

I.I.I. Atlas Energy Limited was incorporated as an unquoted - public limited company in 
Pakistan on 18 May 2016, under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. 

1.1. Introduction 

Atlas Ene,·gv T.imited 

:n 
Atlas Enerzv .,__,., 



l. Industrial Honda Atlas Cars Pak Ltd. 
EPC 497.70 (43 km Multan Rd, Manga, Lahore) 

'") Domestic DHA Phase-V, Karachi EPC 6.00 

3. Domestic DHA Phase-V, Karachi EPC 6.00 

4. Industrial Engine Plant 
EPA 589.05 (Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp. Road, Skp) 

5. Industrial Pakistan Cables (Nooriabad, Sindh) EPA 7.20 

6. Industrial Parking Sheds 
EPA 405.79 (Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

7. Domestic Zaman Park Lahore EPA 12.00 

8. Industrial Subassembly/ Frame Linc 
EPA 769.08 (Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

9. Industrial Component Parts 
EPA 663.25 (Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

10. Industrial DCC-2 
[I'A 752.40 (Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

Atlas Industrial Park Karachi 
11. Industrial Plot No. 347 A, Shed No 2, 15th Miles, National Highway, EPC 864.56 

Landhi, Karachi. 

12. Industrial Atl11~ Horula f.i111il.:tl K:1nidii 
EPC 96.3 F-36 Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E .. Au-ea Karachi. 

Size of 
Installation 

(kWp) 
S ,'. C . ..... 1L . I Nature cf r, .vo. ategory Project .vame/ ocanon Work 

I 

S( c.e dour success f..l completed projects are as follows: 

t.ist nf Projects: 



~· ,-.··~_-/ . 
- l .... · .. · ..... . "'\,_---,,--·· 

Total Projects Installed: 13,125.09 kWp 

·J 1\} j ~l" 1=' 1'1 i":\l~,.)\ ~ ·~ .i.. ,._ l. ~~ ...... ,, ~ ..i. 11- J.. - .. 
.:._...r1 

13. Industrial Atlas Battery Limited Karachi EPC 301.74 D-181 Central Avenue, S.I.T.E Area Karachi. 

14. Commercial Atlas Vocational Training Institute EPC 72.76 Sheikhupura 

15. Industrial Stamping Building EPA 215.82 (Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

16. Industrial Honda Atlas Cars Pak Ltd. EPC 970.l (43 km Multan Rd, Manga, Lahore) 

17. Industrial CBU/SPL Building EPA 2250.85 (Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

18. Industrial Test Track EPA 2621.45 {Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

19. Industrial Pakistan Cables Limited EPC 2023.04 





France. 

\!a·,~·~c::·, · Program at Han ard Uni versiry, l:SA. Financial Management Program frcrr­ 
Stanford Lr,; versirv, L;SA and General Management Program from lr.sead Uni vers.ty. 

2.1. :\Ir. Frahim Ali Khan 
Director 
Mr. Frahin: Ali Khan has over 50 years of experience in General Management. finance. 
Investment and Taxation. He graduated in commerce from University cf Karachi in 1965 

t~~ 

R-~ ,_ 
- - I---=-.~,~ ----- ----· ---- ----- ====· --- ~"'l1'1\'j~" - ,-- .... .;.111!1!1 

- ==== -~=~1 .. - .. : .. · ____ ,, .-_· --- - :.- -"""_ 

2. Profile of Management 

l e 



He is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of Pakistan. 
He also holds a Master's degree in Islamic Studies from Punjab University, Lahore, and 
has completed Banking Diplomas from the institute of Bankers of Pakistan. Additionally, 
he, auended the Advanced Management Program at TNSF...\O, France. Prior to that, he 
participated in various advanced courses on general management and leadership at LUMS, 
M.'\P, the Adrninisrrarivc Sr:iffC01lefP ,md thP nr.fah (.-,1:r,cil" 

Mr. Maqsood Ahmad Basra boasts an impressive career spanning several decades, marked 
by his significant contributions across various sectors and companies in different 
capacities. He is serving as the Group Director Business Development in Power at Atlas 
Group, plays a pivotal role in the Group's growth. He has been serving as the Chief 
Executive Officer of Atlas Solar Limited and Atlas Energy Limited. His tenure at Atlas 
Group includes a role as Group Di.redur Cu1purnle Affairs and Management Audit, 
highlighting his enduring commitment to the organization. With notable experience at 
renowned companies such as Adas Honda Limited and Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) 
Limited, Maqsood's career is a testament to his exceptional expertise and adaptability in 
the corporate world. 

2.3. Mr. Maqsood Ahmad 

Director & CEO 

He is at present a member of Prime Minister's Business Council, Engineering Development 
Board and Pakistan Cables' Board. He was Harvard Business School's Global Alumni 
Board President for the years 2006-2008. At present, he is on the Advisory Boards of 
Harvard Business School, Veon Jazz and British International Investment Pakistan. 

Saquib Shirazi is the Chief Executive Officer of Atlas Honda Limited. Ile is a graduate of 
the Wharton School of Finance and did his MBA from the Harvard Business School. In 
addition to being a member of the Atlas Group, he is currently the Chairman of Pakistan 
Business Council. In the past, he has served on the Boards of Pakistan Petroleum Limited, 
National Refinery Limited, Sui Southern Gas Company Limited, Cherat Cement Limited, 
Cherat Paper Limited, Privatization Commission of Pakistan and as Chairman PAMA. 

Director 

2.2. Mt. Saquib H. Shirazi 

He joined the Atlas Group in 1967 and has serv ed in different positions, Currently, his 
ulh:1 lli:c:dor~liips include Alias BaHn) Limited, Adas Power Limited, Atlas Engineering 
Limited. Shirazi Trading Company (Private) Limited, Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited, Atlas 
Metals (Private) Limited and Atlas Asset Management Limited. 



31°16'53.6"1', 
74°03'31.4 "E 75.64 kWp 

PO Roof 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 

43-k.TTI Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
location .o 

,U: Shop 
I Ionda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
Location -8 31°16'57.2"N 

74°0.3'.31.9"E 121.52 kWp 

Paint Shop 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
Location -7 301.32 kWp 

31°16'53.9"N 
74°03'34.4"}': 517.08 kWp 

Welding Shop 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 

43-km Multan Road Man a Mandi, Lahore. 
Location -6 

31°16'55.4"N 
74°03'31.9"E 

Welding D-Zone 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 

43-km Multan Road Man a Mandi, Lahore. 

31°16'50.7"N 
74°03'36.7"E 264.12 kWp Location -5 

31°16 55.6"N 
74°03'38.0''E 142.6 kWp 

g • 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 

43-km Multan Road Man a Mandi, Lahore. 
Location -4 

Service Warehouse # 2 31°16'53.l "N Location - I Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 244.28 kWp 74°03'44.0"E 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
Service warehouse # 1 31 °16'52.6"N Location -2 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 111.6 kWp 74°03'42.S"E 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

I PC Warehouse 31 °16'54.0"N Location -3 
I Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 

I 
223.2 kWp 74°03'40.l "E I 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. I 
i i 

I I Trainin Center, Bodv Paint & Laundrv I ' - I 

• Inverters: 115 KW 

3.1.1. Site Coordinates & Location 

The sites are suitable for a solar PV system, with "good" solar insolation assumed. The 
system design factors include a panel azimuth of 10° SE & NW. a panel tilt of 8°, and 
satisfactory roof conditions. 

• System Capacity: 2,001.360 KWp 

• Annual Production: 2,523,192.00 KWh 

• PV Module: JKM605-630N-66HL4M-(V) (620 Wp) 

3.1. Technical Site Analysis 

3. Project Brief 

Atlas Energy plans to install a 2,001.360 KWp Solar Power Plant under F[PA mode. The proposed 
capacity is based on current and projected future loads. Key outcomes include: 

• Technical Site Analysis 

• Financial Analysis 

~,: \ 
% 

~' ~t\tlasEnergy 



Location - 1 Service Warehouse # 2 

!:"'·.·· :' 
L.111011 

c .. :- .... - 
Nathe Khalsa,/'> 

". · JY":::~ 
... ,,.:-., 

'*" 

,,,.,, 
·i~ 

Manga Mandi 
~ ,'P, ss.: }f 

. i'"';("'i, 

'

/Honda At!~"s.,~a. rs 
Pakistan Limited 
~ _.:::... ·-...::. :.... ~~'=:.: /' =-~ ·_:_:: ~ ·-~ 

- • -,•!,. 

Mang a s __ 

Location Map: 

A bird's eye view of the project site is given in the figure he low: 



Location - 2 Service warehouse s 1 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited. 43-k..-:: Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Bhail 

Nathe Khalsa 

Manga Marilu 
ss.: .Ji 

Manga 
.sc.: 

_)f~tlasEncru.v , ..... .., 



Location - 3 PC \\'a rehouse 
Honda Ailas Cars Priv ate Limited, 43-km Multan Road ;\fanga .viandi, Lahore. 

Bhail 

Nathe Khalsa, 

L- ;; 
''r'·' 

Manga MaQdi 
Mang a 
s.: 

--~~1lasEner2.v .....,,, 



L,.-.rltfh:-,fi - ..1 Training c·er1:fer B(nf:· P'2'h•: & !.11•P,1'": 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Bhail 

~-· --- ... ....;. ..... -4' . 

Talib sar)i' Nathe Khalsa , .,<·",. .:.;.,· .... 

II 
Manga 

.ss: •, ..,. •' - I . 
' I -·' '--· ~ '· . ": :: ;~ . 

~mf·· '. ,,I rA tla s Enenrv 
"--'• 



Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Bhail 

Mang a 
-<- ..... 
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Location - 6 Welding Shop 

Bhail 

Nathe Khalsa, 

'

' Honda Atlas1_cars 
Pakistan Limited 
-~ - . - - 

" 
Manga 

.J._- ... 

Atlaslinerzv ...., .. 



Location - 7 Paint Shnp 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Read Ma ... nga Mandi, Lahore. 

Bhaii 

. .. .,.., 
?:.. ·-., 

Talib S~i~i'' ,~ ... ·1..-,r ... , •. , .. 
"' ••. , - ";-~·= ·~=~- ~ , c·~--·- ;·~- ,..2-_.,, .• 

:: :.: : z; ·, 

Nathe Khalsa.,.§> 
:!;':"···· ... »: 

• 
Manga .J __ 
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Location - 8 AE Shop 

Bhall 

Talib Sar~f'-' '.":· · ,,q·-~. r 
Nathe Khalsa .r ' :- 

.• ·, 

.. ... 
.-!>,t, 

'

i'Honcia ..:.1\~s Cars 
Pakistan Limited 

, - • 'e: ..... -_- - .;, 

-;;.f =-·· .. .:._:"; . ··:, . . - ... ;. ~- - :·:::.-~ 
- :. •• », ... • •,iif 

• 
Mang a 

.J...,;;-_ 

.,WAtlasEnenzv - ....... ~ 



Location - 9 PO Roaf 
Bhail 

,...._:.- ..... 
-: ,·. , .. 

Talib Sarai;,,,,, 
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. ' 

• 
Mang a ~ 
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Pakistan lirrtited 
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3.1.4. Solar PV Yield Estimation and Simulation 

Energy yield predictions using PVSyst software provide the basis for calculating project 
revenues. The simulation considered factors like solar resource, temperature conditions, 
and plant layout. 

3.1.5. Working Conditions 

The system ensures zero grid export, with the solar production dynamically adjusted to 
match site consumption. 

3.1.6. Plant Characteristics 

The plant features a 230/400 V, 50 Hz, three-phase system with built-in inverter features 
for voltage regulation and frequency response. 

3.1.7. Design Parameters 

Key design considerations include: 

• Shading assessment 

• Optimized PV layout 

• Module cleaning strategy 

• 

3.1.3. Technology Review & Selection 

• PV Modules: JKM585M~.72HL4-TV 

• Annual Generation: Location-I: 1,332,396.00 KWh 

• Inverters: High efficiency (98.5%-98.6%) inverters with a variety of sizes. • 

'i 
• Area Calculation f(lr Modules 

A comprehensive analysis was conducted. including: 

• Global Horizontal Irradiation 

• Shading Analysis 

3.1.2. Site Conditions 

-n 
~Atlas Energy 



--·· --------~ --------·--~·--·-.....:. -··- .. ···---··~~- ... ·--· 

v 
,------- >-·- ·-- 0 

. ------_-,.-.-·;, ..... --. --::.:~~;.-,,_,., ·----- --~-- . ..: .. -· 
-·- --·-· ,:-•.v-. •• .J. ~~·-~· ·---- ...... ·->"· • 

. , 

3.1.8. Concept Design 

A detailed concept design andlayout are provided . 

~tlasEnergy 

• 

• 



,;; Preventive Maintenance: Scheduled maintenance activities to prevent 
equipment failures. 

a Routine Inspections: Conduct monthly and biannual inspections as 
detailed in the O&M plan. 

• Maintenance: 

3.1.10. Operation and Maintenance Strategy 

• Operation: 

o Continuous Monitoring: Online Monitoring will be opt to check real­ 
time performance and detect anomalies. 

o Performance Analysis: Regular analysis of performance data to 
optimize energy yield and identify potential issues. 

o Energy Management: Implement energy management practices to 
maximize energy production and reduce losses. 

• 

• 

--- 15:x HuMlli '!UN2000-1l51<Tl...\t2 ~4oc,J) 
MlxAC r"O!Nt t<ltlh5I pt5Df --- 11.1mv 
.... sc: tCW 
Mi;!nlxJI:..- llllCV. 

3.1.9. Single Line Diagram 

The single line diagram includes PV arrays, DC/AC cabling. protection devices. and energy 
metering . 

~tlasEncrgy 



System Size Total Debt Equity Sr.# Location Project Cost TPC/Wp (kWp) (PKR) 80% 20% 
I 

I 
I 

Honda Atlas Cars Private 
Limited, 

l 

50.000,0001-1 l 43-km Multan Road Manga I 
2.001.360 250,000,000/- 124.9,Wp 200, 000, 0001- 

1 I Mandi. Lahore i I 

The Capital cost shall include the cost borne by the Applicant Company on feasibility studies, planning, 
designing, material, construction and installation of the Generation Facilities. 
The cost of land, step-up transformers, interconnection with distribution system of utility are not required. 
The Applicant shall arrange the required funding through 20% Equity, 80% Debt. Debt may be availed 
under the commercial financing Scheme. 

3.1.11. Planning and Development 

• Initial Setup: 

o Site Preparation: Ensure site readiness. including structural integrity of 
mounting systems and electrical infrastructure. 

c Installation: Oversee the installation of PV modules, inverters, and 
other components according to manufacturer specifications and industry 
standards. 

• Long-term Development: 

c Expansion Plans: Develop plans for future expansions or upgrades to 
increase capacity or incorporate new technologies. 

c Technology Upgrades: Stay updated with advancements in solar 
technology and integrate them as appropriate. 

3.1.12. Technical Challenges and Mitigation 

• Dust and Debris: Implement regular cleaning schedules and consider anti­ 
soiling coatings. 

• Weather Conditions: Design systems to withstand local weather conditions, 
including high temperatures and humidity. 

• Technical Issues: Maintain a technical support team for rapid resolution of 
issues related to inverters, monitoring systems, and other critical components. 

2.1.Financial Analysis: 

The project will be financed on an 80% debt & 20% equity model. The total estimated project cost is PKR 
250,000,000/-. Based on the technical and financial analysis, the installation of a 2,001.360 KWp Solar PV 
System on the rooftop of various sites as shown in the table below. 

Project cost, information regarding sources and amounts of equity, debt. 

Co rrcctivc Maintenance: Address any issues identified during 
inspections or reported by the monitoring system. 

·:n 
Atlashncrsv .__ ~ 

• 

• 



3(4)(c)(i)(a) * certified copies of certificate of incorporation 
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Onlinann mc;u\S lh,: l'<1111p;1;1·,,.., flr,Jma111~·. l'l!U uwl11,lintl ;oil 
snn uiory modi llc.11101\S I her cul lur th.: time he; illl! In force anil su";II 
Other la,, as ma)' Imm time 1:1 lime Ix- r,issi:d in suhs1h11tiu11 or 
am cudmem I hereof. 

Office means tho: Rcj!islrrcd Ollie<! for 1h,: nme b.:ing ui'- :11c 
Company. 

'\ 1cmor11ndum 1n;;an, the \k~wrun,lum ,,f . \:i:,m:iatinn uf. • he 
c:uupm1~ as urigiuall~ fr.mh.·J -~,r ~is l'rvm tune h1 time ..tU\.·rc.:µ ::, 
accordance wilh the pro, isions 11!. 1l1e On!in,1111:o; ,,111.l lhe :\r11dcs.' 

. i 
\Ion th means a calendar 11111111h :1cc,1r.Jin!l 11.1 the l iregorian l'alcndur. 

(;t'ncnll Mreling meuns an .\nnual lic:11n,,I !\11.~·1i11rs :u1<Li1\ a<1 
l.xtraonlinury G,:ncrat':1,kclin!! 

\lcmhrr means a member of ihc (.\,nipu11} "iil,iu 1lic mcu11in~ ,,f 
d;,1m: 11 uf S1:c1im1 ?1 I) . 

OirccljJl'li !ll.:an the: Directors of the C,m1pm1, li,r. iii.: time ~ini:; 
indudfog 1111e·i1iatcTlin:.:"iors if .in)' appoiul.,J h)· 1hc1i1. · .. -. , 'i" · , 

Company means :\l'L\S t'.NEIU;\• l.ll\lB'EO. 

2) 

Ihe Kegulaliun~ contained in 1.tl>lc I\ in the l'irsl Scbedule 1u:1hc 
Companies Ordinance, 19114 slrnU 1101 appl)' 10 lhc Company eKt"<:pl 
in. so far as rhey arc repeated o{ cnntaincd in these Articles i las 
modi tied mid altered). i 

! 
·i 

In. tbese .Anicl~ ;hc·l:;,11,;~·ing w~~~-~1~d expressions ~;.i1" ~;\·~ 
nlellU\mgs. as under, unless· c>.i;l9ded. by the su!°)Ji:cl or 1he. con~xt • 
t111n11:I)': . . . . . . . -. . . . . 1 · 
Articln n1Cuns these Anicles of Asso.:iution originally frlll!icd 1ilr 11S 
111~~ fro1t1 time to time . in aecordaaee with !he provisions o~ the 
OrJinanet! and th~ Ar1iclcs. ! 

. i 
~ard of Diri:ctol:1! mi:411~ L,illcc;!jvcly Jhe Dircch1rs ,)f fhe C-0n1~11t1y 
holding .olfice ofDireelot'll for 1hc .nme bl:ing anJ Irom rime to. lir*. 

I 

( 'hairman mcarts 1he 'chuirmM·.Jr ihe Huard of llircclors iippoil11ed 
ln1m · lime 10 lime pu~1alll 1e> th<;is"e: An ides. l 

I 
Chief Exeulive means rhe L'hit:f f:xecutive for the time being o( Ille 
Company uppointed from lime 111 time pursuant 10 the Articles·.· j 

I 
(\1mmiuiu11 means lhi: Secunues .. nd 1:xchungc Commissio~ uf 
l'i1lds1an consuuued under the S.:curitics and l'xchung<: ( ·<>mmi:si-io11 
u1:Pakis1a11 A,I. 19<}7 I 

I) 
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2 

h•r the purposes of Section 11!1{8). 1hc, 111i11inw111 ,u1>,.:rip1iuo ,.,, 
which th.; Unlll'"rl ma}· proceed 10 allutm.:111 shull be Rs. 1,000_.l~l!i 
(t( upcc" one 11111liun <1111)' ). 

MINl\ll'\1 St:HS('IUl'TIOS 

Any branchur kind of hu,inc,-., which the Cump,my rs either cxprc"ly 
or hy implication .aulhuris.:J 10 undertake lllll) he undcrta~cll by ihc 
Dirl.'ctnr~ al such rime 01 1i1111:s a~ the} shall thing i'II. and Jurthcr in,,:· 
besutfered by them 1,, he in ubeyauce whether such branch or ~inJ ,,!" 
business my have h.:0:11 m:luully commenced or 1101 so long as the 
Directors may deem ii cxpcJit:ot nul 1(1 cll111111c111:c: or proceed "itl1 
such branch or ld11J ofh11si11c:ss. 

111'.SINESS 

Tlu,Cump11n) is u public limi1eJ ..:omp:.H)' .. nu the Board ur Di1et:1,n, 
shall have regard IU the: rcsmctions 011 th!: commencement of business 
imposed u11Jcr sec lion 14(, ,,f I he l.lrJ i nauce. ,o Ii, r us 1l1, ,,, 
resiricnons are binding upon the Company, 

l'HH-W ('OMPAN\' 

lh..: hi:.iding and marginal no1,;s arc ins~rh:,I 1;,r eonvcni .. ~1,.- nulv 
,~d shull 11111 an~~'I the i111erprc:1111iun or cunsrrucuon of 1h~,..: 
Articles. 

lJnbs the: context olht:rwisc: requires, words signilying the masculine 
~hder shall in4,:ludc the li:mininc: i;cnJcr . 

Words importing persons shall include individuals, linns, compa,\ks, 
corpcraiions, govennnem stare or agency or an)' associatlon, 1ru~1 or 
pannership « whether or uut having a separate: ly legal personality J. 

llnlc:s,s .the context otherwise requires, words signilying the sin~ular 
number slndl incluJe the plural number und \' ice versa, ! 

Sul means tile common seal ulihe Compauy. 

Stcreti1i't t'lieiinUhc:·SctrL"litry·for the time being ofthc:-Companyl 

In. ,.,ritinc and wrilt~n include priming, 1y~writing. lithugnlf)lry • 
Elct:troni!: .rransmlsslon, includiug bu! 1101 limitcJ 10 fac~imil.:. lclc., 
and Electronit mail or 1my other mechanical or Electronic process, 11S 
pn:si.:_ribcd by section 3 of the Elo::ctrunic Transa.;1io11s OrJ_imsh~c:. 
2000 or partly one aed p;artly 1he ether and olhi:r modes. of 
representing or reproducing won!s in a visible form. 

Sprch1I flaulu1ion has the mc11ning assigncJ thereto by clause: (,o) 
of St1..1i,.111 2tl ). . , 

~c1iun meuns a section of the OnliiianL·c. 

Rq;islcr means the N.cgistcr uf M(mhcrs 1u he kept pursmull 1,, 

Secuon 1-17 

Pnuy means Jll •u~1n111h:IU in ,,ri1•nt wlh.:rcli} &1 ~1'..·rnhc:1 i..LUlh,1ri,.c~ 
another lo vote for him ,II a mcctiug or meetings uud uni.:,, 1hc 
context otherwise requires, in.:luik~ an ~ilornc} ,luly ""1sti1utcJ un,lc, 
a 1)0\\<!I of unomey, 

.\liilim11m 
,11bu·ripriu,1 

·• 

. P11b/ic C,,mp11ny 3) . - • ~ 

Bulill<'U ofth« 41 
C11n,p.,ny. 

~ 
~ 

. • 

• 



I hc l'umpmt)· lllU} p11y sudl hr,,hr,,~c a~ may he b"0rlll 111 r,-.p,-(, , I 
,Ill) 1:.s11c uf ,lmrcs or Jchcmur.:s. 

14J 

l llc l'nmpany may al mt} tune p,,y a i:11111111,s"un tu .my fl<!'""1 ,.,r 
subscribing or agn:1:ing ll> >uhscrihc ("h.:thcr ab,ululcly; ,., 
~~m\lilionaUy) for uny sht1rcs ,ir 11.bcnturcs uf th.: (\11npanj ,,r 
procuring or :1grt.'o.:i11g to pwcurc ,uh:,.:riptions (\\hdh~r ..1h~nlu1~ , ·r 
,,,ndltional) li,r HH~ shares or ,lci>c11111rcs of 1h, l ·umpau}. hu1 ,,._,:i,,d 
Lil~ ~mount 11r r.tl~ uf .:ommi:.~iun ,:hall nut .,ci.:cd :.u.:h <1muu1(1 ,,r 
rnlc as is ~ulhorizcd hy 1he Board of Dircdors (or such olhcr rai,· ,i.­ 

llta) ht: prcscrihcd by lh~ l'ummis~ion umkr the < )nlinancci ol lht 
price al which lln: shan:, arc: issucJ tit of the 1wn1111al ~alu.: ul the: 
Jd1e1uur~ in each ca..;e subscrib.:ll ,1r lal hi: subscribed. In C,t:i\! .. ,w:, 
commi»iun is to ht: p~id. 1hc Company ,IMII comply \I ith: ·.\,c 
prm isi(Hls ,,f Sc,I iun 82 of the Ordinance. 

As regards any allotment ofshares. lh~ Board shall Jul)' comply {,11li 
the provisions of Sections 611 tu 7 J as 111,ty be appli,,ihlc. 

Il 11: 1i.o11ro m11y ano, ;11\d issue: shures in the capitul .. r the c 11m1L u ) 
as payment or pun pil}'mc:m for any propc:rl)' I asse1~ sok[ ur 
uunsterred h1 the: Company, or for serv ices rendered Ii> the C'omp.,n~ 
in th~ ordinary course uf its business, and shares so ,t11oneJ )h;i/1 be 
issued 11.!1 fully paid up lhurc; und i r ;o issued, shall bl! J..:~mc.t 11, n.: 
hrlly paid up shares. · 

Iii 

IO} 

9) 

Tho: Cumpany shllll 1101 issue: partly puid shares. In the ca"c uf .m 
isslk: of shares for c11Sh, the amoum payable ,>11 aprlica1 ion shall x 
1h.: full nominal 11mottnl of th.: share, except where shares MO.: is~1<:d 

· lll a Jii.j;Ounl. , . . '·· ' 
i 
i 

With the previous 11u1hurity of the: Cumpuny in General Mc.:ling ;mJ 
the sanction of 1he Commis:,io1i and upon otherwise: complying '1,ith 
the: provisions of Section 114. it shall be lnwti1I for the Board 10 i~suc 
shares in the c11pitlll of the Company al ~ discount. 

lbe shlll'¢5 in lb!: capital of 1hc Company lur rbe time: t+ng 
remaining. unissued.,. · including uuy new shnres r~11l1ing rrom1 an 
increase in Ilic: aullwf:~d share capital, shall be under the coou-cll of 
th,; Uollld which may .illot or otberwise dispose of the same: tu ~ur.:h 
persons, on such !Wns undc:onditions, with.such rights and pri"ilJ~.:s 
annexed 1hcrc10 IIS the ~solu1i1)n cn:111ing thc: same shall direct, aild ir 
no such direction be given. as 11lc Board shall determine either as: par 
or. al prt!mium or suhja..'t lo Arth:le 8 above at a discount, with pqwcr 
to 1hc: Board lo· gh,e any person 1he right lo cull for and be 11IIJ11cd 
shares of any class of the ComP<1n) HI par or ,II a premium or sul\j~ct 
as aforesaid 111 11 disi.:mmt such option hc:i,ig cxc:r~isahlc: ut such ti\u.,s 
and in such manner ~J lor such consideration, as the Director:. 1~inl.. 
ru. , 

Kl 

Suhjcc1 lo S~.:tiun 90 and ,m} mks in tlint r<:l,!ill'll made nuder the 
Ordinu,i.:c:, any share in the l\>n1pa11} may be: IS>Ucd wuh such righ1> 
and restricrions as may trom time: tu lime he dcterrruncd t,~ 1hc 
Company in Geueral Mc:.:lint?, 

SuhJc:cl tu Section 95(4)12t) anJ any rules in thal r,:gunl 1m1Jc 1111.IJr 1hc 
Ordinamx, 1hc Comr,.my may i~suc shares which arc lo bi: rcJc:Jmul 
or any oiher r<:dccmahlc: secerny, on such terms and in such manner as 
may be provided in the: said Section and rules. · 

7) 

SII.-\IU.S 

BroA,·rnge 
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• 
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-~ 
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R.-,lcem11I,/,: slwrei 
11nJ secutities. 

Power to issu« 
share» t>f dijft!re111 
d1tUt!l, 



I :nk» Ute ~unditiun, uf issue ,,I an} ,hare,, Jchcnturc:s ur Jcbc:111<11,: 
st,.>cl ol' 1hc Company 0111<:rn isc pru~ iJc. 1hc l'o111ri.m> ,hall "ithi)1 
ninety J.s)S ulh:r 1hc: allolmcm ;11111 \\llhin tony tivc days alkr rr:l:\.:11,1 
hy the: Company or 1hc applic.11iun li1r mm,for uf ,my sud1 sh.ii,,. 
uchclllllfC> or dcb.:nturc slock. i:omplc:IC anJ huvc n:.id> ror Jcli,·cr:• 

!he ,:cnilk,tlc ,if all ,hates. the ddJ1;11lur~, ,mJ the ~1:r1ilic;1tc: ,,f .,ti 
Jdlt"nlur~ su,-k ,illullctl or trnn~li:Ht'd, anJ unless scn1 hy p,,sl ·•r 
Jcli\,rr:J 10 the pcrson cn1i1kJ rhcrcto within 1h~ pc:rioJ aforcsaiJ' \lac 
l·i,mpany shull irn,nc:diah:ly lhcrcalfrr give: uuficr;: 10 lhat p,.:rsu~ ·11 
1h, tuilhll•f pr~.,ailxJ in th~,..: /\11i.;I.:, r .. r 111..: ~i, ini,:. ur m1lii:..:1, a, 

Mcmh~r:, ihul lh, i:crlifii:,1le i,. rc:aJy for ddi,.:ry. 

l'J) 

' 
CERTU'ICAn;s ! 

i 
hc:ry person whose name: is emered as a Mc:mbcr in the: Rc:i;i!-icr 
shall be entitled to receive alic:r llllut111cnt or rcgis1ra1iun or lr.mr l\;f 
one certificate for all his shares or several certificates e11Ch for "Rf"' 
more of his shares upon paymeut ur such churg.:, i r ,my, as the B1urJ 
may derermine li,r every .. ~rtilkatc: ;ilkr lhe first, 1 

In accordance with 1hc: ilpplicahk laws, the: certificutes of li1JJ to 
sbares and duplicates th,:reo(, wl11:11 ~=I')'. stndl be issued ul\Jcr 
the Sc:111 of 1h.: O.nnpany w11l sig~d by one Dire .. ior !mJ 
counh:rsigned by lhc l·umpany SJ;"cn:lary or such uffic e n ufi1hc: 
Comp1111y as shall from lime to time: bi: 11u1horii.:J by lhc: Boar1 lnr 

the purpose. l.:11c:ry p,:rson whose name is emercd as a member in ihc 
lkgis1cr shall, withoui paymc:nl, bl: emiued tu receive within 11i1 ct)' 

(90) days ~flc:r ullotmc:nt; or wuhin fony-lhc (-15) days uf;1hc 
appli.:mi,,n for rcgis1ration of transter, one: ( I) ..:crtilkatc for all\1hc 
shares of each class rc:i;islc:rcd· in his name. or if the BoarJ w 

apprmcs 10 ,c:11cr.il ccrllli~-ah:s each for ,me I\} ur more ,11' J,.:h 
shares. However, ill respect uf euch addilional ccnificate. the Btl'"'I 
,hull he c111itlcd tu chari,;c such Ice as it may dcteruriuc. liorn Lim· !,, 
1i1ilc. bcry . cenificatc ,,f shares. ,hall ., spc:cil)' the number L1ml 
Jc11u1i111i 1111111bcrs of the: shares 'in rcspa.·I of which i1 is issued an~ the 
amuunt paid up thereon.The B,ianJ may. by resolution, detenume 
either gc:11crall)' or in any pairtict1lar case, that the ,igna111rc: of fn•:· 
~u,h Director or ,,nicer of the: l'111npa11y may be afli~cd nn sh.arc 
ccnilkatcs by some: mc:d1.111icul or dc.:lronic mcans. or he pnr,1cJ 
lhc,cou. 111 1hc muck ,u ,J mm111c r :,pc:.:i tied in such rcs,iluu,,n. ' 

·11ic l'11mpa11~· shall no1 be hound lo issue nwrc lhan one c<:rtilicatl or, 
rcsp,.:.:1 ,,r a sh11rc i>r ,hm·c, held .iot11lly by lwll or mmc pa,uus frnd 
Jdi,.:r) of a i:crlilicalc for a shar..: 1,1 anyone ur 1h.: .ioint hultkrs ,!1:,H 
ht- ,uftinc1ll ,klhcr} [ti .ill . 

ll<J 

In 1hc case of tlje death of .ui)·onc or more uf 1hc: person, namc~ m 
1hc Rc:i:islcr as the joint holders of any · share, the sur~i•u~ '" 
surv iv ors sllaU be the only. person or persons recognized by I the 
Cl~lllp1111y wi.llllvin11 any I i1li:.11i.ur. inum:st fo .. sucb share, i 

17) 

If <Ill) shares sumd in the name ;,r two or murc person», the: pc~t>r, 
lirs1 named in the R<:jlis1c1· shall, as regards receipt of I )i\'iLknJ nx 
sc:n kc of notlces and all ur ,lll\ other mane ts connected with iihc 
Compuny, except voting al the n;ccting mid the: transfer of shares) he 
deemed the: sole holder. · 

lb) 

!s;,11 more than li•ur person» ~h.ill he rcgislc:ri:d .,, jouu :,ha1i:hv!.J~r, 
~=,,~1~p1 1n the case uf t:.,ci.:ulnh ~~f UU?ttt:(;\ of a .di;-t:c.t~cJ Ult'tlll~' 
Shares muy he registered in 1hc name of an} timited company ,u 
other c,1rpora1.: body. 

·' 

Time/or lssu« •if 
,·ertijimll!.'t. 
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' 

.i 
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• 

-· 



bcr} instrument of transfer shall be J..:J\ al the ollic~ i.,r 
I 

n:gis1ration, accompunied tiy lh.: certificate of the shares •1· be 
lr«noforn:d, and such other evidence us the Bl111rd m.iy ''"i""~ 
to prove lh.: title: of the transferor or his rii:ln to 1ranst~1 tile 
shares, and upon payment of the proper foe. the trunsleree !hall 
h<: r.:gisterc;d as a mem ber in respect of such shares. The u( ,,,r J 
ma)' waive the: production of ,my certificate upon niJtn.:.­ 
sausfactory 10 them of its lu~s or desjruciion. 

(ii) 

O.;\.uflilllklll ..... 

hdtA~c:oi. ···--·····~·--·- --··~·· 

f""'iH. . ..,.1>-'l"n.1p.i111N1,J 
tn ~.6'M: ,J[fo1ci~ie1 

b!IS.sl~t 
~ .. 111:.:1 ~.,11~;li.s,1J- ~- 

S:.vl<oM•HC" 
~AGIC' 

l!\;lt.'°lio, 

h,h 4..!..llC'I.• 

~.i[ni11u1c 
S.....uc 
,: .. "K'N~ 
.full AJJ,cn 

, uf .- .. -.-· .. mt.:mudicn111a1dihc>1HUU(M.upc~ •. -~-- .• tk, 
... :... . ... ~•ttbl-JlltJ":-n~by ... \If ... - . (ll111= .. l"111m1fc1u:"J... cl~ 

th1t1~r"1 1u lhc ·1r•111,tC1cc·~--·· . lhc- ~aicb) n11c,lktni . -·- •. ,o,. -· ·-· 
.,~1,u~,,c., 111 ~Tl.AS .f.Nf.~(N t.tt.nrn) 1i:> ti~~ '-"IIO lhc-lr.-,.f-0100.. ~t),1Kr.,tu1u1,.·ldsaausff ~ ..LI 
.a'1~o .wl•1a.'1 tu !lbC" w~c1sl t.--um11.ll""• 1111 ~-tud, t btld·thc amic·• It..: Mute .at IIM~>lll ~n,1·, 

v,J I ltu;1r•1t!f"c' dti h(1di~ li,'lti; W 1illc W, ~ ,luud:,,J ,.qc..;\ lu 111,..:us,1111,.11:l., iii1L>IQ.11d 

AJI AS t;Nl"lfiX I IM rl Y 

The instrument of transfer of any share sh11U be :i11bsllln1i11 in 
lhc: tollowing form or as 11c:ar' th,m:lo as circumstanees will 
,ulmit: 

24) (i) 

No transli:r shall be r.:giswred unless ii ·rr~per instrument of uu .fer 
together wilh the cc:rtilic11tc:(s) of :dwo:s has been delivered· t the 
Company. The in!o1rumcnt of transter ·of 1111)' share: shall be: ~i ned 
both by th.: transferor and tbe transferee and tbe 1r11nsferor ·shil he: 
deemed 10 remain l~lder or the sh11Tc until the name of1bt:.trails 
isentered in the Rc:gis.t.:r in rcspcct t~of. 

23) 

TKANSi,'ER <W SHAH.t-:s 

II a ,c11i!i.:u1c of ,h.i1c,. <icll<'lllmc, or debenture ,tnd, 1s prnn,!1 '" 
ti~ :,i1lisla1:1ion or the Comp.in} :10 have been los1 or destroyed or. 
hcing ,klilco:J or. rmuilated or torn, is surrendered 10 the Comp~n). 
and the l'umpan) is 1'1:<Jt1c,1cd 111 issue a new ccrlitii.:attj in 
replacement thereof, lhc Company shall. after m.iL ing such cnquir~ ;i, 

it ma) deem lit. advise the applic.anl within thirty <la)'> from 1h,; d4t<· 
of appticllliun the terms und c -onditions (as 10 indi:mnity 1an,I 
otherwise and as 10 paymcnl of 1hc actuul c:xpcnsi:s incurred on · rch 
enquiry and of a fee not exceeding om: rupee > on which the Com R)' 
is· prepared 10 issue a new certitleate and a time for compli nee 
thcrcwiLh or of the reasons why Ilic Company is un11bk lo issue a· icw 
cerrificate, as the case lll;t)" be, and in the former case if the aprr .aru 
~hall within the lime: a1k1wcd L'ttmpl)' with 1hc terms and romlil rn,s 
speci fied, the: compauy sh11!1 issue a 111:w eertiticate lo the: appt · · ~,u 
within rony-live da}'$ from the: dak-uf appl1C11iioo, · · ~ 

• 

F-oflratnf~r. 

£:uc11tio11 of 
tr1111if~r. 

-e 

l.~1rt ur muti/111e,J 
cmijicuur. 



17) 

26.l 

lhc lli1ec1ors shall 110: refuse tu rqp,tcr iLn} tr,mst~r ui hilly paid up 
sh,1rcs uulcs, 1h.:: ins1n1m,·n1 i,r 1ran,rcr is dclecuve nr invulid ur iS: 1;,,1 
accompanied hy the eertiticne nf shares tu which it relates or .!11~ w 
non-payment ,1f a foe, iLmy, as prescribed "> the BuarJ uf Dirc..:t,,r, 
lhe Dir.:ctors may also decline tu rccoguia: ,my iusuumcni 11ftrn1L>,(cr 
unlc,s ii is accompanied, in addition lo 1he certificate of share~ 1,, 
which it relates, b>• such other evidences ilS the Director> ~M) 
rcusonably require 10 show rhe right ,,1· mrn,fe,or io make the.: tr,mJlcr. 
{he Directors may, ,,n such serms and sul>jcci lo such wnditilms, 
including without lnniuuion th.: submission or indemnities. asj the 
Directors may in their absnlutc discretion, determine, wuive [ the 
requirement for Ih< pruduction of any cern ficate upon evidence 
satisfactory 10 them of its lrn.s ur destruction, i 

i 
If the Hoard refuses 10 r1:gi,1~r a 11,.Ulsli:r uf shan:s, it shall wiihi~ JO 
(tnirt}' jdays or such 01hc1 l"!cftt1J as may be: re11uiretl by the applic!mlc: · 
laws, atier the date on wluch 1hc instrumem uf transfer was 104gcJ 
wilh the Company, send kl the uansteree und U1e transferor notiq: iii 
wrfling or lhc rt!fusa\ intlicalii1g the dclcct OJ ill\'lllidily 10 I the 
transferee, who .shall, al\er rc111m·11I of such defect or iavalidit ht: 
elllitlcd to: re-lodge the instrument ,,f transfer wuh the Comp my, 
Furthermor~, the Directors shall nol incur any liahi lily lor, n a 
bonafide manner, n:gislcring or acting ~ix•n a 1ransli:r of sh res, 
all hough ihe same may, by reason of any fraud or other cause: not 
known to the: Directors, he legally inoperative: or insufficient 10 · a:is 
thtf property in the shares proposed t1r p[l,)lesscd 10 be transferred, and 
al1hough the: irunsfer 1nay, as between th~ 1ra11sforur and Jr.m~(i:r , he 
liahk to be S\:I aside, and 1101 w hhstunding 1hal Lh~ Directors ma)' .i~c: 
nu1iee th.ii- such insnument ,ll' · transfer was signed _or executed anJ 
Jell vered hy the irunsferor in blank as to th.: name ol'the iransfe e .or 
the paniculars of the shures transferred, or otherwise in ddi:fi,e 
manner, ! 

• t 
On giving seven days prior notice. lhc tnu1,for hllo\..s and the 1tc:!!li;1cr 
11m.1 h, du!>CJ du1in11 ~uch 1i1111.: .i, the Bmud ur Diu;~1u1, 1h111I,. li1j nut 
cxct!cding 1hc whole fony·ii\'c ,t.,y, in cueh y\.!Qr hut 1101 cxc~c:ping 
11m1y ,fays at: u umc. 1 

! : 
l'RANS\IISSIOi'li Oli lUcGISTUU:I> SIIARES 1 

! 
I he executor or udministnn.n of ,1 deceased member or a pcjrstm 

110111 inated under Section 80 or 111.: holder ,,f :' succession c.:nilf:all: 
shall be .the only persons recognized b)"_ lh<: (. 0111pany "' h,tvmg( "") 
tilk hi. the sh,m:s_ except in ca,cs uf juim-h,,IJtr,, in whid, c~,t· the 
surviving holder <lr huld.:rs. or the c"ccutor ,,r ;l\lminislrnlor o · the 
t.is1 survhing holder sh;,11 he ,hi: ,mly r~r,011 .:ntitlcJ tu ~ ,o 
rc,;,,gnizcd. The· Cuinpuny ,hull n<>l he t-uunJ 111 recognize ~udi 
nccutur or uJministr.11,1r 111ilcss the cxccutor or administrnrnr ~!·,.-,!I 
h,l\c oh1tti1,1;d prohal<: ,,r kucrs "f ad1nini,1ra11on ,,r u1hci- l,µ.il 
ri....·pri;~i:ntutluo. a~ ti~ casi; uta~· hL~. frc)nl .1 l'.'1)ltrl ~,f .... umpcwn1 

jurisdit·tion prodded ncverthclcss that in special cases .ts JdcrnJm~J 
1'y the Board. it ,hall he ln"fi1I ti1r 1hc lloard 10 dispense wi1* 1hc 
pr:oJucnon of prob.it.: or lctkrs of aJminlstratlun or ,u.:h <>111.:r h:f,.I 
rl!prcsc111a1ion, including .r ,ucccsslon ctnilk.11c, upon sud, ktt1), «s 
lLl i11Jc1nr11I) or t,thcrw1~ a, th.: l!odf<I lll.i) ,k:t:m lit · 

:!NI OH An~ p.:rmn h.:t·nruing c111i1lcJ 1,, ,,hnr<"• in ,·,,n·"''l"~".:c ,,f 1h~ 
drnth or in~ulv.:nc, of the hold~r ,,f' :;uch ,hares. ,hall lmvJ l!;c 
right. ~ubj~cl lo \·ctiliGHiu11 hy il1c Bu,uJ ~u1J ,.,n Ei\ ing ~·:1h.:h 
indcmnilic~ a::i· n1.1y be rcqutn.:d. h' rn:(l\-1.: anJ giv\.' a di,~·h.irg~ i.;,r 
i1ny Divii..kstJ uroth~r llHIJh:y~ p11yahk l•r 1_11hr1 inh·uui;1{:t'.., ,11;·,1!1g 
in n:sr,.:~1 of1hc shares 10 ,1hid1 h.: wuuid h.: cm11kd ii he ,wrc 

6 

Nii;Jir ,,J pct>rm 
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(h') Ill Wri11U!; 1.~ff ,he:- i:'\P'."fl~e".'I t\( nr lhf~ 1,'lllllnli,,loll rmi,i elf ,ii"i+IHlif 
jUo\iti'Cd on. itn) i~-..;11,· uf .,.,1;u·.~ .. 1,r ,J,;h..·mur•_·~ t_\f the C•.-mpan)!: 

' 
<,') in pro~·iding for 1hc premium 11ayuhfe on the: redemption o; .1ny 

rc:Ja:mabh: prdi:rcncc: shares ur Jc:hc:niun:~ 11 r lht: Com pan>; ~,r 

cJJ u, p.a)in~ up uni;su~J ,hd1.:, uf 1h, Cu111p,my 10 he i,,ucd 11, ~.ill} 
flUii.l bonus ,hur~-:.. 

l'he Duard may lmrn time 10 lime increase the issued shim: capit I hy 
such sum as 1hey 1hin.k tit. F ur1her issue: uf shares shall be carrie uut 
in- il\:n>rdm1ce widi 1hc: provisions of the OrJio,111i.:e. Prt,vii.lc:r.l ih.it 
ln,r11011~1 ~han:., ~h;1ll 11u1 he; oU.::r.:,t "ml all lr.,ctums ks..1ha11 a : f,.,,, 
,h11II be: ,onsolid.ilc:J auJ disposed of lly the; Company ill\ the 
proceeds trom such disposition shall Ile: p:1id to II d1uri1ablt ins1itt1iun 
ur as Jee 1J.:d hy 1he Board of Directors. 

Lxc.:1)1 .s., for as otherwise prov idcd O) the conditions of issue, lr by 
thc:s«: Art ides. ,1ny .:.ipit<tl raised hy the o.;1e,11io11 ,1f new shares b1t .. ll 
hci considered part of me original capital, rllllking pari passu w~·, II" 
c:xis1ing shares, and shall Ile: suhjcc1 10 the provisions h rem 
contained wilh reference tu transfer amt transmission, and olher sc 

I 
\uhj.:cl lo Scctiun 'Jh, the l"<>lllllilll) ma}'. b) Special Rcsoh,1m1. 
icuuce i1, ,hare ,apical in auy 1n,11mc1 consi.10:nt 11 uh the law. I 

I 
V,1ria1i,>11~ 01·1hc shareholders righ1s m:,y ti.: clfrc1i:d hy 1he Co111j,.11,v 
111 a(l'(•1tl:tnr.:l.~ \\ ith lh\'." rr•n i:-ii··n~ ,,I' "l·,.-,;1,,,i 108 ! 

file share premium .icc,111111 muii11aincd pursuant to Sc:c1ion '''· 11 
may, oc .ipplkJ oy 1hc Company: l 

(a) 111 writing uff lhc prclnninary cxp.:n!i<!S ur lhc t 'umpany; 

I.!') Cancel any slunes which, al Lhe d111e of the pllSSing o the 
resoluuon have not been lukcu or ugreed lo hi! tul.en by 11ny 
pc:rson und diminish ihe amount of its share capital by the ii mnt 
of 1hc: shares so cancelled . 

th) Ihe l>irec1ori. shall have 1hc same ri!lhl to decline or suspend 
rc:gi strut ion as they would have had in the case of a mmsfor of the 
share by 1h111 Member before his death or insolvency as the ~U)c 

may he. I 
! 

Al.TEKATION 01-· (:APITAI. I 
Jhc Company m;,y b} ordinary resolution and subject to cumpl1· mce 
with !lit r.:quin:.m.:n1s:olSccliw1 92; . .. . . . 

ht) increase 1hc auth,lrizeJ share capi111l b) sud1 sum, lo be Ji kt.:J 
h1w ~h:1res of s11d,-,111,ou111. a~ llk: resolunon ~h~II rri:~,;1ihc, 

tb) consolidme anti Ji\•ide its share capital into shares of Jrger 
mnuunl than i1sexis1i11g shares; 

(cl by sub-division of its c:1;is1ing shares or any of them, diviJ th, 
whole or any J)llrl of its shure cupilul ime shares of s lier 
amoum than lhl'd by Ilic Mc111orm'Mlum; ;111(1 

the registered bolder of the shari:s, bur he shall hu\c nu 1ii;i11 lu 
receive notice ut: alhmd or vore al any C,cn.:ral Meetings ur (~,"~ 
.c. Jfo.-c:..,iJ) to au) 0111: of the 1ight or privileges ul' Mcmhc1~ 111 

. rc,pcct nt' the shares. untc,s and 111Hil he: is named on ihe Rcgi,1cr 
a, ,, huli.kr thereof. 

·, 
! 
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(b) In the case of an emergency allc;;tint; the business ot 1hc 
Company an ExtrnorJinary ticncrnl ~keting may bi; cu1wc11du by 
sud, shorter notice than Iha! spcdlicJ in Artidc: 3\1 (a) aht.ll'd"'1J 
,L, ihe Rcgistrar otCompunies may authorize. ! 
\\'hcn: any special business. that is 111 s.iy husincss other l1han 
consideration uf the accounts. balance sheet and the reports ,~· the 
Dircctnrs und Auditors, lhc declaruuou of dt\ idend, I the 
appoinnncnr and tixation nl' the rcmuncnuion of Auditors anf the 
election of Dircclors (all sud, matters h.:ing herein referred 1q ,IS 
nntittar)' business) is h• he 11.u,-.1.:h;,t .ii a Licneral \kt:1in1;:. \here 
shall be annexed 1" 1hc 1101ic, ul ,udi mccuug a suncmcnt s11ing 
out all such facts as may be material lor 1l1c rnnsiJ.:rnliun ofi;ud1 
h'.1sincss _ini:!udin!l 1.hc na1'.1rc.: ,uiJ c~1.:u1 uf the l111crcst. (whtlhcr 
direct or mdm:ct) ol any Director, •nd when; the uem ol bu,,~c,s 
involves apprm·al of any documcm, ihc lime and pl .. c.: appo!111cd 
liir inspi;ction thi:rcol: and 10 the cx1cnt applh:ahlc su~h a 
s1a1cmcnt shiill be anni::.cd It> 1hc nu1icc also in lhc c..i: of 
,,rJinW"y husinr:ss lo be trunsa.:1.:J di the meeting. ! 

I 

hi) Where: 11 rcslllu1in11 is intcn,.kd 10 ht: prnpL•s.:d li>r .:ons1d1:ra1i1•n .ti 
a (;,:nc:ral Mi:c:ting in som...- sp.:l'ial ur parli.:ular limn. d b,1n 
thtrcuf shall be anm:xi:d tu 1h.: nulicc l'.,on,·~ning such 111.:.:11111. . 

3lJ) (u) Notice: or a General Mi:cting sbull be sent In the: m mer 
hcn:inal"lc:r mentioned at l.:,bt twent y one days before the d11 on 
which the meeting is tu he: cunvencd to all such persons 41 ur.: 
under these i\niclcs or the Ordinance enuried to receive ·uch 
Jlllli~-.:s from Ilic C,m1pan} JUJ sh .. 11 specify the place, J,I)< ilntl 
hour of the meering and 1hc naurre ofthe business to he: lrans. ~led 
thereat, 

Nff[l('E oi: GE~l~RAI. MEETINGS 

The Bo11rd m11y, whenever 111<:y think lit, call an Extr.wrLI ary 
General Mi:.:ting. and Ex1raordin11ry Cicncr,il Mc:ctinp sh,dl al· be 
called on such n;quisition, ur in default, m11y be culled by uch 
re!-juisitionists. as provided li)r hy Section 159. 

311) 

All General Mi:c:1ings other 1111111 Annual General Mcc1ings sha 1 be 
called l:xtr11ordinary General Meetings. 

37) 

A GcncruJ McclinB, Jc:signalcJ ,a,, 1111: Annual (icneml Mccting, ~h.ill 
he ht:ld in accordance wilh thc provision, uf Section 1511. wj1loi11 
cighlc:c;,n Months trom the ,fotc ,,f lts incorporation of the: l\1mpany 
and thereafter once al lcasl in cvcr}' calendar year, within a pc:ri<t 111" 
four Momhs thllowing the close of each financial year o I' the 
Comp1111y, hut in such manner !hal an Annual General McL1ing is eld 
in every calendar year and 1101 more: than tili.:en Months el ses 
between any two consecutive Annual Cicm:ral Mcc:ting,. ,111<.I su jc.:I 
tu the above, each such Annnill Generel Mectinl! shall bc held al uch 
time lb may be .ktcrmim:d by lhc lloarJ. Unless ofherwlse all \'cLI 
by the: Commission, Annu.il General M~tings shall be held ii 
town in which lhc Onice is situated, and each such Anmutl (jc 
M"~ling shall be held at such locution in lhat town as the Uoard 
determine. 

36) 

I he ~tululor> gcn.:rnl ,n,,..,Linu uf 1hc company shall he held wi1l11~ lhc 
period required by s.:d ion 157 

• 

N111iceof 
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(rt) by tll'C chairmm1 of Lhc 111cc:1ing; or 

(h) by al lcasl one Mc111bc1 p1es.:11l iu pcrsuu ill by prul.~ J 
1101 murc 1ha11 sc-.n ,u~h mc1nh.:rs o1rc p.:rslln.111~ pr,}:111, 
and h} Lwo ,uch mcmhcr- prc~c111 m pcr,:011,ir I>} pro~\ ,1 
murc: th,111 s,:,·c:11 ,u..-11 111c111bcrs arc: pc:n.um1lly prc~..-111; , ,, 

Cl'I tw any Mcmhcr i>r !\,Jcmh<-r... pr..-,c:111 in l'k.:fsrnl ur h, pr,,~\ h,1l,.i1111: 

1101 lc:ss than onc:·lcnth of lhc i,sucJ ,a11ital ,,-hich ~arri.:s ~~·1111i; 
nel""' 

ti) !\t a (jt:111:ral Meeting. tt resoluunu put tu the vote o! lhc mr:11 ,ng 
,hall be: ikl:it.leJ un a show uf hauJs unless a poll i, (be fur~ ()1 ,m 
lhe Jcdar111ion of1hc show ofhanJsJ Jcm1111Jcd: 1 

No business shall be: dis.:u:.M:J al any {icncr.il Meeting ,\Ccpl 1!1~ 
election of a chairman "" long us the chair is , ucnnt. 

If within hull', an hour from the time appoinied for the: meeti g a 
quorum is not present, the: 1ncc:1i11g, if culled upun the: rc:<1uisi1i1 11 of 
Mc:m hers, shall be dissol ved; in any other case, it shall ,1!IJ 
a.ljouro~J to tlic: same Jay in the next week al the same lime: .,nJ 
place •• md, if al the aJj .. urned meet i 111,t u quorum i, 1101 present w I I:,,. 
lli!lf an hum lrom the: lime appoiuied for the meeting the Men her; 
present, hdn~ nut less chan two. shall be a ,1uuru111 

l 
The (."halrnum. If any. lll the: BnarJ uJ' Directors shull prc:si4' a, 
Chairman at every General Mccling uf the Company or ii there j, 11<> 
such Chairman or ii" ht: slmll not be pn:sc:111 within fiticcn It 15) 
minutes after the time appoinied lur the hulding n!' the meeting l,r i­ 

unwilling lo IICI, any one of the Directors present may ht! t!lcch:J '" he 
Chairma11 of the meeting, or if 11" din:~1or is present, or ii" all the l 
Dirc:clurs present decline tu take chc chair, the Members present fli,,11 
d1tK1,-c one of tbcir members Ju he L'hairman ofthe meeting. 

42) 

eel Ir a Spcc1ul Rc,olut1011 1, 1111<.:11JcJ h• be p,,.,i;J di ,I (ic1i,1,1I 
M,,.:1mg. the notice .:01m.:11ing 1hu1 mcc11ng ,hall spcci1)'! 1he 
i11kntio11 Ju pr,>p,.>sc the resolution a, a Src.:1al Rc,ulu1ion. · 

I 

tfl A notice for ,1 (jcucral Mccung convened for the ckctio~ ,,r 
Directors shall slate the number of Dircctur, 1,1 be elected ul [that 
mccnpg anJ the names nl the rctiri111: lJ1rc.:tor,. ! 

i 
(g) 1"11c: notice or c,cr) licncrnl Mccling shall pronuuemly ,~cil> 

that a proxy ~n'.eyllc: appuin~c:J who shall have the riiµ11 to allfnd. 
rkmttnd und join 111 demanding a poll und ,·01.: 011 a poll anJ sr:A 
di the meeting in place ol' the Member appointing him and llh.111 
he accompanied by a fom1 uf proi.y acceptable tu the l 'om p.1f 

I 

lhe accidc:n1ul emission tu i:ivc: notice of u 1n,;,;1inJ! 10. or lhc: (1011· 
n:~i:ipt:ol'n<>liu: of.a u1cctmt by, Ull) person entitled to receive: + 
shall 111,11 invalii.latc: \he proceedings al that rneetmg, 

PROCl':FDINGSATGl;NERAI. Mt:l':l'INGS ~ 

J\lo business shall bc: mmsactc:J 111 ttny General Meeting uni ss II 
quorum is present al !he: time: when 111( mc:c:ling proceeds tu bush c»; 
su.ve as herein otherwise provided (unless specified otherwise i the: 
Ordinance) at least two Members prc:scm in person or by PfU\}" 
n;prcs.:nling l"'C:lllJ·live ~r cent t25'1'o) of the total voting fllP"c:r 
shall be a quorum. 

A company bc:iog a member uf the: Company and present ) ,, 
representarive duly appoimed in pursuance of Sectiou 162. shu l ~ 
d.:cmc,J 10 be a Member present personally for the: purpose ol this 
Artide. 
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:o 

{ii) t lnlc:ss a poll 11(: demanded, al uu, l ic·ncrnl Mcclln~ a dc:clawlinn 
hy lhe l'haimi,111 otthc mc:cliug !hal u resolution ha.~ on a ,h,," .. t 
hunJs hc:c:n carried, or curried unanimously, ut h} a paniculur 
mejurity, or lost and an entry 1111hu1 effect in the book cun1.1inii1!! 

the minutes of the proCL'\:Jings uf the l ',>mpan:,, ~hall unul i rue 
contrary is proved, Ill: evidence of the Iact wi1h,1u1 proof uf;1h..: 
number or proportion uf the votes recorded in favour of or a11.1in,l 
'such resclution. · 

If a poll is dcnrn11dc,I, il shull be rnk.:n in accordance with j ih.: 
provisions of Sc:c110n lb!!, and the: result ol thc: J)llll shall be di:c:1i.:,! 
10 he the resolution otihe meeting ill which 1hc p<>IJ was dcmimJcJi. 

i 
Lvcry question ~ubmiui:dto II nm:tini: ~hull he decided in 1hc lir.;l 
in!l.lance ·hy a i.i\Ow· t,f hnnd amd in case of ~uality or votes, I I he 
Chainnan shall. both on a show of hands an.I at the poll, h;1i: " 
casting vote in iltldition 111· the vol.: ur votes to which he: 1n,1~ hi; 
cnthlcd as a Member ,1nd/ur pmx)· ur corporate representative. I 
A poll J1:1111111dc:. d -on I.he election of a. Chairman or on "qucstiu ot' 
adjournn11:n1 shall be: taken forthwith. A poll demanded on any her 
questions shlltl be: takcn at such time, not be ing more than four een 
days from the d11y on which the poll is demanded. as the Chaimu of 
the: meeting directs, 

Ilic dcm~nd of11 P\lll shall not pn:vcnt the continuance ofthe mc:Jini; 
for the! transaction of any business oiher 1han the qucslion on whi~h ,1 
poll has been demauded. I 

· voTEs of MEMln:Rs . I 
Subject 10 any special rights ur restrieuons as tu voting upon \\lid> 
any share m11y be ,issuc:d or may for the time: being bl: held, on as iow 
or hand, every Mcmhcr p1c:scn1 in person and bdng a hulJc ,,r 
ou.linary shares shall have one ( I) vute anJ t::\'t::I) person pr.:,c:1 I "' 
gencrnl proxy who is nol II M.:mhc:r nf 1hc Company or who lis a 
Mi;mllt::r 1101 ,1ualilic:J lo Hile on behalf ul a holder or hulJc;' of 
ordinary share shall have one ( I J \'Ole un.1 upon 11 poll every Mc:1 ht,r 
present in person or by Proxy shull have one (I) vote for every ~ tare 
held lly him in respect uf which he: is <.:nlillcd lo vote. I 
In ease of :m election or removal n]' a Director, the provisi<)l1b <>f 
Section 171! and Article 68 anJ 69 respecrivcly shall ,1pply. ! 

I 

Wht!rc .i company or ,11hcr cnrpurntion is a Member uf 111'! t'omp\111\. 
a person July appointed lo represent such cump;m\ al a meeting ,(I' 
the Company in accordance: ,\ith Lhe provisions of the Ordinj' ice, 
,liJII uot he dcc111c<l lo Ix: d pHI~) ~uJ ,1,.,11 be cul ill<: t,, c.,cr~is 1k 
sumc r>owcrs on hc.:hulf nf 1hc: Cnmpan) or .:orp1,ra1ion whir;' ii<: 
r..:pn:sc-l\lS as 1hat i.:n111p;ul) or i:urpo1~11iun 1..:nutd cxcrctsc ifi, ,\-.:4 ,:n 
imli,i,hml Member of lhc (,1111p,111), pr,:;1:111 m pcrsun. : 1111, 
prm.luction llc:for,: or al 1hc.: nh.:t:ling uf .i cupy or s11L:h rcsnlutiun /hil) 
~ig11cJ by OIIC dirc.:clur or S~l'rch,r)' 11f ~uch c,11npaoy or corpor. ''"" 
m1u cer1iti,:d by him as being u 1rue cup~ of the resohninn ~1n1 I l>c 
,1.:,:i,p1ced h~ 1hc Compal!}' ,IS ,unldclll .:, hk,u:c of 1hc .~Jidll} uj l,1, 
apr>uilllm<Jnt. A compw1y or ct>rp,,ra1ion whkh is a Mcmh..:r u( :h~ 
l \1111pm1y tiu1 which b n,11 rc~iJcnt in l'aki,La11 ,nay ap1><111,1 ., 
ICjll<.;>CllhlliH: dS .,f,uc,-.1iJ h} fa~,imilc: H,IIL>Jlti~,ion "'hidl. If 
pur~111ing tu bc: selll by such cumpuny or corpurn1iun, need n~t he 
~crtitlcd as a true! .:op~· as aforcS4tid 

Pm,·,•1/11r" wher» a i I ., 
rn111pa11y is II 
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I he i11s1ru11u:111 appoinling ,1 pw ... y ~1ia11 he J.:.:111<-d I,) ~~·:ikr 
.n11h,ui1y lo ,lt',nand ,,r Join in tlt'nrn11ding a r<ill. 

11 

l'ull Name & .-\(lurc~s: 

i 
1Sigmunrc ,if Mcmr<:n 

Witn,:ss 10th,: Signalu~: 
I. 

' Sign.:J hJ me 1his Ja) uf lu_ . i 

! 

"1.,\1.'c hdng a member of' ATLAS 1::NEhiY 
l.J~HI ED anJ cnti1kd lo --·····--- n111!~, Jo hereby .ip~()tnt 

_ . --·-·-- ... uf _. failing him. _ ...... __ i. _ 
or ..... ·····-····---as my/our pmx7 10 vote for me/us and on mfour 
hc:half, al the Annual or l'xtm,,rdin~ry (as th,: case may be) ticrcrnl 
Mc.:tmg of the Cumpany In be 11,:IJ un the ·------- Jat- 11f 

... ::!O anJ al an~ ,1djournmcnl thi:rcof. · 

ATl.AS E:"lt.:RG'\• LIMITED 

,\ Mc:mb.:r of unsound mind, or in respect of whom an order h11s~· c:11 
made hy an}' court bav ing jurisdiction in lunacy may vote, whet on 
;i show ortumd~ ur on " poll, by his comm inee or o\ll(r kgal guiu- ian 
illld any such committee or guardian may. on a 1ioll, vote by rro,)!. 

! 
No ,,~jc~tion ,J,111!1 be: raised to 1he 4u11lilka1ion of an}'_ 1·01i:r cxcc:p1 al 
I he: mcc:ling <1r adjoimieu mco:ling al whi~h .. the · vole: <tbjt:clc:J~. } i:; 
J:!iycn or 1c:nde,·e·d; and c_·.11~'1'. y vole not disaltowd al such _Ill ting 
shall he: "alid for all .purposes .. Any such ubjeeticn.made .in due. une 
shall be referred 10.illll-<.'hairman or tl1c: mcc:ling, whose decision hilll 
be linal ,ind conclusive. 

On a poll, votes may be. given either personally {including witu111 
limitation a represesuative of H company or corponulen autho zed 
undc:r A nic:k 51 of lhcsc.: Articles) or by proxy. . . I 
The instrumc:nt.appo .. · inli.ng a proxy sh11ll be in writing undc:r theianJ 
of the 11ppoin1er or of his 111tor11t:y duly 11u1hori:tc:d in writing; or, i · 111.: 
appointer is a curpor;s1ion, ehher under seal e>r under the hand I' an 
orficer or attorney duly nnthorized, A proxy need nol be: a Mem r of 
the: Company. · 

T1_1e instrument appoiming 11 proxy and lhe power of attorney or ~ther 
authority «r any). unile. r which ii i,; signed, or o no. tariuUy c.:n!JkJ 
~x1py of 1ha1 power or au1hori1y, shall he: deposued at the om~i mu 
less 1lm11 lorty o:ight hours before the lime: lbr hohling tho: m.:o:li1g al 
"hich the: person named in _lhc insmunenr 1\ro1,o""--s 10 v 01.:, a,jd in 
rJdauh 1ho: instrument of proxy shall not be ireated us valid. I 
An instrument appoiming a prn.,y shall. as nearly as .:irc1mhl'-'ico.:, 
will admit, be in the:. folli\Wing fiirm or in any other form "hie~ lhc 
J Ioard may epprove: l 

53) In the case of joint hoJJeri., the ,u1c: ol' the senior lw!J.::r prs~e111. 
whether in person or by proxy. shull be accepted 1ti the i:xdusioi1 ,if 
1hc 101c:s ol' the other joint holders: ,111d for this purpose s1:ni,(ri1y 
sh,111 he determined by the order in which their n.1mcs stand in) the 
ltci;is1cr. 

521 ( lll .i p,111 • .i Member entitled lo more than on,· vole neeu not, if hi: 
vutcs, u,;,; all his n>k:i or .:asl all Ilk: H>lC:> he use, in 111<:: same wa)-. 
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A Director elected by the Members in Ckncrul Mc:r:ling shall 10IJ 
oftlce for~ period of three years following the: Jute from whic his 
elect ion is effective unless he resigns earher, becomes disq · lied 
from being a Directer or otherwise ccllSc!s lo hold office, 
Ai1y cu,;ual vacancy occurring .unong the Directors may be lilt up 
by the Directors, and a person ,.., .ir,pointcJ shall only hold onic liir 
the remainder of 1l1e term ,,r the Director i11 whose place I c is 
appointcJ. The Cmnpall) shall. prior tu every such appoint1,:nl. 
secure in the form prescribed li,r this purpose. 1hc eonsem .inJ 
cenil!~al( of tit<! ~on concc~nctl consenting lo act as a Dim;tu and 
eerutying that he rs not 1nchi:1lilc tu become II Directer and ·hall 
within fourteen Jays of his .1p1>o.>intmcn1 lilc such consent w it the 
Rcgistrarofl'ompanics us required f->y Section 11!4. 1 

Ilic Members in (icnernl Metting ,hall elect the DirccloN rum 
amongst persons who, nvt being mcligihlc in accordance with Sc ·1io11 
1117. offer 1hcmsr:lvcs for election a, Dirc:cturs in uccordance ,~ill this 
Article. Any person daiminll to ~ eligible who desires 1,1 •lkr 
hi_msclf for election shall. whether he is a retiring Director ur no lite 
with lhe Company not later than hmrte.:11 days before the date , I the 
( it·ncral Meeting ill \\ hid, Directors ure lo he elected, 11 nolicc tll' l he, 
being digihlc. im,nds 10 ,,11.:r hmhdf for dcclion ,ts a Dir(<:I ,r ,11 
th.ii mcc:ting unJ 1ha1 he .. -onscnts to act ;rs a Oireclor if dcc1 lf 
such pc.:rson is clr:ch:<l a Director, thcn lhe C'ompa11y shall Iii his 
.:011:-.:111 10 .icl as Ii l>ire.:tor with the Registrar of Companies uhin 
li!uncc:n Jays ,if hi:, dc:cliu11 ,lli rc,111ired hy Sccliun 1114. A fl'lr,011 
,iflering himself for election as u Uircctor may withdra"1 lus 
canJid.i11m: al any time hcforc: lh.: IMIJing ,if the election and m~; Jo 
"' Ii} "' ithdra\\ ing 111,; ou1i..:c in "hid1 hr; 11ffcrc:J him self for elc:~11 un. 
Nut lat~r th,111 so:v.-11 Jay, h.:t,,,c thi: J,1lc: uf th1: mc.:1ini{ 1h..: 
(.',,mp,tny will m•tify the Mcml'<cr:; .. r th.: pcr~,,n, ufli!ring lh,,msi·h,·s 
1,>r dcctim1 as Dir.:cl<1rs ill ,udi m.:ding. 

o7} 

SiibjC'-'I to the provisions of t hese Al1 ic les mid the Ord inane the 
Directors shall be elected hy the Members in General Mei:ting. 

I. Mr. Saquih Hussain Shirazl 
2. Mr. Frahim Ali Khan· 
3. Mr. Maqsood Ahmc:<l 

6J) 

6:!) 

1\ ,·ot,; ~1vcn in accordance l\ith the 1cnn~ ur un insuumem ,,1 pi11x) 
shall 1~ valid 11otwi1hstJ11Ji11g the previous death or in~nity of the 
pri11~:ip,il nr rr~'-•l,:~ui1111 ,\t" th..• prn,} ,,r uf lht":' ~1u1hori•)' un,ir.r wt~id} 
1hc fln>K) was executed or Ihe trunsfer of the shares in rL'Sf'C!~I ,,r 
which the proxy is given. pri,.iJc:J ihat no imimatinn in wri1i1~ ,,f 
such death, insa11i1y. revocauou ur transfer as aforesaid shall ~a,·,: 
been received hy the L,impany al the Office before : thc 
commencement oi' the: mwtini.; 11r ,iJjourucJ m~;;1i11g m whidl !he 
pru~y is used. i 

i 
DIRH:'l'ORS I 

i 
rhc minimum n~mh. c.r ()f.J)irc,1,:rs.nf ''.IC C,!111pa1? shsll hr; l}rcc:: .. 
Ille Bm1rd shall tix the nwnlic,r 111 Directors ol the C.0111p1my11111 .altr 
than 1hir1y 'Ilve days before cuu~cniiiG ur the (h:ntral Me..'ti · ar · 
which Directors are to Ix elected, unJ the number so lheJ shad not 
be changed C!(1.'tpt with prior uppmvul 111' the Oc:neral Meeting o' tbe 
C1impany. I 
·1 he lirst Directors uf th.: Company shall he as follows: 

hl) 

f.'ligibility fur 
eleaio» us 
Director. • 

t 
f.'lectio1t of 64) 

,I Directors. 

Period of offlc« of 65) 
elttrtetl Directors. 

C11sual 1•11c'111cirJ;. 661 

first Dirl!dorJ:. • 
Numba- ,,f 
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Re,·,,c11tim, ,,j 
,111t/w,ity 



73) 

721 

The remuneration of the Directors shall, from time 10 time: be 
&:1c:rmim:d by thi: 8011rd. , 

Any Director who iii an employee ,,r Ilk! l 'omrany or who scn·t on 
;~1y commilh:c ,,r who JcH)h:s sJ'O:=dill aucnl_ion 1u ti~ husinc:s, o~ the 
Company; or "ho othc:rw1sc p,:rtorms serv ices \~ 111.:h in the op1 11011 
,,1 th.: Directors ,uc: outs ill.: the :,;;.,pc: ,,f 1hc ord inary Julie, j ,f .: 
Director, may be pail.I such remunerution as 1hc BuarJ )na~ 
detennme. I 

! 
.\1.TEltNATE UJRECH)RS I 

A D irector who is about 1,, I cave ur is absent liir ,1 period u r l11 cc 
' Months or mun: from l'akbtm1 may with the ,1ppmval of the Dirc:tL,irs 

.ipp<>int any person who i, digihlc u11Ja Section 187 tor ,,ppuint$1clll 
a, a Director lo he: an Ahernate Dirc,:1or during hi, absence hum 
l'aJ..is1an and such appoinuncm ,lmll huvc dlccl and such appoij11cc 
whilst he: holds otlic.: a.~ an aheruaie liirector. shall be: cnlitld,l h, 
exercise in place of hi, appointer all the funclhms of his .oppt>int~r ,., 
.i llirc:~'IOr of the: ( ·n111p,111) hul h,: ,1mll ip,u 1,1,·tu ,,.,.,.,c unicc "i .,uJ 
\\hen his appoi11tcr rclums to l'al..isl.>n or 1·.1ca1cs oflkc as a Dir~.:11,1 
or rc:movc:s the: appoinlcc: from uOkc. An~ appnimmcnl or rc:n,,,,al 
undc:r lhis Anidc: shall hc: cffoc1c:J hy 1101kc in ,1r11ing 11nJc:t th~ 
lumJ of lhc Dirc:clur ma~iug the: same:. Such ~11c:ma1c: Dirc:ctnr m~y he: 
.ine or lhc: Directors of 1hc Compan)', in whid1 c,1,c he: ~hajl t-.: 
cntillr:d lo act in hull, capadtks. An ahc:mi11c: Din;c1,1r n~-cd nut ilnll,t 
,.,;~ ,lmrc:, <111alilko<1i1111. I 

! 

71} 

The qualification of a Director. except for a nominee unJi:r S 
1!13 or a Uirec1or covered hy the: proviso lo Section I 87(hJ sh.t ht 
holding of a share in thr: Company nf the: nominal value of Rs. Oi · 
A !i~t Dieector may a.:1 hcfurc acquirini; hi:, qu11litica1ion. hut s · l in any case 11cqllitt the same within t wn months from his appoint cm 
and he sh,111 be deemed to have ngreed to 111!.e the said share Iron the 
Company. and the same sh11II he ull,,ur:d 10 him uccordingly. 

70) 

The: Comp11ny in Genera] Meeting mny remove a Director from ct 'ice 
by a resohnion pas~d wlth lhe requisite uurn ber of votes determ ,J 
in aceordance with the provisions of Section Ill I. 

(c) 1111:_ cundidate who gdlti the hi.11hc:,1 number of w,,.,, ,hHI h,· 
di:ch"d elected as- l)irc:c1ur 111\J then thr: candiJate wm> gets the 
111:xl highc:s\ number of ,·oles shall be so declared and so on I mil 
the 101111 numhclr of Directors 10 be elected h11,; been so ek:,·1cd . 

69) 

1 he prm isions ,,r 1hi, Anicle ~hall appl} for th, election of D1m:~,,­ 
h~ lhc Members in lic:ncral Mo:.:1i11g fr,,m a111011g,1 ,he <ea11JiJ~1,·, 
c:li!lit,I.: tor election. namety: 

l.il. every Member present in person or hy pn>x} ,hall have si1d, 
number uf votes as is cquel h• rhe pruduct of the numb.:, of ,lu1,·,:, 
c11rryini,: lhc: rii;hl 1,1 101c held hy him ,1nJ the number l1i'l)ir~l'\11r\ 
tu be elected; ; i 

I 
(b) the: number of votes calculaicd in accordance with the: preceding 

clause (11) may be given 10 a single: candidate or may be di\ib,·d 
between any 1wo or more canJiJ.111.·, in ,m:h manna as 1111: 1,c:1~u11 

· voting may choose: and I 

i,k) 

Alternm« 
Directors. 

- 

.\'pedal 
Tt'lt/Ulll!Tlllfon. 

Remu111:rntiu11 c,f 
Dtrectors, 

•' 

Q11ulifying share. 

Rttmmrlaf 
Direi·tars. 

J1ruc·,:l/11ri, /11r 
.,,,.,·,im, uf 
Directors. 

• 
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lhc Dir"'·chHj 111.ay from rime h' UIUt: ancl ,,L ~111} tune b~ p11\\~; 1•l 
llltoall\.) dppi.iint ~Ill)'. l"OllljlHII>- lllU! UI pc1·~;11fl ,~r hlh.i~ ,>f p,.:d, .;; s . 

~1h~thcr nominetcd dirc~tly or i11Jir.:~tly (including any Dir,~1~·1 or 
ut ncer OJ the t 0111 pw1 y J by I he I )ircc111rs, 10 I..: t lie .11lo111J~ ,.J 

auorneys of the Compauy tor such purposes aml with such p,ii,,r,. 
authorities and discretions )nut exceeding those vested i~ "r 
.;,.crcis,1tilc bv the Directors under these Articks) and 1,,, ~m:h pt1111<1 
~11J ,ul>jcct 1~1 such .:011dilio1b ,1, th,:v may lhink lit, and mw !,uch ~ •. r 
1~1\\c1:, <11 itllvfll~) ltlil} conlarn :,111.:h 1nm1:.1u11, h,r 1h~ proti:ctio~, JPcl 
"'"''""i.,,i~c uf p,;:n,,mx u.:aling nilh ,1ny ~uch auorm:y a~ !he 
tli1~L1 .. rs m;w thin~ tis ,md mu, ;il:;o m11hori1i: an\ su.:h anurnb h• 
J.. kg;il.: .ill u~ wl)' ur tho: p,11n, .. ~. ,11nhor11ic,; and Jiscrctio11~ ,.~,~ .! "' 
him: .tnJ wi1hou1 pn.:juJicc lo the gcncrali1y ofth, foreg,Hn!l any,,udl 

...,.(11 

i.hl A resolution al a mcd111g of !lit' Dirc.:ior, duly ~,,111~11..:J ,md!lidJ 
,1,,.11 ht n~~.;,s.it) for exercising the po,1cb ,,r th~ (\mir.,m 
spccuied III Section llJD(1} . 

made. 

75) 

ti!) rl1e Directors may exercise all 1hc 11owcr, of the Cvmr.Jn)' "' 
raise money omerwise than by the issue ,,r shares ,1nd 10 1n,>r1g;1~.: 

· or charge its undertaking or properly or any pan thcreu! and 10 
issue debentures and other sc..:uritics wh..:tJu.:r ~..lulri1:hl au: ,\~ 
security for any obligation or !iahilil)' or debt ,1f the C1~111pa11~ UI 
any third party. 

{bl In exercising 1he aforesaid JX>wcrs of the Compuny, the Dirrcinr, 
may. from time Lo Lime amt 011 such terms and conditions lb ~1,) 
think tit, raise money from hanks and financial institutions urul 

· from other persons uni:kr any permiued system or linuncjng, 
,1·.helhe. r pro\'1ding li>·r. paym.enl "' mt~r~,t nr "'""' other fu1j1' ut' 
return, and in par1icular the Directors may raise money on 1hc 
basis 'of murk-up on price. mushariku, mudaraba or any her 
perm it jed mode i•f finillldng, and without prejudice Ill ! ihc: 
g.:110:raU!y uf the lt,r.:guiug, thc lli1ec1u,, may exercise all ur bi~ 
of the: powers of the Company arising under Section l'.lfl(2). ! . ! 

(cJ Subject to the provisions or Article 75(a) in regard to the iss1L of 
securities, the Dire<.:tors mdy exercise all or any l)f the pow.:! of 
lhc: Company arising under Sections 19(2), 87, 120 mid 19 <2) 
and in particular 1he Oira:tors mny issue: any security as def ned 
in Section 2(1 )(34} or may issue any instrument or certif .ate 
representing rc:dc.:mable capital as d.:lined in Section 2( 11(1),\) 
or participatory redeemable c11pi1al as dellned in Section 2( I)( 5 • 

01her rowers and Duties 

(u) The business of 1he Company shall be managed by the: Direcjm,. 
who may exercise all such po\\crs of the Company as are mlt b:, 
fhe Ordinance; ur any statutory modification thereof for the lime 
heing in force or by 1hc,:e Articles are required In be exerciseµ h~ 
the Company in Cic:ncrnl Meeting, suhjc:cl nevertheless In i"tl) 
regulation of lhcsc Articles, to the provisions or 1hc Ordimiucc. 
and 10 such regulations h.:ing 1101 inconsistent withthe .ilt•rc,~id 

. I 

regulations or prn,iisions, as may he prescribed hy the l'om~dli} 
in General Meeung; but I\Ll regulation made by the Compa~~· in 
General Mc.:ling shall invalidate illl) prior act of the Dire~iors 
which would haw been vulid if thJl regulation had 11<>1 !•cell 

l 

74) 

Hurru"ing l'oM-ers 

1'0\\'El{S ,\'\I) IHil'IES OF l>mE< TORS 

Gerrernl powers 
,,fComp,my 
ve.fted in 
Directors. 
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I 

n,c l'ompany shall 1.~1111pl) "ilh the prlll is ions ill' Sc..:tiuo :!l '1 n! the 
< >nlinancc with rcgurJ lo the ~ci:ping of ~ rci;i~tc:r .ind the: 4n1r:, 
1l1crcin or Ilic partic:ulars of ,tll cu111rac1~ ,md arrangcnicnl~ ,,r 
appoinlmcnts of the kind rcli:m:J 10 in Scdions 214, 215. 21h or!! I J! 
of lhc Ordinance: separately for .:ach Section, and wiih. rc:11.u·~ 1,, 
mai111~ini11g sud, ri:gistcr opt:n ti,r in,pc1.:tiun by Members "1i '11, 
Oi_'lkc. 1hc pro\'isi"11 of ccrt1liciJ c,,pics thi.:r~of ,md ~x1r.ic1; •t·~r~ 
l'n•m and ,ithi:rwisc. · 

F.,cq1t "s pm, idcd in Section 216, .1 f>irc,1ur shall no! ,u1c: in ri:1'~,1 
,,r ,11,y cou1rnc1 ur :irrnngcmcnt in which he is dlhi:r Jirccll} ,,, 
inJircctly concerned or inlcn:st.:d nur shall hi, presence s·uunl fo1 ,he 
purr""' ,)f limning~ ,iuorum al the time of .,n, ,m:h ,.,1c: ,md i• ''" 
Jo.:,"' ,·,,1c, his vote shall not he cornllci.l. 

81) 

I\ Dir,:ctor who. or whose spouse or minor d1ild, is in aoy "}· 
whether dircclly or indirectly, coneerncd or interested in auy ~"llll ,,,cl 
or. arrangement or proposed contract or arrangem c:111 with I 'he 
Compuny shall disclose the: 11111111.: of such concern or interest at a 
meeting of the Directors in uccordunce with Section 214. 

I 
Where by any contract or rcsoluliuo or the Directors, an ,1ppni1\ll1c·111 
ur a \'.triation in tlic terms ol' .in e,istini; ar11c1i111mcnt is , rtJ, 
, whcrhcr ctfecnve iu11ne,lia1dy or in ti..: future) ,,fa l'hid l'~c.:1 I\·,. 
11!_1ole 1imc Director or Sccretury uf the Compan~. in "lilch 
appointment any Director of the Compuny i,. or alter the n11111actl'>r 
resolution becomes, in an)' "a}, whcthc:r directly or ini.lirc:j;I I). 
concerned or interesred, the: Company shal] inform thc Mc111t>c+ ul 
such appoimment or variation i11 lht manner required by St!ction,~ l K 
.iml shall comply with the: requirements of lhat Section in rci;ark lo 
the 11n1i11tui11ing of such comrecrs and rc:solutions upen li>r inspcJ1iu11 
h~· Mcmhcrs at the Orfiw. the provision of certified copies 1h9rcof 
a11'd e\lract, there: frum ,u,J ,11!11:r.visc · 

80) 

79) 

711) 

lhe l·,,mpuny ma}' exercise the powers conferred hy Section .21.l 
with regard 10 having an olficial seal 1,1r use abroad, ,mJ such 11o(vc1, 
shall he vcs1.:J in the Directors, 

A Dircclor of the Company or a lirm of which such Dircc1mii~ J 

partner or a private company of which such Director is a director [:,a:, 
with the consent uf tht: ('umpany in General Meeting hold auy o Iice 
of profu under the Comp:my l'n,,·id~d that no such ~'(>1l$1;J I I) 

rct1uiri:d where the otfice held is that of ChiefExecutive or a lull ime 
employee or legal or technicul adviser or bunker. 1 

Stihjc:cl 10 authoi;ii~ion bo:iog gin:.n by the: Dire.:1ors in accor nee 
with Section 216, a Director shall 1101 be disqualified mm 
comractmg with Ilic Company ci1l11:r as vendor, purchusc or 
otherwise, nor shall any s~h contract or 11rrangcm~nl entered int , h) 
or on behalf of 1he Crn11p1111y with any cumpany or partnership I or 
in whid1 any Directer of the: Company shall he: u membe or 
otherwise interested he: avoided nor shall any such Directo "l 

coh1rac1ing or bc::ing such member or so interested be liabl 1,, 
accnum lo the Company for any proflt realized by any such con r act 
or arrangement by reason of such Director hulding 11u!.1 ollice r or 
the: tid11ci11ry relation thereby cstublisheJ. 

77t 

power of nnorney may authorize the anumey to insututc, con~u,;t, 
lk:li:11J. compound or nbaudun any legal proceeding» I,} or ,11,!.,tinsl 1hc 
t .unpanv, whether gencrnll) ,,. . any particular case. · 

Negi~u, ,if 83 l 
contmcts, 
111ru11geme111s uml 
11ppuintm,m1s. 

f'rt1/1ibitim1 uj 82 J 

r11ti11g by illlr:rej/cJ 
Directors. 

·-' 

Where Director's 
i11tered lies in 
<1pp11i11tment ,,j 
C/,ief E.,·e,·utit-e 
,!/( .. 

Ditclosure of 
interests. 

·- 
Culllracting witl, 
Cump11t1J'· 

Of fin: ,,J pwfil. 

Offid11/ .,·,m/ ft,r 
use 11brm11l 



Cd) ht: foils to uhlaiu wi1l11n two Months from thi: cfti:~1ive llJtc of 
his appoi111mcnt or al any tim1:. l11.:rcJh<,r <.:.:,m;~ to huld. thc ~hari: 
qualiticillion lltcc~sary for his ,1p[10i111ment. l 

A Director shall ipso fo,·w cease lo hold uftict: if- 881 

DISOlAI.U:l('ATIO!'oi Of DIRECH)kS 

Ihe Directors on behalf of the Company Illa} puy a grarni1 • or 
pension or allowance on rel ircmcnl lu an; Director who has hcl ally 
other salaried .office or place vf pro lit i,·ilh 1h;; Company or 1, l,i~ 
w1J""' or dt:pc,nd..:nb and may make comnbutions to .in)' limu, an,1 
pay premiums for the purchase or pro, ision of any such gratui~y or 
Jl<:ll>ion or allowance. j 

I 
i 
l 

la) he becomes indigiblr: 10 ix; appoint.:d '" a Director on any oj,c nr 
more ofthe grnu11J~ spc.:illcd in Sectiun 187, or ! 

thl he absents himscl r trom three: consecutive meetings oJ thc 
Directors or li-0111 all meering s ,ii 1h.: Direclor, for ,1 cmllit'urns 
period of'three Months, whichever i, the louger, withuut lea e of 
a!,,cncc lrom the I >in:clnr,; or I 

ic.l he or any firm of which he i, a partner or any private .:ump.ii\) ,,r 
which ho: is a director without the sanction ol' th.: Compif y in 
G,oncral Meeting accepts or hulds any office of protlt undt1r the 
Company other than that uf a chief executive or a kg~I <ir 
technical adv iser or n banker: or [ 

!!7) 

and th.: Directors present ul any mcc:Ling uf Dircclors or cnmmil.l uf 
Directors and all Members .w1J proxies of Mi:m~rs present al all)' 
General Meeting shall sign their names in books w he: kepi for tbal 
purpose; a11d such in i nuies or such a 1nee1ing if purporti ng I he 
signed by the chairman thero:;01: or by chairm~n of the: u,x1 
succeeding meeting ·or the same body •. shall he sulficient evi nu: 
without any further proofofthc, fuels therein slated. 

801 

All d1.:qucs. prmni,:i.ory notes. dratts. bills of exchange and 11jhi:r 
ncgoti.ihli: instruments, am! .ill receipts for moneys paid to ! the 
Cnmp.uw, shall be snzncd, drawn, aci;cptcd, endorsed, or nlh>!nj,t~r: 
cxcc111cJ, as the euse ~nay be, in sud, manner as the Directors shall 
from time to lime by resolution determine. !. 

l'hc Directors ~hall cau"': minutes of all Un_ard m~eting, cummillcf ,,r 
Directors meeung and Generat Meeung ol the ( ompany lo be: ll'jild~ 
in hooks provided for th.: purpose and kr::pt at the office: i . . .. .j 
(ar of all appointments <>f officers mauc by th.: !)irc:ctllr,; I 

I 
(b) of the names of the Directors present at each meeting of!l llw 

Directors and of.iriy commiuee ol'Oirectors; 
I 

[c) of all reselutions and proceedings a.I all meenugs oftll<: Compl,.n~. 
wuJ ol' the: llin::ctors and uf comm inee of Directors; 

!15) 

A l)irci:1ur ,>f lhc Company maiy be or become a director ctuny o(hcr 
company promoted h) the Company or in which the Company rpa_, 
hi: hucrcsicd us a , endor, shurehulJr:r ur 01h,:.1w ise ,tn<l no ,i,.·h 
Director _.;hall be accountable for any benefits received ,i,: a Jir.:ttor 
tir member of such other company. 

Oi,q1111/ijirnr1,111 of 
Dlre('WTI. - 

,· 

Pnymenl ,if 
pem,fons. 

....... 
• 1, 

Minmes i,f 
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i 
i 

Subject IO the pro,·isions ,,f i\nidc 75(bi of lhcs.: Anicl\.',, a 
rt:sulutiun in writing, sigllci.l hy .iii th.: Dir,a:lurs tor in their ,1b~..-ncc 
1r1~ir .ihcnmlc Diructur~) for the time bdng t1\'aililhk (nn> ho.,in~ i,·,, 
than the requisite quorum of Din.:clors) ,ir b} all ihc members' u r a 

%) 

9-t) 

93) 

The Directors ma) elect a Chairman or their meetings and rkle ine 
1hc period for which he is 10. hold office, tr nu such Chairmln is 
elected, or ir 111 any meeung the Chairman is not present wi1hin I rirty 
minutes alter the lime appoinkd li.,r holding the same, the Dire tors 
prc:scnl may choose one uf the ir numbers u, be the Chairman n( ·11,;h 
meeting only, 

/\ mi:cling of tl1<: Di,cct<>rs m "hid, a quorum ,, rncscul ,hall he 
competent IO exercise all or. any uf the umhoriiies. powcrsj an,I 
discretions by ur under the Ordinance and these Article» for the i'j11e 
being vested in or exercisable bJ the Directors generally. I 
l'hc Directors InU) d.:l~gatc any or 1hcir powers ll> comm*1i:cs 
consisting of such memh~r or members ,,r their body as they thi1k 111 
and may trum time: 111 time revoke such Jckgation. Any comrniucc 
'" formed shall, in the exercise i>I the powers su JckgatcLl, ~~nfurm 
10 any regulations that muy from time 111 time he imposed upon !hem 
hy 1he Directors. I 

I 
All ;1.:I; ,lone al all\ mcctinu 111' 11,, l>irci:1,,r,. 11r ,JI° a i:ummillb.: .,,· 
I lircl'lors, or h}' .in): pcrs1in ;..:ling ,is rt Dirc,t,ir ,h,dl no1wilhsla1)Ji111,; 
that ii shall ulierwar<ls ht: disw\·crc.J lhut then! \nlS some de foci Ti the 
appninuncnt or cun1inuana:: in oftke of ,my such Din:clurs or ~isun 
a~ting as ulon:~uid. or that lhcy or any of th.:111 were dis,1ualilitJ or 
had ,·ac.1tcd office. or were not cnt11lcd 10 •otc. he as ,·alid as if i~.:ry 
,u,;h pcr.-<>11 hi!d hccn duly arpoinh::J ur haJ July cun1i1111c<I in Jflicc 
and was qualified a11d had wnu11ucJ 10 be a Din:t:ll)r and h.iJ !''<:ell 
.:n1itlc<l 10 he a Director anJ lmJ h,:cn cnt1tbl h> vote. 

92) 

The: contijnuing Directors may a.:t notwhhsumding any vacan · · i11 
llk!ir hotly .so long as 1hi:ir number is 111.ll reduced below ttk: 11u her 
Iixed by or pursuant 10 these Articles as the: necessary quoru of 
Dircclors: 

91) 

'JO) 

1'11~ Directors may med iogethcr tor the dcspiil,h uf businLs, 
aJjot1m ,uid otherwise rcgulalc their meetings as 1111:y think i Iii. 
Lxccpt ur ,,th..:rwisc prov idcd he rem questions ari,ing al any mccli11g 
~hall he decided hy a maj!>rl1y ,,f , ores. ln ,·""' .,f ;u, '"l"~lil~ uf' 
votes, the Chairman shall have a second or ,asting vole. A Dir,tt"r 
may, ,u1J the Secretary on the re quivition ,>!' a Din:ctor shall, al ~In) 

time, summon 11 meeting or Directors. l'lu: llumd of Directors 1\1~) 
determine to hold a meeting 1hmugh audio or video cunfort:ncin~ l•r 
,my other reclmology whereby all the Directors can, simullancu~sly, 
communicate lo and with each uther. A copy of the minulc~ ,,f 
D.ir1::c.·1ors n.\cclings sh:.ill be:. furnished 10 each l).1rc:c1or wnl.1111. lut]. r ecr .. 1 
dllyij of such meeting, No1i,·~ ,hall ht.- tiv,:n in wnung 10 c er} 
Dlrector or his aheruate Director for any meeting uf Ille l)irectms and 
such nouee shull be given in ;.,riling 10 his address in Pukisian an b}' 
facsimile or email transmission to his address outside Pakis , if 
any, notified by him lo the Cumpany for this purpose. I 
Unless otherwise determined unnnimously by the Ditcctors.J· the 
quorum necessary for 1hc transauion of the business of rht: Dire tors 
shall be majerity of din:clors holding office for the lime: being. A 11 

altern11te Director whose appointment is effective shall be count in 
aquorum. 

89) 

l'ROCEEl)IM;S OF l)IIHT l'ORS 

lfr.wJ111jm1 i11 
writillg. 

P""'"' to 11ppui111 
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j' 
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Dire(·ton. 



102 > I he Dm.:~1ors shall prn1·idc t'ur 1ln: s.!li: cuslmly uf the Seal 1Jliid1 
shall only b.: used hy Lhc authurit~ ,,r 1he Director~ or •.•fa ,0111ni111-,,. 
t1f the Din:1,:lors .1u1hurizcd by lhc Uirc:c1ors on that hchalf; and~, ,r_1, 
instrument lo 1,hid1 tht: Seal slmlt h.: aflixctl ,hall cilht:r he sign.il hy 
11'11.. .. f >irt'cltir ,nid 1_•41un,~r~tgn~d hy rh~ ~r.L:rdttry or h}' a st:!i·c,nJ 
Din:~lor or by :;,;1mc ulhi:r pcr,on .,pp,>illlcd hy lht: D1rcch1rs Ii,; 1 he 

THE SEAi. 

it> I > I he· l 1,mp,lll} :i.:crclat) lllJ~ be appoilltcJ h) Ill<: DirL',lur~ !h,,11) ,u,, 
lu Lim, for such Lenn. ,ll such remuneration and upon ,11.:h .:ond1pons 
a~ they may think lit. lhe directors 111ay frum time to lime rc111u, c. 
dismiss him from otfo:.: anLI appui111 anolhcr in his rta~<=. ; 

mu~J{ Al'l'OINT!\lf.'.'liTS 

The Company shall have an office of Chie]' Execurive which sha I be 
filled trom time.to Lime hy the Directors who may appoint a Dir ctor 
or (s11bj.::c1 to Section.201) fill)' other person to be the Chief Exec 
fo~ 11 period 1io1 exceed ing three years an LI on such terms 
condhions ·ltS. the .Director~ may think lit, and such uppointment 
he made within fourteen Ll~ys from the Jmc nn which the om • «f 
Chief Executive Jails vacant. Upon the expiry of his ti: ,,j' 
appoimmem, Lite ChiefExccutivc shall be: digihh: for re-appoiuu cut. 
If the ChiefExecutive a1 uny lime is not itlrcady c1 Director he ~ha I he 
deemed to be! a Director uf ti~ Company. Tl11: Chief Executive !11;1) 
tie_ removed from office in ,11:torJ,111cc: with the provisions of S,;ill,m 
202. I 

Tlic l'hicf Executive: shall r~-:ci1 e such remuuenuiun as thc DircJ111r, 
may determine andit 111uy he: made a term of his appomuncm 11\llr he 
be paid a pension and/or gratuily and/or other l>c:ndiis ,111 rctircQ1cut 
from his office, 1 . ! 
The Directors may entrust 10 .. nJ confer upun the l'hid Exi:.:~1i,c 
any ofihe powers exercisable b) them as they may think lit, c1nd !na~ 
confer such powers for such rime, and h> he exercised for such ~1111:. 

and to I><: exercised for such ohi.:cls and p1irpt,scs. and upon ~11.:ll 
tcnns and conili1io11s, and with such restrictions M 1hcy ma~ lhi1i~ 1i1 
,111.I Illa) frnm 1inw co 1im1.· revoke, .rlrcr or \'jr~· all or an: of ~\iL'.h 
powers. i 

' 

cummincc lur the time- ~ing uvuilablc sh,111 be ,1, , alid ,111J .,n~dual 
as if u had been passed ,11 a meet i ug or I he Directors, cu as lhc ~.ts,· 
•nay he of such committee. July called and constituted HI accordance 
with the provisions nf lhcs,: Articles. Such resuluuon be rnnlaindl in 
one document or in several documents in like form each signed h) 
one or more of the Directors or members of the com rniucc concerned 
A facsimile or email tmnsmission sent h; u J)ircc1or ur a mcmht.ir ,,t 
the: committee shall he deemed 10 he: a doeumem sii;n.:d t>y him; !,,, 
the purjl(lS(~ of.this Article, 

Su~j.:1..1 to any rules limned under or any regulations or diruclkc~ 
i»i1c:J pursuant 1p· the Ordinance, Directors or Members df " 
committee may hike purl in a 1nt:di11g uf lhe Directors Dr a cum mince 
by ~s.ing_ an~ .co. u_ununicati(>ll equipment which ullows cs·c'.?'~'.J) 
par11c1puu11g in 1111:. meenng IO speak to a11J hear each other. I atmi: 
pan in 1 his way'Witl count as hcing present ,n the meeting. Mcc11ng» 
will ~. treated Olis Inking place where •_he l.1rgc,1 gmup ofl the 
participants are or, if there is no such group, where the t'hairma!i nf 
the tnl)cling is present. . I 

ClllEf EXHllTl\'l,'. I 

·tppoilllmml ,if 
C11mp1111y 
Secretnr», 

Powers ,,JC/1ief IU()} 
Executive. 

Re1111111er"tim1 of 991 
Cllie{ Exe,·111i ,·e. 

Appui11tment ,if 98 j 
Chief Executive. 

............ 

,/l;leelin,: hJ' "'".I' ,if 97) 
elet·lrm1ic 
rn111munica1fon. 
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i 
1091 Jhe dividend in respect of any share: shall he paid lo the rcl:!i:jtcrcd 

holder of such share or h• his hanker ur 10 a financial ins1i1u1hj11 !.,s 

Jdiu,·J iu S,Tlio11 2( l )( 15.-\)i no1ni11alcJ by hun i,,r lhc l'l1~)1,sc. 
t.'nlcss ,.llhcrwisc itbtruc!cd 111 wrning by th.: rcgistcrciJ hC>lik~ ,,I " 
sh,m:. any Dividend payable ill cash in n:sp<!t:t of su.:h_ share ml•~ he 
p.uJ by ~h<!i.JU<: or warrant scnl through the posl hy rcg1stcrcJ "',ul tu 
the rcgi~1crcd :1clclre,s uf th.: lwlJcr ur. iu ih.:: c<1s.: of j<>inl hold~r,. to 
lhc- registered address of 1ha1 one uf the _iuint holders who i~ lirst 
n~mcd on the Rcgistc:r or lo sudt hunker ur lin~ncial institll!ijm d~ 

,;iay ha\·c been m,minatcd h) Ihc rcgistcr.,J holder. E'""'Y: ,ud, 
,hcqm: or warr.tnt shill I ~ m"d,: payahlc: to 1hc- order of the- pcr~nn lo 
\,hum ii is sent. l\nyo11c of t\\o ,ir more joint holders mat, ~he 
crfrctual rcccip1s lur any Di"iJcnds payable m ,c:~pc<.:l of 1h" ~if.ires 
1,dJ L) 1l1 .. 11l .l;j _joint hol1kr, •. 

IOX) 

107) 

!'ht: Directors may from time to time pa>· to the Members ~1u.:h 
interim Dividends us appear to the Dircclor~ to he justified h)'i the 
profits of1he Company. _ _ I 

I 
No Dh-·idends sh_ a_ II her_ ai_d uthcrwise Iha_ n_ out of profits ,lr lhc: t·car 
or any other und_islrihutc:d protlts and in the determlnation ol the 
profits a;1~ilahle \<.lr Jivid~nds the _ l)ircct~,.-s sha~I g!ve due reJ!~,l ln 
!ht: provisions or !he Ordinance, m particular Sections 83, 2J51.t11LI 
248. I 
(a) The Directors may, before recommending any diviuend set · side 

0111 of the prollts of 1hc Company such sums as 1hey think p >pc:r 
as a reserve or reserves which shllll, al .the discretion o the 
Directors, be uppl icable for meeting contingencies, or for 
equalizing Dividends, or for ,my other. purpose to whit: .the 
profits of the Company may he properly applict.l, aoJ pci !in~ 
such upplication, at the like t.lis.:retion, either be empluycd i the 
h-t~sinc:ss ol: the Company '" be iuvestcd, subjec: to the prov ii!"ns 
of 1111: Ordinance, m such mvcstmerus {other ihun shares ol the 
Company] as the Directors may li-mn time: lo time think Iii. l 

lhl lhe Directors m11y .,lsu .:arr} lorward.any prolils which lhcytm,l) 
. think prudent 111,1 10 distribute, without scuing them ,csidc1["> " 

reserve. 

- ' I J . . l j .\II Di1idcnus sha l he dcclurcd an paid accordmg to I ic am<J,unts 
paid ,>11 the: shares. All dividends shall he apportioned and lra•d 
proportioually to the umounts paiu or credited ,,, paid "" the s~~rc-:. 
during any portion nr portions of th!! period in respect of whii;!1 lln; 
!Ji1 idend is paid. If any share is issued on terms providing t~at it 
shall rank tor dividend .is from a particular date. such share shall!rank 
li>rdiviJcndacconli11!,!ly. I 

i 
A transtcr or shares shall 1101 ll,DS the right 10 any !Ji\'iclcnd Jc~l .. rc.1 
there .. m before the regisuation olthe transfer. 1 

1()4) 

. . i 
The Comp1111y in General Mcc1ing may declare Dividends, but 111> 
Di,- id ends shall exceed the ~mmnll recom 111.:n,kJ b} lhc I )i rc:c1ur1- 

' 

IU3) 

Dl\'IUENDS A~D RESEll\'1-:S 

purpos.: or he: signed hy 1hc t'liicf l.xccutivc :tl,JIK. nu, "' 11i,11: !lie: 
Dirc.:lOrs may by resohnion Jdcrmin<' dthcr gcncrall) or in .m) 
particular case, 1hat lhc sign.1turc ,lfthc Chief Fx.,~u1i1-c. ill\)· D1r.:l:1u, 
,u1ct/llr Secretary lllll)" l>c: alii.~rJ by some ll\cchl1llirnl means hi I,-: 
specified in such rcsnlulion including withoul limituuou h~ p1·int)ny. 
!itho!\rnphy or stamping. 

Payment by p1,1·1. 

l.jfect t,f trmufer. • 
4ppursiu1m1<!11t 11/ 
tlil'i1/1mJ~ 

Oivitlen,ts pttJ•11ble I05) 
m,t of prujU'I. • -- 
Reserve. 106) 

Interim 1/ivi,le11rlI. 

Declaration t1/ 
1/fri1/end. 



I 
tel where 1111: provisions uf Section 23U( I )(c) of lhc Urdinanc.f arc 

applicable, such particulars rd .. ting I<) 111iliLa1ion of mitt~i~I or 
labour or 10 other in puts or items or cos! as may be prescriJbi: 

:rh~ hooks of account shall he l..c:pl al the ~)nice ur at su..:hother lace 
Ill Pak istan as the Directors may decide and shall ht , 1 Lo 
inspection by the Directors during business hours. If the l>irtj:lOrS 
decide tu keep the books or account at a place other than the (irn.:c 
they shall comply with the dircciious contained in the provi-lu fl, 

Section 230( 1 l. i 
!'lie Company shall preserve in good order the books of aL-cot1pt ur 

the Company in respect or ;111y Iinnnciul yi:,tf for such period f•s .s 
required by law [ollow i11g ihe d,,,c ol th.11 )C,1r. I 

I 
The: Directors shall from lime lo time determine whether and tu ~vhal 
c;..tcnt and at what limes and places anJ under what condirints ur 
regulations ihc accounts and hooks of the Company or any uf fhem 
shall be: open to the inspection of Members not being Dirccrotj and 
no Member (not being a Director) shalt have any right ,,f insp.:hing 
any account or hooks ur pupcrs of the Companv except as ~onltn~,I 
hy the Ordinance or authorized hy the Directors or hy lhc l.'un 'liO)' 

in G.:ncral Mcc1ing. 
i 

(J) all liabilities ofthe Company; and 

ACCOl>NTS 

114) The: Directors shall cause Ill h.: kepi proper hooks of account virh 
respect to;- 

(il} all sums of nwney received and expended hy the Cumpany ,111J 
the: mauers in respect of which 1111: receipts and expenditures take: 
place; 

(b) all salts and purchases <>I" goods byCompany; 

[c] all assets of the <.-.,mp,my; 

113} 

112) 

No [)i1 idcnd flllYllhk in r~,p.:d ,,r ,1 ~hur~ ,hall bcur imercsr ag,1in:,1 
the Company. i i 
Al! dividends uncluimed for one year, alter ha1 ing been Jc:d+cJ, 
may be invested or otherwise made use of t,y the Directors Ii,~ the 
benefit uf the Company until claimed, and the l 'ompany shall! not 
~k:cmcJ lo be: a trustee in respect thereof, I 
With the sancuonof a (icn~rnl .Mi:cling, any Dividend may be l,aiJ 
wholly or in part by the distribution of specific assets ani in 
particular or paid up shares ur debentures of any other company o! in 

an.· :t°On~_or. 11. l.Dre.ofsu~.·1·1· ,_vays····· W·. hem: an.)·' J.·i.flicul. ty.·ar .. is1:···s··.· i.n _re .. g_a. ~ to such db1ttbu1ton, tl1c: D1rc~11>~. may s.:ttl~ \he: same: as llic:y_ I hut.. 
expedient, and in particular may i~;ue fr11ciiunal. c~rtific,u~s an. Ii~ 
1he value for distribution o( such specific assets or any P!lrt th eof 
and may determine that cash paymerus shall be made lo any Men rs 
upon the: fooling of ihe value so fixed. i11 order 10 11Jjus1 the rig!, sol' 
all Members, and may vt.:sl any such specific assets in rrusrees pon 
lrusl for the Members entitled to the: dividend as m11y seem c:xpc 
tu the Directors. 

Ill) 

I ill) ,\II IJivkknds shull be paid within the periods specified in Sc~1011 
25 l or the Ordinance. 

Lomri,m. 115) - 
Periu,l llb) 

Inspection by I l7j 
Members. 

Ktepi11g <>/ 
111:counl!S- 

Pn)'nrent of 
1/fri,lc11ds ill specie. 

Und11ime1I 
Dividends. 

Di,,iJ.,hd IIUI /,; 

bear interest. 

Time [or puyment 
,if 1/i 1-i,leml. 



('Al'IT.\l.ll,ATION OF l'ROHl'S , , 
l'r•u•er to rnpit111i;e. 12 l t n,~ l \11np,uty iu tic11cral M~~ling m.i) llfl"ll 1hc: rc,om111~ndm1un 1)1 1111: 

Din:clol); n:solvc lhal it is di:simhk 10 r::,pitaliL;.: all)' part of lltc al111Jllj11 for 
the 1ime bcin~ st.ulding Ill 1hc cn.~tit ,,f ,ll\} ur th,: t'<Mllpllll)°s ,J.cn, 
a.:.;ounls or lo lhe L-n:dit ofll,c prntit .uld loss ...:cou111 ur otherwise a~a(l.ih!c: 
for di,1rihldw11, lllld oll'lurdi"!ll> 1lia1 sud1 sum he: sci fr.:c for Jistri~1ui,n 
,ui1ong,1 lhc M,,nhcrs whu wnul<t he: c:nti1 i.. ... 1 1hr.:r.:m i1 tl1s1rit111tc:J h)! ""Y 
olTlivitlcnd iuitt in 1he same pmponiuns on c,N1dition th,11 tho: sanit: tj<: 1k,t 
puiJ in "ash hut he: apphc:J .:i1l11:r in ,,r l1>war,ls paying up .in) ,,mo1nt, ti •r 
th~ lime being unpuid 1111 my sh,in:, hdJ by sud, Membc:rs rcspc:,1i~I) , ,r 
~·~ ing up in li,11 11nis,11eu share, or dcocmuri:s or 1hc t'ump,my jo b,: 
allotted ,u1J distrihulcJ ,L, full} raiJ ur tu ,u1J ainnn~st ,ud1 Mcm~r, ", 
lhc: 1•ru1~1mon a1<1n:saiJ. ,1r p.1rtly m lhc ,,nc w~y and 11'1111) m 1h1: othd. '111.I 
the: J)i~ctor,; shall gh·c c:tli.'l:l l,1 such ,.·solu1ion. . 
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(hi Aller ti~ bulance sheet, ptoli1 and luss :u.:.-011111 and the rcpo sol 
1h..: I lin:,·tors and auditors have been laid before 111<: !\1 111uil 
Geuerul Meeting ,1f the Company, such number of copies rh tc,,f 
,,tun!! with prescribed documents, ,,,gn.:d hy the ~ig11ut ,ci.:s 
1hcrclu shall he filed with the: Rcgislrar of Companies 11 ithin 
thirty days from 1hc date of the meeting anti the Cump1111J ·hall 
also comply with the pro, is ions .,,- So:ction 2~212) , 

1hcrc 
;11,,.1i,.,tii.:. 

1 

l.:!U) IT1c Dirc.:tors ~hall in all respects comply with lhc: pro,·isio~, ,,t 
Sections !:lO h> :?~7 of ,he OrJinancc, ur ,Ill} ,1atu1or;, modilkr.· 11011 
lhracof i<H 1hc 1i111c: hc:i11g in h>rcc. 

("11mpli11m·e N•ith 
th« Ordinunc« • 

119} (a) A copy of the balance shc:<:t. prulil and loss account an the: 
reports of the Directors untl 1111<.litors shall be sent not lc:tiS lh,111 
twenty one: days before the date of th1: Annual General Mc:c:li g to 
the: Members and other ~rs,,ns cn1i1lcd ID receive noti ,,f 
General Meeting~ in lhc manner in which nonces art to bl: lven 
hereunder and 11 copy thereof shall he: kept for u period uf .at cust 
twenty-one days before the meeting at lhc: Oflkc for inspe .tum 
bv the Mcmhc:rs. 

Copiel of 1111n1Ual 

UL'C;OllnlS anrJ 
reporri;. 

( h I As required hy Sec lion ~ 4 l. the ha lance shcct and pro lit and lu~s 
occounl shall first be approved by the: Directors anJ whe I su 
opprcved shall h.: signed hy the t'hicf t.xecutive and at lcasi one 
Director, bul if on account ol' his absence from Pakist.;11 or ihcr 
reason 1hc ,ignalurc: of the < 'hid' l'.~cn11ive c11m101 be: ohta ned, 
the ~-c: sheet ant.I prolit w1d loss accuun1:slia1i be signed >. al 
least two Direclors for the: time being in Pakistan, Wld in ·t:I) 
such case: a s1111cmc:111 signed by those: two Directors sh11 be 
joined tu Ilk: balance shi::cl and protit anJ lo~ account st111i11 lhe 
reason why 1hc: signature 01" tlte Ch11:f Executive was not 11h1a 11cJ. 

(;:) The Directors mo.y nuthorize Ilk: Chulrman or lhe Chief Exec iive 
. Lu sign the: report of the Directors which may men be si •ncJ 

accordingly, but in 1hc: abscllL'\: of uny such authority the rt of 
ihe Din:cturs shall be signcJ as required by Section 236{3) i the 
Slime manner as the hiilancc: shee: and prulil and loss uccount 

1 !Ii) I.ii l hc Directors ;hall arrang,; h> place betore 1hc Annuul (ii:1\n,11 
\\&;,;ling nl' the C,mlpany ,11 ,.:m11: Jatc nut later than cii;liti:.-11 
Mllnlhs ;11\,;r the incorpor.nion ,11' th~ Compuny and ;uh;;..·qu~111I~ 
once in every calendar )C,ir. " duly audited balance sheet: nnd 
pru lit and luss ac-:011111. con lurm inl:l tu the rc,1uirc:mc1l1$ 11f 
Sct:tions 23-1. 137. 2311 anJ :!4U and pr.:p.irctl by a Jat" nul more 
limn four Mrn11hs belore the dale uf such mcctini; anJ ha, 111~ the 
auditor's report attached thereto, und a report of the Dircdur,. 
couforming lo the rc..iuirclllcnts of Section 236. 

.111111111f 11n·mmt! 

1111</ U/JIITb. 
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127) 

1261 

125) 

124) 

123) 

;' ,. ,, 
;f-:\1" 

l .. '.~ 

Whcnc1·,;r such .i resolution as, aforc,aiJ shull have been r~:sscJ ii,~ 
Din,c1<1rs shilll muke all apprupri,uioi1, ,111,J upplicarions ,i Ilic 
undivided profits resolved 10 be cap1la1i,.cJ thereby. and ~tll 
.illotinclll~ and it;~u.:s nr fully paid ;hare, or debentures, if ,my}. .,uJ 
generutly shalhlo ull acts and tlungs required .,, give dkcl thdc,1,,. 
with full power to the Directors to make such prevision h)· the jssu, 
u( fra,titinal ~.t:rtifo:u11:s or by payment in cash or otherwise ,_,~~ ichcy 
think Ii! lor thc:.casc ofshares or debentures hccumi11g <lis1rihu1· 1~ in 
fm.:tions and also Ill authorize any person to enter on behalf ol a 1 111~ 
Mcmhc.rs c_ miik!. I thcrt. ·tt.1 uuo "n uerc<'m<:111 with the Conl1any 
providing for the allotment to them respectively, credited as ully 
paid op, of uny lunher shares or debentures 1,1 which they 111 he 

;_ ;:!_1,:.idl~_r_ 1_·_ ~- a;!t_·-'t!ln_1f_:_ '~"tn.1:c~;:il~~t b~~~,;':~;~~:::~ :~t~:~ 
ot' thdr respective ' proportions of the protits resolved t{ he 
capitalized, o(tlie aniounis or .UI)' part of the amounts Tl:11Ulltl ing 
unpuid on thl!ir exi~ting shares, mul w1y agreement muJ.: under puch 
imth,1ri1~ .sholl -~ effccrive :1ntl hio,lin11,111 uU 5lldJ Mtmht,r~. I 

Al'DIT 1 

A!1<ii10. ~ --~~ul_ l-.bc. 11.ppoiot~ :md _ 1hcir duti~~ rcguhncd in = 
wnh Sections 252 to · 2,s of the Ordinance, or any stat t.1ry 
modificarinns thereof for the time bc:ing in lurce. 

NOTICES i 
(aJ A notice may bi: given oy the: Company to any Member ilhcr 

personalty or by sending ii by post to him 10 his registered ad ress 
or by courier or {ifhe has no registered address in Pakistan) t the 
address, if any, within l'llkisla11 supplied by h1111 to lhe Cmnp,my 
tor the gi\·ing of notices to them. • 

4!1) When:: a notice \~ sent by .post, service ,,f the notice shall he 
d.:c1ncd· 10 he:: effected by properly aJJress1ng, prcpu~·lll£1 a11J 
posting ·a letter· coruaining the notice and, unkss the wntrilr~ 1> 

proved. 10 hav e been "ff<'ck.·J ill the I ime al which the leuer ,JoulJ 
I~ deli vered i11 the ordinary c, ,ur:;.: of pos1. j 

If a Memh<.-r has no regisccrcJ address in Pakistan and ha~ n,,1 
supplied 10 the Company an address within J'ukis11111 for the givi+g 11f 
notices 10 him, a notice addressed 10 him or 111 Mctnhcrs gi.:n,t.oll~ 
mul advertised in a newspaper circulating in lhc province in whicl• the 
Of!icc is si111a11:d ~hall Iii; deemed to 11\: l111IJ given w hifll on tho da) 
,,~ which the· advertisement ,irrcars. In all s11d1 cases, 1trc Com~~n~ 
shall also comply with the rcquircmems of the provi,o lo Scj·tillll 
501 3 J of the Ordinance where applicable. ! 
:\ notice may be grven h)' 1h,: l'tHll[lml)' tn lh.: joi11I holders of a fh,m.: 
h) gi, ing lhc noti.:c .ltl the· j,,int hohkr named liisi 111 1hc ll...:gbfr m 
rcspci:l uf th,; shilrt:. I 

I 
A nuli<.:r: llliJY be ,;i\'en hy th.: t'ompan)· lo the persons cntitkdl 1,1 ,1 
share in wnsi:qui:ncc of the Jcalh ur in:;olv..:ucy of a M.:mhqr ti) 
sen.Jing it 1hrough 1'1.: post in a pn:raid ku.:r adJres,i,J (0 lhcr' > hy 
name, or by lhc tillc or n:pr<'st:nlati~cs of chc Jcc<'ast:d. ,H a.s,i!!,n c ,,f 
the insoh·cnt or by any like Jc,mpcion. al lh~ uddr~~~ (ir an J :n 
l'uh,1m1 supplied li,r lhc purJ>t>sc lly the pcr,ons dui1ning tu ~·· ,,, 
cmiclcd. or (until su.:11 .in address llas hccn su supplied; 1-y gi,in~ 1h, 
1mtkc 111 any munncr in whid1 lh<: s,1111<!" 1111~h1 hav.: t11:cn ~1vcn i~ the 
dc~I h ur imol \'CIIC)· had 1101 nc,·urrcJ . 

121i 

Notict! to Jeg11J 
representutives. 

."lorfre to joint 
holders, 

• .. ,.-. 

Notices by 
advertisement. 

A.111/itlir s. 

1-.jftfl ,,J re•,0!111i1111 
to copitnti;«: 
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I 33) hcry lfircctur or officer ol thc l'11mpaU) and c~·c:r} person cmph>};c,J by 
lh~ Cmttpuny .is Audiwr ~hall he: indemnified 11111 or lh.: funJs ,;( \he 
Co~1pauy ;1guin~I c1ll liabili!} incurred by him as such Director, ntlic·,;r or 
,\udiwr in Jcti:nJing un} pru..:ccJings, \\hc1h.:r d,il ur criminal 1n 
"hid, j11dg1nem is gi,e11 iu hh lcl\011r, or in whid1 he: is ...:quitted,'" i11 
rn111tt',l1<>rl with an} aprlicalion 1111.ler S.:cliun 481! in whid1 rch<'I is 
gnu11.:i.l 1,, him hy the l'ourL 

13~ I Sa, e as otherwise pru1· idcd in th.: Ordinance. no Mcmhc:r or' other 
1~rson (llnl beiug a Dirc..:lorl slrnll be emitted tn 1isi1 and mspccl all} o/ 
the- Cum11~11) ·, premises "' riwrcnic:,, uf 1he Ct>mpmn 1, i1hui1l lhc 
pcrlllission of Director~ ur the Company for 1hc time hcing <lt :my 
ricrst,n authorileJ in this hclrnlf h)· 1hc: Directors m lo require dis.!.tv~ry 
nf ,,r ~n}· infonnaliun rc,:rcl.'.tini; ,my Jc1ail of lhc: ( '01np11n)"s tr.iding or 
,my m~11,·r whi.-h i~ ,,r m,1y I'<.' in the nalurc l;f a !rm.le: ·~·crcl. lll)lill:ry ol 
tr;1d'"· or ,ccrt:1 prot:"·~~ nr uf ;my mallt..:-r ,, hatS<~\''\!'r \\·hkh nrny rc~;1k~ !~, 
ih,· c,,nJuct ,,r 1hc hu,1110, "' 1hc ( ·,11nran~ .mJ ,, hid\ in 1hc opinwn 111 
lhc, l>irc:clors will ht: int'xpc.Jicnt in lhc: i111c:r.:s\ uf lht' Member$ uf the 
C,>mri,m~ lo rnmmunic;Uc 1u the puhlic. 

s1·:nu~cv 

1311 If !he Company shall hi: wound up, the: li4uida10r may, wil~ the 
S11nt:lion of a Special Resolution of the Comp1111)' und any tj,•hcr 
sancuen required by .lhc: Ordinance. Llividc: amongst the: Mc111b.:ts in 
specie ur kind lbc whole or an)' part of 1he asscts of tho: (' 11mpan)' 
(whether they shall wnsist ur prop,:_rt)' of the same kind or nnl) at;d 
may, for such purpose, set such value as ht: deems fair upon1 any 
property 10 be divided as ,1li1rcs.iid and may determ inc how 11111ch 
di ~ision shall he carried out as h.:llve.:n lhe M.:mhcrs or dil1{rcn1 
dass~, vl' Members, fhc lil1uiuator may, with lite li~c s.1m.:1i11n,; ,·c~I 
lh.: 11·h,>h: or a11y part or ,ud1 assets in 1rustr:cs upon .rndt trust> tor 
the benefit or the Mcmhcrs or any of them us the I iquidator wit ii the 
like ,anclion shall thin~ Iii. hut su that no Mr1nbc:r shul! be compi:lkJ 
tu a.:c,;pt uny ~hares or other ~ci.:uritic~ whereon there is uny liubifity. 

i 

118) '-1;11wi1hs1anJing anythlllg hcrcin~hol'c lo lh" contrary. in addition ,,, 
any other 1101i.:.: it or he shall he entitled to receive. ii Mcmhcr, which 
i," i<,,cign corporation, ,:umpan~· or individua] ,h~II he given nnucc, 
ii' "T'l11i,.ihlc. by lill:simit.: trdns1i1issiun. electronic mail addressed h> 
-uch \-lc:mhcr al the l;1csimilc .11i11111>cr or elecmuuc mail adJ1c,, 
supplied b~· ii or him to !h,: ('tnnr~ny 

121>1 'foti..:c ,,r every Gencrul Mci::Ling shall he giveu in some manner 
l1<:rd11hdorc authorized to (dl ever)' Mcmhc:r cx(cpt thusc Members 
who (ha\'illg no registered address wi1hin l'al.is1anl have no1 ,upplicJ 
10 the (\>mpany an address w ithin l'al.is1an for the !living of 11,lticc, 
'" them, th) every Member or the Company being a foreign 
corporauon or company which has supplied io the Company a 
l\tcsimilc number or ,;k\:lronic milil address for the ~cni.ling uf 110011:cs 
1u ii, (,;I every person entitled 10 ;t ~h11re in consequence of the dc:,11b 
or. insolveucy of':a Membc:r. who but for his death or insolv~n~y 
would he: c111 it led 10 receive, notice of the: meet ing, unJ I J) the 
auditors ul'the Company. 

130 J l·\c:ry person who, by operation of law, transfc:r or 0!111;:r rra:uns 
wlliltsocvc:r shall become: c:n(itlc:d lo any shares shall hi: bound by: 
every notice: in respect of such shares, which previously to his ~amc: 
and address being entered on the: Register shall have been duly gh·cn 
10 the person from whom he derived his title 10 such shnn!S. · 

WINDING-llP 

;: 

l 11d,·m11ity tJj 
Directors, Ojjicm, 
11nJ AutlitorI. 

ln)peaitJn ,,J the 
premints ,,j the 
C ump11n_1•. • 

Distribution of 
anets ;,, spede. 

Biluling vulue of 
prior notices. - 

Nouces llf Gc11ernl 
M«li11,:s. 

.\'otin: lo jiirri,:11 . 

.111nr,!11t1Mer. 



13-1) In the event of' a dispute. claim ur cunmn crsy d1·ii,es hc:1wu:11 the 
( 'ompany, us management or its sl1ard1olders, ur between shari:!1l1IJcrs 
imer-se, or the: direclors imere-se. all steps sh.tit be 111!...:11 lo s.:Ulc 1hc: 
dispute anJ reserve tho: issue throuyh mediation hy an accredued 
meuuuor ti.:fon: 1akinll recourse 1,1 fimnal dispute resohnum such as 
arhilrat ion or liligation. 

135) Whenever any diflcrence arises between the Company on tho: om:!hand 
and an)' of the: Mc:mhc:rs. their executors, adminbtmtor.. or a!;l;ig~s on 
the other hand, touching the true im.:111 or construction, ur the indi1knt 
or consequence of these Articles or of the stalutc:s •. or IOUfhi11g 
anytl1ing there or therc:ufii.\r done, executed; omitted or sullcrtd' in 
i>ur~uaucci ufih~sc Artii:l~s ui ufihe ·si~1u1~~·or 1u~cliing any i,;.;t1iur 
alleged breach of these Articles, or ally claim on aecoum of anyJ such 
brc:11ch. or alleged"'breach, or otberwise rc:lating lo the prernlses, ~11'. lo . 
these: Articles or to ill1Y sraune 11t1e .. :1ing the: Company or 10 any ~I_" the 
a!lairs of the Company. every such dilTc:rencc: shall, as a cun4i tion 
precedent to lllly other ai,1ion al h1w be referred in confbrmity wi~ Ille 
Arbitration Act, 1940, or any slulutory m0Jilic111io11 1hc:rcofanl$. any 
rules made there under, tu till: lkcision of llll arbitndor to hc_a~nh:d 
by the panles in differeuce or if thc:y i.'llllnol agree upon a ~ngle 
arbitnllor, to the decision of two Mhitrators of whom one sludl be 
uppointed by e-,u:h ol'-the parties iu di ffer.:ncc, ur in the event -Of i~ t\\O 
urbitnsiions no1.11gn:dng. then of nn umpire 10 be appointed by th~ iwo: 
arburators, in writing, hi::forc: pmcc~ing on tlti: reference, and bud1 
decision shall be linal and binding on 1hc panies. ! 

I 

DISPl •Tl·: IUiSOu,noN 

• - 

DJ.fferetJc-~s to be 
referre,I tu 
Arbitratiun(s) 

Se11frmen1 11f 
,li1pu1e rhro11gh 
n1e,li11rim1 
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• 
N,uiunal 1·mauutiomd hicll!li.tt1on Tcdlnulo:ric~(P\·l".) l-.nii1LcJ 
5" M1>u1, AW,· Plaza, 
II ch,,nd,,iat R,,:.d. 
l(arqChi . 
l'llk1st111i 

I 
' 

u K~_ayi&hl&f1~- 
l'..rt:1.1.fH 

ijol,.lio,1, ,. 

~hi1;w: P•LtlllNII &.M1IOS ~'?UIX).OSU<Jb?.i-~ 

···,· ,,,...•;. ,.·,.·· 

fuh11111Al1·Kba.n. JbUihi111 Ah til-1~··"' &"nm ·.12.w 1 ,~n~~·u•-~ Pad:A'lllillut, 
1(11 .. :E...:a:uit·v.: :i11,-,i1;mu. 

;~ _,.,_. -~khj· 

(1'111uJhi)' lbis.e:No· 
tki.iifWSI JVl!D, 1:Mf, I M......,JA~n>cd MMban•tud -~WUN- --~·~·i~~ 1,1u2.~ J2Jj",t "Oillb1.N~ JU..} SllilQ 9.g~·_6iaiu,1, 

names: 

We. the several persons, whose names and addresses are subsc~ibcll, are desirous of ht:ing fon~1cd 
i010 a Compai-y in pursuance of lhis Articles of Association, mid we respectively agn:i: 10 iakt:i ihe 
number of sh.ires i11 rhe .:apituf of the Comp1111y· inJio:ulcu herein below agaln,1 our rcspc:4iv~ 

I 



·, 

'1. l'o sell . exchange, mortgage, let on royally or tribute, grunt licenses, easements, opti1fn~ ,.md 
other rights over and in any manner deal with or dispose of 1111: Company's property or i.jny pan 
thereof for such consideration as may be th,iughl lit and in particulur for stu..:ks, sli.1rL'S or 
securities ur ..tll}' ~umpan) but in ""Y event nut to act "~ an inv.:~1111~111 rompuny or :k.ising 
company. 

~ Io purchase. take on lease ur tenancy or in exchange. hire, take ,ir}lions over or nt~erwi~c 
acquire for any estate or inrerest whatsoever and tu hold, develop, work, cultivute, deal ,~ith anti 
turn 10 account concessions, grants, decrees, licenses, privileges, claims, options.: leases. 
property. rcul or person,i] or rights or power» oi" ,my kind which may appear In he ne.:cibary nr 
,un, cnicnt for tin: hu,inc~s ,,f ihc Comp.my hut not lu ,,.:1 ;1s .1 l.:J,ing n,mpany or 1i·"p,·rl) 
developer, 

• - 

I. fo design, insure. build, establish, own, operate, mabuain, manage electric p,iwr;:r geO:.:ra1in~ 
plants for. the genennion, supply & iransmission of electric power and in n:lation 1hctew. to 
establish, fix, rarry out and maintain without limitation, any ancillary works, cables,' wires, 
meter, lines, overhead lines. sub. stations, switching stations, interconnect facilitiJ. grid 
stations, transmission facilities, civil, electrical and mechanical works, subject to upprbval of 
concern authority (National Electric Power Regulator) Authority). I 

I 

2. To carry on thl: business of power i,icm:ration and in relation thereto, Ill generate, accu~mh1te. 
transmu, distribute and sell electric power tu the public St."CIOr, including the Water and[ Power 
Development Authority, National Transmission and Despatch Company, Govcrnmen; and 
Government bodies, and the private sector, s1,hiiict 111 ~rproval of concern ~ulh,,rity (N;ttiomd . . . ~ 
Electric Power Regulatory Authority ). j 

J. To- manufacture, purchase, import or otherwise acquire • .:011s1ruc1, own, pmccss, Of)l:frte and 
maintain buildings, workshops, warehouses and other storage facilities. apparatus, l)x!un:s. 
linings. plants, machinery: materials, and thin~ as may ht necessary, inciJcmull to or 
convenient in connectlon with power gcneeatl ng plam !i,r the !ltmcmtion ul' electric pn1~w ;1nJ 
or in connection with supply. transmission and.disrribution or electric power. I 

i 
-l. lo bu), sell, manufacture, repair, alter, improve, exchange or let out, import, c\p,11·1 and!Jcal in 

all works, planr, machinery, entinc~, tanks, cylinders, valves, regulators .. lcsting CllU\pn1cnl. 
roo!s, utensils, appliances, cookers, slOV<!S.. heaters, uppuratus. products, materials, ~ub~tanc.:s, 
raw materials, chemicals, natur.1l gas (whether in vaporized form or liquefied), li(iuclkd 
petroleum gas. fuel oil, coal, lubricants, articles and things and lo manufacture, cxp;:rimcnt 
with, render marketable and deal in all products, incidental Lour obtained in the businesscarried 
on hy the Company. 1 

-- 
11 L Ihe objects for which lh~ Company is 1:l>\<1l>lisi1t:J arc to do all or any of the tollowing: 

I. lhc mum: of the Company is AT LAS ENE RUY l.1MJTl·.D. 

ATLAS ENERGY uxrrso 
of 

Memorandum of Assod11tion 

COMPA",V LIMITED BY Sll~R£S 

The Companles Ordinance, 1984 
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16. ro adopt -aich means of ,nul.:111g known Ch(; business unJflir services 111" Liu; ('u111pa11y (,~ may 
seem expedient and in particular by advertising m the press, or 111 the other media or oy :"ay ol 
pa1tkip<1lio11 in cxhihitions. ( 

17. For th,· purposes ol' th, Company, Lu purchase, munuge. acquire by !ca~c. murtgagc. Ji,,Jin,~ ,,C 
sell, exchange. tum to account any p.:n uf the prnpcrly und rights of the (\1mpany. 

i 8. fo employ or ,1pp,1in1 any persons, experts, consultants, advisers, i.:,1111.-actor~ I induJinJ U&M 
c1m1rat:tors1, brokers in connection with the business ofthe Company, ! 

. I 
I 

19. l o pay for any property or rights acquired by the Company, either in cash or fully paid s~an:s or 
hy the bsue of s..:curities. or panly 1n unc mode am.I partly in another and gcncrally Jn ,uch 
tcrm~ as may be Jctcrmincd: · 

• 
14. Io procure the ( 'umpuny to he registered or recognized in any foreign country or place. I 

I 
' 1;. Tu acquire and undertake all or any pan olthe business, property, goodwill and liuhilitie~ of .iny 

person or company carrying on any business which the Company is au1hori1.ed 10 ~a~ on ur 
possessed "fpropcrt) suuahle lor the purposes ,1i"the Company. - 

; 

'J. For the purpose, uf the business of the Company only, to advance money upon such t<lrms as 
the Com pan) may approve, and to guarantee the ohligations and contracts ~if cu~tom~r~ anti 
others hut m11 to act as a hanking company. · 

I 10. lo apply for. purcbase or otherwise acquire and protect, prulong anti renew whether in l'pkis1an 
or elsewhere any patents, patent rlghlS, brevets ·-d'invention, trade: marks, design l~enses, 
protections, concessions a_nd_ the Jf~e. con!~rring_any .e~clusive or nnn-l!X~lusiw o~ limit1J right 
to use any secret or other mtormaucn asto any mvenuan, process or privilege which mt seem 
capable of being used for any of the purposes of the Company or the acquisaion or whifh 111:iy 
seem calculated directly or. indirectly lo benefit the Company and LO use, exercise. Jt"'dop. 
manufacture under grant, licenses, .privileges in respect 01; or otherwise turn to account the 
property, rights and information so acquired and co carry on any business in any way co~n~cled 
therewith. i 

I 11. To get insured against losses, damages, risks, aL-cidehts and liebilnies of 1111 kinds whifh may 
affecl the com puny whether in respect of us conuucts, agreements, advances or securities or in 
respect of servants or employees or directors of the company; or in respect of p~opcny 
b<:longing to or leased lo or hired by the company .. eit.hL-t by seuing apart funds or the c,lmpany 
or by erli:cting such insurance and in later case to puy th,: premium thereon. J 

I 
I 2, To train personnel and workers, in Pakistan 1mdlor abroad, Ill obtain technical proficiency in 

various spcclaliies connected with the business ofthe Company. ! 
t 

13. ·10 undertake and execute Ul1)' project the undertaking whereof may seem desirable. an~ either 
grutuitously or otherwise. I 

- 

7. Io t'Slahlish l.thoratorit'!, anJ hJ employ and promote scierui lie research and invcnuon, p,ttr,1ni1e 
such inv<.:ntioll ~nJ "JllCl int .. llhtl\ufa.;!tut! iii uill.ihu1ali,;u wilh 11ubiJ,:: p,11 Ii<.:> tu, hW)~li:1 ,,J" 
technology from abroad and 10 promote transfer of 1,:,:hnnlt>g) trom Pukistun ,tbrnaJ.:anJ to 
(arr)' on business in all other allied fields permissible by iuw, 

8. lo invest and deal with ~ll} surplus moneys of the Company 1101 i111111.:Jia1el) tur the tim~ being 
required lor any ,,r thc purposes or the Company in such investments as may be thoughtproper 
and lu hold, s..:11 or otherwise deal with such investments but in any event not lo m:~ as an 
invesuuent corn pan). 



27. ro pay all ur any costs charges and t:xpcnsc:s prcliminar) ,md indJcnlal to th.: prop1<,1iun. 
formation. cstablishmcnl anJ rc~istrdtion uf the Compuny anJ to pay an)' Jcvclupmcj,t <Osb 
incum:J (\,ht:1h~r hi::lilrc: ,1r alh:r 1hc: incoqx•r~ti"n ,,f tho: ('ompan)) b) 1h1: spunso1 ,•l the: 
(.\1mpany in wnr1cc1i,m ,, ilh all) proj~~t urth.: l'unipan). 

25. So f11r as is permissible in law, 10 estublish, muin1ain anJfor contribute 10 any ension, 
soperannuauon, Jc:111h benetlts, hinds or schemes lor the benefit uf, and lo give, a urd or 
procure the giving or awarding, of donations. pensions. gratuities, allowances, atjnuities, 
emoluments or other benefits whatsoever to any persons who arc or have ill any time bc11 in lhc 
cnrplo~mcm _ur_:,i:ni,.;c u1:1hi: ("ump,lll) or ot' any c:>mp<1n) which b i~s hultling ur w n h is_a 
subsidiary ul cuber the l ompany or any such hukl1ng company ur ,,i .in)· co111pany , hi ch is 
otherwise allied to or associated with the C\mlpilll}. ur \\ho arc ur have at any 1in~c: been 
Directors ,T otticcrs (ur held comparable ur ,:,.1uh aknl otlices, otihe t'ompall) ur of a,) or uf 
any such Lither rnmpun). and also 10 the wives. widows, families and dependents uf apy sui:h 
persons; to establish, subsidise or subscribe: 10 an)' institutions. associarions, clubs 'f funds 
which may be ,onsiJc~J lik~I)· LO bl!flefit all or an) such f)\!rsuns; lo make paymr:nl~ for or 
towards lhi: in~urancc of an)· such persons; to c~lahtish, support .inJ m.1intain any lorm of 
prolit-sharing, share puri:hasc. shan: inccnli\·e, share oplion or cmployt,"1:S. share schi::m~ for any 
such pc~ons c:ligil:>Jc tu participat.:: in 1hcm or hcnclit from lhem (or II• tru~tccs on thdqhchalf) 
li)r the purp1>s.:~ ,>f ,,r in i:unnc..:ii,m with the upcratiun anJ cnjuymcnl of .iny such scheme. 

26. l"n cmc:r intu an) agn:.:mc:nt or agrccmc:llls with ;my gu,crnm.:m or ,iLhcr Julhorit)', stprcmc, 
municipal. local or olhcrwisc. !hut may seem cunJudvc w all or any of th.: objccj ,1f 1hc 
(\>mpan) ,111J/or h• .. h1ai11 from ,ui:h gm·crnnicnl or ,mthorit) indu,ling Lh.: Statc I an~ ,,r 
l'.ikbtan or ~athmal l·:ki:lrk l'uwer l{q;ulatul} :\uthrnit) i~I.Pl{,\I any l'ights, cun.:c~ inn~ ,,r 
pri\•ilcgcs, licenses ~hich the Compimy m<1y think JC!>irablc: Lu obtain anJ tu rnrry out, txcrcisc 
and comply with ,my sud1 urrangc111.:n1s. rights, privileges. cun~·c::ssiuns und liccnsc::s. 

- 

21. In connection with the husim:~~ or the Company only. lo give guurarnccs and irn.lcmn\lic, for 
the payment of money ,,r the performance of comracts or ubliga1ions by this Companj hut in 
any even! not lo ui:l us an investment, llanking or finance company. j 

I 

22. ['o borrow and where: required, 10 secure the payment of money in such manner as the C~nipuny 
shall think Iii and in particular by the creation of mortgages and charges over the (prc:*111 and 
lutun:) property, assets anJ/or undc1taking of the Company c111J/ur hy issue of dc~11turcs, 
panicip11tion term cert i Iieutes, term Ii nance ~11i ticates iinJ other securities charged ufXti all or 
any of the Company's property both present and future, and to purchase. redeem and ray off 
any such securities, I 

; 
i 

23. To rake, or otherwise acquire. anJ hold shares in c1n)' other compan)' having objects al~1gc:ther 
or in part similar Lu those OI" this Company or u1rrying on 1111y business capable 'l being 
~onduc1c:d so as directly or indirectly to benefit this Company bul in any event not lU up~ an 
mvestmenr company. j 

24. ro enter into partnership or into any agreement or agreements for sharing profits, inn of 
interests, cooperation, joint venture, reciprocal concession and/or lacillties with any p rson or 
eompeny whether or nut hu\"ing objects similar to those of thls Company but in any eve l not 10 
ac! as managing agents, 

- 

20. Only in ..:111111c.:1i,•n \1 ith the business 1)f the Cumrany h• open and operate any 1,;,11..-clll, 
overdrali. loan. fixed ,,r ,a, ings hank accounts for ihc Cump,111y. anJ i.lraw, rnukc.: accept. 
discount, endorse, execute anJ issue promissory notes . .,ills ul' exchunge, bills of lading and 
other nci;oliuhlc or transtcruble instruments or sccur\!ics anJ lo advance 1nunt:) '1u the 
Company's executives, officers .111J employeesagems/custorners anJ others having ~t:alings 
with the company but in an)· evera nut to act as an investment. banking or finance company. 
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IV. I he liability ul'thc l\kmhcrs i~ limi11.:d. 

• 

3U. Io rcsol_Yc .. s~lllc Jisput~s ~)'. negotiation. CU~l'ilialion. mediation, arhitrat_ion. liti~atinn fr other 
means.judicial or cxtra judiciel, and 10 enter in compromise agreement with creditors. "lc111hi:rs 
and any other persons in respect nr a diflerence or dispute with lh.:111 and to exercise th~ power 
to sue: and he sued and tu initi.il or oppose all uctions, steps. proceedings or applicatiu~ which 
may seem caiculared directly or inJircctl) to benefit or prcjudlce. as the case may !be. the 
intcn.!sl of the (\un!)l111y or otits members, I 

l 
31. l'o Jo all or any of the things herein in any pan of the world either as principals; [agems, 

contracrors or utherwise, and either alone or in conjunction with others but in any c:vcJ not lo 
. I m;l as managmg agents. J 

i 
J:2. To provide engineering, construction, consuhuncy anJ design services and radio imU other 

communication systems and services, and a~y r_ucil.(tics. cquip~e~I an~ installations ~·hcthcr 
related to such services and systems or otherwise, suhJcct to pcim issron ot concern aulho~ity. 

33. ·1:0 carry. on any ot~cr ?usin.:ss w~.:thi:r m.i~uli11;1m:ing or ,11~crwi~ that may ~cemj.11.1 the 
Company capable ul hcing conveniently carried on in connecuon with. the above ob ects or 
celculated directly or ,indircttly 10 enhance the \'alu,: of or render profituble any of the 
Company'r property or rights or which it may be advisable to undertake with a . ·jew 10 
improving, developing, rendering or turning to account any properly real or personal bclon1:ing 
10 the Company or in which the Company ma)' be imercstcd and to do all or ,111y of th4 above 
things either as prim:ipal.s, agents, i.:onu·ac11.1rs or uthcn,i~I.!, aml either alone or in con_il1nctiL•n 
with olhct'S and either by or lhrough agents. suh-contractnrs, trustees or otherwise. and lf Ju all 
such thin~s a, arc incident.ii or conducive to the attainment ur the ,1h,J1 c ,1bjccts hut in an~ event 
notto act as managing agents. r 

I 
34. l'o J<J ,ill and everything necessary, suitable or prnpc:r ur inciderual ,11· conducive] to the 

accomplishment or' any of th .. purposes or the auainmem or any of the: objects or the furt[cranct: 
uf any of the powers hercinbefore set forth, either alone or in association with other cc rporute 
bodies, linn~ or individuals or with any U1i\'crnmc11l authority or public or quas -puhlic 
authority or any other authority, and lo do every other a..:I or thing incidental ur appcrtin 1t lour 
arising DUI or or connc..:t,J ,, ith Ehc husinc:ss ,,r p, .. ,,-:rs of the l'umpany or part ~hcrcoJ; 
pnll'idcJ thc same be la\, ful. ! 

i 
35. JT IS 111:.lffBY l :r--DUU AKEN that the t"lllnpany shall not cng.ig.: in the t->.inling hus~1i.:% or 

F.ir.:x. illc!lal lm,kcragc, husint:ss of a finance. im·cstrncnt, Jcasin~ or insurnm:c comp~ny. 1•r 
non-hanking 1inani:c company or as a modaraha management wmpa11y, or chc busincss iof land 
J,:1,d11p111c11t 11r « managing agcn.:y ,,r any unla,1 fol husincss anJ lh:11 no!hing ir1 the ~•h1,·..:1, 
c:laus.: ~hall be wnstrucJ h• cnlitk iL Lil c:ngagc in sud, l)l~in.:ss Jin.:ctl}· nr inJirc(tb. llu: 
Company sh.111 nut laurn;h mulLi-lcvd marketing c l\.·11.MJ. l'yroill1iJ or 1'11111.i s;;hi:mcs. · 

36. NotwithstanJing any thing slated in an)· o~ji:cl clause. th.: wmpany shall ob1ain sucii other 
appr,wat or liccnsi: from the competent authority, as ma)· hc rcquin:d unJi:r any law for t~c time 
hcing in fon:~. to u111.h:111.1kc a partkulill'S husinl!ss. · 

-- 

19. r,, amalgamate, consolidate. or merge, cuhcr in whole or in part, with or into an~· other 
companies, associations. firms or persons carrying on any trade or business or a similar nature 
to that which this Company ·is authorized lO t:,ltT) u n. 

2~. I,• pay brokerage or commission lo an) person or persons in cons ideraiioo uf hi,/thcir 
suhscribin~. or agn:cing Lu. subscribe. whether ahsulutcl] or .:omliti,mally, tor un) shares or 
debenture» of 1hc C,,mpuny, ur liir procuring ·01· agrc.:mg tu procure subscriptions whether 
ahsolutc or condirionul !,,r the same which brokerage or .:t>mmi~,ion ma} be pail! either.in .:ash 
or shar..:s of the Company, credited as full} paid up. 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information presented along with the financial 
statements and the auditors' report thereon. With respect to the Company the other information 
comprises only the Director's Report on the operations of the Company. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge cbtained in the audit or otherwise appears lo be 
materially misatated. If, !J<1st:d u11 the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatemeul ol this other infcnnaticn, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in tois regard. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows together with the notes 
forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the 
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state. of the Company's 
affairs as at June 30, 2024 and of the profit, other comprehensive income, the changes in equity 
and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Fi1;ancial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Protessone: Accountants as adopted by the lr.stitute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with tho Code. We believe that the :::iudit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Atlas Energy Limited (the Company), 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024, the statement of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have 
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were 
necessary for the purposes of the audit. 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

Independent Auditor's Report To The Members Of 
Atlas Enerpy Limited 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS PAKISTAN 
SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUOHR! & CO. . . ..•. "' . .. S'W . . . ~ 

• o e • c, 



Catalyst for success 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding- of ir,t-Jrri...l' control relevant' to the audit in order to :fosign audit 
procedures thatare approprtate in th!:! cucurnstances, but nottor the purpose otoxpressinq 
an opinion on the effecti>'~n:i!S:i of the Company's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates ar.d related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related d!sclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our auditors' report. 
However, future events or cnrn1itiors may caus~. the Company. to cease to coatinue as a 
going concern. 

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will 
always detecta material rnlsstaternent wt.on it exists. Mis~b.temerits can arise from fraud or error 
and are cor.sidered material if, indivi.::.'-ually or. in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic dccislons of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements c• Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of flnanclal ~lc.1ltj1t11::111h \h;,.t R1~ 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS PAKISTAN 
SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO. . . . 
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Catalyst fer success 

~"'~~ ~ ~L~~ * 

SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO., 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

LAHORE; September 04, 2024 
UDIN: AR202410104bfD6MNrJA 

The Engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is 
Osman Hameed Chaudhri. 

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 
1980). 

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with 
the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for 
the purpose of the Company's business; and 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017); 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS PAKISTAN 

. . . 
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The annexed notes form an Integral part of these financial statements. 

Ou . . \ \ 
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Chief Financial Officer !SHC] Chief Executive Officer 

641,706,864 697,301,494 
13 

Total liabilities 
Contingencies and commitments 

Total equity and liabilities 

10 
11 

374,074,905 

241,784,000 
28.000,000 

269,784,000 

2.895,391 
38.517,000 
48, 130, 165 
14.748,349 

104,290,905 
320,700,031 

206,480,001 
28,000,000 

234,480,001 

2,529,029 
37,554,500 
39,098,627 
7,037,874 

86,220,030 

10 
12 

Current liabilities 
Accrued mark-up 
Current portion of long term financing 
Trade and other payables 
Provision for taxation -- 
Liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 
Long term financing 
Security deposit 

267,631,959 376,601,463 

74,000,030 
193,631,929 

74,000,030 
302,601.433 

500,000,000 500,000,000 

5 33,016,241 17,664,483 
6 3,158,735 9,780.216 
7 10,041,422 18,560,474 
8 33,229,281 '18,324,951 
9 90,743,255 70.076,729 

5,887,255 2,782,986 
176,076, 189 167.189.839 

697,301,494 641, 706,864 Total assets 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Share capital and reserves 
50,000,000 (2023: 50,000,000) ordinary 

shares of Rs. 10/- each 
7,400,003 (2023: 7,400,003) ordinary 

shares of Rs. 10/- each 
Unappropriated profits 

-- 

Current assets 
Trade debts 
Inventory 
Loans and advances 
Other receivables 
Short term investments 
Cash and bank balances 

474,517,025 521,225,305 4 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Plant and equipment 

Note - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - 
2023 2024 

ATLAS ENERGY L!M!TEO 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024 



Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

93,168,490 108,969,504 

2024 2023 
{Restated) 

- - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - 

234,301,240 354,840.501 

(113,414,040) (192.391.958) 

120,887,200 162.448.543 

(4,353, 176) (5,764.662) 

(10, 769,599) (41,868, 176) 

14,138,516 8,785,246 

(7,692,680) (14.165,828) 

112,210,261 109,435,123 

(2, 720, 767) (1,560,224) 

109,489;494 107,874,899 

(519,990) (14, 706,409) 

108,969,504 93,168,490 

20 

16 
17 

18 
19 

Gross profit 

Administrative expenses 

Finance cost 

Other income 

Other expenses 

Profit before revenue tax and income tax 

Final taxes - levy 

Profit before income tax 
Income tax expense 

Profit after taxation 

other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income 

14 
15 

Revenue from contracts with customer - net 

Cost of sales 

Note 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS & 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 



2,782,986 5,887,255 

3,104,269 

2,782,986 

(200, 166,943} 

(12.483,694) 

15,266,680 

(47,361,203) 

- 119,500,000 

(36,266,500) (274,091,000) 

(11,094, 703) (45,575,943) 

132,051,230 (24,531,019) 

(10,951,232) (13,338, 125) 

121,099,998 (37,869.144) 

{71,350,303) (31,015.234) 

715,777 256,567.627 

(70,634,526) 225,552,393 

2024 )Cl:):~ 

Note - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - 

Shah man I Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer 

Finance cost paid 
Net cash used in financing activities 

Net increase I (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year 

Fixed capital expenditure 

Sale proceeds of operating fixed assets e - Net cash (used in) I generated from investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Long term finances - obtained 

- repaid 

Cash generated from I (used in) from operations 21 

Taxes paid 

Net cash generated from I (used in) operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 



~·~ 
~ector 

\ ---~~-'/ 
Chie~ecutive Officer Chief Financial Officer 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

74,000,030 ====== 

74,000,030 ====== 
74,000,030 

93, 168.490 93.168.490 I 
93,168,490 93, 168,490 

193,631,929 267,631,959 

193 ,631,929 267 ,631,959 

108,969,504 108,969,~04 I 
108,969,504 108 ,969 ,504 

302,601,433 376,601,463 

- - - - - - - - - - - - Ru pees - - - - - • - - - - - - 
74,000,030 100.463,439 174,463.469 

Total Unappropriated 
profit 

Share 
capital 

Balance as at June 30, 2024 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 

Balance as at July 01, 2023 
Total comprehensive income for the year: 
Profit after taxation 
Other Comprehensive income 

Balance as at July 01, 2022 
Total comprehensive income for the year: 
Profit after taxation 

Other Comprehensive income 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

-- 

-- 



Tne accountinq policies adopted in the preparation of these f.nancia: statements are cons.stern 
with those of the previous financial year. except for change resulted due to adoption of 
amendments to accounting standards. The beiow mentioned amendments to approved 
accounting standards are effective for the financial year beg:nning on July 01, 2023 and have 
been adopted by the Company: 

2.4.1 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year and 
have been adopted by the Company 

I hese tmancral statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees. which is the Company's functional 
and presentation currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been 
rounded to the nearest rupees unless otherwise specified 

2.4 INITIAL APPLICATION OF STANDARDS, AMEMDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS TO 
EXISTING STANDARDS 

2.2 

2.1 Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in 
Pakistan comprise of: 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board {IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); 

Islamic Financial Accounttnq Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Act; and 

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, differ with the 
requirements of !AS 34, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 
have been followed 

Basis of measurement 
-- 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

Branch office 

Purpose 
Registered office 

Lahore 
64/XX. Khayaban -e- Iqbal, DHA Phase Ill. 

Karachi 
2nd Floor, Federation House, Shahra-e-Fardousi, 

Main Clifton. -- 
Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited - holding company held 100% (2023:100%) ordinary shares 
of the Company. 

1.1 Geographical location and address of major business units including mills I plant of the Company 
are as under: 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 
1. LEGAL STATUS ANO OPERATIONS 

Atlas Energy Limited hereafter referred as "the Company" was incorporated as an unquoted - 
public limited company in Pakistan on May 18, 2016, under the repealed Companies Ordinance. 
1984 (now the Companies Act. 2017). 

The purpose of Atlas Energy Limited is to provide cost effective solar solutions for industrial and 
commercial consumers. 

-------------------~------- 



Leases - Lease Liability in a Si31e ~nd I Prt':>l:'!b;,ir:k - A.rn~ndnif:'nt'3 requires a seller lessee to 
subseq uentty measure 'ease liabilities aris::1g f;--~~, a leaseback ;~ a ·11..1a·i that it dces net re cog :;Ise; 
any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of wse it retains. The new requirements do 
not prevent a seller-lessee from recognising in profit or loss any gain or loss relating to the partial 
or full termination of a lease. A seller-lessee applies the amendments retrospectively in 
accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies. Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to sale 
and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application. 

Effective: January 01, 2024 

Replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their 'significant' accounting policies with a 
requirement to disclose their 'material' accounting policies: and 

Adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about 
accounting policy disclosures. 

The amendments have had an impact on the Company's disclosures of accounting policies. but 
not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company's financial 
statements. 

There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved 
accounting standards that are effective but are not relevant to the Company and therefore, have 
not been presented here. 

2.4.2 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not 
vet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company 

a) IAS 7 Statement of Cashflows and IFRS 7 Financial Effective: January 01, 2024 
Instruments; Disclosures 

Amendments in !AS 7 Statement of Cashflows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments; Disclosures; 
Supplier Finance Arrangements, disclosure requirements to enhance the transparency of supplier 
finance arrangements and their effects on a company's liabilities, cash flows and exposure to 
liquidity risk. 

The amendments are supplement requirements already in IFRS Accounting Standards and 
require a company to disclose: 

the terms and conditions; 

the amount of the liabilities that are part of the arrangements, breaking out the amounts for 
which the suppliers have already received payment from the finance providers. and stating 
where the liabilities sit on the balance sheet: 
ranges of payment due dates; and 

liquidity risk information. 
b} lFRS 16 Leases 

b) IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS 
Practice Statement 2 

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 - The 
amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by: 

Effective: January 01, 2023 

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes tn accounting estimates and changes in 
accounting policies and the correction of errors. The amendments introduce a new definition fer 
accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts m the nnancrat statements that 
are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify the relationship between 
accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that a Company develops an 
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy. The amendments 
will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies 
occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company 
applies the amendments. 

Effective: January O 1, 2023 
a) !AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 

Accounting Estimates and Errors 

(2) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 

-- 



The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will. by definition. seldom equal the related actual results. Judgments. estrrnatss and 
assumptio-is made by the management tnat may have a significant risk of material acjustmen: to 
ti-:e financial statements rn the subsequent year are as follows 

The aforesaid Guidance has been applied retrospectively by the Company and the comparative 
information has been restated, which has not affected current year or years' net sales, profit after 
taxes and levies, equity and cash flows. Impact as of July 01, 2023 is not material to these 
financial statements. In the statement of profit or loss for the year ended June 30, 2024. in terms 
of the requirements of JFRIC 21 / IAS 37, minimum tax and final tax aggregating Rs.1.560 million, 
which were previously presented as current taxation have now been reclassified as "final tax 
levies". 

2.6 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards 
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application 
of policies and the reported amount of assets. li::ibilitiC$, income and expenses. Estimates and 
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors. 
lnc:Liding expectations off J~-..re events that are believed to be reasonable under the 

-- 

e - 

Presentation of Financial Statements to clarify how to classify debt and other liabilities as current 
or non-current In January 2020. the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 tc 76 of !AS 1 to 
specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The 
amendments clarify: 

- What is meant by a right to defer settlement: 

- That a rii;iht to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period; 
- That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise rts 

deferral right: 
- That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity 
- Only covenants with which an entity is required to comply on or before t.he reporting date 

affect the classification of a liability as current or non-current. In addition, an entity has to 
disclose information in the notes that enables users of financial statements to understand 
the risk that non-current liabilities with covenants could become repayable within twelve 
months. 

The Company has assessed that the impact of above amendments is not expected to be 
siqniflcant. 

There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved 
accounting standards that are not yet effective and are also not relevant to the Company and 
therefore. have not been oresented here. 

IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes (the 
Guidancet issued ev ICAP 

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) issued the aforementioned Guidance 
through Circular No. 07 / 2024 dated May 15, 2024. In light of the said Guidance. as the minimum 
taxes and final taxes are not calculated on the 'taxable income' as defined in IAS 12 (Income 
Taxes) but calculated on turnover or other basis (as per relevant sections of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance): accordingly, minimum taxes and final taxes should be 
accounted for under 1AS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets) / IFRIC 21 
{Levies) as levies (though these are charged under tax law) and not under IAS 12 as income 
taxes. Based on the Guidance, the minimum taxes under the Ordinance are hybrid taxes, which 
comprise of a component within the scope of !AS 12 and a component within the scope of IFRIC 
21. 

2.5 

Effective: January 01, 2024 c} IAS 1 Presentation of Financial 
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As per IFRS 16. the Company has to recognize right to use assets and a corresponding lease 
liability. The !ease liability will be measured at the present value of the consideration (lease 
payments) to be made over the lease term. The lease payments will be discounted using the 
interest rate implicit in the lease unless it rs not readily determinable Ir, whicn case the Company 
nay use the incremental rate of borrowing The right~of-use asset is in,ta:ly measured at the 
present value of lease liability and adjusted for lease prepayments/accruals ard borrowing costs 

Plant and equipment 
Owned assets 
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
Depreciation 
Depreciation on all items of plant and equipment except for vehicles is charged to statement of 
profit or loss applying the straight line method. Vehicles are depreciated using the reducing 
balance method so as to write off historical cost of an asset over its estimated useful life. Rates of 
depreciation is stated in note 4. 1. 
Depreciation on addition in plant and equipment is charged from the date of addition while no 
depreciation is charged in the date of disposal. The Company reviews the useful life and residua! 
value of plant and equipment on a regular basis. Any change in estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of plant and equipment with a correspondlnq 
effect on depreciation charge. 
Disposal 
Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of fixed assets are determined as the difference 
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of assets and are included in the statement 
of profit or loss. 
Capital work-in-progress 

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated up to the statement of financial position 
date less accumulated impairment losses. if any. Capital work-in-progress is recognized as an 
operating fixed asset when it is made available for intended use. 

Impairment 

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each statement of financial position date to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment of any asset or a group of assets. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of that asset is estimated and impairment losses 
are recognized in the profit and loss account. 

3.2 Right-of-use assets and lease liability 

(b) Inventory 

The Company estimates the net realizable value of equipment inventory to assess any diminution 
in the carrying value. Net realizable value is determined with reference to estimated selling price 
less estimated expenditure to make sale. Provision is made in the financial statements for 
obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade based on management estimate 

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set 
out below. These polices have been consistently applied to all the years presented. 

(a} Plant and equipment 

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rates of depreciation. useful lives and res.cuat 
values for calculation of depreciaton on an on-going basis. Further. where applicable an estimate 
of recoverable c11 nuunt cf ass el is made if indicators of impairment are identified 

-- 

e - 
3.1 
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Trade debts are measured at the transaction price measured under IFRS 15. A loss allowance is 
::=-..,.;i:;:,iLed for trade cebts based en l.fetirne expected credit lesses at each reporting cats based 
on Company's historical credit loss experience adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to tne 
debtors and the economic environment. 

lrace cebts arid other receivables are recognized when an ~rcond1t1onaf right to amcunt cf 
consideration is established 

3.4 Trade debts and other receivables and related impairment 

Fmanctal assets are derec:ogni7M wh1:1n th*:'+ riQhts to r1:1c1:1iv8 c~sh flows from the financial assets 
have expired or have been transfeu ed .:tnLl LI,~ Cu1r11Jc:111y lid::; tr di 1::;r~, 1 ed substantially di! ri~ks 
and rewards of ownership. 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value Net gains and losses, including any 
interest I mark-up or dividend income, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest I mark-up income, 
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss. 

De recognition 

-- 
Debt Instruments at FVTPL 

The right-of-use assets recognized subsequent to trie adoption are measured based on the initial 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred The right-of-use assets are 
depreciated over the lease term using a straight iine basis as it closely reflects the expected 
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The right-of-use assets are reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of lease liability. 

3.3 Financial assets 

Initial measurement 

The Company classifies its financial assets ln the following three measurement categories: 

fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); 

fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and 

measured at amortized cost. 

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition. 

Subsequent Measurement 

Equity Instruments at FVTOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income 
in the statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in statement of 
other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of profit or loss. 

Debt Instruments at FVTOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest J mark-up income calculated 
using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in 
statement of other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated 
in statement of other comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement of profit or 
loss. 
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The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL"} for all debt instruments 
not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the 
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the 
Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset's 
original effective interest rate. 

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. ECLs are provided for credit losses that 
result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For 
those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the 
exposure. irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). 

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 60 days past 
due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default 
when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the 
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held 
by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovering the contractual cash flows. 

For trade debts, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on lifetime 
expected credit losses. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the 
Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the 
debtors and the economic environment. The expected credit losses are recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss. 

For bank balances. the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on 
lifetime expected credit losses. The Company reviews internal and external information available 
for each bank balance to assess expected credit loss and the likelihood to receive the outstanding 
contractual amount The expected credit losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

(b) Non-financlal assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or reversal of provisions for 
impairrnent losses. !f any indications exist. the recoverable amounts cf such assets are estimated 
and impairment losses or reversals of impairment losses are recognized 1n the statement of profit 
or loss RP.wm,;il of imr,::i1rmt?-nt toss is restricted to the original cost of the asset 

Financial assets (a) 

3.6 

Other receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method, less expected credit lesses as explained in note 3.3. The 
trade debts mainly comprise of a balances wnh related parties -..vh1cn are considered as good ano 
having no impact of expected credit loss. 

3.5 Equipment inventory 

Equipment inventory is valued principally at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable 
value except for the item in transit stated at invoice value plus other charges thereon titl the 
reporting date, while item considered obsolete are carried at nil value. 

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale. Provision is made in the financial 
statements for obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade based on management estimate. 

Impairment 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (6) ATLAS ENERGY LIMJTED 

11- 

·- 



Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, cash at banks and short-term highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash 
equivalents comprise bank balances including short-term deposits net of bank overdraft. if any. 

Contract asset 
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the 
customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the 
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for 
the earned consideration that is conditional. 
Contract liabilities 
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the 
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer If 
a customer pays constderatron before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, 
a contract tiaoilrty rs recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whid iever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under tre 
contract. 

Oerecog nition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new 
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss. 

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and .. in the case of loans and borrowings 
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include long term loans, creditors. accrued and other liabilities. 

Subsequent Measurement 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the EJR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecogmzed as well as through the EIR amortization process. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as flnance 
costs in the statement of comprehensive income. 

This category applies to long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-up 
arrangements, creditors, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, accrued and other 
liabilities. 

Financial liabiiities are classified, at initial recognition. as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables. or as derivatives designated as hedging 
instruments in an effective hedge. as appropriate. 

Initial measurement 

3.10 

3.9 

·- 3.8 

·- 

3.7 Financial liabilities 
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3.11 Borrowings 
Borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Financial charges are accounted for on 
accrual basis and are included in mark up accrued on loans to the extent of amount remaining 
unpaid if ary 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 
assets. which are assets mat necessarily t;:ikP. :::i substantial period of time to get ready fer their 
intended use. are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially 
ready for their intended use. A!I other borrowing costs are charged ta the income statement . in 
the period in which these are incurred. 

3.12 Trade and other payables 
Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost, which approximates fair 
value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not 
billed to the Company. 

3.13 Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a 
result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the oblig3tion$ con be made 
Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and accordingly adjusted to 
reflect current best estimates. 

3.14 Taxation 
Income tax on profit and loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. 
Current 
Profit and gains derived by the Company from the power generation project are exempt from the 
tax under Clause (132) of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The 
Company is also exempt from the minimum tax on the turnover under Clause 11A (v) of the Part 
IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 
However, provision for current taxation on profits and gains other than from power generation 
project is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation after taking into account tax credits 
and rebates available, if any, in accordance with the provision of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001. It also includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years. 
Deferred 
As the Company's revenue is exempt from tax. therefore no deferred tax has been recognized in 
these financial statements. 

3.15 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue recognition policy 

Tilt= Company is in the business of power generation and sale of energy. Revenue from contract 
with customer is recognized when control of the goods are transferred to the customer at an 
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange 
for those goods or services. Specific revenue recognition details are as follows: 

Sale of energy 
Revenue from the seile of energy is recognized upon the transfer of control of the goods to thP. 
P\Jyer when performance obligation i:. satisfied. which refers to the tranemlseion of Net Electrical 
Output (NEO) to customer through solar solution installed at premises of customer. as agreed rn 
the Agreements far sale and purchase of electncity. 
Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 
The Company concluded that revenue from electricity rs to De recoqruz ed at ovei Lmi:: because 
the electricity element represents a promise to transfer a series of distinct goods that are 
substantially the same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the customer, therefore the 
electricitv represents one performance obl,gat1on that is satisfied over t1m2 F,JfihP.r PIRr:tr:.-:it;1 ,<:. 

distinct and the buyer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit provided by the 
Company. 

(8) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ATLAS ENERGY LIMiTED 
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4. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
2024 2023 

Note - - - Rupees - - - 

Operating fixed assets 4.1 489,455,992 455,762,888 

·- Capital work in progress 4.4 31,769,313 18.754,137 

521,225,305 474,517,025 

··- 
Provision of engineering and installation services 

Revenue from the provision of engineering and installation services is recognized when the 
equipment is installed at the customer premises and performance obligation is satisfied, which 
refers to the provision of installation services related to equipment sold by the Company. 

Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 

The Company concluded that revenue from provision of engineering and installation services is to 
be recognized at a point in time when the asset is actually installed at the customer premises by 
the company. The provision of engineering and installation services to the customer represents a 
single performance obligation. Therefore, revenue is recognized when the services are 

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement 
of financial position if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized 
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

3.16 

Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 

The Company concluded that revenue from sale of equipment is to be recognized at a point in 
time when the asset is actually transferred to the customer. The transfer of equipment to the 
customer represents a single performance obligation. Therefore. revenue is recognized when the 
control of the asset is transferred to the customer. 

Sale of equipment 

Revenue from the sale of equipment is recognized upon the transfer of control of the goods to the 
buyer when performance obligation is satisfied which refers to the transfer of equipment to the 
customer. 
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ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED (10) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

4.1 Operating fixed assets 

Plant and 
Computers Vehicles Total equipment 

................... Ru pees - - - - - - - - • - • - 
Cost 

Balance as at July 01, 2022 753,801, 704 296, 166 7~,4.097,870 
Additions during the year 240,000 12,:)21,097 12,261,097 
Disposals during the year (263,917,526) (587,200) (2E4,504, 726) 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 489,884.178 536, 166 11,433,897 SC 1,854,241 
Balance as at July 01, 2023 489,884, 178 536,166 11,433,897 5C1,854,241 
Additions during the year 50,111,836 1,747,471 6,475,820 58,335, 127 
Disposals during the year (894,720) (894.720) 

Balance as at June 30, 2024 539,996,014 2,283,637 17,014,997 559,294,648 

( Depreciation 

Balance as at July 01, 2022 24,896,418 152, 119 25,048,537 
Charge for the year 26,633,168 132, 194 2,214,553 28,979,915 
On rhsposals during the year (7,917,526) (19,573) (7,937,099) 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 43,612,060 284,313 2, 194,980 46,091,353 

Balance as at July 01, 2023 43,612,060 284,313 2, 194,980 46,091,353 
Charge for the year 20,635,836 472,837 2,817,574 23,926,247 
On disposals during the year (178,944) (178,944) 

Balance as at June 30, 2024 64,247,896 757,150 4,833,610 69,838,656 

Book value as at 
June 30, 2023 446.272.118 2511853 9.238.917 455, 762,868 - 
Book value as at 
June JO, 2024 475. 748.118 1.526,487 12,181,387 489,455,992 
Depreciation rate (%) 4 33 20 



6.1 Th;s mctudes stock held by related parties amounting to Rs. 3. 159 million (2023: Rs 9 268 
rnrllion). 

9.780.216 3,158,735 
512,118 Work in progress 

3,158,7:>5 6.1 

0-3 months 
INVENTORY 6. 

- - - Rupees - - - 
33,016.241 17 .664.483 

Note 
2023 2024 

5.1 This relates to an amount receivable from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party). The maximum 
aggregate amount outstanding at any time during the year was Rs.20.272 million(2023 
Rs.17.664 million). 

5.2 Aging of balance due but not impaired: 

5. 
18,754, 137 31,769,313 

- - - Rupees - - - 
18,754,137 
63,127,012 18,754,137 

150, 111,836) ------- 

Opening balance as at 1 July 
Addition during the year 
Transfer to operating fixed assets 
Closing balance as at 30 June 

TRADE DEBTS - unsecured 

·- 
2023 2024 Capital work-in-progress 4.4 

2023 264,504,726 7,937,099 256,567,627 256,567,627 

2024 894.720 178,944 715,776 715,776 ===================================== 

Mr Rizwanullah 
(Employee) 

• Company pciicy 715,776 715.776 178.944 894,720 

Assets having net book value 
meeding Rs.500,000 each 
Vehicles 
Suzuki Alto 

··················Rupees·················· 
proceeds depreciation value 

Sold to: Mode of 
disposal Gain 

Sale Net 
book 

Accumu­ 
lated Cost Particulars of assets • 

28,979,915 23,926,247 
4.3 Disposal of Operating Fixed Assets 

132, 194 472,836 Administrative expenses 

4.1.1 The Company has purchased vehicles and computer from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party) of 
Rs.2 38 million (2023: Rs. 5.34 million). Atlas Power Limited (a related party) of Rs.Nil (2023· Rs 
3.92 million) and Atlas Solar Limited of Rs. 0.092 million 

4.1.2 This represents assets installed at Atlas Honda Limited {AHL), a related party. for the purpose of 
generation of solar based energy for the duration of solar energy agreement. 

4.1.3 The cost of plant and equipment includes provision fur 1=4u ipmenl r estoration amounting to Rs. 
3.119 million {2023: Rs. 5.588 million). 

4.1.4 There are fully depreciated assets having cost of Rs.119, 500 that are still in use as at year end. 
4.2 Depreciation for the year has been 2024 2023 

apportioned as under: - - - Rupees - - - 
Cost of sales 23,453,411 28, 84 7,721 
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10.1 The Company has arranged long term finance facility amounting Rs.270 million from Habib Bank 
Limited under SBP Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy The bank against the said facility 
disbursed P,s.203 miliion in three tranches of different amounts The ioan Is repayable in 40 equal 
quarterly installments. These finances carry mark-up at the SBP rate plus 1 % and are secured 
against first charge over all present and future current and non-current assets of the Company 
with the margin of 10% and 20% respectively. 

Less: current portion grouped under 
current liabilities 

44,692,000 52,144,000 

79,342,501 93,157,000 

120,000,000 135,000,000 

244,034,501 280,301,000 

37,554,500 38,517,000 

206,480,001 241,784,000 

Habib Bank Limited 

- Long term finance facility - phase 1 10.1 

- Long term finance facility - phase 2 10.1 

- Long term finance facility - phase 3 10.2 

,- - - - Rupees - - - Note 
2023 2024 LONG TERM FINANCING - Secured 10. 

9.1.1 The fair value of these investments has been determined using their respective net assets value, 
published by Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) on its website at the reporting date. 

9.2 This represents an investment in term deposits with Habib Bank limited (a commercial bank) 
having maturity of 1 month and carrying markup ranging from 16.99% to 19.28% (2023: 18.66%) 
oer annum. 

45,076,729 51,743,255 

45,071,833 51,737,430 Atlas Money Market Funds 101,328.857 88,635.656 

- - - Rupees - - - 
5,825 4,896 

• • • - Units - - - • - 
11.053 9.336 Atlas income funds 

2023 2024 2023 2024 
Related parties: 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED (12) NOTES TO THE. FJNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

7. LOANS AND ADVANCES - unsecured 2024 2023 
considered good Note - - - Rupees - - - 

Advance tax 9,192,067 17,488,018 
Loans and advances to employees 849,355 1,072,456 

10,041,422 18,560,474 

8. OTHER RECEIVABLES - considered good 
Safes tax receivable 32,882,355 46,513,764 
Profit receivable 346,926 85,887 
Security deposits 1,725,300 

33,229,281 48,324,951 

9. SHORT TERM INVESTMENT 
Investment in mutual funds 9.1 51,743,255 45,076.729 
Investment in term deposit receipts 9.2 39,000,000 25,000,000 

• 90,743,255 70,076,729 

9.1 This represents investment in mutual funds managed by Atlas Asset Management Limited {a - related Party), the breakup of the investment is as follows: 



354,840.501 234,301,240 
203.095.190 
151 745,311 140,598,430 

93,702,810 

14.1 Timing of revenue recognition 
Good transferred to customer over time 
Good transferred to customer at a point in time 

354,840,501 234,301,240 

15, 147.839 16,471,169 

17,370,506 
2,222,667 

18,637,941 
2,166 772 

Revenue from engineering and consultancy services 
Less: sale tax 

187,947,351 77,231,641 
21,825,354 12,469.410 

140,598,430 151.745,311 
89,701,051 209,772,705 Revenue from sale of solar related equipment 

Less: sale tax 

166,950,317 178.320,838 
26,351.887 26,575,527 

Energy Revenue 
Less: sale tax 

- - - Rupees - - - 
2023 2024 

13. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

13.1 Contingencies 
There are no contingencies to be reported as at June 30, 2024 (June 30, 2023: Nil). 
Commitments 

13.2 Guarantees aggregating Rs.500,000 (2023:Rs.500,000) have been issued to Alternative Energy 
Development Board (AEDB} for upgradation of vendor category of the Company through a bank. 

14. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMER - net 

3,1191513 5,588,904 
26,402 43,047 

8,546,336 6,623.313 
17,642,686 12,194,211 
2,459,642 1,971,617 

458,458 458,458 
1,116,729 1,824.950 

39,098,627 48,130,165 

- - - Ru pees - • - 
5,728,861 19.425,665 Trade creditors 

Provision for equipment restoration 
Income tax deducted at source 
Accrued liabilities 
Provision for workers profit participation fund 
Provision for workers welfare fund 
Retention money payable 
Others 

•- 
2023 2024 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 12. 

10.2 The Company, during the year end June 30. 2022, has arranged long term finance facility 
amounting Rs.272.5 million under SBP Green Financing Facility repayable in 40 equal quarterly 
instalments. This facility has obtained by the Company for the purpose of financing the capital 
expenditure. This facility is secured by current and non-current assets of the Company with the 
margin of 20%. The rate of mark-up is 4%. The mark-up will be payable on each quarter along 
with the payment of principal. This facility also includes certain financial covenants. breaches in 
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call these bank facilities 

11. SECURITY DEPOSIT 

This represent amount received from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party) equivalent to three 
months energy invoices. 
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ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED (14) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

15. COST OF SALES 2024 2023 
Note - - - Rupees - - - 

Cost of solar related equipment 82,525,077 156,206.687 

Depreciation 4.2 23,453,411 28.847,721 

NEPRA generation license fees 293,360 226,704 

Operation and maintenance cost 3,807,794 2,493,125 

Insurance of plant and equipment 3,334,398 4,617,721 

113,414,040 192,391.958 
16. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

Legal and professional charges 846,140 829,056 

Auditor's remuneration 16.1 368,345 361,504 ·- Depreciation 4.2 472,836 132,194 

Donations 16.2 1,122,103 2,307,741 

Membership and annual subscription fee 180,500 1,065,882 

Others 1,363,252 1,068,285 

4,353,176 5,764,662 

16.1 Auditors' remuneration 
Annual audit fee - current year 330,000 330,050 

- out of pocket 30,000 
- sales tax 16,500 
- prior year (8, 155) 31,454 

368,345 361,504 
~ ·- .. ·-----·-----···- 

16.2 This includes an amount of Rs.1.094 million (2023: Rs.1 million) paid to Atlas Foundation (a 
related party). ·- 17. FINANCE COST 2024 2023 

Note - - - Rupees - - - 
Markup on long term finance 10,728,341 41,832,634 
Bank charges 41,258 35,542 

10,769,599 41,868,176 

18. OTHER INCOME 
Profit on term deposit receipts 4,851,673 7,646,899 
Gain on mutual funds 9,286,843 
Unrealized gain on mutual funds 1,138,347 

14,138,516 8,785,246 

19. OTHER EXPENSES 
Workers profit participation fund 5,448,475 12,194,211 
Workers welfare fund 2,244,205 1.971,617 

··-~~~~ 
7,692,680 14.165,828 

20. TAXATION 
Current tax on profit for the year 20.1 4,317,107 14.255,362 
Adjustment in respect ct prior year (3,797,117} 451,047 

519,990 14,706.409 



The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

- market risk 

- credit risk; and 

- liquidity risk. 

The Company's Board of Directors (the Board) has overall responsibility for the establishment and 
oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for 
developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. 

The Company's overall nsk management programmed focuses on the unpredictability of financial 
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance 
Risk management rs carried out by a treasury department under poltcies approved by the Soard 
The treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks. The Board provides 
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas 
such as currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk. use of derivative and non-derivative financial 
instruments and investment of excess liquidity. 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED (15) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

20.1 No deferred tax assets or liability has been recognised as the revenue generated by Company rs 
exempt from tax as explained in note 3.14 The above tax amount includes provision for taxation 
of Rs.2,234.087 (2023: Rs.14,049,032) on revenue from sale of solar relate equipment and from 
engineering and consu'tmq services 

21. CASH GENERA TED FROM 2024 2023 
OPERATIONS Note - - - Rupees - - - 

Profit before taxation 112,210,261 109,435.123 
Adjustments for non-cash and other items: 
Depreciation 23,926,247 28,979,915 
Finance cost 10,728,341 41,832,634 
Provision for workers profit participation fund 5,448,475 12,194,211 
Provision for workers welfare fund 2,244,205 1,971,617 

Working capital changes 21.1 (22,506,299) (218,944,519} 

132,051,230 (24,531,019) 

• 21.1 Working capital changes 
(Increase) I decrease in current assets: - 

- inventory 6,621,481 15,403,388 
- trade debts (15,351,758) (10,955,961) 
- advances 8,519,052 (16,105,914) 
- short term investment (20,666,526) (65,231,862) 
- other receivables 15,095,670 15,333,694 

(5,782,081) (61,556,655) 
Increase I {decrease) in current liabilities: 
- trade and other payables (16,724,218) 22,033,587 
- project payable (110,006,649) 

- contract liability (69,414,802) 
(16,724,218} (157,387,864) 

(22,506,299) (218,944,519) -- 22. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 



33,229,281 48 324.951 
90,743,255 70.076 729 

5,887,255 2 782 986 ------- 
162,876,032 138 849 149 

- - - Ru pees - - - 
33,016,241 17.654483 Trade dabts 

Other receivables 
Short term investments 
Cash and bank balances 

2023 2024 

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar 
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet 
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other 
conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Company's 
performance to developments affecting a particular industry. 

Credit risk primarily arises from trade debts, advances, other receivables, short term investments 
and balances with banks. To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts, 
management performs credit reviews taking into account the customer's financial position. past 
experience and other relevant factors. Where considered necessary, advance payments are 
obtained from certain parties. The management has set a maximum credit period of t 5 days to 
reduce the credit risk. Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks with 
reasonably high credit ratings. 
Exposure to credit risk 
The maximum exposure tu credit risk as at June 30, 2024 along with comparative is tabulated 
below: 

·- 

• - 

(a) Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the tair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wi!I 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly 
where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies. The 
Company is not exposed to currency risk as a!I financial instruments are in local currency. 

(b) Price risk 

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency 
risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instruments 
or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The 
Company is not exposed to price risk with respect to its investments in mutual funds as at June 
30, 2024 . 

(c) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company manages these mismatches 
through risk management strategies where significant changes in gap position can be adjusted. 
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on long term finances and its investment in term 
deposit receipts. 

Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk 

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter party fails to discharge its obligation and 
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by 
monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterpartles and continually 
assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties. 

22.2 

Market risk is :he risk that the fair va!ue or future cash flows of a financial instrument wW fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks currency risk. 
interest rate risk ar.o price risk 

22.1 Market risk 
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359.325.556 4C1_337315 97 063 677 208 048,884 96,224,754 

25 wC· JOO As ·oo .... c .U •. UUv 

') ~"'"' ·,u~ - .. .,, ... .,, ._ ... 2 ~95 391 

68,224.754 

- - - - - - - - - - - Rupees - - - · - - - - - - - 
322,311.759 46,038.12: 208,~8.884 
48,130.165 48,130.165 

280.301. 000 

48, 130.165 

Less than 1 Between 1 to 5 More than 5 
year years years Total 

Carrying 
amount 

Contractual cash flows 
2023 

lorg ierm financing 
Trade and other payables 

Particulars 

2024 
Contractual cash flows 

Carrying Less than 1 Between 1 to More than 5 
amount Total 5years year years 

· · · · ···"···Rupees · · · · · · · · · · · 
244,034,501 278,513,577 46,791,799 200,658,627 31,063,151 
39,098,627 39,098,627 39,098,627 

2,529,029 2,529,029 2,529,029 
281000,000 28,000,000 28,000!000 

3131662,157 348,141,233 88.419,455 200,658,627 59,063,151 ·- 

Long term financing 
Trade and other payables 

Accrued mark-up 
Security deposit 

Particulars 

agency 
VIS 
VIS 

long term 
AAA 
AAA 

short term 
A1+ 
A1+ 

Rating 

,._ 

Name of Bank 
National Bank of Pakistan 
Habib Bank Limited 

22.3 Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they 
fall due. The Company's approach is to ensure. as far as possible, to always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining 
sufficient cash and marketable securities and ensuring the availability of adequate credit facilities. 
The Company's treasury department aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping 
committed credit lines available 
Financial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below: 

The credit quality of loans and other receivables can be assessed with reference to their historical 
performance with no or negHg1bie defaults in recent history and no losses incurred. Accordingly. 
management does not expect any counter party to fail in meeting their obligations. 
The credit quality of the Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to the e)(tprr:,:,1 
credit ratings as follows· 
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320,809.556 

241,784,000 

28 000 QOC• 
2,895,391 

48.130, 165 

276, 1 07 ,657 

206,480,001 
7.8.000.000 

2,529,029 
39,098,627 

Financial liabilities 
as per statement of 

financial position 
Long term financing 

Security deposit 
Accrued mark-up 
Trade and other payables 
Project payable 

2024 2023 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Amortised cost 

162,876,032 138,849, 149 
======= 

17,664.483 
48,324,951 
70,076,729 

2,782,986 

33,016,241 
33,229,281 
90,743,255 

5,887,255 

- • - Rupees • - • 
2023 

Amortised cost 

2024 Financial assets 
as per statement of 

financial position 
Trade debts 
Other receivables 
Short term investments 
Cash and bank balances 

-- 

changes in market and trading activity (e.g. significant increases I decreases in activity) 

changes in inputs used in valuation techniques (e.g. inputs becoming I ceasing to be 
observable in the market) 

There were no transfers between level 1 , 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the year. 
22.5 Financial instruments by category 

Level 3: ·- 
Level 1: 
Level 2: 

Quoted prices (unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from 
prices). 
Inputs for the asset or ti~ility that are not based on observable market data (that 
is, unobservable inputs). 

As at June 30, 2024, all financial assets and financial liabilities reflected in the financial 
statements approximate to their fair values. 
The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the 
reporting period during which the transfer has occurred. 
The Company's policy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy have 
occurred includes monitoring of the following factors: 

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the 
basis of mark-up I interest rates effective at the respective year-ends. The rates of mark-up / 
interest have been disclosed in the respective notes to these financial statements. 

22.4 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date 
under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly 
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. 
The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the 
following levels: 
Valuation techniques used to determine fair values 
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119 500 000 119.500.000 

(274 091,000) i274,091.000) 

(45,575,943) (45.575.943) 
280,301,000 (38,937 .243) 241,363,757 

41,832,634 41,832,634 

280.301 ,000 2,895,391 283, 196,391 Balance as at June 30. 2:J23 

......... Rupees . 
434 892 ,000 6,638,700 441.530. 700 Balance as at July 01. 2022 

Finances obtained 

Fmances repa.o 

Finance cost paid 
Tota! changes trcrn financing cash flows 

Mari<-up i interest expense 

mark-up 
Total 

Liabilities 
Accrued 
interest J 

Long term 
finances 

246,563,529 2,529,029 244,034,500 Balance as at June 30, 2024 

(36,266,500) 
(11,094,703) 
235,835,188 

10,728,341 

(11,094,703) 
(8,199,312) 
10,728,341 

244,034,500 

(36,266,500) 

......... Rupees ..•...... 
280,301,000 2,895,391 283, 196,391 Balance as at July 01, 2023 

Finances obtained 
Finances repaid 
Finance cost paid 

Total changes from financing cash flows 
Mark-up I interest expense 

e- 
mark-up 

Total 

Liabilities 
Accrued 
interest/ Long term 

finances 

Gearing ratio 39% 51 % 
For the purpose of calculating the gearing ratio, the amount of total borrowings has been 
determined by including the effect of short term borrowings under mark-up arrangements (if any). 

22.7 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING 
FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 

2024 2023 
Rupees 

Total borrowings 244,034,501 280,301,000 ·- Less: cash and bank balances 5,887,255 2,782,986 
Net debt 238,147,246 277,518,014 
Total equity 376,601 ,463 267,631,959 

Total capital 614,748,709 545, 149,973 

22.6 Capital risk management 

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a 
going concern so that it C3n continue to provide returns for shareholders ber,£;fit~ for ,:ithi:-1 
stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its 
business. 
l he Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes 
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions In order to maintain or adjust the 
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders and I or 
issuer new shares. 
Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio 
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total 
borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the 
statement of financial position plus net debt 
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105,907,090 

92,180 
5,846,484 4,617,721 

23,337,874 20.506.726 
2024 2023 
KWH KWH 

B,712 8. 123 

62,439,847 58,975,873 

9,345,997 8757,176 

9,345,997 8.779818 

89,327,694 

214,803 

1,800,i43 1,094,351 

2,649,611 

2,375,511 

3,922,536 

426,528 

15~.745,322 

256,000,000 

5,344,561 

551,124 

144,249,763 

- - - Rupees - - - 

2023 2024 

Actuai net electricity billed 

Standard generation from installed capacity 

Installed capacity 

Installed capacity-per hour {MVV) 

Key management perosnal Salary & benefits 
24. PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTrON 

Insurance premium paid 

Revenue earned 

Donation paid 

Advance received 

Revenue earned 

Purchase of assets 

Revenue earned 

Revenue earned 

Atlas Insurance Limited 

Atlas Solar Limited 

Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited 

Atlas Battery Limited 

Atlas Autos (Private) Limited 

Atlas Foundation 
·- 

23. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
Related parties comprise of the Parent company, Associated companies, directors and key 
management personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions 
with various related parties. Detail of related parties (with whom the Company has transacted) 
cJluriy with relationship and transactions with relaret:J psrues. r..>lt1tH lhan tt,u:;e which have been 
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows: 

23.1 Name of the related party 
Holding Company 

Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited (100% shareholding) 
Associated Companies {due to common directorship) 
Atlas Power Limited 
Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited 
Atlas Solar Limited (formerly Zhenfa Pakistan New Energy Company Limited) 
Atlas Honda Limited 
Atlas Engineering (Private) Limited 
Atlas Autos (Private) Limited 
Atlas Insurance Limited 
Atlas Battery Limited 
Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited 
Atlas Foundation 

23.2 Significant transactions with related parties are as follows: 

Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited Services received 

Atlas Honda Limited Revenue earned 

Sales of assets 

Purchase of assets 

Purchase of assets 

Nature and Description of 
Related Party Transaction 
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.- Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer 

'Mt\_ _ _-- 
~irector 

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE 

These condensed interim financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and 
authorized for issue on 2 8 AUS 202i\ 

28. 

Total number of employees obtaining remuneration as at June 30, 2024 is 15 (2023- 6) and 
average number of employees tor lftt:! Yt:!or ended June 30, 2024 is 8 (2023: ti). 

27. CORRESPONDING FIGURES 

Corresponding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflect more appropriate 
presentation of events and transactions for the purpose of comparison in accordance with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. However, no significant 
reclassification has been made in these financial statements. 

Remuneration paid to executives of the Company - - - Rupees 
is as follows: 

Managerial remuneration 19,326,396 15.196,356 
Performance bonus 7,082,558 6,500924 
Reimbursements 2,722,831 1,871,924 
Retirement benefits 1,445,040 909,744 

30,576,825 24,478,948 

Number of person 3 2 
26. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 

25. RENUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE 
No remuneration has been paid to chief executive or to any of the director of the Company. 

2024 2023 
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nothing to report in this regard. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
matenally misstated. If, based on the worK we have performed. we conclude that there is a 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information presented along with the financial 
statements and the auditors' report thereon. With respect to the Company the other information 
comprises only the Director's Report on the operations of the Company. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. • 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows together with the notes 
forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the 
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's 
affairs as at June 30, 2023 and of the profit, other comprehensive income, the changes in equity 
and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

I 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Atlas Energy Limited (the Company), 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023, the statement of profit or 
toss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have 
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, 
were necessary for the purposes of the audit. 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

Independent Auditor's Report To The Members Of 
Atlas Energy Limited 

• t 
' 



Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion Our 
conclusions ar~ based on the audit evidence obtained uplu U ,~ dctl~ of cur auditor s' report. 
However. future events or conditions rnay cau,;0 the Compar,y l0 ,.,~<:1.:,~ lt.; i..;01,ti, iL:~ ,::!:; d 
going concern. 

• 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
Ine risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resuiting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. • 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

I 

, Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

. Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the fmancial statements 
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of Companies Act. 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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~w-\ii.ri~~ ~ct~it.r. 
SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUOHRl & CO., 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
LAHORE; August 23, 2023 
UOIN: AR202310104NXURzGVW3 

The financial statements for the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 were audited by 
another firm of chartered accountants who expressed unmodified opinion on those financial 
statements on September 29, 2022. 

The Engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is 
Osman Hameed Chaudhri. • 

Other Matter 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were 
for the purpose of the Company's business; and 

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 
1980). 

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes In equity and the statement of cash flows together with 
the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act. 2017 (XIX of 
2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

• 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017); 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, sfructure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
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847,166,211 

672,702,742 

r 414,588,000 
I 28,000,000 I 

442,588,000 

i 6,638,700 I i 
I 20,304,000 
I 69,414,802 i 

I 
110,006,649 

11,930,750 I 11,819,841 
230, 114, 742 I 

174,463,469 

74,000,030 
100,463,439 

500,000.000 

847, 166,211 

118, 116,878 

6,708,522 
25, 183,604 

2,454,560 
63,658,645 

4,844,867 
15,266,680 

729,049. 333 

Chief Financial Officer Chier Executive Officer 
. ~ ... ,. · .... , 

' Chairman i Oi"ecL::- 

, .. 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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641,706,864 
14 

374,074,905 

13 

10 
12 

241, 784, 000 
28,000,000 

269,784,000 

2,895,391 I 
38,517,000 

- 
- 

48,130,165 

l 
14,748,349 

104,290,905 

10 
11 

267,631,959 

74,000,030 
193 ,631,929 

500,000,000 

641,706,864 
167, 189,839 

11 ,664,483 I 
9,780,216 

18,560,474 
48,324,951 
70,076,729 

2,782,986 

5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

474,517,025 4 

Total liabilities 
Contingencies and commitments 

Total equity and liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Accrued mark-up 
Current portion of long term financing 
Contract liability 
Project payable 
Trade and other payables 
Provision for taxation 

• 

Liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 
Long term financing 
Security deposit 

Total assets 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Share capital and reserves 
50,000,000 (2022: 50,000,000) ordinary 

shares of Rs. 10/- each 
7 ,400,003 (2022: 7 ,400 ,003) ordinary 

shares of Rs. 10/- each 
Unappropriated profits 

• 

Current assets 
Trade debts 
Inventory 
Loans and advances 
Other receivables 
Short term investments 
Cash and bank balances 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Plant and equipment 

2023 2022 
Note - - - - - - Rupees .. - - - - - 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023 
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Chief Financial Officer 

67,389,817 93,168,490 

21 

17 

18 
19 

354,840,501 201,039,748 

( 192,391,958) (115,361,365) 
---~------- -- 

162,448,543 85,678,383 

(5,764,662) (2,291,030) 

(41,868,176) (7,437,175) 

8,785,246 4, 124,077 

(14, 165,828) 

109,435,123 80,074,255 

(16,266,633) (12,684,438) 

93,168,490 67,389,817 

15 
16 

• 
\JM,~--- 

c hairm~'YJ i reg_O$'.- --­ 

- ---- 

Gross profit 

Administrative expenses 

Finance cost 

Other income 

Other expenses 

Profit before taxation 
Taxation 

Profit after taxation 

Other comprehensive income 

• 

Revenue from contracts with customer - net 

Cost of sales 

Total comprehensive income 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

\,j~7 
Chief Executive Officer 

Note 2023 2022 
. - - . - - Rupees - - - - - - 

ATLAS ENERGY !.!M!TE~ 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS & 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FORTHE Y~AR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 



Chief Financial Officer 

1J+ .. .: 
v\t~- ,_/) 

15,266,680 2,782,986 

11,877,085 

3,389,595 

277,445,010 (200, 166,943) 

{12,483,694) 

15,266,680 

119,500,000 252, 196,000 

(27 4,091,000) 

(45,575,943) (2,750,990) 

- 28,000,000 

(24,531,019) 229,845, 161 

(13,338,125) (873,005) 

(37,869, 144) 228,972,156 

(31,015,234) (494,540,081) 

256,567,627 - 

225,552,393 (494,540,081) 

\ i 

·~ ~ f'\ .Jl··~ I '--- 
Chairman I Direc~-- 

\,j~-? 
Chief Executive Officer 

• 
Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Finance cost paid 

Security deposit 
Net cash (used in) I generated from financing activities 

Net (decrease) I increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year 

Fixed capital expenditure 

Sale proceeds of operating fixed assets 

• Net cash generated from I (used in) investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Long term finances - obtained 

- repaid 

22 Cash (used in) I generated from operations 

Taxes paid 

Net cash (used in) I generated from operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Note - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 

2022 2023 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

ATLAS ENERGY UiviiicD 
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Chief Financial Officer 

The annexed notes form an integral pan of \" ftnanciat statements 

-=====::;.....-. \ \. \. '--\ __.,_ 7 
Chief Executive Officer 

74,000,030 ======== 
74,000,030 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 

Balance as at July 01, 2022 
Total comprehensive income for the year: 
Profit after taxation 

Other Comprehensive income 

67,389,817 67,389,~17 I 
67,389,817 67,389,817 

100,463,439 174,463,469 

100,463,439 174,463,46~ 

93,168,490 93, 168,~90 l 
93,168,490 93,168,490 

193,631,929 267,631,959 74,000,030 ======= Balance as at June 30, 2023 

- - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees - • • • - • • • - • - - 
7 4,000,030 33,073,622 107,073,652 Balance as at July 01, 2021 

Total comprehensive income for the year: 
Profit after taxation 

Other Comprehensive income 

Total 
Unappropriated 

profit 
Share 
capital 

!, 

.~_TLAS ENERGY UM!TED 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 



obligations - i.e. the lower of the costs of fulfilling the contract and the costs of termlnatinq it - 
outweigh the economic benefits. The amendments clarify that the 'costs of fulfilling a contract' 
comprise both the increrneptal costs - e.g. direct labor and materials; and an allocation of other 
direct costs - e.9. ·an, ailg_cation ofJh~-~g§Pr~~iation c:h~r_ge for. an item Rf pr9pe.r1Y, plant a,:id 

.equipment u_sed/> lfil!ing~Me contract. <; -: . · , s ~:-. . • 

• - - " --~-= - '"e~J~ - : _' .. ~::'.'.;- ,_-,}'.,cc ,;:' • ~ :;,~~?{:c ".' , . -· . i'~ ~a. 
- ... ;~.~;;; .. ;;~~·-- ·-· ""' ~~ -· - 

2.1 Statement of compliance 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in 
Pakistan comprise of: 

International Financial Reporting Standards (lFRS Standards) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); 
Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (!FAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Act; and 
Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, differ with the 
requirements of IAS 34, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 
have been followed. 

2.2 Basis of measurement 
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency 
These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional 
and presentation currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been 
rounded to the nearest rupees unless otherwise specified. 

2.4 INITIAL APPLICATION OF STANDARDS. AMEMDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS TO 
EXISTING STANDARDS 

2.4.1 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year and 
have been adopted by the Company 
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent 
with those of the previous financial year, except for change resulted due to adoption of 
amendments to accounting standards. The below mentioned amendments to approved 
accounting standards are effective tor tne financial year beginning on July 01, 2022 and have 
been adopted by the Company: 

a) IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

2. 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
NOT~S TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR:THE YEAR ENDEDJUNE'.30, 2023 
1. LEGAL STATUS ANO OPERATIONS 

Atlas Energy Limited hereafter referred as "the Company" was incorporated as an unquoted - 
public limited company in Pakistan on May 18, 2016, under the repealed Companies Ordinance. 
1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). 
The purpose of Atlas Energy Limited is to provide cost effective soiar solutions for industrial and 
commercial consumers. 
Shirazi fnvestments (Private) Limited - holding company held 100% (2022:100%) ordinary shares 
of the Company. 

1.1 Geographical location and address of major business units including mills I plant of the Company 
are as under: 
Lahore Purpose 
64/XX, Khayaban -e- Iqbal, DHA Phase Ill. Registered office 
Karachi 
2nd Floor, Federation House, Shahra-e-Fardousi, 

Main Clifton. Branch office 
BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES • 
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There are number of ether standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved 
accounting standards that are not yet effective and are also not relevant to the Company and 
therefore hay.e not been presented here. ' ' 

~ i 
' ·-~ t". 

Amendments to lAS 1, 'Presentation of Financial Statements' includes requiring companies to 
disclose their material accounting policies rather than their siqruficant accounting policies, 
clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions 
are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed and also clarifying that not all 
accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or conditions are themselves 
material to a Company's financial statements. 

The Company has assessed that the impact cf above amendments is net expected to be 
siqnificant 

Effective: January 01, 2023 c) IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in 
accounting policies and the correction of errors The amendments introduce a new definition for 
accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that 
are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify the relationship between 
accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that a Company develops an 
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy. The amendments 
will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies 
occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company 
applies the amendments. 

• 
Effective: January 01, 2023 

The amendments clarify how to classify a debt and other liabilities as current or non-current. The 
IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 to specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current 
or non-current. The amendments clarify the following: 

what is meant by a right to defer settlement; 

that a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period; 

that classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right; 
and 

only covenants with which an entity is required to comply on or before the reporting date 
affect the classification of a liability as current or non-current. In addition, an entity has to 
disclose information in the notes that enables users of financial statements to understand 
the risk that non-current liabilities with covenants could become repayable within twelve 
months. 

b) IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors 

Effective: January 01, 2024 a) IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 

b} !AS 16 Property, Plc111L and Equipment 

Amendment to IAS 16 (regarding proceeds before an asset's intended use) prohfbit a company 
from deductm~ from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from seliing 
items produced while the Company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead a 
Company will recognise such saies proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The amendments 
apply retrospectively, but only to items of PPE made available for use on or after the beginning of 
the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the Company first applies the 
amendments. 

ThF! adoption of the ~hove amendments to accountinq standards ciirl not have any material effect 
on tl,e financial statement of the Company. 

2.4.2 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are 
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (2) ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 



Tt-."= carrying 3~Cutit~ o' assets a:e re\!l8\".!ed at e2,:b st:;t"=r"-i~nt cf fra~r:!a! pos'tlcn ~3:t~ ~,: 
determine whether there is any indication cf impairment of any asset or a group of assets. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of that asset is estimated and impairment losses 
are recognized in the profit ~nd loss account · 
;. > .:)' 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set 
out below. These polices have been consistently applied to all the years presented. 

3.1 Plant and equipment 
Owned assets 
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
Depreciation 
Depreciation on all items of plant and equipment except for vehicles is charged to statement of 
profit or loss applying the straight line method. Vehicles are depreciated using the reducing 
balance method so as to write off historical cost of an asset over its estimated useful life. Rates 
of depreciation is stated in note 4. 1. 
Depreciation on addition in plant and equipment is charged from the date of addition while no 
depreciation is charged in the date of disposal. The Company reviews the useful life and residual 
value of plant and equipment on a regular basis. Any change in estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of plant and equipment with a corresponding 
effect on depreciation charge. 
Disposal 
Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of fixed assets :=ire dP.termined as the differP.nce 
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of assets and are included in the statement 
of profit or toss. 
Capital work-in-progress 
Capita: work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated up to the statement of financial position 
date less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is recognized as an 
operating fixed asset when it is made available for intended use. 
Impairment 

3. 

2.5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards 
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application 
of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates and 
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors. 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. 
The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition. seldom equal the related actual results. Judgments, estimates and 
assumptions made by the management that may have a significant risk of material adjustment to 
the financial statements in the subsequent year are as follows; 

(a) Plant and equipment 
The Company reviews appropriateness of the rates of depreciation, useful lives and residual 
values for calculation of depreciation on an on-going basis. Further, where applicable, an 
estimate of recoverable amount of asset is made if indicators of impairment are identified. 

(b) Inventory 
The Company estimates the net realizable value cf equipment inventory to assess any diminution 
in the carrying value. Net realizable value is determined with reference to estimated selling price 
less estimated expenditure to make sale. Provision is made in the financial statements for 
obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade based on management estimate. 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

• 
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3.2 Right-of-use assets and lease liability 

As per IFRS 16, the Company has to recognize right to use assets and a corresponding lease 
liability. The lease liability will be measured at the present value of the consideration (lease 
payments) to be made ever the lease term. 1 he lease payments will be disccunt8li using t1-1.=:: 
interest rate implicit in the lease, unless it is not readily determinable, in which case the Company 
may use the mcremental rate of borrowinq. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the 
present value of lease liability and adjusted for lease prepayments/accruals and borrowing costs. 

The right-of-use assets recognized subsequent to the adoption are measured based on the initial 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets are 
depreciated over the lease term using a straight line basis as it closely reflects the expected 
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The right-of-use assets are reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of lease liability. 

3.3 Financial assets 

Initial measurement 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following three measurement categories: 

fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); 

fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and 

measured at amortized cost. 

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition. 

Subsequent Measurement 

Equity Instruments at FVTOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as 
income in the statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in 
statement of other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of 
profit or loss. 

Debt Instruments at FVTOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest I mark-up income 
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are 
recognized in statement of other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and 
losses accumulated in statement of other comprehensive income are reclassified to the 
statement of profit or loss. 

Debt Instruments at FVTPL 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any 
interest I mark-up or dividend income. are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest I mark-up income, 
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss. 

Derecognition 

Financial assets are dereccgnized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets 
have expired er have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks 
and rewards of ownership. ., 

• 
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Other receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method, less expected credit losses as explained in note 3.3. The 
trade debts mainly comprise of a balances with related parties which are considered as good and 
having no impact of expected credit loss. 

3.5 Equipment inventory 

Equipment inventory is valued principally at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable 
value except for the item in transit stated at invoice value plus other charges thereon till the 
reporting date, while item considered obsolete are carried at nil value. 

• Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale. Provision is made in the financial 
statements for obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade based on management estimate. 

3.6 Impairment 

(a) Financial assets 

The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL") for all debt 
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the 
asset's original effective interest rate. 

ECLs are recognized in two 9tages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that 
result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For 
those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, a loss allowance Is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the 
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). 

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 60 days past 
due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default 
when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the 
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held 
by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovering the contractual cash flows. 

For trade debts, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on lifetime 
expected credit losses. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the 
Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the 
debtors and the economic environment. The expected credit losses are recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss. 

For bank balances, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on 
l!fetme expected credit lesses. The Company reviews internal anc external i:--'/:r~atc'1 available 
for each bank balance to assess expected credit loss and the likelihood to receive the 
outstanding contractual amount The expected credit losses are recognized in the statement cf 
profit er loss. 

Trade debts are measured at the transaction price measured under lFRS 15. A less allowance is 
recognized for trade debts based on lifetime expected credit losses at each reporting date based 
en Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for Icrwarc-tcokinq factors specific to 
the debtors and the economic environment. 

3.4 Trade debts and other receivables and related impairment 

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized when an unconditicnal right to amcunt of 
consideration is established 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (5) ATLAS EN£RGY LIMITED 



3.7 Financial liabilities 
Initial measurement 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatrves designated as hedg.11:g 
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings 
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
The Company's financial liabilities include long term loans, creditors, accrued and other liabilities. 
Subsequent Measurement 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. 
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance 
costs in the statement of comprehensive income. 
This category applies to long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-up 
arrangements, creditors, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, accrued and other 
liabilities. 
Derecognition 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange 
or modification is treated as a derecognition cf the original liability and the recognition of a new 
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss. 

3.8 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and r:::ish equivalents are defined as cash in hand. cash at banks and short-term highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to 
msrqmncant risk ot changes in value. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash 
equivalents comprise bank balances including short-term deposits net of bank overdraft, if any. 

3.9 Contract asset 
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to 
the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before 
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized 
for the earned consideration that is conditional. 

3.10 Contract liabllltles 
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer tor which the 
Corncarw has received consideration (or an amount of consideration f:e: due) from the custu,"n1 If 
a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, 
a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the 
cc ntract, 

(b) Non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or reversal of provisions fer 
impairment losses If ar.y indications exist, the recoverable amounts of such assets are estimated 
and impairment losses or reversals of impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss RP.vP.rn~l of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset. 
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3.11 Borrowings 
Borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Financial charges are accounted for on 
accrual basis and are included in mark up accrued on loans to the extent of amount remaining 
unpaid, if any. 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of cua)ifying 
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period cf time to get ready for their 
intended use, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially 
ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the income statement , in 
the period in which these are incur-fed. 

3.12 Trade and other payables 
Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost, which approximates 
fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received. whether or not 
billed to the Company. 

3.13 Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as 
a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligations can be 
made. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and accordingly 
adjusted to reflect current best estimates. 

3.14 Taxation 
Income tax on profit and loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. 
Current 
Profit and gains derived by the Company from the power generation project are exempt from the 
tax under Clause (132) of Part I bf the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 
The Company is also exempt from the minimum tax on the turnover under Clause 11A (v) of the 
Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 
However, provision for current taxation on profits and gains other than from power generation 
project is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation after taking into account tax 
credits and rebates available, if any, in accordance with the provision of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001. It also includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years. 
Deferred 
As the Company's revenue is exempt from tax, therefore no deferred tax has been recognized in 
these financial statements. 

3.15 Revenue Recognition 
Revenue recognition policy 
The Company is in the business of power generation and sale of energy. Revenue from contract 
with customer is recognized when control of the goods are transferred to the customer at an 
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange 
for those goods or services. Specific revenue recognition details are as follows: 
Sale of energy 
Revenue from the sale of energy is recognized upon the transfer of control of the goods to the 
buyer when performance obligation is satisfied, which refers to the transmission of Net Electrical 
Output (NEO) to customer through solar solution installed at premises cf customer, as agreed in 
the Agreements for sale and purchase of electricity. 
Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 
The Company concluded that revenue from electricity is to be recognized at over time because 
the electricity element represents a premise to transfer a series of distinct gocds that are 
substantially the same and that have the same pattern of transfer to me customer; tneretore the 
electricity represents one performance obligation that is satisfied over time. Further, electricity is 
distinct and the buyer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit provided by the 
Cornpaoy 
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729,049,333 474,517,025 

729,049,333 455,762,888 
18,754,137 

- - - Rupees - - - Note 

4.1 
4.4 

Operating fixed assets 

Capital work in progress 

2022 2023 

Sale of equipment 

Revenue from the sale of equipment is recognized upon the transfer of control of the goods to 
the buyer when performance obligation is satisfied, which refers to the transfer of equipment to 
the customer. 
Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 

The Company concluded that revenue from sale of equipment is to be recognized at a point in 
time when the asset is actually transferred to the customer. The transfer of equipment to the 
customer represents a single performance obligation. Therefore, revenue is recognized when the 
control of the asset is transferred to the customer. 

Provision of engineering and installation services 

Revenue from the provision of engineering and installation services is recognized when the 
equipment is installed at the customer premises and performance obligation is satisfied, which 
refers to the provision of installation services related to equipment sold by the Company. 

Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 

The Company concluded that revenue from provision of engineering and installation services is 
to be recognized at a point in time when the asset is actually installed at the customer premises 
by the company. The provision of engineering and installation services to the customer 
represents a single performance obligation. Therefore, revenue is recognized when the services 
are performed. 

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement 
of financial position if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized 
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 4. 

3.16 

• 
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ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED (9) NOTES TO THE FfNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

4.1 Operating fixed assets 

Plant and Computers Vehicles Total 
equipment 

- - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - - - • - - - 
Cost 

Balance as at July 01, 2021 259,438,289 119,500 259,557,789 

Additions during the year 494,363,415 176,666 494,540,081 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 753,801,704 296,166 754,097,870 

Balance as at July 01, 2022 753,801,704 296,166 754,097,870 

Additions during the year 240,000 12,021 ,097 12,261,097 

Disposals during the year (263,917,526) (587,200) (264,504,726) 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 489,884, 178 536,166 11,433,897 501,854,241 

Depreciation 
Balance as at July 01, 2021 12,871,008 73,027 12,944,035 

Charge for the year 12,025,410 79,092 12, 104,502 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 24,896,418 152, 119 25,048,537 

Balance as at July 01, 2022 24,896,418 152,119 25,048,537 
Charge for the year 26,633, 168 132,194 2,214,553 28,979,915 

On disposals during the year (7,917,526) (19,573) (7,937,099) 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 43,612,060 284,313 2,194,980 46,091,353 

Book value as at 
June 30, 2022 7281905.286 1441047 729!0491333 
Book value as at 
June 30, 2023 446.2721118 251,853 9.238,917 455?621888 
Depreciation rate(%) 4 33 20 



- - - Rupees ~ - - 
17,664,483 6,708,522 0-3 months 

2022 2023 

4.4.1 Preceding years additions to capital work-in-progress includes borrowing costs for phase 03 
project determined using an average capitalization rate of 14.08% amounting to Rs. 4.873 
million. 

5. TRADE DEBTS - unsecured 
5.1 This relates to an amount receivable from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party). The maximum 

aggregate amount outstanding at any time during the year was Rs.17 .664 million(2022: Rs.6 .709 
milliori). 

5.2 Aging of balance due but not impaired: 

18,754,137 

494,363,415 
(494,363,415) 

18,754,137 4.4.1 
Opening balance as at 1 July 
Addition during the year 
Transfer to operating fixed assets 

Closing balance as at 30 June 

- - - Rupees - - - Note 
2022 2023 Capital work-in-progress 4.4 

2022================= 

2023 264,504,726 7,937,099 256,567,627 256,567,627 

Negotiation Atlas Honda Limited (a 
related partv) 

• Company policy Mr. Tsnz] Ur Rahman 
(Employee) 

Assets having net book value 
exceeding Rs.500,000 each 
Vehicles 
Suzuki Cultus 587,200 19,573 567,627 567,627 

Plant and equipment 
Solar Modules 263,917,526 7,917,526 256,000,000 256,000,000 

• - - - - ·: • • .. • • • • • • • Rupees · • • • • • • • · • • · • • • • • • 

proceeds depreciation value • Sold to: Mode of 
disposal Gain Sale Net 

book 
Accumu­ 

lated Cost Particulars of assets 

4.3 Disposal of Operating Fixed Assets 

4.1.1 The Company has purchased vehicles from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party) of Rs.5.34 
million and Atlas Power Limited (a related party) of Rs. 3.92 million ( 2022: Rs. Nil). 

4.1.2 This represents assets installed at Atlas Honda Limited (AHL), a related party, for the purpose of 
generation of solar based energy for the duration of solar energy agreement. 

4.1.3 The cost of plant and equipment includes provision for equipment restoration amounting to Rs. 
5.588 million (2022: Rs. 5.588 million). 

4.1.4 There are fully depreciated assets having cost of Rs.119,500 that are still in use as at year end. 
4.2 Depreciation for the year has been 2023 2022 

apportioned as under: - - - Rupees - - - 
Cost of sales 28,847,721 12,025,410 
Administrative expenses 132,194 79,092 

28,979,915 12, 104,502 
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Less: current portion grouped under 
current liabilities 

Habib Bank Limited 

- Long term finance facility - phase 1 10.1 
- Long term finance facility - phase 2 10.1 

- Long term finance facility - phase 3 10.2 

52,1441000 59,596,000 
93,157,000 102,796,000 

135,000,000 272,500,000 

280,301,000 434,892,000 

38,517,000 20,304,000 

241,784,000 414,588,000 

- - - Rupees - - - Note 

9.1.1 The fair value of these investments has been determined using their respective net assets value, 
published by Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) on its website at the reporting date. 

9.2 This represents an investment in term deposits with Habib Bank Limited (a commercial bank) 
having maturity of 1 year and carrying markup at 18.66% (2021: 6%) per annum. 

10. LONG TERM FINANCING -Secured 2023 2022 

3,844,867 

3,841,303 

45,076,729 

- - - Rupees - - - 
4,896 3,564 

2022 

45,071,833 

- • - - Units - - - - - 
9.336 6.809 

88,635.656 7,568.966 
Atlas income funds 
Atlas Money Market Funds 

2023 2022 2023 

9.1 This represents investment in mutual funds managed by Atlas Asset Management Limited (a 
related Party), the breakup of the investment is as follows: 
Related parties: 

4,844,867 

3,844,867 
1,000,000 

63,658,645 

63,658,645 

2,454,560 

70,076,729 

45,076,729 
25,000,000 

48,324,951 

46,513,764 
85,887 

1,725,300 

18,560,474 

considered good Note 
Advance tax 
Loans and advances to employees 

8. OTHER RECEIVABLES - considered good 
Sales tax receivable 
Profit receivable • Security deposits 

9. SHORT TERM INVESTMENT 
Investment in mutual funds 9.1 
Investment in term deposit receipts 9.2 

6.1 This includes stock held by related parties amounting to Rs. 9.268 million (2022: 17.800 million). 
7. LOANS AND ADVANCES - unsecured 2023 2022 

- - - Rupees - - - 
17,488,018 2,065, 106 

1,072,456 389,454 

25,183,604 9,780,216 

6.1 

Note - - - Rupees - - - 
9,268,098 9,413,455 

512,118 15,770, 149 

/ Equipment inventory 
Work in progress 

2022 
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14.1 Contingencies 
There are no contingencies to be reported as at June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022. 
Commitments 

14.2 Guarantees aggregating Rs.500,000 (2022:Rs.1,000,000) have been issued to Alternative 
Energy Development Board (AEDB) for upgradation of vendor category of the Company through 
a bank. 

11,930,750 

458,458 

1,855,704 

5,588,904 

3,598,924 

428,760 

14. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

48,130,165 

19,425,665 

5,588,904 

43,047 

6,623,313 

12,194,211 

1,971,617 

458,458 

1,824,950 

Trade creditors 

Provision for equipment restoration 

Income tax deducted at source 

Accrued liabilities 

Provision for workers profit participation fund 

Provision for workers welfare fund 

Retention money payable 

Others 

2022 
- - - Rupees - - - 

2023 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 13. 

12.1 The contract liabilities outstanding as at June 30, 2022 have been recognized as revenue during 
the year. 

- - - Rupees - - - 

69.414 802 Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited 

2022 2023 

This represent advance consideration received from customer in ordinary course of business. 
The breakup of the same is as follows: 

This represent amount received from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party) equivalent to three 
months energy invoices. 

CONTRACT LIABILITY 

The Company has arranged long term finance facility amounting Rs.270 million from Habib Bank 
Limited under SBP Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy. The bank against the said facility 
disbursed Rs.203 million in three tranches of different amounts. The loan is repayable in 40 equal 
quarterly installments. These finances carry mark-up at the SBP rate plus 1 % and are secured 
against first charge over all present and future current and non-current assets of the Company 
with the margin of 10% and 20% respectively. 

The Company, during the preceding year, has arranged long term finance facility amounting 
Rs.272.5 million having a total limit of PKR 400 million including loan from SBP under Green 
Financing Facility of Rs.150 million repayable in 40 equal quarterly instalments. This facility has 
obtained by the Company for the purpose of financing the capital expenditure. This facility is 
secured by current and non-current assets of the Company with the margin of 20%. The rate of 
mark-up is 4% for the loan facility of Rs.150 million and KIBOR plus 1 % for the loan facility of 
Rs.122.5 million. The mark-up will be payable on each quarter along with the payment of 
principal. This facility also includes certain financial covenants, breaches in meeting the financial 
covenants would permit the bank to immediately call these bank facilities. 

SECURITY DEPOSIT 
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7,437, 175 41,868,176 

Bank charges 
Markup on long term finance 

17.2 This includes an amount of Rs.1,000,000 (2022: Rs.993, 196) paid to Atlas Foundation (a related 
party). Mr. Saqib Shirazi (Director) is a trustee of Atlas Foundation. 

18. FINANCE COST 2023 2022 
- - - Rupees • - - 

41,832,634 7,407,766 
35,542 29,409 

330,050 

330,050 

361,504 

330,050 
31,454 

17.1 Auditors' remuneration 
Annual audit fee - current year 

- prior year 

2,291,030 5,764,662 

410,750 
330,050 

79,092 
1,120,041 

258,409 
92,688 

115,361,365 

100,230,878 
12,025,410 

88,516 
1,432,466 
1,584,095 

201,039,748 

10,611,675 

12,001,979 
1,390,304 

829,056 
361,504 
132,194 

2,307,741 
1,065,882 
1,068,285 

17.1 
4.2 
17.2 

17. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
Legal and professional charges 
Auditor's remuneration 
Depreciation 
Donations 
Membership and annual subscription fee 
Others 

192 ,391,958 

156,206,687 
28,847,721 

226,704 
2,493,125 
4,617,721 

4.2 
Cost of solar related equipment 
Depreciation 
NEPRA generation license fees 
Operation and maintenance cost 
Insurance of plant and equipment 

16. COST OF SALES 

151,745,311 60,244,138 
203,095,190 140,795,610 

------- 
354,840,501 201,039, 7 48 

15.1 Timing of revenue recognition 
Good transferred to customer over time 
Good transferred to customer at a point in time • 

354,840,501 

15,147,839 

17,370,506 
2,222,667 

Revenue from engineering and consultancy services 
Less: Sale tax 

130, 183,935 

130,819,806 
635.871 

60,244, 138 
10,241,503 

187,947,351 

209,772,705 
21,825,354 

Revenue from sale of solar related equipment 
Less: Sale tax 

151,745,311 

178,320,838 70,485,641 
26,575,527 

Energy Revenue 
Less: Sale tax 

2022 
- - - Rupees - - - Note 

2023 
15. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMER - net 
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15,403,388 70,079,556 
(10,955,961) (460,797) 
(16,105,914) (2,290,796) 
(65,231,862) 9,883,753 
15,333,694 {61,562,029) 

(61,556,655) 15,649,687 

22,033,587 (14,812,500) 
(110,006,649) 110,006,649 
{69,414,802) 19,414,802 

(157,387,864) 114,608,951 

(218,944,519) 130,258,638 

Increase I (decrease) in current liabilities: 
- trade and other payables 
- project payable 
- contract liability 

22.1 Working capital changes 
(Increase) I decrease in current assets: 

- inventory 
- trade debts 
- advances 
- short term investment 
- other receivables 

12,104,502 
7,407,766 

28,979,915 
41,832,634 
12,194,211 
1,971,617 

(218,944,519) 130,258,638 ------- 
(24,531,019) 229,845, 161 

======= 

22.1 

Depreciation 
Finance cost 
Provision for workers profit participation fund 
Provision for workers welfare fund 
Working capital changes 

21.1 No deferred tax assets or liability has been recognised as the revenue generated by Company is 
exempt from tax as explained in note 3.14. The above tax amount includes provision for taxation 
of Rs.14,049,032 (2022: Rs.11,958,921) on revenue from sale of solar relate equipment and 
from engineering and consulting services. The other amount included in the above tax relate to 
minimum tax (2022: minimum tax) paid over income earned from mutual funds and term deposit 
receipts. 

22. CASH GENERATED FROM 2023 2022 
OPERATIONS Note - - - Rupees - - - 

Profit before taxation 109,435,123 80,074,255 
Adjustments for non-cash and other items: 

12,684,438 16,266,633 

12,684,438 15,815,586 
451,047 

14,165,828 

12,194,211 
1,971,617 

8,785,246 

770,908 

4, 124,077 

1,138,347 

2023 2022 
- - - Rupees - - - 

7,646,899 3,353, 169 
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19. OTHER INCOME 

Profit on term deposit receipts 
Unrealized gain on mutual funds 

20. OTHER EXPENSES 
Workers profit participation fund 
Workers welfare fund 

21. TAXATION 

Current tax on profit for the year 
Adjustment in respect of prior year 



23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

- market risk 
- credit risk; and 
- liquidity risk. 

The Company's Board of Directors {the Board) has overall responsibility for the establishment 
and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for 
developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. 

The Company's overall risk management programmed focuses on the unpredictability of financial 
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial 
performance. Risk management is carried out by a treasury department under policies approved 
by the Board. The treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks. The 
Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering 
specific areas, such as currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative and non­ 
derivative financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity. 

23.1 Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, 
interest rate risk and price risk. 

(a) Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly 
where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies. The 
Company is not exposed to currency risk as all financial instruments are in local currency. 

(b) Price risk 

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or 
currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial 
instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. 
The Company is not exposed to price risk with respect to its investments in mutual funds as at 
June 30, 2023. 

(c) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company manages these 
mismatches through risk management strategies where significant changes in gap position can 
be adjusted. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on long term finances and its 
investment in term deposit receipts. 

23.2 Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk 

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter party fails to discharge its obligation and 
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by 
monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and continually 
assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties. 

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar 
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet 
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other 
conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Company's 
periormance to developments affecting a particular industry. 
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Long term financing 
Trade and other payables 
Accrued mark-up 
Security deposit 

2023 
Contractual cash flows 

Carrying Less than 1 Between 1 to More than 5 
amount Total 5 years year years 

• • • · - • - • - • · Rupees • • • - • • • • • • • 
280,301 ,000 322,311,759 46,038,121 208,048,884 68,224,754 

48,130,165 48,130,165 48] 1301165 
2,895,391 2,895,391 2,8951391 

2MOO,OOO 281000,000 28,000,000 

359,326,556 401,337 ,315 9710631677 208,048,884 96,224,754 

Particulars 

VIS 

agency 
VIS 

long term 
AAA 
AAA 

short term 
A1+ 
A1+ 

Rating 
Name of Bank 
National Bank of Pakistan 
Habib Bank Limited 

23.3 Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they 
fall due. The Company's approach is to ensure, as far as possible, to always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining 
sufficient cash and marketable securities and ensuring the availability of adequate credit 
facilities. The Company's treasury department aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping 
committed credit lines available. 
Financial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below: 

The credit quality of loans and other receivables can be assessed with reference to their 
historical performance with no or negligible defaults in recent history and no losses incurred. 
Accordingly, management does not expect any counter party to fail in meeting their obligations. 
The credit quality of the Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to the 
external credit ratings as follows: 

90,478,714 138,849,149 
======= 

- - - Rupees - - - 
17,664,483 6,708,522 
48,324,951 63,658,645 
70,076,729 4,844,867 

2,782,986 15,266,680 

Trade debts 
Other receivables 
Short term investments 
Cash and bank balances 

2022 2023 

Credit risk primarily arises from trade debts, advances. other receivables, short term investments 
and balances with banks. To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts. 
management performs credit reviews taking into account the customer's financial position, past 
experience and other relevant factors. Where considered necessary, advance payments are 
obtained from certain parties. The management has set a maximum credit period of 15 days to 
reduce the credit risk. Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks 
with reasonably high credit ratings. 
Exposure to credit risk 
The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2023 along with comparative is tabulated 
below: 
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The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the 
reporting period during which the transfer has occurred. 

The Company's policy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy have 
occurred includes monitoring of the following factors: 

changes in market and trading activity (e.g. significant increases I decreases in activity) 

changes in inputs used in valuation techniques (e.g. inputs becoming I ceasing to be 
observable in the market) 

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the year. 

Level 3: 

Level 2: 

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived 
from prices). 

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that 
is, unobservable inputs). 

As at June 30, 2023, all financial assets and financial liabilities reflected in the financial 
statements approximate to their fair values. 

Level 1: 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date 
under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly 
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. 

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the 
following levels: 

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values 

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the 
basis of mark-up I interest rates effective at the respective year-ends. The rates of mark-up I 
interest have been disclosed in the respective notes to these financial statements. 

23.4 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities 

- · • - - - - - - - • Rupees - - - - - - · - · - - 
Long term financing 414,588,000 434,892,000 62,554,000 312,770,000 59,568,000 
Trade and other payables 11,930,750 11,930,750 11,930,750 
Accrued mars-up 6,638,700 6,638,700 6,638,700 
Contract liability 69,414,802 69,414,802 69,414,802 
Security deposit 28,000,000 28,000,000 28,000,000 
Project payable 110,006,649 110,006,649 110,006,649 

e 640,578,901 660,882,901 260,544,901 312,770,000 87,568,000 

Less than 1 Between 1 to 5 More than 5 
year years years Total 

Carrying 
amount 

Particulars 
Contractual cash flows 
2022 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (17) ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 



For the purpose of calculating the gearing ratio, the amount of total borrowings has been 
determined by including the effect of short term borrowings under mark-up arrangements (if any). 

2023 2022 
Rupees 

Total borrowings 280,301,000 434,892,000 

Less: cash and bank balances 2,782,986 15,266,680 

Net debt 277 ,518,014 419,625,320 

Total equity 267 ,631,959 174,463,469 

Total capital 545, 149,973 594,088,789 

Gearing ratio 51% 71% 

23.6 Capital risk management 

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a 
going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for other 
stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its 
business. 
The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes 
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the 
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders and I or 
issuer new shares. 
Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. 
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total 
borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the 
statement of financial position plus net debt. 

241,784,000 414,588,000 
28,000,000 28,000,000 

2,895,391 6,638,700 
48,130,165 11,930,750 

110,006,649 

320,809,556 571, 164,099 

- - - Rupees - - - 
Financial liabilities 

as per statement of 
financial position 

Long term financing 

Security deposit 

Accrued mark-up 
Trade and other payables 
Project payable 

2022 2023 

Amortised cost 

17,664,483 6,708,522 

48,324,951 63,658,645 

70,076,729 4,844,867 

2,782,986 15,266,680 

138,849,149 90,478,714 

Financial assets 
as per statement of 

financial position 

Trade debts 
Other receivables 
Short term investments 

Cash and bank balances 

2023 2022 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Amortised cost 

23.5 Financial instruments by category 
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24. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
Related parties comprise of the Parent company, Associated companies, directors and key 
management personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions 
with various related parties. Detail of related parties (with whom the Company has transacted) 
along with relationship and transactions with related parties, other than those which have been 
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows: 

24.1 Name of the related party 
Holding Company 
Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited (100% shareholding) 
Associated Companies (due to common directorship) 
Atlas Power Limited 
Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited 
Atlas Solar Limited (formerly Zhenfa Pakistan New Energy Limited) 
Atlas Honda Limited 
Atlas Engineering (Private) Limited 
Atlas Autos (Private) Limited 
Atlas Insurance limited 
Atlas Battery Limited 
Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited 
Atlas Foundation 

441,530,700 434,892,000 

184,677,924 
272,500,000 
(20,304,000) 

(2,750,990) 
434, 122,934 

7,407,766 

(2,750,990) 
(769,066) 
7,407,766 

6,638,700 

434,892,000 

......•.. Rupees . 
182,696,000 1,981,924 
272,500,000 
(20,304,000) 

Balance as at July 01, 2021 
Finances obtained 
Finances repaid 
Finance cost paid 

Total changes from financing cash flows 
Mark-up I interest expense 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 

Balance as at July 01, 2022 
Finances obtained 
Finances repaid 
Finance cost paid 

Total changes from financing cash flows 
Mark-up I interest expense 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 

Liabilities 
Long term Accrued 

interest I Total finances mark-uo 
......... Rupees ......... 

434,892,000 6,638,700 441,530,700 
119,500,000 119,500,000 

(274,091,000) (274,091,000) 
(45,575,943) (45,575,943) 

280,301,000 (38,937,243) 241,363, 7 57 
41,832,634 41,832,634 

280,301,000 2,895,391 283,196,391 

Liabilities 
Long term Accrued 

interest I Total finances mark-~~ 

23.7 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING 
FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 
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Number of person 
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 
Total number of employees obtaining remuneration as at June 30, 2023 is 6 (2022: 2) and 
average number of employees for the year ended June 30, 2023 is 6 (2022: 2). 

27. 

15,196,356 
6,500,924 
1,871,924 

909,744 
------- 

24,478,948 
======= 

2 

- - - Rupees Remuneration paid to executives of the Company 
is as follows: 

Managerial remuneration 
Performance bonus 
Reimbursements 
Retirement benefits 

26. RENUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE 
No remuneration has been paid to chief executive or to any of the director of the Company. 

2023 2022 

Actual net electricity billed 

Standard generation from installed capacity 

Installed capacity 

PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 25. 

8,779,818 
======= 

2023 2022 
KWH KWH 

8,123 8,123 

58,975,873 28,087,832 
======= 

8,757,176 4,349,885 
======= 

4,386,466 

Installed capacity-per hour (MW) 

3,244,902 4,617,721 
20,506,726 

Insurance premium paid 

Salary & benefits 

Atlas Insurance Limited 

Key management perosnal 

105,907 ,090 
69,414,802 Advance received 

Revenue earned 
Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited 

2,800,000 Revenue earned Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited 

4,099,915 214,803 
1,800,743 

Revenue earned 
Donation paid 

Atlas Foundation 

85,145,695 89,327,694 Revenue earned Atlas Autos (Private) Limited 

37,750,000 Revenue earned Atlas Battery Limited 

256,000,000 
5,344,561 

Revenue earned 
Security deposit received 
Sales of assets 
Purchase of assets 

Atlas Honda Limited 71,244, 138 
28,000,000 

426,528 

151,745,322 

Services received Shirazi Investments (Private} Limited 

3,922,536 Purchase of assets Atlas Power Limited 

- - - Rupees - •• 
Nature and Description of 
Related Party Transaction Names of Company 

2022 2023 
24.2 Significant transactions with related parties are as follows: 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (20) ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 



Chief Financial Officer 
\~~1~ 7 

Chief Executive Officer 

28. CORRESPONDING FIGURES' 

Corresponding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflect more appropriate 
presentation of events and transactions for the purpose of comparison in accordance with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. However, no significant 
reclassification has been made in these financial statements. 

29. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE 
These condensed interim financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and 
authorized for issue on 1 5 AUG 2023 
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3(4)(c)(ii) * the last annual return of the Company 
submitted in compliance of section 130 of the Companies Act 

or, in case of an applicant to whom section 130 of the 
Companies Act does not apply, a return comprising of all such 
information and particulars as required by the specified form 
under section 130 of the Companies Act, as the case may be; 



NICNo 

Address 

NOffle 

2.10 Chief Execu1ive 

https://eservices.secp.gov.pk/eServices/XFDLControllerServlet?pid=6myqbaVOkxv5aVTDITvnVA%3D%3D&formid=l6TEyZToetjQzlMr2LLyTxgDOf8ak... 1/5 

Next Page 

3520226323901 

Hoosl! No_ 35i7/B. EME Sector. OHA. Thc.kar Nlaz Baig Lahore. Punt,lb Pakistan 53710 ! 
I 

Maqsood-d 

~js_h1_~_,_11_"""_•_1m_..,_,_•_P_nva_1e_u_m_,,_ed =i._~~5,42 

Holding/Subsidiary % Shares Held 

2.1 P1nlcula,a of the hold I hi l1ub1ldl•ry comp•nt. if any 

.I[ [_ . 

174,000,030.00 

Face Value Amount No. of Shares 

r .___ -_-- .. -_ ...... _----_ ....... _ .... _·___.-1.__1 __.r · · ---·-· ·- ·· .. ··1 

1500.000.000.00 ;:::=======~ 

No. a1 Shares 

I-POWER GENERATION ·ALL·l;:::;-;z.T.;,j_E_R_J _ 

!~--------, 
042-37132634 j 

·-, 1042-37!32637 

16~1XX. :<1>~,~~t·•·lqb1I. OHA Phne 3 Lohore lahore PunJ1b 54810 

~ati~Jpk 

dd mm 'f/YY 

. ,:<l9/202J 

Ordinary Shares 

Classes and kinds or Shares 

2.B P•ld ._., Shere Cepilal 

Ordjnary Shares 

Cl11.Hes and kinds of Shines 

2. 7 Aulhorized Share Capital 

2.6 Mobl1e No. of AuthOfized officer 
{Chief Executive/ Diredcr/ 
Company SecretaryJ 
Chief Financial Officec-) 

2.5 Principle Hoe or business 

2.C Office Fax. No. 

, 3 1 Cl'lafl.t11n No j E-202~~8957 ! 1 3.2. Amount 

IATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 

2.3 Ollce Tel. No. 

2.1 Em,11 Address 

21 Regi,tered omce Addr••• 

1 50a1e al AGM 

1 -t Form A mede uptc 

1 3 Fee payment de:tair: 

1 2 Name of lhd ~on-;...11ny 

,0099710 

\f-! • .- !'Se Cllmp,e1e m typescnpt or ,n bold block c•pltals) 

1.1 cu1r •. Ret;a:.tr,,·=.Jr.NLrnberl 

Form A 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 

THE COMPANIES {GENERAL PROVISIONS ANO FORMS} REGULATIONS, 2018 
[S•c.tion 130(1) and R•gul1tion 4] 

ANNUAL RETURN OF COMPANY HAYING SHARE CAPITAL 

PAGE1 1/16/24. 8:52 AM 
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S# Name of Director Residential Address Nationality NIC (Passport No ~ Date of appointment Name of Member/Creditors 
f<lrei~n~r) /election nominating/appointing 

··········-··· ., ... ... 
1 fFrahim Ali Khan I 10-8/11, south Park Avenue, Phase 11, jPakistan I 14230187651189 !Jt/10/2022 !i 11 - DHA. Karachi, Sindh Pakistan 75500 I I [12Khayaban:e--Bukhari 5th siieet I jPakistan 

I! 
I 2 lsaquib Hussain Shiraz, \ ]4200005096785 b1110/2022 ! 1: 
I !Phase VI. DHA. Karach,. Sindh : •I 
I ! I !Pakistan 75500 i i ! 
I 3 l Maqsooo Ahmad i 'House No 397/B EME Sector, OHA, I jPakistan I 13520226323901 i 31/10/2022 I! q I 
l iThokar Niaz Baig. Lahore, Punjab 

L__ ', I I I iPal<1stan 53710 I ! L -··· I 

2.16 List of Directors on the date Annual return is made 

"7:'' - 
Ema,1 

Address 

Name 

2.15 Particulars of Shares Registrar (if applicable) 

1HM House, 7-Bank·.::~ua,·-:. ~ahore 
i, _ 

Address __ .] 
Name 

2.14 Particulars of Auditors 

NICNo 

; , st (,oor, ~ •'.'le Center, 0C4 Sieck 9. Clifton, Kara ch, Address 

I 
\ "-~ohu,, Tayebally and Co 
~ ..... :--:-:-:-:-:-:------ Name 

2.13 Legal Advisor 

NICNo 

: 303-Cham~elll Block. Sector C. Bahna Town. laho,e 
~~~~~~~~~~~~-~~~--,,-- 
: 352022887 8439 ! ___________ ; 

Aadress 
-------------: 

: Khalid Mahmood Name 

2.12 Sectulry 
; -----·-·-----··-··-·--__J 

NI(; 1•'0 

Name 

2.11 Chief Financial Office, 
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lhe name of such other persoots) shall be mentioned ,n parentheses alongwith 

;:__i ... e 
; In case the mernner or oebentu e- he'.• ,r is •,,lding shares or debentures on behalf cf other person(sJ 
Cllle name of the member or debenlc.•: t,uldP.• 

10-8111 South Park Avenue. Phase II. DHA ~·:Pakistan 

2nd l'locr. Feoe,at,on House, Sharae l'irdous,[Pakrstan 
;r ----74COCO~iilll=j , t 

.,----11 -~1 
·;;- .. ~---1-;: 
-r· 1 ,i" ====="' !'===========: 
"····--··-···--········· ·- 

2.17 List of members & debenture holders on the date upto which this Form is made 
:i! fsiiroholl ---V.ame · --------------- iAddress·---------------lNa1,on~1'.rV. ...... J~~ ~'._5~_•_r:: _ _?~e~r~l.il~li~li~rt;:;;:if ~fo~,e-,g-n-er)J 
9ilembers !:.--- .-- ------~~-------~· 
;!:1 : 1 : Shiraii Investments (Pvl) Lid 
ll'r--- - ~ - 
~ (1 ;Frah;rr. Ali Kban 
---~----=~~~~=== 
il3 12 'Sc.~·,ib .~ .:sain Shirazi 12 Khayaban-e-Sukhari 51h Street, Phase V i!Pakislan 
--==t==- =~-~- =======================c.;;c===== kt:___~·~sc_,•;_~'.'.:~e,j------- House No 39718. EME Sector DI-IA Thokar r1iPakislan 

~benture Holders 
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.:. 
0 
N ... 
'< ,. ,.. 
8 
:::. -c 
• 

.. 
'I' 
0 

3.5 Date 

Year Day Month 

., 
~ 3.4 Registration No of Authorized Intermediary, if applica·:,:a 
0 
0 
~ 
m 

r=:------- 
I Eleclronical ly signed by Khalid Mahmood " ;::: 3.3 Signatures 

2.18 Transfer of shares (debentures) since last Form A was made 

~ S# IName of Transferor----- :Name of Transferee [No of Shares Transferre<:! 1Date of Regis • 
.,, Members __[ _ jof transfer -~~~9;'t=.;::.; 
"' ------····· ... ··-·---···------------·---------······-- --------·-··-···-----------··· ··--·---~~~~ 
0 -- . ··-· ···--···-··-----. -----···-·· - . --- - - ' --·-·------~ 

!2 - J -----------···- •••.•• __ .. ~ ;! -·-·-····-··--·-···-··-·····-·----- --- ·-----·-.--------·--···-···----~-- i -~--~---- 'r.5"":,ri',11,,,,.;::P"IK"'; ; 
~ Deh2-n•ur ~ Herders 

"' ~ :: 
"' 0 .... 
0 ,, 
-< ,. 
z 
0 
z 
"' I; 3. 1 Declaration: 
; I do hereby solemnly. and sincb~<i'IV <,;,,;lar~ ·~at the information provided in the form is: 
~ (i) true and correct to the best of rr.; knov rear~ .n consonance with the record as maintained by the Company and nothing has been concealed; and 
~ (ii) hereby reported aner complying,.;~ and fulfill"·g all requirements under the relevant provisions of law, rules, regulations. directives. circulars and 
~ notifications whichever is applicable . .... .. :;; 
z 
)> 

i 3.2 Name of Authorized Officer with designation' Aut!-Jriz,~ hlermediary [Khalid Mahmood Jsecretary 
r ~'-----~--- - 
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3(4)(c)(iii) the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up 
share capital of the applicant 



Atlas Energy Limited 
Registered Office: 64/XX, Khayaban-e-Iqbal, DHA Phase 3, Lahore. 

Tel: +92-42-37132637-38-39, Fax: +92-42-37132634 

Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each 

74,000,030 7,400,003 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share 
Capital 
As at June 30, 2024 

500,000,000 50,000,000 As at June 30, 2024 

Authorized Share Capital 

Noof 
Shares Rs. 

-7' 

~tlasEnergy 



3( 4 )( c )(iv) the shareholding pattern of the applicant 
including list of shareholders holding 5% or more shares, 

number of shares held by each of them and percentage shares 
of the total paid-up capital 



Atlas Energy Limited 
Registered Office: 64/XX, Khayaban-e-Iqbal, DHA Phase 3, Lahore. 

Tel: +92-42-37132637-38-39, Fax: +92-42-37132634 

lOOo/o 7,400,003 

99.99996% 

0.00001% 

0.00001% 

0.00001% 

7,400,000 

1 

1 

1 

Shareholding 
Percentage 

Noof 
Shares 

Shirazi Investments (Pvt) Ltd 

Maqsood Ahmad 

Farahim Ali Khan 

Saquib H Shirazi 

Name of Shareholder 

Pattern of Shareholding 
As at June 30, 2024 

·;n 
~!(Atlas Energy 



3(4){d)(i) evidence of cash balances held in reserve by the 
applicant, along with bank certificates; 

• 



3(4)(d)(iii) latest audited financial statements of the 
cll)J)licant; 

• 



ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- ··'ii.-· 
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Catalyst for success Other Offices: 
Karachi, Islamabad & Multan 

Principal Office: 
HM House 
7-Bank Square, Lahore. 
TP.! +q2 42 37235084-87 
Email: ihr@hccpk.com 

www.hccpk.com 
sw.inte,national 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors· Report thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information presented along with the financial 
statements and the auditors' report thereon. With respect to the Company the other information 
comprises only the Director's Report on the operations of the Company. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other infcrmaticn, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows together with the notes 
forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the 
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state. of the Company's 
affairs as at June 30, 2024 and of the profit, other comprehensive income, the changes in equity 
and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Fiu;mcial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Profess;or.al Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Atlas Energy Limited (the Company), 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024, the statement of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have 
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were 
necessary for the purposes of the audit. 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

Independent Auditor's Report To The Members Of 
Atlas Enerciv Limited 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS PAKISTAN 
SHINEWING HAMEED CH.AUDHRI &. CO. . . .... ,. ", '" SW . . . ' ~ 

• 0 " . ·~ 



Catalyst for success 

going concern. 

• 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or tho override of Internal control. 

Obtain an understandinq' of int~r~z.f control relevant' to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate rn thf'l circumstances, but notfor the purpose orexpresslnq 
an opinion on the effectivenass of the Company's internal control. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness cf 
accounting estirnates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our auditors' report. 
However, future events or conditions m91 caus~. the Company to cease to continue as a 

• 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

In preparing the financial statements, rnanaqernent is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will 
always detecta material rnlsstatement wt,on it exists. Mss!::itements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, indivic'-ua!ly or. in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic daelsions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial i:;Lal1::11111::H1l:,; lhl'II i'lra 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS PAKISTAN 
SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO. 

. . . . . . ~ . 
. ·.o ·sw a o o 
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%w"'-~~ ~ c~L~L.- _ 
SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO., 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
LAHORE; September 04, 2024 
UDIN: AR202410104bfD6MNrJA 

The Engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is 
Osman Hameed Chaudhri. 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for 
the purpose of the Company's business; and 

d} no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 
1980). 

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income. the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with 
the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017); 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

SHINE\~ING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CC\ 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS PAKISTAN 

. . . . . . . . 
.·.o ·sw • • • • 0 



T;:exe~ notes form an integral part these fi~ancial statements. 

'<, T ·~ '\- \ ''-\ '-4_ -, 

Chief Financial Officer jSHC] Chief Executive Officer 

641, 706,864 697 ,301,494 
13 

Total liabilities 
Contingencies and commitments 

Total equity and liabilities 

10 
12 

Current liabilities 
Accrued mark-up 
Current portion of long term financing 
Trade and other payables 
Provision for taxation 

374,074,905 320,700,031 

206,480,001 I 
11 

241,784,000 l 
28,000,000 28,000,000 

234,430,001 269,784.000 

2,529,029 2.895,391 
37,554,500 38,517,000 
39,098,627 48, 130, 165 
7,037,874 14,748,349 

86,220,030 104,290,905 

10 
11 

Liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 
Long term financing 
Security deposit 

267.631,959 376,601,463 

74,000,030 
193,631,929 

74,000,030 
302,601,433 

500,000,000 500,000,000 

5 33,016,241 17,664,483 
6 3,158,735 9,780,216 
7 10,041,422 18,560,474 
8 33,229,281 48,324.951 
9 90,743,255 70.076,729 

5,887,255 2.782.986 
176,076, 189 167, 189.839 
697,301,494 641, 706,864 Total assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Share capital and reserves 
50,000,000 (2023: 50,000,000) ordinary 

shares of Rs. 10/- each 
7,400.003 (2023: 7,400.003) ordinary 

shares of Rs. 10/- each 
Unappropriated profits 

e- 

Current assets 
Trade debts 
Inventory 
Loans and advances 
Other receivables 
Short term investments 
Cash and bank balances 

474,517,025 521,225,305 4 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Plant and equipment 

- - • - - - Rupees - - - - - - Note 
2023 2024 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024 



93,168,490 108,969,504 

2024 2023 
(Restated) 

- - - - - - Rupees - - - - - • 

234,301,240 354.840 501 

(113,414,040) (192.391 958) 

120,887,200 162,448 543 

(4,353,176) (5.764 662) 

(10, 769,599) (41.868.176) 

14,138,516 8,785.246 

(7,692,680} (14.165.828) 

112,210,261 109.435.123 

(2,720,767) (1,560,224) 

109,489,494 107,874,899 

(519,990) (14,706,409) 

108,969,504 93,168,490 

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income 

20 

16 

17 
18 

19 

Gross profit 

Administrative expenses 

Finance cost 

Other income 

Other expenses 

Profit before revenue tax and income tax 

Final taxes - levy 

Profit before income tax 

Income tax expense 

Profit after taxation 

14 

15 

Revenue from contracts with customer - net 

Cost of sales 

Note 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS & 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 

e- 



Chairman I Director 

2,782,986 

(200,166,943) 

(12,483,694) 

15,266,680 

\~j"' Chief Executive Officer 

(\ ,1. . 
~~ 

Chief Financial Officer 

.... _ 

Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

5,887,255 

3,104,269 

2,782,986 

(47,361,203} 

- 119,500,000 

(36,266,500) (274,091,000) 

(11,094,703) (45,575,943) 

225,552.393 

(31,015.234) 

256.567.627 

(37,869, 144) 

(24,531,019} 

(13,338, 125) 

(70,634,526} 

(71,350,303} 

715,777 

121,099,998 

132,051,230 

( 10,951,232) 

21 

2023 
Note - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - 

2024 

Finance cost paid 
Net cash used in financing activities 

Net increase I (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Long term finances - obtained 

- repaid 

Fixed capital expenditure 

Sale proceeds of operating fixed assets 

Net cash (used in) I generated from investing activities 

Cash generated from I (used in) from operations 

Taxes paid 

Net cash generated from I (used in) operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 



Chief Financial Officer 
~)"---- 
~ector 

\ "~"'--, 
Chie~xecutive Officer 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

74,000,030 ====== 
Balance as at June 30, 2024 

74,000,030 
====== 

74,000,030 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 

Balance as at July 01, 2023 

Total comprehensive income for the year: 
Profit after taxation 
Other Comprehensive income 

93, 168,490 93.168 ~90 I 
93, 168.490 93.168490 

193,631,929 267,631,959 

193,631,929 267,631,959 

108,969,504 108,969,~04 I 
108,969,504 108,969,504 

302,601,433 376,601,463 

Balance as at Ju!y 01, 2022 

Total comprehensive income for the year. 
Profit after taxation 

other Comprehensive income 

- - - - - - - - •• - • Ru pees - - • • • • • • • • • • 
7 4,000.030 100,463,439 17 4.463.469 

Total Unappropriated 
profit 

Share 
capital 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 
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2.4.1 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year and 
have been adopted by the Company 
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent 
with those of the previous financial year, except for change resulted due to adoption of 
amendments to accounting standards. The below mentioned amendments to approved 
accounting standards are effective for the financial year beginning on July 01. 2023 and have 
been adopted by the Company: 

2.4 INITIAL APPLICATION OF STANDARDS, AMEMDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS TO 
EXISTING STANDARDS 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees. which is the Company's functional 
and presentation currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been 
rounded to the nearest rupees unless otherwise specified. 

Basis of measurement 2.2 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

2.1 Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in 
Pakistan comprise of: 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board {IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); 

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Act; and 

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, differ with the 
requirements of IAS 34, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 
have been followed. -- 

Branch office 

Purpose 
Registered office 

Lahore 
64/XX, Khayaban -e- Iqbal, DHA Phase Ill. 

Karachi 
2nd Floor. Federation House. Shahra-e-Fardousi, 

Main Clifton. -- 

Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited - holding company held 100% (2023:100%) ordinary shares 
of the Company. 

1.1 Geographical location and address of major business units including mills I plant of the Company 
are as under: 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 
1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS 

Atlas Energy Limited hereafter referred as "the Company" was incorporated as an unquoted - 
public limited company in Pakistan on May 18. 2016, under the repealed Companies Ordinance. 
1984 (now the Companies Act. 2017). 

The purpose of Atlas Energy Limited is to provide cost effective solar solutions for industna! and 
commercial consumers. 

.. -·····--· ·- ·---··--- 



Leases - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback - Amendments requires a seller lessee to 
subsequently measure lease liabilities arising from a leaseback in a way that it does not recognise 
any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The new requirements do 
not prevent a seller-lessee from recognising in profit or loss any gain or loss relating to the partial 
or full termination of a lease. A seller-lessee applies the amendments retrospectively in 
accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to sale 
and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application. 

Effective: January 01, 2024 

Replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their 'significant' accounting policies with a 
requirement to disclose their 'material' accounting policies: and 

Adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about 
accounting policy disclosures. 

The amendments have had an impact on the Company's disclosures of accounting policies. but 
not on the measurement. recognition or presentation of any items in the Company's financial 
statements. 

There are number of other standards. amendments and interpretations to the approved 
accounting standards that are effective but are not relevant to the Company and therefore. have 
not been presented here. 

2.4.2 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not 
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company 

a) IAS 7 Statement of Cashflows and IFRS 7 Financial Effective: January 01, 2024 
Instruments; Disclosures 

Amendments in IAS 7 Statement of Cashflows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments; Disclosures; 
Supplier Finance Arrangements, disclosure requirements to enhance the transparency of supplier 
finance arrangements and their effects on a company's liabilities, cash flows and exposure to 
liquidity risk. 

The amendments are supplement requirements already in IFRS Accounting Standards and 
require a company to disclose: 

the terms and conditions; 

the amount of the liabilities that are part of the arrangements, breaking out the amounts for 
which the suppliers have already received payment from the finance providers. and stating 
where the liabilities sit on the balance sheet: 
ranges of payment due dates; and 

liquidity risk information. 
b} IFRS 16 Leases 

Effective: January 01, 2023 b) IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS 
Practice Statement 2 

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 - The 
amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by: 

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes m 
accounting policies and the correction of errors. The amendments introduce a new definition for 
accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that 
are subject to measurement uncertainty The amendments also clarify the relationship between 
accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that a Company develops an 
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy. The amendments 
will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies 
occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company 
applies the amendments. 

Effective: January 01, 2023 
a) IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 

Accounting Estimates and Errors 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (2) ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
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The aforesaid Guidance has been applied retrospectively by the Company and the comparative 
information has been restated, which has not affected current year or years' net sales, profit after 
taxes and levies, equity and cash flows. Impact as of July 01, 2023 is not material to these 
financial statements. In the statement of profit or loss for the year ended June 30, 2024. in terms 
of the requirements of I FRlC 21 I !AS 37. minimum tax and final tax aggregating Rs.1.560 million. 
which were previously presented as current taxation have now been reclassified as "final tax 
levies". 

Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of financial statements m conformity with approved accounting standards 
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application 
of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates and 
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Judgments, estimates and 
assumptions made by the management that may have a significant risk of material adjustment to 
the financial statements in the subsequent year are as follows; 

Presentation of Financial Statements to clarify how to classify debt and other liabilities as current 
or non-current In January 2020 the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 to 
specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The 
amendments clarify: 

- What is meant by a right to defer settlement 

- That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period; 
- That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its 

deferral riqht: 
- That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity 
- Only covenants with which an entity is required to comply on or before the reporting date 

affect the classification of a liability as current or non-current. In addition. an entity has to 
disclose information in the notes that enables users of financial statements to understand 
the risk that non-current liabilities with covenants could become repayable within twelve 
months. 

The Company has assessed that the impact of above amendments is not expected to be 
sicnificant. 

There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved 
accounting standards that are not yet effective and are also not relevant to the Company and 
therefore. have not been presented here. 

!AS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes (the 
Guidance) issued bv ICAP 

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan {ICAP) issued the aforementioned Guidance 
through Circular No. 07 / 2024 dated May 15, 2024. In light of the said Guidance. as the minimum 
taxes and final taxes are not calculated on the 'taxable income' as defined in IAS 12 (Income 
Taxes) but calculated on turnover or other basis (as per relevant sections of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance); accordingly, minimum taxes and final taxes should be 
accounted for under lAS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets)/ IFRIC 21 
(Levies) as levies (though these are charged under tax law) and not under IAS 12 as income 
taxes. Based on the Guidance. the minimum taxes under the Ordinance are hybrid taxes, which 
comprise of a component within the scope of !AS 12 and a component within the scope of IFRlC 
21. 

2.5 

Effective: January 01, 2024 c) IAS 1 Presentation of Financial 
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The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set 
out below. These polices have been consistently applied to all the years presented. 

3.1 Plant and equipment 
Owned assets 
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 
Depreciation 

Depreciation on all items of plant and equipment except for vehicles is charged to statement of 
profit or loss applying the straight line method. Vehicles are depreciated using the reducing 
balance method so as to write off historical cost of an asset over its estimated useful life. Rates of 
depreciation is stated in note 4.1. 
Depreciation on addition in plant and equipment is charged from the date of addition while no 
depreciation is charged in the date of disposal. The Company reviews the useful life and residua! 
value of plant and equipment on a regular basis. Any change in estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of plant and equipment with a corresponding 
effect on depreciation charge. 
Disposal 
Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of fixed assets are determined as the difference 
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of assets and are included in the statement 
of profit or loss. 
Capital work-in-progress 

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated up to the statement of financial position 
date less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is recognized as an 
operating fixed asset when it is made available for intended use. 

Impairment 

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each statement of financial position date to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment of any asset or a group of assets. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of that asset is estimated and impairment losses 
are recognized in the profit and loss account. 

3.2 Right-of-use assets and lease liability 

As per IFRS 16. the Company has to recognize right to use assets and a corresponding lease 
liability. The lease liability will be measured at the present value of the consideration (lease 
payments) to be made over the !ease term. The lease payments will be discounted using the 
interest rate implicit in the lease, unless it is not readily determinable. in which case the Company 
may use the incremental rate of borrowing The riqht-of-use asset is initially measured at the 
present value of lease liability and adjusted for lease prepayments/accruals and borrowing costs. 

(a) Plant and equipment 

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rates of depreciation. useful lives and residual 
values for calculation of depreciation on an on-going basis. Further, where applicable. an estimate 
of recoverable amount of asset is made if indicators of impairment are identified. 

(b) Inventory 

The Company estimates the net realizable value of equipment inventory to assess any diminution 
in the carrying value. Net realizable value is determined with reference to estimated selling price 
less estimated expenditure to make sale. Provision is made in the financial statements for 
obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade based on management estimate 

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 
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Trade debts are measured at the transaction price measured under 1 FRS 15. A loss allowance is 
recognized for trade debts based on lifetime expected credit losses at each reporting date based 
on Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the 
debtors and the economic environment. 

Derecognition 

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets 
have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks 
and rewards of ownership. 

3.4 Trade debts and other receivables and related impairment 

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized when an unconditional nght to amount of 
consideration is established 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any 
interest I mark-up or dividend income, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest I mark-up income, 
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss. 

-- 
Debt Instruments at FVTPL 

The right-of-use assets recognized subsequent to the adoption are measured based on the initial 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets are 
depreciated over the lease term using a straight line basis as it closely reflects the expected 
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The right-of-use assets are reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of lease liability. 

3.3 Financial assets 

Initial measurement 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following three measurement categories: 

fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); 

fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and 

measured at amortized cost. 

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus. for an item not at FVTPL. transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition 

Subsequent Measurement 

Equity Instruments at FVTOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income 
in the statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in statement of 
other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of profit or loss. 

Debt Instruments at FVTOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest I mark-up income calculated 
using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in 
statement of other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated 
in statement of other comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement of profit or 
Joss. 

-- 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (5) ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 



-- .. For trade debts, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on lifetime 
expected credit losses. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the 
Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the 
debtors and the economic environment. The expected credit losses are recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss. 

For bank balances, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on 
lifetime expected credit losses. The Company reviews internal and external information available 
for each bank balance to assess expected credit loss and the likelihood to receive the outstanding 
contractual amount The expected credit losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

(b) Non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or reversal of provisions for 
impairment losses. If any indications exist. the recoverable amounts of such assets are estimated 
and impairment losses or reversals of impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset 

The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL") for all debt instruments 
not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the 
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the 
Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset's 
original effective interest rate. 

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. ECLs are provided for credit losses that 
result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For 
those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the 
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). 

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 60 days past 
due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default 
when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the 
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held 
by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovering the contractual cash flows. 

-- 
Financial assets (a) 

3.6 

Other receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method, less expected credit losses as explained in note 3 3. The 
trade debts mainly comprise of a balances with related parties which are considered as aood and 
having no impact of expected credit loss. ~ 

3.5 Equipment inventory 

Equipment inventory is vaiued principally at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable 
value except for the item in transit stated at invoice value plus other charges thereon till the 
reporting date. while item considered obsolete are carried at nil value. 

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale. Provision is made in the financial 
statements for obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade based on management estimate 

Impairment 
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Contract asset 
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the 
customer. Jf the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the 
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for 
the earned consideration that is conditional 
Contract liabilities 
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the 
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If 
a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, 
a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the 
contract. 

Derecog n ition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such an exchange or 
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new 
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, cash at banks and short-term highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash 
equivalents comprise bank balances including short-term deposits net of bank overdraft. if any. 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition. as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and borrowings. payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging 
instruments in an effective hedge. as appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings 
and payables. net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include long term loans. creditors. accrued and other liabilities. 

Subsequent Measurement 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR The EIR amortization is included as finance 
costs in the statement of comprehensive income. 

This category applies to long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-up 
arrangements, creditors, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, accrued and other 
liabilities. 

Initial measurement 

3.10 

3.9 

3.8 

-- 

3. 7 Financial liabilities 
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3.11 Borrowings 

Borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Financial charges are accounted for on 
accrual basis and are included in mark up accrued on loans to the extent cf amount remaining 
unpaid, if any. 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or production of qualifying 
assets. which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially 
ready for their intended use All other borrowing costs are charged to the income statement . in 
the period in which these are incurred. 

3.12 Trade and other payables 
Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost which approximates fair 
value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received. whether or not 
billed to the Company. 

3.13 Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a 
result of past events and 1t is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligations can be made 
Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and accordingly adjusted to 
reflect current best estimates. 

3.14 Taxation 
Income tax on profit and loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax 
Current 
Profit and gains derived by the Company from the power generation project are exempt from the 
tax under Clause (132) of Part l of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The 
Company is also exempt from the minimum tax on the turnover under Clause 11A (v) of the Part 
IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 
However, provision for current taxation on profits and gains other than from power generation 
project is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation after taking into account tax credits 
and rebates available, if any, in accordance with the provision of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001. It also includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years. 
Deferred 
As the Company's revenue is exempt from tax, therefore no deferred tax has been recognized in 
these financial statements. 

3.15 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue recognition policy 

The Company is in the business of power generation and sate of energy. Revenue from contract 
with customer is recognized when control of the goods are transferred to the customer at an 
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange 
for those goods or services. Specific revenue recognition details are as follows: 

Sale of energy 
Revenue from the sale of energy is recognized upon the transfer of control of the goods to the 
buyer when performance obligation is satisfied, which refers to the transmission of Net Electrical 
Output (NEO) to customer through solar solution installed at premises of customer, as agreed in 
the Agreements for sale and purchase of electricity. 
Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 
The Company concluded that revenue from electricity rs to be recognized at over time because 
the electricity element represents a promise to transfer a series of distinct goods that are 
substantially the same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the customer, therefore the 
electricity represents one performance obligation that is satisfied over time. Further, electricity rs 
distinct and the buyer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit provided by the 
Company. 
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474,517,025 521,225,305 

455, 762,888 

18,754,137 

489,455,992 

31,769,313 

4.1 

4.4 
Operating fixed assets 

Capital work in progress 

- - - Rupees - - - Note 
2023 2024 

4. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Provision of engineering and installation services 

Revenue from the provision of engineering and installation services is recognized when the 
equipment is installed at the customer premises and performance obligation is satisfied, which 
refers to the provision of installation services related to equipment sold by the Company. 

Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations e ·- The Company concluded that revenue from provision of engineering and installation services is to 
be recognized at a point in time when the asset is actually installed at the customer premises by 
the company. The provision of engineering and installation services to the customer represents a 
single performance obligation. Therefore, revenue is recognized when the services are 

3.16 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement 
of financial position if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized 
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 

The Company concluded that revenue from sale of equipment is to be recognized at a point in 
time when the asset is actually transferred to the customer. The transfer of equipment to the 
customer represents a single performance obligation. Therefore, revenue is recognized when the 
control of the asset is transferred to the customer. 

Sale of equipment 

Revenue from the sale of equipment is recognized upon the transfer of control of the goods to the 
buyer when performance obligation is satisfied. which refers to the transfer of equipment to the 
customer. 
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ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED (10) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

4.1 Operating fixed assets 

Plant and Computers equipment Vehicles Total 

------------ Rupees • • • • • - - - - - - • 
Cost 

Balance as at July 01, 2022 753,801,704 296, 166 754,097,870 
Additions during the year 240,000 12,021,097 12,261,097 
Disposals during the year (263,917,526) (587,200) (264,504,726) 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 489,884, 178 536, 166 11,433,897 501,854,241 

Balance as at July 01, 2023 489,884, 178 536, 166 11,1133,897 501,854,241 
Additions during the year 50, 111,836 1,747.471 6,475,820 58,335, 127 
Disposals during the year (894,720) (894,720) 

Balance as at June 30, 2024 539,996,014 2,283,637 17,014,997 559,294,648 

Depreciation 
Balance as at July 01, 2022 24,896,418 152,119 25,048.537 

Charge for the year 26,633, 168 132,194 2,214,553 28.979,915 

On disposals during the year (7,917,526) (19,573) (7,937,099) 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 43,612,060 284,313 2, 194,980 46,091,353 

Balance as at July 01, 2023 43,612,060 284,313 2, 194,980 46,091,353 

Charge for the year 20,635,836 472,837 2,817,574 23,926,247 

On disposals during the year (178,944) (178,944) 

Balance as at June 30, 2024 64,247,896 757,150 4,833,610 69,838,656 

Book value as at 
June 30, 2023 446.272.118 251.853 9.238.917 455. 762.888 

Book value as at 
June 30, 2024 475.748.118 1.526,487 12,"1?1.387 489.455.992 
Depreciation rate (%) 4 33 20 

( 



6.1 This includes stock held by related parties amounting to Rs 3.159 million (2023: Rs 9 268 
million). 

9,780.216 3,158,735 

9,268,098 

512,118 
3,158,735 6.1 Equipment inventory 

Work in progress 

0-3 months 
INVENTORY 6. 

- - - Rupees - - - 
33,016,241 17,664.483 

Note 
2023 2024 

5.1 This relates to an amount receivable from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party). The maximum 
aggregate amount outstanding at any time during the year was Rs.20.272 million(2023 
Rs.17.664 million). 

5.2 Aging of balance due but not impaired: 

5. 
18,754, 137 31,769,313 

- - - Rupees - - - 
18,754,137 
63,127,012 18,754,137 

(50,111,836) ------- 

Opening balance as at 1 July 
Addition during the year 
Transfer to operating fixed assets 

Closing balance as at 30 June 

TRADE DEBTS - unsecured 

2023 2024 Capital work-in-progress 4.4 

2023 264,504,726 7,937 ,099 256,567,627 256,567,627 

715,776 715,776 2024 894, 720 178,944 =================================== 

Mr RizwanuKa n 
iEmplcyee) 

· Campany po;ic·, 715.776 715.775 173.~4 894,720 

Assets having net book value 
exceeding Rs.500,000 each 

Vehicles 
Suzuki /IJ!c 

......... ·······--Rupees···· ·•·•·· 

Sold to: 
Mode of 
disposal 

Gain Sale 
proceeds depreciation value 

Particulars of assets 

4.3 Disposal of Operating Fixed Assets 

Accumu· Net 
Cost lated book -- 

28,979,915 23,926,247 
132, 194 472,836 Administrative expenses 

4.1.1 The Company has purchased vehicles and computer from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party) of 
Rs.2 38 million (2023 Rs. 5.34 million). Atlas Power Limited (a related party) of Rs.Nil (2023 Rs 
3.92 million) and Atlas Solar Limited of Rs. 0.092 million. 

4.1.2 This represents assets installed at Atlas Honda Limited (AHL). a related party. for the purpose of 
generation of solar based energy for the duration of solar energy agreement. 

4.1. 3 The cost of plant and equipment includes provision for equipment restoration amounting to Rs 
3.119 million (2023: Rs. 5.588 million). 

4.1.4 There are fully depreciated assets having cost of Rs.119,500 that are still in use as at year end. 
4.2 Depreciation for the year has been 2024 2023 

apportioned as under: - - - Rupees - - - 
Cost of sales 23,453,411 28,847,721 
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10.1 The Company has arranged long term finance facility amounting Rs.270 million from Habib Bank 
Limited under SBP Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy. The bank against the said facility 
disbursed Rs.203 million in three tranches of different amounts. The loan is repayable in 40 equal 
quarterly installments. These finances carry mark-up at the SBP rate plus 1 % and are secured 
against first charge over all present and future current and non-current assets of the Company 
with the margin of 10% and 20% respectively. 

Less: current portion grouped under 
current liabilities 

- Long term finance facility - phase 2 10.1 

- Long term finance facility - phase 3 10.2 

10.1 

Habib Bank Limited 

- Long term finance facility - phase 1 

Note 

44,692,000 52, 144,000 

79,342,501 93, 157,000 

120,000,000 135,000,000 

244,034,501 280,301,000 

37,554,500 38,517,000 

206,480,001 241,784,000 

2023 
- - - Rupees - - - 

2024 LONG TERM FINANCING - Secured 10. 

9.1.1 The fair value of these investments has been determined using their respective net assets value. 
published by Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) on its website at the reporting date. 

9.2 This represents an investment in term deposits with Habib Bank Limited (a commercial bank) 
having maturity of 1 month and carrying markup ranging from 16.99% to 19.28% (2023: 18.66%) 
oer annum. 

45,076,729 

45,071,833 

51,743,255 

51,737,430 

- - - Rupees - - - 
5,825 4,896 

- - - - Units - - - - - 
11.053 9.336 

101,328.857 88,635.656 
Atlas income funds 
Atlas Money Market Funds 

2023 2024 2023 2024 

9.1 -- 90,743,255 70,076,729 

This represents investment in mutual funds managed by Atlas Asset Management Limited (a 
related Party), the breakup of the investment is as follows: 
Related parties: 

45,076,729 
25,000,000 

48,324,951 

46,513,764 
85,887 

1,725,300 

18,560,474 

17.488,018 
1,072,456 

51,743,255 
39,000,000 

9.1 
9.2 

9. SHORT TERM INVESTMENT 
Investment in mutual funds 
Investment in term deposit receipts 

33,229,281 

32,882,355 
346,926 

8. OTHER RECEIVABLES - considered good 
Sales tax receivable 
Profit receivable 
Security deposits 

10,041,422 

Note 
2023 

- - - Ru pees - - - 
2024 

9, 192,067 
849,355 

LOANS AND ADVANCES - unsecured 
considered good 

Advance tax 
Loans and advances to employees 

7. 
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12. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2024 2023 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Trade creditors 5,728,861 19,425,665 
Provision for equipment restoration 3,119,513 5,588,904 
Income tax deducted at source 26,402 43,047 
Accrued liabilities 8,546,336 6,623.313 --- Provision for workers profit participation fund 17,642,686 12,194,211 
Provision for workers welfare fund 2,459,642 1,971,617 
Retention money payable 458,458 458.458 
Others 1,116,729 1.824.950 

39,098,627 48.130, 165 

13. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

13.1 Contingencies 
There are no contingencies to be reported as at June 30, 2024 (June 30. 2023: Nil}. 
Commitments 

13.2 Guarantees aggregating Rs.500,000 (2023:Rs.500,000) have been issued to Alternative Energy 
Development Board (AEDB) for upgradation of vendor category of the Company through a bank. 

14. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMER - net 
2024 2023 

- - - Rupees - - - e '- Energy Revenue 166,950,317 178.320.838 
Less: sale tax 26,351,887 26,575,527 

140,598,430 151,745,311 
Revenue from sale of solar related equipment 89,701,051 209,772.705 

Less: sale tax 12,469,410 21,825,354 
77,231,641 187,947.351 

Revenue from engineering and consultancy services 18,637,941 17,370,506 
Less: sale tax 2,166 772 2,222,667 

16,471,169 15,147,839 

234,301,240 354.840 .. 501 

14.1 Timing of revenue recognition 
Good transferred to customer over time 140,598,430 151.745.31 '1 

Good transferred to customer at a point in time 93,702,810 203,095 190 

234,301,240 354, 840. 50 i 

This represent amount received from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party) equivalent to three 
months energy invoices. 

10.2 The Company, during the year end June 30 2022, has arranged long term finance facility 
amounting Rs.272.5 million under SBP Green Financing Facility repayable in 40 equal quarterly 
instalments. This facility has obtained by the Company for the purpose of financing the capital 
expenditure This facility is secured by current and non-current assets of the Company with the 
margin of 20%. The rate of mark-up is 4%. The mark-up will be payable on each quarter along 
with the payment of principal. This facility also includes certain financial covenants. breaches in 
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call these bank facilities. 

11. SECURITY DEPOSIT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (13) ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 

. -------······-------------------------· .. ···-····----- .. ·------ '-------------- 



ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED (14) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

15. COST OF SALES 2024 2023 
Note - - - Rupees - - - 

Cost of solar related equipment 82,525,077 156,206,687 

Depreciation 4.2 23,453,411 28.847,721 

NEPRA generation license fees 293,360 226.704 

Operation and maintenance cost 3,807,794 2,493,125 

Insurance of plant and equipment 3,334,398 4,617,721 

113,414,040 192,391.958 
16. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

Legal and professional charges 846,140 829.056 

Auditor's remuneration 16.1 368,345 361,504 

e --- Depreciation 4.2 472,836 132.194 

Donations 16.2 1,122,103 2,307.741 

Membership and annual subscription fee 180,500 1.065,882 

Others 1,363,252 1 ,068,285 

4,353,176 5,764,662 

16.1 Auditors' remuneration 
Annual audit fee - current year 330,000 330.050 

- out of pocket 30,000 
- sales tax 16,500 
- prior year (8,155) 31,454 

368,345 361,504 

16.2 This includes an amount of Rs.1.094 million (2023: Rs.1 million) paid to Atlas Foundation {a 
related party). 

17. FINANCE COST 2024 2023 -- Note - - - Rupees - - - 
Markup on long term finance 10,728,341 41,832,634 
Bank charges 41,258 35,542 

10,769,599 41,868.176 

18. OTHER INCOME 
Profit on term deposit receipts 4,851,673 7,646,899 
Gain on mutual funds 9,286,843 
Unrealized gain on mutual funds 1,138,347 

14,138,516 8,785,246 

19. OTHER EXPENSES 
Workers profit participation fund 5,448,475 12,194,211 
Workers welfare fund 2,244,205 1,971,617 

7,692,680 14,165,828 

20. TAXATION 
Current tax on profit for the year 20.1 4,317,107 14.255,362 
Adjustment in respect ot prior year (3,797,117) 451,047 

519,990 14.706.409 



- market risk 

- credit risk; and 

- liquidity risk. 

The Company's Board of Directors (the Board) has overall responsibility for the establishment and 
oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for 
developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. 

The Company's overall risk management programmed focuses on the unpredictability of financial 
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance 
Risk management is carried out by a treasury department under policies approved by the Board 
The treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks. The Board provides 
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas 
such as currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk. use of derivative and non-derivative financial 
instruments and investment of excess liquidity. 

22. -- 
(16,724,218) (157,387,864) 

(22,506,299) (218,944,519) ===========~ 
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

22,033,587 
(110,006,649) 

(69,414,802) 

(16,724,218) 

(61,556,655) 

15,403,388 
(10,955,961) 
(16, 105,914) 
(65,231,862) 
15,333,694 

Increase I (decrease) in current liabilities: 
- trade and other payables 
• project payable 
- contract liability 

(5,782,081) 

6,621,481 
(15,351,758) 

8,519,052 
(20,666,526) 
15,095,670 

21.1 Working capital changes 
(Increase) I decrease in current assets: 

- inventory 
• trade debts 
- advances 
- short term investment 
- other receivables 

-- 
21.'t 

23,926,247 28,979,915 
10,728,341 41,832,634 

5,448,475 12, 194.211 

2,244,205 1,971,617 
(22,506,299) {218,944,519) 

132,051,230 (24,531,019) 

20.1 No deferred tax assets or liability has been recognised as the revenue generated by Company is 
exempt from tax as explained m note 3 .14 The above tax amount includes provision for taxation 
of Rs.2.234.087 (2023. Rs.14,049,032) on revenue from sale of solar relate equipment and from 
engineenng and consulting services. 

21. CASH GENERATED FROM 2024 2023 
OPERATIONS Note • • • Rupees - - - 

Profit before taxation 112,210,261 109,435 123 
Adjustments for non-cash and other items: 
Depreciation 
Finance cost 
Provision for workers profit participation fund 
Provision for workers welfare fund 
Working capital changes 
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33,229,281 48.324.951 
90,743,255 70.076.729 
5,887,255 2 782 986 ------- 

162,876,032 138.849 149 
======= 

- - - Rupees - - - 
33,016,241 17,664.483 Trade debts 

Other receivables 
Short term investments 
Cash and bank balances 

2023 2024 

22.1 Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a trnancial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks. currency risk. 
interest rate risk and price risk 

(a) Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly 
where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered mto foreign currencies. The 
Company is not exposed to currency risk as all financial instruments are in local currency 

(b) Price risk 

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency 
risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instruments 
or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The 
Company is not exposed to price risk with respect to its investments in mutual funds as at June 
30, 2024. 

(c) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company manages these mismatches 
through risk management strategies where significant changes in gap position can be adjusted. 
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on long term finances and its investment in term 
deposit receipts. 

22.2 Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk 

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter party fails to discharge its obligation and 
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by 
monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and continually 
assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties. 

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar 
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet 
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other 
conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Company's 
performance to developments affecting a particular industry. 

Credit risk primarily arises from trade debts, advances, other receivables, short term investments 
and balances with banks. To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts. 
management performs credit reviews taking into account the customer's financial position. past 
experience and other relevant factors. Where considered necessary, advance payments are 
obtained from certain parties. The management has set a maximum credit period of 15 days to 
reduce the credit risk. Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks with 
reasonably high credit ratings. 
Exposure to credit risk 
The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2024 along with comparative is tabulated 
below: 
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2023 
Contractual cash flows 

Particulars Carrying Less than 1 Between 1 to 5 More than 5 
amount Total year years years 

·········--Rupees-·········· 

Long term financing 280,301.000 322.311,759 46,038.121 208.048,884 68,224.754 

Trade and other payables 48.130,165 45,130.165 48, 130.165 

Accrued mark-up 2,895391 2,895,391 2,895.391 

Security deposit 28.000.000 28,000.000 28,000,00C 

359.326,556 401,337.315 97,063.677 208048,884 96,224,754 

-- 

244,034,501 
39,098,627 

2,529,029 
28,000,000 

Long term financing 
Trade and other payables 

Accrued mark-up 
Security deposit 

Carrying 
amount 

Particulars 

2024 
Contractual cash flows 

Total 
Less than 1 Between 1 to More than 5 

year 5 years years 

• • • • • • • · • • • Rupees • • • • • • • • • • • 
278,513,577 46,791,799 200,658,627 31,063,151 
39,098,627 39,098,627 

2,529,029 2,529,029 
28,000,000 28,000!000 

348, 141,233 88.419,455 200,658,627 59,063,151 313,662, 157 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they 
fall due. The Company's approach is to ensure. as far as possible, to always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining 
sufficient cash and marketable securities and ensuring the availability of adequate credit facilities. 
The Company's treasury department aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping 
committed credit lines available. 
Financial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below: -- 

Rating 
Name of Bank short term long term agency 
National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA VIS 
Habib Bank Limited A1+ AAA VIS 

22.3 Liquidity risk 

The credit quauty of loans and other receivables can be assessed with reference to their historical 
performance with no or negligible defaults in recent history and no losses incurred. Accordingly 
management does not expect any counter party to fail in meeting their obligations 
The credit quality of the Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to the external 
credit ratings as follows 
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320,809.556 276, 1 07 ,657 

241.784,000 
28,000.000 

2.895,391 
48130,165 

206,480,001 
28,000,000 

2,629,029 
39,098,627 

2024 2023 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Financial liabilities 
as per statement of 

financial position 
Long term financing 
Security deposit 
Accrued mark.-up 
Trade and other payables 
Project payable 

Amortised cost 

33,016,241 17,664.483 
33,229,281 48,324,951 
90,743,255 70.076,729 

5,887,265 2.782,986 ------- 
162,876,032 138,849, 149 

- - - Rupees - - - 
2023 2024 Financial assets 

as per statement of 
financial position 

Trade debts 
Other receivables 
Short term investments 
Cash and bank balances 

-- Amortised cost 

changes in market and trading activity (e.g. significant increases f decreases in activity} 

changes in inputs used in valuation techniques (e.g. inputs becoming I ceasing to be 
observable in the market) 

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the year. 
22.5 Financial instruments by category 

Level 3: 

Level 1: 

Level 2: 
Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability. either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is. derived from 
prices). 
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that 
is, unobservable inputs}. 

As at June 30. 2024, all financial assets and financial liabilities reflected in the financial 
statements approximate to their fair values. 
The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the 
reporting period during which the transfer has occurred. 
The Company's policy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy have 
occurred includes monitoring of the following factors: 

- 

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the 
basis of mark-up I interest rates effective at the respective year-ends. The rates of mark-uo I 
interest have been disclosed in the respective notes to these financial statements. 

22.4 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date 
under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly 
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. 
The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the 
following levels: 
Valuation techniques used to determine fair values 
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119 500,000 119,500.000 
(274.091,000} (274,091,000) 

(45,575, 943) (45,575,943) 

280,301,000 (38,937,243) 241,363,757 
41,832,634 41,832,634 

280,301,000 2,895,391 283,196,391 

......... Rupees . 
434.892,000 6,638,700 441,530,700 Balance as at July 01. 2022 

Finances obtained 
Finances repaid 

Finance cost paid 

Total changes from financing cash flows 
Mark-up I interest expense 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 

mark-up 
Total 

Liabilities 
Accrued 
interest I 

Long term 
finances 

(36,266,500) (36,266,500) 
(11,094,703) (11,094,703) 

244,034,500 (B,199,312) 235,835,188 
10,728,341 10,728,341 

244,034,500 2,529,029 246,563,529 Balance as at June 30, 2024 

•........ Rupees . 
280,301,000 2,895,391 283,196,391 Balance as at July 01, 2023 

Finances obtained 

Finances repaid 
Finance cost paid 

Total changes from financing cash flows 

Mark-up I interest expense 

e- 
mark-up 

Total 

Liabilities 
Accrued 
interest I 

long term 
finances 

For the purpose of calculating the gearing ratio, the amount of total borrowings has been 
determined by including the effect of short term borrowings under mark-up arrangements (if any). 

22.7 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF UABILITES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING 
FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 

2024 2023 
Rupees 

Total borrowings 244,034,501 280.301.000 - -- Less: cash and bank balances 5,887,255 2,782,986 
Net debt 238,147,246 277,518,014 
Total equity 376,601,463 267,631,959 

Total capital 614,748,709 545, 149,973 

Gearing ratio 39% 51% 

22.6 Capital risk management 

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a 
going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders benefits for other 
stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its 
business. 

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes 
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the 
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders and I or 
issuer new shares. 
Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. 
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total 
borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the 
statement of financial position plus net debt. 
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- - - Rupees - - - 

3,922.536 

551,124 426,528 

144,249,763 151,745,322 

256,000,000 

2,375,511 5,344,561 

2,649,611 
89,327,694 

214,803 

1,094,351 1,800,743 

105,907,090 

92,180 

5,846,484 4,617,721 

23,337,874 20,506,726 

2024 2023 
KWH KWH 

8,712 8.123 

62,439,847 58,975,873 

9,345,997 8.757.176 

9,345,997 8.779.818 

2023 2024 

Actual net electricity billed 

Standard generation from installed capacity 

Installed capacity 

Installed capacity-per hour (MW) 

Key management perosnal Salary & benefits 

24. PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 

Insurance premium paid 

Purchase of assets Atlas Solar Limited 

Atlas Insurance limited 

Donation paid 

Advance received 

Revenue earned 

Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan limited 

Revenue earned 

Revenue earned 

Revenue earned 

Atlas Battery limited 

Atlas Autos (Private) Limited 

Atlas Foundation 

e- 

Atlas Power Limited Purchase of assets 

Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited Services received 

Atlas Honda Limited Revenue earned 

Sales of assets 

Purchase of assets 

Names of Company 

e -- 

(20) 

23. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
Related parties comprise of the Parent company, Associated companies. directors and key 
management personnel. The Company in the norma! course of business carries out transactions 
with various related parties Detail of related parties (with whom the Company has transacted) 
along with relationship and transactions with related parties. other than those which have been 
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows: 

23.1 Name of the related party 
Holding Company 
Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited (100% shareholding) 
Associated Companies (due to common directorship) 
Atlas Power Limited 
Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited 
Atlas Solar Limited (formerly Zhenfa Pakistan New Energy Company Limited) 
Atlas Honda Limited 
Atlas Engineering (Private) Limited 
Atlas Autos (Private) Limited 
Atlas Insurance Limited 
Atlas Battery Limited 
Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited 
Atlas Foundation 

23.2 Significant transactions with related parties are as follows: 

Nature and Description of 
Related Party Transaction 
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Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer 

~·l--- 
~irector 

Corresponding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflect more appropriate 
presentation of events and transactions for the purpose of comparison in accordance with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. However, no significant 
reclassification has been made in these financial statements. 

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE 

These condensed interim financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and 
authorized tor issue on 2 e AUG 202'\, 

28. 

-- 
Total number of employees obtaining remuneration as at June 30, 2024 is 15 (2023 6) and 
average number of employees for the year ended June 30, 2024 is 8 (2023: 6). 

27. CORRESPONDING FIGURES 

Remuneration paid to executives of the Company - - - Rupees 
is as follows: 

Managerial remuneration 19,326,396 15.196,356 
Performance bonus 7,082,558 6,500,924 
Reimbursements 2,722,831 1.871.924 
Retirement benefits 1,445,040 909.744 

30,576,825 24,478,948 
Number of person 3 2 

26. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 

25. RENUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE 
No remuneration has been paid lo chief executive or to any of the director of the Company 

2024 2023 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (21) ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 



• 

3( 4)( d)(iv) expressions of interest to provide credit or 
fmancing along with sources and details thereof; 



3(4)(d)(v)documents describing the net worth and the equity 
and debt ratios of the applicant, as on the date of the audited 

balance sheet accompanying the application; 

• 



Atlas Energy Limited 
Registered Office: 64/XX, Khayaban-e-Iqbal, DHA Phase 3, Lahore. 

Tel: +92-42-37132637-38-39, Fax: +92-42-37132634 

= 11.42 Profit before Interest & Tax 
Interest Expense 

= Interest Coverage Ratio • 
=0.65 Total Debt 

Total Equity 
= Debt to Equity Ratio 

= 0.35 Total Debt 
Total Assets 

= Debt to Asset Ratio 

Ratios 

Net worth 

320,700,031 

376,601,463 

Total Liabilities 

697,301,494 Total Assets 

Rs. 
Net Worth 
As at June 30, 2024 

-71 
~Atlas Energy 



• 

3(4)(d)(vi) * a reasonably detailed profile of the applicant 
and the applicant's senior management, technical and 

professional staff; 

• 
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• Acqunntion 

20'2,1 ~~ \bcalimal Training lmtilll1c /\ traning center fer u:ytur:ing a shillecl workforce. 

The Groun·s CSR W'ng responsble for oror-iot ng Eoucatir..r and 
Heallr1c:cire. 

----·-······-· .... 

A 100 MW solar power project. 

MarulcJcturer of c,rcuit assemoles fur electrical components o1 

two-wneeters. 

Marufacturer of motorcycles chains in collaboration with Daido. Jaoan. 

Provider ot alternative energy solutions. 

International trading wing engaged :n import and expert of raw 
material parts, machinery. and medical equornert. 

Manufacturer ot motorcycles and electrical carts in conaooration with 
Denso, Japan . 

Manufacturer of high precision auto parts with auto finance and 
lubricant distribution sub divisions. 

Group's internationai holding company tor trading and resourcing 
opportunities. 

International trading wing engaged 1n import and export of raw 
materials and parts. 

A 225 MW independent power producer. 

Provder of high-quality fund rnanaqernent 'or rarge of equity and 
debt products. 

Sale and drstnbution ot domestic and incustria: Honda power 
products. 

Manutacturer of premium ouanv and h.:ei-ettcient Honda automobses . 

Manufac:ures precision engineer:n~ autorrotive components 

Prominent insurance corroanv orovi(li'1g ge"eral insurance cove-aoe 
tor both conventional and Takatul categories. 

Tr8d1n9 companv repres8n".r1u worli..1-rer•own:::cl t)ra11cts :11 rneclir::;8 
systems. industridl suit.I.ions ar rd o'fice eqdpn·1en1. 

Leacli'ig manufacturer of A(3S oraoded leao-acic batteries for OEM 
and after-sales market 

Markel k,&Ju !ri t··.e 1•1c1nlL1ctur·,ll,3. J1,.;tni~·c1fr.,r;_ c111u a!:cr·<id!8~ c: 
'-NCrld·:·e11uwr·ec1 hondc1 ·11u:·x::yc;,;;:::. 

1986 ....,, .... Ll"-Atlas Foundation 

2019 J'~ Solar 

2019 ~~GCI 

• 

\)f,;.? )'f~hirazi Investments 

1962 .)f';tlas Honda 

1966 ~~Battery 

1975 ~~irazi Trading 

1080" ~~ Insurance 

198i" 
"'~ F.ngineering 

i992 HONDA 
Honda Atlas Cars 

1997 HONDA 
Honda Atlas Power Product 

2002 ~~Asset Management 

2007 ~~Power 

-~ 
2007 ~Adas World Wide 

2008 ~~Venture 

2011 *~Autos 
2012 ~AdasHitec 

2015 Jit~Global FZE 

2016 ~tlas Energy 

2019 J'~DJ.D 

• 

Continuing the Journey of Excellence 
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~as World Wide 
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Email: 1nfo@agci.atlas.pk 
wwN.aga.atlas.pk 

~tlas Hitec 
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Email: info@ahtl.atlas.pk 
v,.,ww. ahtl.atlas .pk 
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~tlas Foundation 
2nd Floor, Federation House. 
Shara-e-Firdousi C!if:o,. 
Ke1rach1-75t3C.(1 
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~tlas Venture 

United Arab Emirates 
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Honda Atlas Cars 
,!3-KM, M~ttan Clo2.ri. Ma-iga Mnncl!. 
l...ahore-54 3QC. 
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w1Nw. ronca corr; .pk 

• 

~~Trading 
f'l:~,t xo. l ·.1::: Al·lv'1i1~fl?.=t 
Con1,,.~1T:ia L .. ,,,,,, -. -: 
K'·ayah(l!F' k";ha, P·v1si~ VII, 
,.JHA. Kar;:;.cl'1 
r·hor\es: -r-:J2 21 -:3~., 788:>t 5,!. 

337C42.0:lll·41, '.kl7()484f,.,m 
Err..;L tnio?.;.·stc.atnf. r>~ 
·.N~v 1,:. s:c .Fillas c-k 

· .. ::n<J -=10,:,r, F€'")£-",,;1h:')': -~0L.St~. 
S ·· ara l Fir:fL,1 k:1. 
C:ir! 1); :, KGrdc~1i· /'.~J·)::~1 
F--n'1~s,. 1 • ,.sn -Sll n ! ,,./-:=_ .. ;· ::)_I 

35369-·! 7- -r J 
"-tc,: :35::1':!, 1 ~~ 
Emal. into:g;:;,U., c;;:.;:v 
·,•.r,">;\'J ,::,,:.,Jll,.l:i.J.'~- 

~~ Investments 

. ,~dd c,1·i1..;r:,!; 2· kl t-·c,_1~. F ~d111-:Hi1.•l) I i:}1,i':i+:' SI 1 ... \ ... 0:.1·-:-·-=-i,.f k. .re; ,:u:,~il. ~.:~r-::·~ t u- 7S6((; 
::.,: :~_np,~. . . , ... : -::)-,. ,r .I, . J;1.k1~: 1° • - ~. r ,'1.,, ,:, ,:;;; i~,,!.-:_;•fr5. F rH;_"'lil: I IL 1f'!,1'-(1',..;_: .i:j ~n f'1k, •AIINV'J ;:1,;(,-t...;,1 ~l_.'l l .f :·t,.. 

~~ 
ll11111f Atlas Offices 



AS ENERGY LIMITEI 
ATL Company Profil 

'd} 

~AtlasEnerg 
• 



1.1.2. The registered office of the Company is situated at 64/XX, Khayaban-e-Iqbal, Phase-III, 
DHA, Lahore. 

1.1.1. Atlas Energy Limited was incorporated as an unquoted - public limited company in 
Pakistan on 18 May 2016, under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. 

1.1. Introduction 

Being Competitive to provide unique, advance and effective solar solutions to 
industrial and commercial customers in safe, reliable and environment friendly 

manner acting with integrity following sound practices with a sense of service in a 
culture that respects and values the satisfaction of our customers. • 

Mission: 

A leading Company in Solar industry in all respects -providing cost effective 
tailored solutions for industrial and commercial consumer through sale of power, 

Engineering, Procurement and construction (EPC), operation and Maintenance and 
giving attractive return to investors being responsible corporate citizen and 

employer of choice. 

Vision: 

Atlas Energy Limited • 'The Atlas Way' is sacrosanct to the Group. It will continue to guide and inspire - generation after generation . 

The dynamic and professional work ethic that Mr. Shirazi nurtured was instrumental in the sustainable development 
of Atlas Group. Central to his vision was building long-term partnerships that would endure. The 60-year-plus 
collaborations with Japanese and European multinationals reflect the virtue of'The Atlas Way.' 

Mr. Shirazi formed Atlas Group in 1962 with the development spirit of indigenising Pakistan's industrial base. This 
philosophy was encapsulated in the Group motto: 'Organisation Development through Self-Development.' 

Mr. Yusuf H. Shirazi, the Founder Chairman of Atlas Group, penned his raison d'etre in 'The Atlas Way.' The 
words represent the Group ethos. 

Atlas Group: 

~~ Jt fAtlasEnergy 



• 

• Lahore Chamber of Commerce & Industry (LCCI) 
• Pakistan China Joint Chamber of Commerce & Industry (PCJCCI) 
• Pakistan Engineering Council (PEC) 
• Alternative Energy Development Board (AEDB) 

1.1.6. Membership of Industry & Associations: 

• Directors: 
Mr. Frahim Ali Khan 
Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi 
Mr. Maqsood Ahmad • 

1.1.5. The Applicant Company has three Directors, besides the Auditor and Legal Advisor named 
below: 

1.1.4. The Applicant Company has the financial strength to meet with the requirements of the 
Projects through its parent Company Shirazi Investments Private Limited - parent company 
held 100% ordinary shares of the Company. 

1.1.3. The Company was incorporated to provide cost effective tailored solar solutions for 
industrial and commercial consumer through sale of power, Engineering, Procurement and 
construction (EPC), operation and Maintenance and giving attractive return to investors. 

~ Jt fAtias Energy 



List of Projects: 

Some of our successful completed projects are as follows: 

Size of 
Sr. No. Category Project Name/ Location Nature of Installation 

Work (kWp) 

l. Industrial Honda Atlas Cars Pak Ltd. 
EPC 497.70 

(43 km Multan Rd, Manga, Lahore) 

2. Domestic DHA Phase-V, Karachi EPC 6.00 

• 3. Domestic DHA Phase-V, Karachi EPC 6.00 

4. Industrial 
Engine Plant 

EPA 589.05 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp. Road, Skp) 

5. Industrial Pakistan Cables (Nooriabad, Sindh) EPA 7.20 

6. Industrial Parking Sheds EPA 405.79 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

7. Domestic Zaman Park Lahore EPA 12.00 

8. Industrial 
Subassembly/ Frame Line EPA 769.08 • (Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

9. Industrial 
Component Parts EPA 663.25 

(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

10. Industrial 
DCC-2 EPA 752.40 

(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

Atlas Industrial Park Karachi 
11. Industrial Plot No. 347A, Shed No 2, 15th Miles, National Highway, EPC 864.56 

Landhi, Karachi. 

12. Industrial 
Atlas Honda Limited Karachi EPC 96.3 

F-36 Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E. Area Karachi. 

~tlasEnergy 
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l 3. Industrial Atlas Battery Limited Karachi 
EPC 301.74 

D-181 Central Avenue, S.I.T.E Area Karachi. 

14. Commercial Atlas Vocational Training Institute EPC 72.76 
Sheikhupura 

15. Industrial Stamping Building 
EPA 215.82 

(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

16. Industrial 
Honda Atlas Cars Pak Ltd. 

EPC 970.1 
(43 km Multan Rd, Manga, Lahore) 

17. Industrial CBU/SPL Building EPA 2,250.85 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

18. Industrial 
Test Track EPA 2,621.45 

(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

19. Industrial Pakistan Cables Limited EPC 2023.04 
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2.1. Mr. Frahim Ali Khan 
Director 
Mr. Frahim Ali Khan has over 50 years of experience in General Management, Finance, 
Investment and Taxation. He graduated in commerce from University of Karachi in 1965 
and also obtained a degree in law from the same university. He also attended the Senior 
Managers' Program at Harvard University, USA, Financial Management Program from 
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2. Profile of Management 



Mr. Maqsood Ahmad Basra boasts an impressive career spanning several decades, marked 
by his significant contributions across various sectors and companies in different 
capacities. He is serving as the Group Director Business Development in Power at Atlas 
Group, plays a pivotal role in the Group's growth. He has been serving as the Chief 
Executive Officer of Atlas Solar Limited and Atlas Energy Limited. His tenure at Atlas 
Group includes a role as Group Director Corporate Affairs and Management Audit, 
highlighting his enduring commitment to the organization. With notable experience at 
renowned companies such as Atlas Honda Limited and Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) 
Limited, Maqsood's career is a testament to his exceptional expertise and adaptability in 
the corporate world. 
He is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of Pakistan. 
He also holds a Master's degree in Islamic Studies from Punjab University, Lahore, and 
has completed Banking Diplomas from the Institute of Bankers of Pakistan. Additionally, 
he attended the Advanced Management Program at INSEAD, France. Prior to that, he 
participated in various advanced courses on general management and leadership at LUMS, 
MAP, the Administrative Staff College, and the British Council." 

2.3. Mr. Maqsood Ahmad 

Director & CEO 

He is at present a member of Prime Minister's Business Council, Engineering Development 
Board and Pakistan Cables' Board. He was Harvard Business School's Global Alumni 
Board President for the years 2006-2008. At present, he is on the Advisory Boards of 
Harvard Business School, Veon Jazz and British International Investment Pakistan. 

Saquib Shirazi is the Chief Executive Officer of Atlas Honda Limited. He is a graduate of 
the Wharton School of Finance and did his MBA from the Harvard Business School. In 
addition to being a member of the Atlas Group, he is currently the Chairman of Pakistan 
Business Council. In the past, he has served on the Boards of Pakistan Petroleum Limited, 
National Refinery Limited, Sui Southern Gas Company Limited, Cherat Cement Limited, 
Cherat Paper Limited, Privatization Commission of Pakistan and as Chairman PAMA. 

Director 

2.2. Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi 

He joined the Atlas Group in 1967 and has served in different positions. Currently, his 
other directorships include Atlas Battery Limited, Atlas Power Limited, Atlas Engineering 
Limited, Shirazi Trading Company (Private) Limited, Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited, Atlas 
Metals (Private) Limited and Atlas Asset Management Limited. 

Stanford University, USA and General Management Program from Insead University, 
France. 



• 

3(4)(d)(vii) employment records of engineering and 
technical staff of the applicant proposed to be employed; 

• 



• Routine maintenance and troubleshooting of machines situated at Polymer, Lead and Aluminum recycle 
plants and their utilities. 

• Assist HOD in preparation of annual preventive maintenance schedule. 
• Ensure all maintenance records (SOPs, ISO Docs & PM Cards) are maintained. 
• Responsible for technical coordination with procurement department, before and after receiving the spare of 

inventory. 
• Providing assistance in ISO Certification (14001 & 45001) and implementation. 
• Assist the HOD in preparation of contracts and agreements and verification of invoices for project & 

maintenance works. 
• Coordination with vendors, suppliers and OEM for purchase and installation of equipment. 
• Contributes to team effort by accomplishing related results as needed. 

~tlas Metals 
Atlas Metals (PVT) Limited, Pakistan (January 2018 -June 2019) 

(Assistant Manager Technical Division) 

• Experience in installing solar systems for residential, commercial & industrial applications. 
• Expertise in assessing site suitability for solar installations and optimizing system performance. 
• Ability to read and interpret technical drawings and schematics. 
• Demonstrated knowledge of solar panel mounting, wiring, and connection procedures. 
• Familiarity with inverters, charge controllers, batteries, and other solar system components. 
• Competence in using tools and equipment specific to solar installation. 
• Lead or participated in solar system installation projects from start to finish. 
• Coordinated with clients, engineers, and other stakeholders to ensure successful implementation. 
• Managed project timelines, budgets, and resources effectively. 
• Conducted inspections and quality control checks to ensure compliance with standards. 
• Performed system testing, including voltage measurements and performance evaluations. 
• Implemented corrective actions to address any issues or deficiencies. 
• Educated customers about the benefits of solar energy and system maintenance. 
• Demonstrated a strong commitment to safety protocols and adherence to regulations. 
• Implemented safety measures to protect personnel and ensure a safe work environment. 
• Coordinates materials and assists in the logistics, its shipment and receipt at construction site. 
• Monitors work in progress and prepares weekly report of the status of each assignment. 

~:;7' 
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Atlas Energy Limited, Pakistan (July 2019 - Present) 
(Manager Solar Project & Operation) 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE - OBJECTIVE 

Experienced and results-driven Solar Manager with a proven track record of success in overseeing solar energy projects 

from inception to completion. Possesses deep knowledge of renewable energy systems, with a focus on maximizing 

energy efficiency and sustainability. Skilled in project management, team leadership, and regulatory compliance within 

the solar industry. Adept at fostering collaborative relationships with stakeholders to achieve project goals on time and 

within budget. Strong analytical skills combined with a passion for environmental conservation and renewable energy 

solutions. 

CAREER SUMMARY 

MECHANICAL ENGINEER 
Current Location: G-1/16 A Gulfishan Society, Malir Halt, Karachi Pakistan 

Mobile No: +923452409929 
Passport No: DL5138602 

Email: atifminhasraiput@gmail.com 

ATIF SHABBIR 



• Efficient Team player & Team building skills 
• Time Management 
• Highly energetic and self-motivated resource. 
• Excellent communication & leadership skills. 
• Apt command on MS office applications. 

ADDITIONAL SKILLS 

• Certificate in Information Technology (CIT) from Pakistan Advance Software Service (PASS) 
• Initiating and Planning Projects (online course authorized by University of California, Irvine and offered through 

Coursera) 
• Solar PV Design, Integration & Performance (PVlOl) from ETRC. 
• Technical Training on Solar Energy from Jinko Solar. 
• Introduction to Renewable (RElOO) from Solar Energy International. 
• AUTOCAD from Ministry of Information Technology (Govt of Pakistan). 
• HSE Management System and Internal Auditors Training for IS0-14001 & IS0-45001 
• Permit to Work (PTW) & Lock Out/Tag Out (LOTO) Training from HSE department 
• Solar Energy System design by The State University of New York. 
• Project Management Tracker from Coursera 

TRAINING & CERTIFICATIONS 

• B.E (Mechanical) from NUST-PNEC Karachi, in 2016 
• F Sc {Pre-Engineering) A+ from Bahria College Karsaz Karachi, in 2012 
• SSC (Science) A+ from Minhaj Model School Karachi, in 2010 

EDUCATIONAL CREDENTIALS 

l'AKlS.IAN 
Pakistan International Airline (June 2015) 
(Engineering Intern) 

• Machining operations 
• NDT Testing Methods 
• Composite Material Maintenance Department 
• Engine overhauling 

Karachi Shipyard & Engineering Works (January 2015) 
(Engineering Intern) 

• Observe different activities, i.e. welding inspection and Nondestructive Testing. 
• Radiography of Steel Sheet to identify defects. 
• Manufacturing of Oil Tanker Ship, collaboration with China & Turkey. 

INTERNSHIPS , 

• Understanding the P&IDs of plant including fuel system, lube oil system, cooling water system, air system, 
steam system and fire-fighting system. 
Understanding of plant operations including startup, shutdown, plant island mode, equipment 
changeover and condition monitoring. 
Understanding of Fuel and Lube Oil Purification units, RO unit, Auxiliary and Waste Heat Recovery Boilers. 
Understanding of Reciprocating compressors and pumps, screw pumps, centrifugal pumps and 
pneumatic pumps. 
Hands-on participation in scheduled and breakdown maintenance activities of engines and their 
auxiliaries and managing inventory, CMMS, daily and monthly reports. 

TAPAL 
ENERGY 12xll.34 MW Wartsila Diesel Engines (Running on HFO) with MAN turbochargers. 

Ta pal Energy limited, Pakistan (January 2017 -January 2018) 
(Trainee Engineer- Power Generation) 
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•:• Atlas Energy Limited (Atlas Group) Karachi From: 01-07-2019 to Present 
Designation: Manager Projects 

Job Description: 
';;, Monitor, Identifies and Analysis all projects costs with a view of facilitating the completion of the Project at 

minimum cost and within budget limits. 
;;;.- Prepared the Bill of Quantities, Capability Criteria and Special Terms and Conditions for contacts of 

Installation and Commissioning of Civil, Structure and Electrical work. 
~ Installation and Commissioning of l.2MWp RCC Roof Mounted Solar Power Project Atlas Industrial Park, 

Atlas Battery and Atlas Honda Karachi Plant. 
~ Installation and Commissioning of 2MWp PEB Roof Mounted Solar Power Project Atlas Honda and Atlas 

Autos, Sheikhupura. 
~ Installation, Commissioning, Operations and Maintenance of 2.04KWp PEB roof Mounted Solar Power Project 

Pakistan Cables Site, Nooriabad. 
', Installation, Commissioning, Operations and Maintenance of 405KWp Car Porch Solar Power Project Atlas 

Honda, Shiekhupura. 
, Installation, Commissioning, Operations and Maintenance of 589KWp Double Tee Roof Mounted Solar Power 

Project Atlas Honda, Shiekhupura. 
, Installation, Commissioning, Operations and Maintenance of 12KWp Roof Mounted Solar Power Project DHA, 

Karachi. 
:,.... Design of L V Panel, SLD, AC/DC Cables as per load calculation and strings as per Invertors and Modules 

specifications. 
', Interfacing of Data Logger with lnvertors and Weather Station in order to receive remote information and 

monitoring. 
, Installation, Commissioning, Operations and Maintenance of ABB, Fronius and Huawei Inverters and Jinko 

Solar Modules. 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

, Water flow control through IR radiations using at89s52 Microcontroller based on Tx-Rx and 
temperature sensors. 

FINAL YEAR PROJECT 

Degree Institute/ Board Division/Grade Year 

M.Engg. NED University of Engineering and First Division 2018 
(Electrical Power ) Technology Karachi 

PGC CCEE NED University of Engineering First Division 2016 
(Electrical Power) and Technology Karachi 
B.Sc. (PEC Regr.) University of Engineering and First Division 2014 

(Electrical Engineering) Technology Peshawar 
HSC Board oflntermediate Education First Division 2009 

(Pre Enaineerinz) Karachi 
Matric Board of Secondary Education First Division 2007 

{Science) Karachi 

EDUCATIONAL OUALIFICA TION 

Seeking a challenging opportunity in an organization with highly competitive and demanding environment where 
I can exploit my knowledge and skill with full spirit. 

OBJECTIVE 

Engr.Rizwan Ullah 
Postal Address: H # 4090, St. # 09, H-Area, New Muzaffarabad Landhi Karachi, District Karachi Malir. 
Mobile: +92334-3114582 
Email: rizwanullah765@yahoo.com 
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:;... Excellent communication and interpersonal skills 
',.- Organized and methodical with good time management and planning. 
, Ability to remain calm and focused under pressure and work within strict deadlines. 
:;... A committed team player, able to motivate and inspire others and work in a cohesive team. 

KEY SKILLS 

-,.. Extensive experience of Microsoft Office, and Electronics Software's like Pspice and ETAP. 
', AutoCAD 20, C++ Programing Language, Matlab and Assembly Programming Language. 

•:• PakistanSteelBinQasimKarachi From: 21-08-2015 to 20-08-2017 
Designation: Trainee Engineer 

Job Description: 
~ Cable Selection according to the load requirement, Russian, PVC and XLPE cables joint and end termination. 
},- Daily Load Calculation, analysis and trend of Gulshan-e-Hadeed Phase-I, Steel Town and entire Plant zone 

wise. 
', Record, analyze and report energy conswnption and cost on a regular basis in order to identify Energy Saving 

Opportunities. 
, Repair/Maintenance and daily patrolling of 04 Nos. of 132KV Transmission Lines consisting Single Line and 

Double Line lattice type towers configuration. 
-,. Monthly reading and hence energy bill calculation for at least 8000 Domestic and Commercial Consumers of 

Gulshan-e-Hadeed and Steel Town. 
, Plan and execution of PPM and H.V Testing of BOCB's, MOCB's and VCB's ranging from 600A to 2500A 

more than 1000 units. 
, Schedule and its daily execution regarding the PPM, inspection and capital repair of all equipment installed in 

50 Nos. of Distribution Stations located all over the Plant. 
..,,. Monthly/Yearly PPM, Protection and Testing of Distribution and Power Transformers ranging from 750KVA 

to 63MVA. 
TECHNICAL SKILLS AND TOOLS 

•:• Atlas Metals Pvt. Limited (Atlas Group) Karachi From: 01-01-2018 to 30-06-2019 
Designation: Assistant Manager Maintenance 

Job Description: 
:, Maintenance of DG Set on daily/monthly and running hour basis that is used in case of unavailability of power 

supply from K Electric. 
~ Maintenance of power factor capacitor bank panel in order to ensure proper power factor during peak as well as 

off peak load time. 
, Implementation of PTW (Permit to Work) System in all the three Lead, Aluminum and Polymer Plants 

according to HSE Standards to ensure human safety. 
r Ensure normal operation of the complete Automation Control System that is S7- t 200 PLC System and VFD~ s 

in all the three Plants. 
'., Implementation of proper preventive, predictive maintenance by generating proper work order system in 

Maintenance Department. 
-,, Implementation of Energy Conservation Plan by introducing Energy Audit Schemes in order to minimize per 

unit cost. 
, Ensure availability of all the utilities that is electrical power, natural gas, oxygen gas, SNG gas, LPG gas, water 

and DG set for smooth operation of all the three Plants. 
:, Regular inspection of all types of machines/motors installed in all the three plants to ensure smooth running of 

the plant. 
, Ensure availability of all the spare parts in the store to meet the emergency condition in order minimize 

production loss. 
:;.... Monthly/Yearly PPM, Protection and Testing of Distribution and Power Transformers. 
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:.,. Will be provided on request. 

REFRENCE 

PERSONAL INFORMATION 

" Father's Name: Muhammad Akram ,. 
~ Date of Birth: 26-Feb-1991 ,. Nationality: Pakistani 
~ CNIC: 42501-6543984-1 ,. 
~ PEC: ELECT/44899 
~ Marital Status: Single 
;.. Languages: English, Urdu 

, "SMART GRID, Operations Control & Implementation" by Dr. Tariq Masood, Organized by CCEE in 
NEDUET. 

',, Two days "Industrial Safety and Accident Prevention Seminar" on 04 & 05 January, 20 I 6 Organized by 
Safety Department Pakistan Steel Mills. 

SEMINARS AND WORKSHOPS 

, Cricketer: Performed as Opener at School, College and University level. 
>"' Social worker: Blood Secretary and food monitor at university level. 

EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTMTIES 

',, Received Prime Minister Youth Award Program in 2017. 
',, Selected for Prime Minister Youth Program Scheme in 2016. 
;, Received Youth Talent Award from Chief Minister KPK in 2013. 
:;... Top 10 Position in Board of Secondary Education Karachi in 2007. 

ACHIEVMENfS 
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EWORKZ POWER PVT LTD 
Manager Technical 

Greenewable solar (pvt) Ltd. 
Manager Tchnical 
February 2016 - Present (7 years 1 month) 

Atlas Power Limited 
Technical Project Manager 
January 2018 - Present (5 years 2 months) 

IPP 1 OOMWp solar grid-tied system 

PPA-based 1 OMWp systems. 

EPC-Based 1 OMWp Solar Grid Tied System 

Having work experience of BESS system on 1.2MWP Grid Tied system 

on 

Project Role As Manager Tecinal Operations Design and Executions. Worked 

Atlas Energy Limited (Atlas Group) 
Manager Projects Design & Executions 
January 2018 - Present (5 years 2 months) 

Experience 

Having 12 years of experience in Solar PV System Design, 
Supervision, Esitimation, and Execuations including O&M in 

different organizations . 
Having strong Grip of System Design using *PVSYST*, PVSOL*, 
SketchUp, Microsoft Office, Autocad 
Team Leads for Execution of Projects, Best Technical expertise on 
PV Grid-tied, Hybrid, BESS , Hybrid and OFF Grid Systems. 

Summary 

SOLAR PV DESIGN & SIMULATION I PROJECT MANAGEMENT! 
TEAM LEAD 

Mahmood Hanif Arain 
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# PVSyst 

Solar PV Softwares: 

Design and Estimation of Solar PV ON Grid, OFF Grid and Hybrid Systems. 

# Domestic, Commercial and Industrial Energy Audits for Solar PV System. 

# Installation, Commissioning and providing after sale services. 

# Design and Consultancy for Mega Projects. 

# Supervision of Solar PV Installation 

Brand development, advertising revenue. 

Developed brand strategy and statistics systems. 

Strategic Consulting, including business plan & sales strategy development. 

Advising new businesses on formation of corporations and business 

structures, drafting privacy policies and structuring commercial transactions. 

Position Descriptions 

Premier Energy Company PVT l Td 
Assistant Manager Technical 
February 2014 - September 2015 (1 year 8 months) 

# PVSyst 

# PV Size 

# Helioscope 

# Skelien 

# Compass (Lorentz) 

# Smart Draw 

# Google SketchUp 

Solar PV Softwares: 

Manage and lead all Technical staff 

# Manage after sale services and new installation accordingly. 

# Design and Estimation of Solar PV ON Grid, OFF Grid and Hybrid Systems. 

# Domestic, Commercial and Industrial Energy Audits for Solar PV System. 

# Supervision of Installation, Commissioning and Manage after sale services. 

# Design and Consultancy for Mega Projects. 

# Designing and Installation Supervision of Solar Tubewell. 

September 2015 - January 2016 (5 months) 



Page 3 of 3 

University of South Asia Lahore 
BSc Electrical Engineer, Electrical Engineering (POWER) · (2007 - 2011) 

Education 

# Design and Estimation of Solar Systems for domestic and commercial 

Projects. 

# Solar Project Execution Plan Installation of Solar System. after completion of 

Project 

give Technical Support to the Customer 

# Research and Development (R&D) of Solar Products and Systems. 

# Establish and Develop Company's Profile. 

# Project Management and Handling Projects. 

# Manage and Control all Technical Problems. 

# PLC Control and Automation, Vfds and Inverters. 

# Sales, Maintenance and Repairing of Solar lights. 

# Sales of Domestic, Commercial and Industrial Lights Products. 

# Design of Solar System De cards, Calibration, troubleshoot and Repair De 

Cards. 

Efficient Energy Company (EEC) 
Assistant Technical Manager 
June 2011 - February 2014 (2 years 9 months) 

# PV Size 

# Skelien 

# Compass (Lorentz) 

# Smart Draw 

# Google SketchUp 



Atlas Enen!V Limited {April 2019-Present) 
Currently working as Manager Solar Projects at Atlas Energy Ltd to provide complete solar off 
grid and on grid solutions for commercial, industrial & domestic purpose. 

My responsibilities are 
r Understand scope of the project, site assessment & system sizing. 
, Generate details of annual energy yield through PV syst simulation 
,.. Leading technical team for innovative PY technology solutions and assisting other team members 

with preliminary project design and implementation, modeling and commissioning. 
,. Site inspections during project installation, commissioning and operation. 
', Developing internal process and associated operating platforms in such a manner that strengthens 

long-term standardization of an effective EPC delivery approach. 
',- Meeting with client and suggest best possible solar solutions. 
, Submitted proposal with competitive pricing and with advance technologies. 
', Detailed timelines for each activity to be submitted and make sure each item to be delivered in 

time 
:, Responsible to make sure all the safety measures during the project implementation. 
, Operations and maintenance of solar PY power plants installed by Atlas Energy. 

Major Projects completed 
:;... 504.8 KWp On grid solar project at Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited. 
,. 3.2 MW On grid solar project at Atlas Honda Limited. 
,- 5 MWp On-grid solar project at Atlas Honda Limited SKP. 

Work Experience: 

BISE Multan ,- Matriculation (2005-2007) 

BISE Multan :, Intermediate (2007-2009) 

UET Lahore ,.. BSc Mechanical Engineering (2009-2013) 

IBA, University of Punjab, Lahore > MBA Finance (20 l 8-2020) 

As a professional Mechanical Engineer I have more than 9 years of diversified experience of working with 
Independent Power Producers. During my career, I have worked in Power Plant operations and maintenance, 
Planning of Power Plant Operations, project management and managing contractual obligations with 
relevant government agencies. Currently, I have been involved in planning and development of new 
opportunities in renewable energy sector from the platform of Atlas Energy limited. 

Qualification: 

I am looking forward to work for an organization which offers Competitive and Congenial working Environment 
with immense growth opportunities, so that I may effectively utilize my technical and managerial skills to 
achieve personal and professional goals. 
Career Summary: 

Career Objective: 

T ANZ IL UR REHMAN 
Mailing Address: House No: 170-A, Ali Town, Raiwind Road Lahore. 
Phone: +92-3136134088 Email: tnzelu1Tehman@gmail.co111 



Computer Skills: 
C++ programming, Auto CAD, Solid Edge, MATLAB, Primavera P6 basic. 
Expertise in MS Office (MS Word, MS Excel, MS Power point, MS Project). 

Management Skills: 
'r An effective communicator with strong analytical, problem solving & organizational abilities. 
> Skilful Presenter (Experience of delivering Technical and Non-Technical Presentations in Front of 

50-100 people). 
, Sound knowledge of Technical Reports Writing and Evaluation. 
,.- Committed team player with flexible approach to maintain better working relationships within 

and outside organization. 

Worked as Operations Planning Engineer and Shift Operations Engineer at 200MW Combined Cycle 
Power Plant. 
My responsibilities include: 

', Supervise safe, efficient and smooth operation of plant during shift hours taking care of load 
demand, according to OEM recommendations. 

-,.. Communication with the NPCC regarding the increase and decrease in dispatch levels due to 
scheduled outages, washing outages, forced outages and partial loading of the plant. 

;... Hot & cold startup of Engines & turbine according to NPCC&RCC demands in accordance with 
PPA. 

},;> Responsible to prepare Daily Demand Dispatch report, Daily Operations Report (DOR) 
comprising Daily Fuel Consumption, Plant Generation, House Load, Plant Heat Rate, and Plant 
Efficiency and to prepare weekly and monthly reports of plant and forward it to operations 
Manager and plant Manager. 

';;, Performing the functions of troubleshooting and propose remedial measures in case of emergency 
situation such as sudden breakdown, abnormal tripping or Blackout and coordinate with 
maintenance staff for preventive or corrective maintenance for reducing downtime minimum. 

;... To continuously monitor the fuel oil and lube oil parameters and water chemistry for smooth 
operation of the system. 

Professional skills: 

(January 2014-March 2017) Nishat Chunian Power Limited (200MW): 

Atlas Power Limited (225 MW) (April 2017-April 2019) 
Worked as Assistant Manager Technical at 225 MW Combined Cycle !PP Power Plant. 
Mv Responsibilities were: 

-,. Performance monitoring and analyzing the plant operating parameters to predict the potential faults 
and taking the appropriate steps. 

r Prepare and execute mitigation plan to fix performance and efficiency issues related the plant 
equipment/systems. 

"r To calculate performance of critical plant equipment like Diesel Engines, Turbochargers, HRSG, 
Steam Turbine, Cooling Tower and Fuel purifiers against designed performance bench marks and 
identify negative drivers in case of declined performance. 

, To plan daily Diesel Engines running hours in coherence with maintenance schedules to reduce 
unnecessary downtime and ensure maximum dispatch. 

, I have complete understanding of Power purchase agreement (PPA) for TPP"s and Fuel Supply 
Agreement with the power purchaser and responsible for preparing energy invoices (EPP) and 
capacity invoices (CPP) as per PPA. 

",- EHS Evaluation of the Plant. 
Previous Experience 
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3(4)(d)(vii) profile of sub-contractors, if any, along with 
expressions of interest of such sub-contractors; 

Atlas Energy has inhouse Team 
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Not Applicable 

3(4)(d)(ix) verifiable references in respect of the 
experience of the applicant and its proposed sub-contractors; 
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3( e) * technical and financial proposals in reasonable 
detail for the operation, maintenance, planning and 

development of the facility or system in respect of which the 
license is being sought; 



Prepared by: 

Atlas Energy Limited 

Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 

Location: Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road manga Mandi, Lahore 

Locations: 

the Development of a 2,001.360 KWp 

Solar Power Plant 

for 

Technical & Financial Proposal 

-21 
~~ti as Energy 



• Inverters: 115 KW 

2. Project Brief 

Atlas Energy plans to install a 2,001.360 KWp Solar Power Plant under PEPA mode. The proposed 
capacity is based on current and projected future loads. Key outcomes include: 

• Technical Site Analysis 

• Financial Analysis 

2.1. Technical Site Analysis 

The sites are suitable for a solar PV system, with "good" solar insolation assumed. The 
system design factors include a panel azimuth of 10° SE & NW, a panel tilt of 8°, and 
satisfactory roof conditions. 

• System Capacity: 2,001.360 KWp 

• Annual Production: 2,523, 192.00 KWh 

• PV Module: JKM605-630N-66HL4M-(V) (620 Wp) 

Service Warehouse# 2 
Location - 1 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 244.28 kWp 

43-km Multan Road Manza Mandi, Lahore. 
Service warehouse # 1 

Location-2 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 111.6 kWp 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

PC Warehouse 
Location-3 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 223.2 kWp 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Training Center, Body Paint & Laundry 
Location -4 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 142.6 kWp 

43-km Multan Road Manza Mandi, Lahore. 
Welding D-Zone 

Location -5 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 264.12 kWp 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Welding Shop 
Location-6 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 517.08 kWp 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
Paint Shop 

Location -7 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 301.32 kWp 
43-km Multan Road Manza Mandi, Lahore. 

AE Shop 
Location -8 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 121.52 kWp 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

PO Roof 
Location -9 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 75.64 kWp 

43-krn Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

1. Executive Summary 

This Technical & Financial Proposal study evaluates the costs, practicality, and expected outcomes of 
a rooftop solar photovoltaic (PV) installation at below locations: 



Service Warehouse # 2 31°16'53.l"N 
Location - 1 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 244.28 kWp 74°03'44.0" E 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Service warehouse # 1 31 °16'52.6"N 
Location-2 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 111.6 kWp 74°03'42.S"E 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

PC Warehouse 31°16'54.0"N 
Location -3 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 223.2 kWp 74°03'40.1 "E 

43-krn Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Training Center, Body Paint & Laundry 31 °16'55.6"N 
Location -4 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 142.6 kWp 74°03'38.0"E 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Welding D-Zone 31°16'50.7"N 
Location -5 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 264.12 kWp 74°03'36.7"E 

43-krn Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Welding Shop 31°16'53.9"N 
Location -6 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 517.08 kWp 74°03'34.4"E 

43-km Multan Road Manza Mandi, Lahore. 

Paint Shop 31°16'55.4"N 
Location -7 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 301.32 kWp 74°03'31.9"E 

43-krn Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

AE Shop 31 °16'57.2"N 
Location -8 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 121.52 kWp 74°03'31.9"E 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

PO Roof 31°16'53.6"N 
Location -9 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 75.64 kWp 74°03'3 I.4 "E 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

2.1.1. Site Coordinates & Location 



Location - 1 Service Warehouse# 2 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
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Location Map: 

A bird's eye view of the project site is given in the figure below: 



Location - 2 Service warehouse # 1 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
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Location - 3 PC Warehouse 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
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Location - 4 Training Center, Body Paint & Laundry 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
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Location - 5 Welding D-Zone 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
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Location - 6 Welding Shop 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
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Location - 7 Paint Shop 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
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Location - 8 AE Shop 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
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Location - 9 PO Roof 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43~km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
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Energy yield predictions using PVSyst software provide the basis for calculating 
project revenues. The simulation considered factors like solar resource, temperature 
conditions, and plant layout. 

2.1.5. Working Conditions 

The system ensures zero grid export, with the solar production dynamically adjusted 
to match site consumption. 

2.1.6. Plant Characteristics 

The plant features a 230/400 V, 50 Hz, three-phase system with built-in inverter 
features for voltage regulation and frequency response. 

2.1.7. Design Parameters 

Key design considerations include: 

• Shading assessment 

• Optimized PV layout 

• Module cleaning strategy • 

2.1.4. Solar PV Yield Estimation and Simulation 

• Annual Generation: Location-I: 1,332,396.00 KWh 

• Inverters: High efficiency (98.5%-98.6%) inverters with a variety of sizes. 

2.1.3. Technology Review & Selection 

• PV Modules: JKM585M-72HL4-TV 

• Shading Analysis 

• Area Calculation for Modules 

A comprehensive analysis was conducted, including: 

• Global Horizontal Irradiation 

2.1.2. Site Conditions 
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2.1.8. Concept Design 

A detailed concept design and layout are provided. 

• 

• 



o Routine Inspections: Conduct monthly and biannual inspections as 
detailed in the O&M plan. 

o Preventive Maintenance: Scheduled maintenance activities to 
prevent equipment failures. 

c Corrective Maintenance: Address any issues identified during 
inspections or reported by the monitoring system. 

2.1.10. Operation and Maintenance Strategy 

• Operation: 

o Continuous Monitoring: Online Monitoring will be opt to check 
real-time performance and detect anomalies. 

o Performance Analysis: Regular analysis of performance data to 
optimize energy yield and identify potential issues. 

o Energy Management: Implement energy management practices to 
maximize energy production and reduce losses. 

• Maintenance: 

• 
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2.1.9. Single Line Diagram 

The single line diagram includes PV arrays, DC/ AC cabling, protection devices, and 
energy metering. 



System Size Total Debt Equity Sr.# Location Project Cost TPC/Wp 
(kWp) <PKR) 80% 20% 

Honda Atlas Cars 
Private Limited, 

1 43-km Multan Road 2,001.360 250,000,000/- 124.9/Wp 200,000,000/- 50,000,0001- 

r-tanga Mandi, Lahore 

The Capital cost shall include the cost borne by the Applicant Company on Technical & Financial 
Proposal studies, planning, designing, material, construction and installation of the Generation 
Facilities. 
The cost of land, step-up transformers, interconnection with distribution system of utility are not 
required. 
The Applicant shall arrange the required funding through 20% Equity, 80% Debt. Debt may be availed 
under the commercial financing Scheme. 

2.1.11. Planning and Development 

• Initial Setup: 

o Site Preparation: Ensure site readiness, including structural 
integrity of mounting systems and electrical infrastructure. 

o Installation: Oversee the installation of PV modules, inverters, and 
other components according to manufacturer specifications and 
industry standards. 

• Long-term Development: 

o Expansion Plans: Develop plans for future expansions or upgrades 
to increase capacity or incorporate new technologies. 

o Technology Upgrades: Stay updated with advancements in solar 
technology and integrate them as appropriate. 

2.1.12. Technical Challenges and Mitigation 

• Dust and Debris: Implement regular cleaning schedules and consider anti­ 
soiling coatings. 

• Weather Conditions: Design systems to withstand local weather conditions, 
including high temperatures and humidity. 

• Technical Issues: Maintain a technical support team for rapid resolution of 
issues related to inverters, monitoring systems, and other critical 
components. 

2.1. Financial Analysis: 

The project will be financed on an 80% debt & 20% equity model. The total estimated project cost is 
PKR 250,000,000/-. Based on the technical and financial analysis, the installation of an 2001.360 KWp 
Solar PV System on the rooftop of various sites as shown in the table below. 

Project cost, information regarding sources and amounts of equity, debt. 

• 

• 



>. 

3(t) * Feasibility Study 

• 



Prepared by: 

Atlas Energy Limited 

Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 

Location: Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road manga Mandi, Lahore 

Locations: 

. . ·~ . ' . .. ~.---, --·~--~ - ~· .-.. . ,- .. ~ --~--,..._,,,._ __ .~,.- ---···- .. ·. ·- ·- ,·. . . ..·.- - - ~ - . ·-··· ,. ···~·- •A•• . _v·~--·-·---- '"' v, v.· ~- A-··· . " •.s.·-- --··---A·---~-·--· • 

for 

the Development of a 2,001.360 KWp 

Solar Power Plant 
• 

Feasibility Report 



2.1. Technical Site Analysis: The project site is suitable for a solar PV energy system. For the 
purpose of estimation of power generation potential, solar insolation is assumed to be "good". 
Panel azimuth (True South), panel tilt (20°) and satisfactory roof condition and structure are 
also assumed. Anticipated System Information: The projects in will accommodate 2001.360 
KWp solar PY system with a projected annual production of 2,523,192 KWh I year with use 
ofa JKM605-630N-66HL4M (620 Wp) PV panel. 

• Technical Site Analysis 
• Financial Analysis 

The main outcomes of the feasibility report are given below: 

2. Project Brief 
Atlas Energy intends to install 2001.360 KWp Solar Power Plants in owner premises to provide 
electricity under PEPA rnode. The installed capacity of plants is proposed by critically analyzing 
the current load and future load projections of site. • 

Service Warehouse# 2 
Location - 1 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 244.28 kWp 

43-km Multan Road Manza Mandi, Lahore. 
Service warehouse # 1 

Location-2 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 111.6 kWp 
43-krn Multan Road Manza Mandi, Lahore. 

PC Warehouse 
Location- 3 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 223.2 kWp 

43-krn Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Training Center, Body Paint & Laundry 
Location -4 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 142.6 kWp 

43-krn Multan Road Manza Mandi, Lahore. 
Welding D-Zone 

Location -5 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 264.12 kWp 
43-krn Multan Road Manza Mandi, Lahore. 

Welding Shop 
Location -6 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 517.08 kWp 

43-krn Multan Road Manza Mandi, Lahore. 
Paint Shop 

Location -7 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 301.32 kWp 
43-krn Multan Road Manza Mandi, Lahore. 

AE Shop 
Location -8 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 121.52 kWp 

43-krn Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
PO Roof 

Location -9 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 75.64kWp 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

1. Executive Summary 
The feasibility study examines the costs, practicality, and likely outcome of a solar photovoltaic 
(PY) installation on the rooftop of the site below: 



Service Warehouse # 2 31 °16'53.1 uN 
Location- 1 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 74°03'44.0"E 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
Service warehouse # 1 31 °16'52.6"N Location -2 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 74°03'42.S"E 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

PC Warehouse 31 °16'54.0"N Location- 3 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 74°03'40.1 ''E 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Training Center, Body Paint & Laundry 31 °16'55.6"N Location -4 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 74°03'38.0"E 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
Welding D-Zone 31 °16'50.7"N Location -5 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 74°03'36. 7"E 43-km Multan Road Manza Mandi, Lahore. 

Welding Shop 31 °16'53.9"N Location -6 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 74°03'34.4"E 43-km Multan Road Manza Mandi, Lahore. 
Paint Shop 31°16'55.4"N Location -7 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 74°03'31.9"E 43-km Multan Road Manza Mandi, Lahore. 
AE Shop 31°16'57.2"N Location -8 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 

74°03'31.9"E 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

PO Roof 31°16'53.6"N Location -9 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 74°03'31.4 0E 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. I 

2.1.1. Site Coordinates & Location: 
The project site is the rooftop and exact coordinates of the project site are as below: 



Location - 1 Service Warehouse # 2 
Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
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A bird's eye view of the project site is given in the figure below 

2.1.2. Location Map: 



Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Location - 2 Service warehouse# 1 
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Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Location - 3 PC Warehouse 
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Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Location - 4 Training Center, Body Paint & Laundry 
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Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Location-5 Welding D-Zone 
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Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Location - 6 Welding Shop 
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Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Location - 7 Paint Shop 
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Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Location - 8 AE Shop 
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Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Location - 9 PO Roof 
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Project Profile 

Location: 1 244.28 kWp 
Location: 2 111.6 kWp 
Location: 3 223.2 kWp 
Location: 4 142.6 kWp 

Project Size Location: 5 264.12 kWp 
Location: 6 517.08 kWp 
Location: 7 301.32 kWp 
Location: 8 121.52 kWp 
Location: 9 75.64 kWp 

Service Warehouse# 2 
Location: 1 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 

43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
Service warehouse# 1 

Location: 2 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
PC Warehouse 

Location: 3 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
Training Center, Body Paint & Laundry 

Location: 4 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
Welding D-Zone 

Location (s) Location: 5 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 
43-km Multan Road Manza Mandi, Lahore. 
Welding Shop 

Location: 6 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
Paint Shop 

Location: 7 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
AE Shop 

Location: 8 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 
PO Roof 

Location: 9 Honda Atlas Cars Private Limited, 
43-km Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. 

Technology Review & Selection: 

Details of Generation Facility: 

2.1.3. Site Conditions: 
The following tasks were carried out: 
• Global Horizontal Irradiation, annual and inter-annual variation was assessed. 
• Near shading objects were considered for placement of PV modules. 
• The area required for selected module technology was calculated. Keeping in view 

of available area and minimum inter row shading, tilt angle and appropriate 
spacing was calculated from near shading objects. 

• 

• 



Project Profile 

Location: 1 14.39 % 

Location: 2 14.39 % 

Location: 3 14.39 % 

Location: 4 14.39 % 

Capacity Factor Location: 5 14.39 % 

Location: 6 14.39 % 

Location: 7 14.39 % 

Location: 8 14.39 % 

Location: 9 14.39 % 

Location: 1 308,016.17 KWh 

Location: 2 140,703.38 KWh 

Location: 3 281,390.47 KWh 

Location: 4 179,777.25 KWh 

Annual Energy Location: 5 332,978.73 KWh 
Generation Units Location: 6 651,887.93 KWh 

Location: 7 379,877.14 KWh 

Location: 8 153,201.48 KWh 

Location: 9 95,360.10 KWh 

Total 252,3192.64 KWh 

Degradation Factor First Year 1 % & remaining 24 Years 0.5% 

• 

Energy Generation: 

Construction Period 

Roof Mounted 

7 -8 Months 

Type of Project 



• 

o e ec mca etails of Equipment: 
PVModules 

Type of Module JKM605-630N-66HL4M-(V) (620 Wp) 

Location-1 394 (394 x 620 = 244.28 kWp) 

Location-2 180 ( 180 x 620 = 111.60 KWp) 

Location-3 360 (360 x 620 = 223.20 kWp) 

Location-4 230 (230 x 620 = 142.60 kWp) 

Location-5 426 (426 x 620 = 264.12 kWp) 
No. Of Modules 

Location-6 834 (834 x 620 = 517.08 kWp) 

Location-7 490 (490 x 620 = 301.32 kWp) 

Location-8 202 (202 x 620 = 121.52 kWp) 

Location-9 112 (112 x 620 = 64.48 kWp) 

Total 3,228 (3,228 x 620 = 2,001 kWp) 

Type of Cell Mono PERC Half-Cell 

Dimension of each Module 2382x 1134x35mm (93.77x44.65x 1.38 inch) 

Total Module Area 2.701,188 m2 

Frame of Panel Anodized aluminium alloy 

Weight of one Module 28.2 kg 

No of Solar Cells in each 132 (66x2) module 

Efficiency of module 22.95 % 

Maximum Power (Pmax) 620Wp 

Voltage @ Pmax 40.90 V 

Current@ Pmax 15.16 A 

Open circuit voltage (V oc) 48.95V 

Short circuit current (lsc) 16.15A 

Maximum system open Circuit 1500VDC (IEC) Voltage 

• 

Md l&T hni ID 



2.1.4. Solar PV Yield Estimation and Simulation of Site: 
The energy yield prediction provides the basis for calculating project revenues. The 
aim is to predict the average annual energy output for the lifetime of the proposed 
power plant. To estimate accurately the energy produced from a PV power plant, 

Continuous online logging with data logging software to portal. System Data 

Data Collecting System 

Mounting Structure 

Structure Aluminum L2 Type 

Tilt Angle 20° 

Degradation Factor First Year 1 % & remaining 24 Years 0.5% 

Inverters 

Size & Mode 115 KW SUN2000-I 15KTL-M2 

No. of Inverters 15 

Input Operating Voltage Range 200 V to 1000 V 

Efficiency of inverter 98.5 % 

Max. Allowable Input voltage llOOV 

Max. Current per MPPT 30A 

Max. Power Point Tracking Range 200 V to 1000 V 

Output electrical system 3 Phase AC 

Rated Output Voltage 3 IN I PE, 230 I 400 V 

Power Factor (adjustable) 0.8 LG ... 0.8 LD 

Power control MPP Tracker 

Rated Frequency SOHz 



a) Assessment of shading (horizon and nearby building). 
b) Outline layout of area suitable for PV development. 
c) Designing row spacing to reduce inter-row shading and associated shading losses. 
d) Designing the layout to minimize cable runs and associated electrical losses. 
e) Creating access routes and sufficient space to allow movement for maintenance 

purposes. 
f) Choosing a tilt angle that optimizes the annual energy yield according to the 

latitude of the site and the annual distribution of solar resource. 
g) Module cleaning strategy. 
h) Simulating the annual energy losses associated with various configurations of tilt 

angle, orientation and row spacing. The optimized configuration and simulation 
results are given in section "Energy Yield Prediction" 

i) PY layouts of the site are given in view in the following section. 

The following tasks were carried out for PY layout and shading. 

Design Parameters: 

Plant Characteristics 
Generation Voltage: 230/400 V three phase four wire system Power Factor at rated 
power: 1 Frequency: 50 Hz Generation characteristic: Inverter has built-in features of 
controllable active power ramp following grid disturbance or normal connection, 
voltage regulation and frequency response. There are no additional control metering 
and instrumentations. 

Working Conditions: Zero Grid Export 
The solar system will have automatic mechanism to ensure that PY power currently 
generated by the inverters always matches the current power consumption of the site 
load. A closed loop control system of inverter AC output is implemented in reference 
to energy flow at grid connection point which will reduce inverter AC output of the 
inverter if site load will be less than the solar production. 

information is needed on the solar resource and temperature conditions of the site. Also 
required are the layout and technical specifications of the plant components. A number 
of solar energy yield prediction software packages are available in the market. These 
packages use time step simulation to model the performance of a project over the course 
of a year. PVSyst software has been used for energy yield prediction for this site and 
its results are given below. Details of the simulation steps are presented in the following 
sections: 

2.1.7. 

• 
2.1.6. 

2.1.5. 



The electrical system comprises the following components: 
• Array(s) of PV modules 
• DC/AC cabling (module, string and main cable) 
• DC connectors (plugs and sockets) 
• Junction boxes and combiners 
• Disconnects/switches 

v 

v 

v 

v 
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2.1.9. Single Line Diagram: 
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2.1.8. Concept Design: 

• 



Financial Analysis: The project will be financed on an 80% debt & 20% equity model. The total 
estimated project cost is PKR 250,000,000/-. Based on the technical and financial analysis, the 
installation of an 2001.360 KWp Solar PV System on the rooftop of various sites as shown in the table 
below. 

Project cost, information regarding sources and amounts of equity, debt. 
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• 
Protections AC Side: MCBs, Main Breaker 

Protections DC Side: 'String Fuses, Surge Protective Device and DC Disconnect 
Switches 

The single line diagrams of DC and AC sides are given below. The single line diagram 
includes the protection devices that will be used for safe and smooth operation of the 
system. 

• Protection devices e.g. fuses, surge protective devices, beakers 
• Energy Metering 
• Earthing 



Modern societies are becoming increasing dependent on reliable and secure electricity supplies to 
underpin economic growth and community prosperity. This reliance is set to grow as more efficient and 
less carbon intensive forms of power are developed and deployed to help decarbonize economies. 
Maintaining reliable and secure electricity services while seeking to rapidly decarbonize power systems 
is a key challenge for countries throughout the world. In developing economies growth in energy use is 
closely related to growth in the modern sectors - industry, motorized transport, and urban areas - but 
energy use also reflects climatic, geographic, and economic factors (such as the relative price of energy). 
Energy use has been growing rapidly in low- and middle-income economies, but high-income 
economies still use almost five times as much energy on a per capita basis. Governments in many 
countries are increasingly aware of the urgent need to make better use of the world's energy resources. 
Improved energy efficiency is often the most economic and readily available means of improving 
energy security and reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Pakistan's per capita energy consumption of 
Pakistan Generation of electricity in Pakistan is largely on furnace oil whose substantial quantity is 
imported, prices whereof adversely affect the generation in the country. Although natural gas is a 
cheaper fuel however its reserves are depleting rapidly. In these circumstances, the use of solar power 
in Pakistan appears to be quite an attractive mode of generation of electric power. Further, its use does 
not require refining, transporting and conveying fuels and power over long distances. Moreover, solar 
power does not create pollution. Naturally, Pakistan is located in the Sunny Belt and can take advantage 
of its ideal situation for A utilization of solar energy. The country potential for solar generation is 
beyond doubt as it has high solar irradiation and enough space for installation of generation system 
those are ideal for PV and other solar energy applications. Villages and other areas which are away 
from grid or distribution system of utilities can also benefit from solar power generation which will also 
save the extra cost of laying the system and the losses. Solar energy, on the other hand, has excellent 
potential in areas of Pakistan that receive high levels of solar radiation throughout the year. Every day, 
for example, the country receives an average of about 19 Mega Joules per square meter of solar energy 
Pakistan being in the Sun Belt is ideally located to take advantage of solar energy technologies. This 

3. Project Rationale 

It is a commonly knowledge that the availability of electricity in any country that has direct effect on 
its economy and social factors and therefore, in order to measure the affluence of a society, the per 
capita energy consumption is used as index. An economy's production and consumption of electricity 
are basic indicators of its size and level of development. Although a few countries export electric power, 
most production is for domestic consumption. Expanding the supply of electricity to meet the growing 
demand of increasingly urbanized and industrialized economies without incurring unacceptable social, 
economic, and environmental costs is one of the great challenges facing developing countries. 

System Size Total Debt Equity Sr.# Location Project Cost TPC/Wp (kWp) (PKR) 80% 20% 

Honda Atlas Cars 
Private Limited, 

1 
43-km Multan Road 2,001.360 250,000,000/- 124.9/Wp 200, 000,000/- 50,000,000/- 

Manga Mandi, Lahore 

The Capital cost shall include the cost borne by the Applicant Company on Technical & Financial 
Proposal studies, planning, designing, material, construction and installation of the Generation 
Facilities. 
The cost of land, step-up transformers, interconnection with distribution system of utility are not 
required. 
The Applicant shall arrange the required funding through 20% Equity, 80% Debt. Debt may be availed 
under the commercial financing Scheme. 



• 

Pakistan receives about 15.5x1014 kWh of solar irradiance each year with most regions receiving 
approximately 8 to 10 sunlight hours per day. The installed capacity of solar photovoltaic power is 
estimated to be 1600 GW per year, providing approximately 3.5 kWh of electricity (a figure 
approximately 41 times that of current power generation in the country). To summarize, the sun shines 
for 250-300 days per years in Pakistan with average sun shine hours of 8-10 per day. This gives huge 
amount of energy to be used for electricity generation by solar photovoltaic and solar thermal power 
plants. A quick idea for the potential of solar energy in Pakistan can be obtained from the satellite map 
of solar radiation released by National Renewable Energy Lab (NREL) of USA. 

energy source is widely distributed and abundantly available in the country. The mean global irradiation 
falling on horizontal surface is about 200-250 watt per sq.m in a day. This amounts to about 2500- 3000 
sun shine hours and 1.9 - 2.3 MWh per sq. meter in a year. It has an average daily global isolation of 
19 to 20 MJ/sq. meter per day with annual mean sunshine duration of 8 to 8.5 hours (6-7hrs in cold and 
10-12 hrs. in hot season) and these values are among the highest in the world. For daily global radiation 
up to 23MJ/m2, 24 (80%) consecutive days are available in this area for solar energy. Such conditions 
are ideal for solar thermal applications. 
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• Energy Efficiency: Reduce reliance on grid electricity and diesel generators, 
lowering operational costs. 

• Environmental Impact: Decrease greenhouse gas emissions and minimize the 
carbon footprint of Atlas Honda Limited. 

• Sustainability: Promote the use of renewable energy and contribute to the company's 
sustainability targets. 

d. Objectives 

c. Project Location 
The proposed site for the solar plant is within the premises of Honda Atlas Cars Private 
Limited, located at 43-KM Multan Road Manga Mandi, Lahore. The site is situated in 
an industrial area with existing infrastructure suitable for the installation, including rooftops 
and open spaces that can accommodate solar panels. 

b. Purpose of the EIA 
The Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) report is prepared to assess the potential 
environmental impacts associated with the solar plant installation. This report will identify, 
evaluate, and propose mitigation measures to address the environmental effects of the 
project, ensuring compliance with local regulations and sustainable development principles. 

a. Project Overview 
Atlas Energy Limited proposes the installation of a solar power plant at the Honda Atlas 
Cars Private Limited site in Lahore. The project aims to reduce carbon footprint and energy 
costs by transitioning to renewable energy sources, aligning with the company's 
sustainability goals. 

1. Introduction: 
Extensive fossil fuel consumption in almost all human activities has led to some undesirable 
phenomena such as atmospheric and environmental pollution, which have not been 
experienced before in known human history. Consequently, global warming, greenhouse 
effect, climate change, ozone layer depletion, and acid rain terminologies started to appear 
in literature frequently. Since 1970, it has been understood scientifically by experiments and 
research that these phenomena are closely related to fossil fuel uses because they emit 
greenhouse gases such as carbon dioxide (C02) and methane (CH4), which hinder the long­ 
wave terrestrial radiation escape into space, and, consequently, the earth troposphere 
becomes warmer. To avoid further impacts of these phenomena, the two concentrative 
alternatives are either to improve the fossil fuel quality with reductions in their harmful 
emissions into the atmosphere or, more significantly, to replace fossil fuel usage as much as 
possible with environmentally friendly, clean, and renewable energy sources. Among these 
sources, solar energy comes at the top of the list due to its abundance and more even 
distribution in nature than any other renewable energy type, such as wind, geothermal, 
hydro, wave, and tidal energies. Solar energy technologies are essential components of a 
sustainable energy future. Energy from fossil fuels may be inexpensive and assurances may 
have been given of the plentiful supplies of petroleum and other fossil fuels, but these fuels 
are finite in nature and a major source of greenhouse gas emissions. 
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Modem societies are becoming increasingly dependent on reliable and secure electricity 
supplies to underpin economic growth and community prosperity. This reliance is set to 
grow as more efficient and less carbon intensive forms of power are developed and deployed 
to help decarbonize economies. Maintaining reliable and secure electricity services while 
seeking to rapidly decarbonize power systems is a key challenge for countries throughout 
the world. In developing economies growth in energy use is closely related to growth in the 
modem sectors - industry, motorized transport, and urban areas - but energy use also reflects 
climatic, geographic, and economic factors (such as the relative price of energy). Energy 
use has been growing rapidly in low- and middle-income economies, but high-income 
economies still use almost five times as much energy on a per capita basis. Governments in 
many countries are increasingly aware of the urgent need to make better use of the world's 
energy resources. Improved energy efficiency is often the most economic and readily 
available means of improving energy security and reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 
Pakistan's per capita energy consumption of Pakistan Generation of electricity in Pakistan 
is largely on furnace oil whose substantial quantity is imported, prices whereof adversely 
affect the generation in the country. Although natural gas is a cheaper fuel however its 
reserves are depleting rapidly. In these circumstances, the use of solar power in Pakistan 
appears to be quite an attractive mode of generation of electric power. Further, its use does 
not require refining, transporting and conveying fuels and power over long distances. 
Moreover, solar power does not create pollution. Naturally, Pakistan is located in the Sunny 
Belt and can take advantage of its ideal situation for A utilization of solar energy. The 
country potential for solar generation is beyond doubt as it has high solar irradiation and 
enough space for installation of generation system those are ideal for PV and other solar 
energy applications. Villages and other areas which are away from grid or distribution 
system of utilities can also benefit from solar power generation which will also save the 
extra cost oflaying the system and the losses. Solar energy, on the other hand, has excellent 
potential in areas of Pakistan that receive high levels of solar radiation throughout the year. 
Every day, for example, the country receives an average of about 19 Mega Joules per square 
meter of solar energy Pakistan being in the Sun Belt is ideally located to take advantage of 
solar energy technologies. This energy source is widely distributed and abundantly available 
in the country. The mean global irradiation falling on horizontal surface is about 200-250 
watt per sq.m in a day. This amounts to about 2500- 3000 sun shine hours and 1.9 - 2.3 
MWh per sq. meter in a year. It has an average daily global isolation of 19 to 20 MJ/sq. 
meter per day with annual mean sunshine duration of 8 to 8.5 hours (6-7hrs in cold and 10- 
12 hrs. in hot season) and these values are among the highest in the world. For daily global 

It is a commonly knowledge that the availability of electricity in any country has a direct 
effect on its economy and social factors and therefore, in order to measure the affluence of 
a society, the per capita energy consumption is used as index. An economy's production 
and consumption of electricity are basic 

indicators of its size and level of development. Although a few countries export electric 
power, most production is for domestic consumption. Expanding the supply of electricity 
to meet the growing demand of increasingly urbanized and industrialized economies 
without incurring unacceptable social, economic, and environmental costs is one of the 
great challenges facing developing countries. 

2. Rationale: 
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Pakistan is geographically located between approximately 24° to 37° North latitude and 60° 
to 77° East longitude, situated in the western region of South Asia. The distribution of 
rainfall in Pakistan varies widely, primarily influenced by the monsoon winds and western 
disturbances. Rainfall is not distributed evenly throughout the year. For example, Khyber 
Pakhtunkhwa (northern mountains) and Balochistan receive the maximum rainfall between 
December and March, while Punjab and Sindh receive 50-75% of their rainfall during the 
monsoon season (Kaziet al, 1951; FAO, 1987; Khan, 1993 & 2002; Kureshy, 1998; Luo and 
Lin, 1999). 

The precipitation in Pakistan is categorized into two main seasons: summer (monsoon) and 
winter. The monsoon rains enter the country from the east and northeast, primarily between 
July and September, bringing substantial rainfall to the northern and northeastern regions. 
Winter precipitation (from December to March) is mainly associated with western 
disturbances originating from Iran and Afghanistan. The weather systems from Afghanistan, 
referred to as primary western disturbances, typically affect only the north and northwest of 
the country. In contrast, secondary western disturbances from Iran cover a broader region, 
impacting Balochistan, Punjab, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Kashmir, northern areas, and 
sometimes even Sindh. 

A significant amount of snowfall occurs in the northern areas, upper Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, 
Kashmir, and northern Balochistan. This snowmelt, combined with seasonal rains, is a 
crucial source of water for the country's reservoirs during the dry season. The water from 
snowmelt and rainfall plays a vital role in supporting the agricultural and socio-economic 
activities of Pakistan. Agriculture in Pakistan is heavily climate-dependent, with each region 
cultivating specific crops and fruits suited to its climate. Any abnormal changes in climate 
conditions can have a severe impact on agriculture and lead to significant economic losses 
for the nation." 

a. Study Area: 

3. Environmental Assessment Report: 

Pakistan receives about 15.Sxl 014 kWh of solar irradiance each year with most regions 
receiving approximately 8 to 10 sunlight hours per day. The installed capacity of solar 
photovoltaic power is estimated to be 1600 GW per year, providing approximately 3.5 
PWh of electricity (a figure approximately 41 times that of current power generation in the 
country). To summarize, the sun shines for 250-300 days per years in Pakistan with 
average sunshine hours of 8- 10 per day. This gives huge amount of energy to be used for 
electricity generation by solar photovoltaic and solar thermal power plants. A quick idea 
for the potential of solar energy in Pakistan can be obtained from the satellite map of solar 
radiation released by National Renewable Energy Lab (NREL) of USA. 

radiation up to 23MJ/m2, 24 (80%) consecutive days are available in this area for solar 
energy. Such conditions are ideal for solar thermal applications. 
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Zone A 

Zone A comprises those stations having cold climate and high mountains, situated in the 
north of Pakistan. These stations are Chitral, Gilgit, Muzaffarabad, Said-u- Sharif, Skardu, 
Astor, Dir, Chilas Parachinar and Kakul. These are mostly hill stations located between 34 
N to 3 8 N in the Himalaya, Hindukash and Koh-e- Sufaid mountain ranges. 

ZoneB 

This zone has mild cold climate and Sub Mountains, located between 31N to 34 N. The 
stations are Sialkot, DJ.Khan, Islamabad, Peshawar, Cherat and Lahore. 

70-E 66°E &re 

24°N 

• Station 

Legend 

The detection of rainfall trends faces certain limitations due to the lack of clear altitude­ 
related rainfall patterns. For this analysis, a dataset spanning 30 years (197 6-2005) was used, 
encompassing 30 stations across Pakistan, from the extreme north to south and east to west. 
These stations were selected based on factors such as their latitudinal position, elevation 
above sea level, record length, and the completeness and reliability of the data. The goal 
was to provide a comprehensive synoptic view of the entire country. 

b. Zone Classification: 
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c. Existing Environmental Conditions: 

a) Physical Environment 

• Climate: Lahore experiences a hot climate characterized by hot summers and mild 
winters, with high temperatures and low annual rainfall. This climate is well-suited for 
solar energy generation, as the region receives abundant sunshine throughout the year, 
particularly during the summer months. 

• Topography: The project site is relatively flat, with no significant natural features that 
would impact the installation of solar panels. The area's flatness allows for easy 
installation and alignment of solar panels to maximize energy generation. 

• Soil: The soil composition at the site is primarily sandy, with moderate load-bearing 
capacity. This type of soil is suitable for the installation of mounting structures, as it 
allows for the anchoring of equipment with proper foundation design. 

b) Biological Environment 

• Flora and Fauna: The project site is located in an industrial area with minimal 
vegetation and wildlife. Due to the urbanized nature of the area, there are no protected 
species or significant habitats within the vicinity, reducing potential impacts on local 
biodiversity. 

• Air Quality: The air quality in the area is typical of an industrial zone, with occasional 
dust and emissions from nearby factories and vehicles. However, the installation of a 
solar plant will contribute to improving air quality in the long run by reducing 
dependence on fossil fuels. 

• Noise Levels: Noise levels in the area are consistent with industrial activities, including 
machinery and traffic. The solar plant itself will not significantly contribute to noise 
pollution during its operation, as solar energy generation systems are generally silent. 

c) Socio-Economic Environment 

Zone E is a big zone having many stations and coastal cities, near to Arabian Sea. The 
coastal Part comprises only a small part of this region and the climate above coastal parts in 
Balochistan as well as in Sindh province is mostly arid to hyper arid. The selected stations 
from this zone are Hyderabad, Karachi, Nawabshah and Jewani. 

This is the hottest and dry zone of the country where the highest maximum temperatures are 
recorded in stations of Sibbi and Jacobabad. The area is almost plain with some areas 
included in Thar Desert. Stations included are Sibbi, Jacobabad, Bahawalpure, Khanpur, 
Multan and Rohri. 

ZoneE 

Climate is cold in winter and hot in summers. Most of them are mountainous stations with 
high elevations from mean sea level and cover an area between 27 N to 32N and 64 E to 70 
E. Stations included in this zone are Quetta, Zhob, Kalat and Khuzdar. 

ZoneD 

ZoneC 
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4. Project Environmental Impacts & Mitigation Measures: 

Sustainable Development and Environmental Impact 

The concept of sustainable development has gained global importance. In line with this, new 
regulations mandate that all development projects should comply with environmental 
standards. An Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) is conducted to ensure that projects 
meet these criteria and are compatible with the environment. 

The primary objective of an EIA is to support environmentally friendly industrialization. By 
promoting solar power, which is a renewable energy source, sustainable development is 
possible, balancing economic development with environmental protection. 

All energy generation methods impact the environment, but solar energy stands out as a 
safer, cleaner option compared to conventional fossil fuels and nuclear power. Photovoltaic 
(PV) technology offers significant environmental benefits, including: 

• Reduction in Greenhouse Gas Emissions: Solar PV technology significantly reduces 
C02 and NOx emissions compared to fossil fuels. 

• Absence of Air Pollutants: PV systems do not emit toxic gases (such as 802) or 
particulates, contributing to improved air quality. 

• Minimal Environmental Footprint: Solar power generation has a minimal 
environmental impact, with no waste products or harmful emissions during operation. 

• Reduced Transmission Losses: The localized nature of solar energy generation 
reduces the need for long transmission lines, minimizing energy losses. 

The solar project has been sited on private land (rooftop) within the customer's premises. A 
detailed environmental assessment of the site has been carried out in preparation for the 
installation of the Solar PV plant. 

The assessment has considered both the positive and negative environmental effects of the 
project. The proposed photovoltaic power project aligns with international guidelines for 
environmentally friendly energy production. The adoption of solar power, which produces 
no emissions and effiuent discharge, will have minimal impact on the ambient environment 
and the host community. Over the long term, the project may result in slight changes in local 
air quality, but these changes will likely be minimal compared to traditional power 
generation methods. 

• Local Community: The surrounding area is predominantly industrial, with no 
residential communities near the project site. This reduces potential conflicts with local 
populations and minimizes the impact of construction and operational activities. 

• Economic Activity: The installation of the solar plant is expected to create temporary 
employment opportunities during the construction phase. Over the long term, the solar 
plant will provide sustainable, green energy, supporting regional economic 
development by reducing electricity costs for industrial users. 
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Impacts on Natural Resources: Despite being a benign energy system during operation, 
solar cells have some negative impacts on the environment during their production phase 
like many other systems. The energy needed for the production of solar energy systems is 
still produced in conventional methods today. Some toxic chemical substances used during 

Discharge of Pollutants: Solar cells do not emit any pollutants during their operations, But 
solar cell modules contain some toxic substances, and there is a potential risk of releasing 
these chemicals to the environment during a fire, Necessary precautions should be taken for 
emergency situations like fire. The possibility ofaccidental release of the chemicals of solar 
cell modules to soil and groundwater poses a great threat for the environment. 

Visual Impacts: There will be some visual impacts depending on the type of scheme and 
the surroundings of the solar cells. Especially for applications on buildings, solar cells can 
be used as a cladding material that could be integrated into the building during the 
construction phase. Solar cell applications after the construction phase of the buildings 
might cause negative visual impacts. Solar cell utilization should be planned at the 
architectural phase and fitted to the building to minimize visual pollution. For the other 
application areas, proper sitting and design are important factors, especially for large solar 
cell applications. Another important factor about the control of the visual impacts is the use 
of color. Enough care should be taken for the usage of proper colors while assembling the 
solar cell modules. 

This Section discusses the potential environmental impacts, assesses the significance, 
recommends mitigation measure to minimize the adverse effect and identifies the residual 
impacts associated with the proposed activities of the project during the construction and 
operation phase of the proposed project at the proposed site and of secondary actions like 
potable, raw water and wastewater lines. Solar energy is a lot cleaner when compared with 
conventional energy sources. Solar energy systems have many significant advantages, like 
being cheaper and not producing any pollutants during operation and being 

almost an infinite energy source when compared with fossil fuels. Nevertheless, solar 
energy systems have some certain negative impacts on the environment just like any other 
energy system. Some of these impacts will be summarized in this section. 

Identification of Potential Impacts: 

a) Discharge of Pollutants 

b) Visual Impacts 

c) Impact on Natural Resources 

d) Air Pollution 

e) Noise Intrusion 

f) Impact on Air 

g) Impact on Ground Water/ Surface Water 

h) Impact on Solid Waste 

i) Impact on Soil 

j) Impact on Natural Resources 
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Low Socio Eco System Not Applicable 

No ecologically sensitive area 
lies within premises 

Total area identified for said 
project is in plant premises and 
no acquisition is needed 

Low Ecosystem 

As said project is purely roof based 
which have no impact on Land 

There is no. significant vegetation 
coverwithin the selected area 

No impact on Land Low Land 

Low Water 

Solar Energy is Carbon Free (No Emissions) 

Plant will require a very low RO Plant. is already installed at site 
quantity ofwater for cleaning of and water.from said source may be 
PV Modules used for deaning of PV Modules 

Low Air Impact 

Environment LeHI of . . . 
P I Reasons Mitigation Measures arameters mpact 

The site allocated is private land within the premises of Atlas Honda Limited (Plant) and 
the applicant has carried out a detailed environment assessment of the site for installation of 
solar PV Plant. Overall findings: 

5. Environmental Assessment/ Conclusion: 

Impact on Solid Waste: It may only Create litter and trash waste which is recyclable and 
may be cleared from site after construction. 

Impact on Soil: No impact as all installed systems are rooftop. 

Impact on Natural Resources: There won't be any increase in the rate of usage of any 
natural resources like any minerals, additional fuel other than vehicles. But there would be 
an increase in the amount of usage of Paper for mapping, enlisting items etc. However, paper 
may be recycled by throwing it in ordinary dustbins, further ensure the maximum usage of 
electronic systems, e.g. emails. 

the production phase are produced as a by-product. Especially, the solar cell batteries pose 
a threat on natural resources by having a short lifespan and containing heavy metals such as 
cadmium. 
Air Pollution: Solar cells do not emit any substances to the air during operation. But there 
could be some emissions during manufacturing and transport. The emissions associated with 
the transport of the modules are insignificant when compared with the emissions associated 
with the manufacture. Transport emissions are 0.1-1 % of the manufacturing emissions. 

Noise: Intrusion Solar cells do not make a noise during operation. But during the 
construction phase, there will be a little noise as usual in other construction activities. 

Impact on Air: There would be no hazardous emissions at site as well as during 
construction phase except Motor Vehicle and Crane. Moreover, there are no objectionable 
odors as well as alternation of air temperature. 

Impact on Ground Water/ Surface Water: There would be no use of water during design 
phase except curing of civil pads during construction, which have no negative impact on 
environment. 
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6. Safety plans, emergency plans 
• Only qualified and authorized electricians will be allowed to undertake servicing or 

maintenance tasks. 
• The authorized personnel will wear appropriate equipment, including a safety harness to 

restrain from falling off the roof, sturdy shoes that will have thick rubber soles to provide 
electrical insulation and good grip and appropriate clothing for personal protection, 
including a hat, sunglasses, gloves and long pants and sleeves. 

• Lock out and tag out procedures will be used before commencement of maintenance tasks. 
• On-going operation and maintenance concerns for solar power systems will be addressed 

properly. These systems are exposed to outdoor weather conditions that enhance the aging 
process, and the infrastructure needs to be in place for the on-going maintenance of these 
systems to assure their safe operation. 

• Properly grounded or double insulated power tools will be used for maintenance tasks. 
• Tools will be maintained in good condition. 
• Working on electrical equipment and circuits will be carried out in de-energized state. 
• Proper pathways will be available for operation, maintenance and firefighting. 
• Fire protection and suppression will be placed at site. 
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• 

3(g) * an affidavit stating whether the applicant has been 
granted any other license under the Act; 

• 
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Maqsood A. Basraa 
Chief Executive Officer 

ant 

Sr. No. Generation License No. Issued To · Gross Capacity Plant Type 
I. SGC/165/2022 4.928 MW -·· 
2. SGC/145/2020 858.80 kW ~- 
3. SGC/146/2020 608.00 kW ,____ 
4. SGC/147/2020 Atlas Energy Ltd. 501.60 kW Solar Power Pl I---~- 

5. SGC/148/2020 638.40 kW 
6. SGC/149/2020 995.60 kW -- ··- 

829.60KW 7. SGC/132/2020 -'-----------~~----··- 

·e 

I, Maqsood Ahmad S/o Ch. Muhammad Sadiq, holding CN,IC No. 35202-2632390- I, Chief Executive 
Officer Atlas Energy Limited, being the duly authorized representative of Atlas Energy Limited, hereby 
confirm that the Applicant has been earlier granted undermentioned licenses by the authority. 

AFFIDAVIT 
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Type ''!•Stamp <16 digit eStamp Number>" send lo fl I 00 

: AFFlDAVIT - 4 
: Maqsood Ahmad [36302-3395362-5] 
: Atlas Energy Limited 
: Maqsood Ahmad [36~02-3395362-5] . 
: 64/xx, khayaban-e-iqbal, DHA Phase-III, Lahore. 
: 19-Feb-2025, 09: 12:49 AM 
: 26-Feb-2025 
: 2025406D43013F7B 
: Three Hundred Rupees Only 
: For Submission to NEPRA for Generation License Application of HACPL Project. 

Description 
Applicant 
Representative From 
Agent 
Address 
Issue Date 
Delisted On/Validity 
Paid Through Challan 
Amount in Words 
Reason 

Stamp Type: Low Denomination 
:Amount: Rs 300/- 

E-Stamp ID: PB-LHR-5CBC79882SA01SD2 
Payment Reference No.: 0676-29717468 
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3(h) * a duly authorised statement stating whether the 
applicant has been refused grant of license under the Act and, 
if so, the particulars of the refused application, including date 

of making the application and decision on the application; 



Atlas Energy Limited 
64/XX, Khayaban-e-Iqbal, DHA Phase-III, Lahore 
Ph.: (92-42) 37132637-38, Fax: (92-42) 37132634 

I, Magsood Ahmad, Chief Executive Officer and the duly authorized representative of Atlas Energy 
Limited, hereby confirm that Atlas Energy Limited has never been refused or denied a license by the 
National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA) under the Regulation. of Generation, 

\

Transmission, and D~is;~·buti,,on of Electric Power Act, 1997 (NEPRA Act, 1997). 

<:" ~ ... - 

! ~ l 
. ' "j '""\ -, ~?b,. -~ fl 

Maqsood Ahmad 
Chief Executive Officer 
Atlas Energy Limited 

February 20, 2025 

Confirmation Statement 

Registrar 
NF.PRA Tower Attaturk Avenue (East), 
Sector G-5/1, 
Islamabad. 
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• 

3( 6) * Authorization from Board Resolution I Power of 
Attorney 



3(7) * An affidavit as to the correctness, authenticity and 
accuracy of the application, 

• 

• 



This Affidavit is verified on this February 19, 2025, at Lahore that the Contents of the affidavit 
are and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief and that nothing, material and relevant, has 
been kept concealed therein. 

Verification 

DEPONENT 

[ Magsood Ahmad S/o Ch. Muhammad Sadiq, holding CNJC No. 35202-2632390-L Chief 
Executive Officer of Atlas Energy Limited, the duly authorized representative of the Applicant 
Company Solemnly Affirms and declare that the content of the accompanying application for grant 
of generation license is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief and no material 
has been, concealed there form. 

-- 
Affidavit 

_.:,_ J'' ~J~u\~\J.,~,,i~r /~ 1.-~,~J~Cf..,,; J..,...e.,,t51 _~Jv,J.li?,-LJui,..:...1,.,~,7.,¢JL:-~ ;r; ';:: ~; 
Type "eStamp <16 diqit: eStamp Number>" send to flt 00 

: AFFIDAVIT - 4 
: Maqsood Ahmad [35202-2632390-1] 
: Atlas Energy Limited 
: Maqsood Ahmad (35202-2632390-1] 
: 64/xx khayaban-e-iqbal DHA Phase-3 Lahore 
: 19-Feb-2025, 09:13:25 AM 
: 26-Feb-2025 
: 20257B21D2707BE7 
: Three Hundred Rupees Only 
: Affidavit for submission of Generation License Application to NEPRA 

Description 
Applicant 
Representative From 
Agent 
Address 
Issue Date 
Delisted On/Validity 
Paid Through Challan 
Amount in Words 
Reason 

· Stamp Type: Low Denomination 
Amount: Rs 300/- 

E-Stamp ID: PB-LHR-38659EEE24042BOE 
Payment Reference No.: 0676-29717476 

111111111 111111111111 t II I lllllll I IIII Ill 111111111111111 

E-STAMP 
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